
           
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION §38-431.01, THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD
AN OPEN MEETING IN THE SUPERVISORS’ AUDITORIUM, 1400 EAST ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA.
ONE OR MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING BY TELEPHONE
CONFERENCE CALL OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV). ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC
IS WELCOME TO ATTEND THE MEETING VIA ITV WHICH IS HELD AT 610 E. HIGHWAY 260,
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ CONFERENCE ROOM, PAYSON, ARIZONA. THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS:

REGULAR MEETING - TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 17, 2015 - 10:00
A.M.

             
1. CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF

ALLEGIANCE - INVOCATION
 

 

2. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 

A.   Information/Discussion/Action to authorize
the submission of an application for FY
2013/2014 State Community Development
Block Grant (CDBG) State Special
Projects funds in the amount of $300,000 that
will be used for a proposed CDBG owner
occupied housing rehabilitation project in Gila
County and adopt related Resolution Nos.
15-02-01, 15-02-02, and 15-02-03, which are
included as part of this application.  (Malissa
Buzan)

Authorized

 

3. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt
Resolution 15-02-07 which authorizes the
execution of an Intergovernmental Services
Agreement between the Gila County Sheriff's
Office and Tonto Apache Tribe for the
collection of information required under Title
I-Sex Offender Registration and Notification
Act of the Adam Walsh Child Protection and
Safety Act of 2006 for an initial term to begin
once the Agreement has been fully executed

Adopted



and shall end on May 1, 2017.  (Tim Scott)
 

B.   Information/Discussion/Action to authorize
the Gila County Sheriff's Office to
electronically submit a Grant Application to
the Governor's Office of Highway Safety which,
if approved, will be used to purchase 25
Toughbook CF31 computers with docking
stations in the amount of $156,054.85 for a
performance period of October 1, 2015,
through September 30, 2016.   (Keith
Thompson)

Authorized

 

C.   Information/Discussion/Action to direct staff
to begin the process to dispose of S. Burnham
St. and a nearby alley in Midland City.
(Steve Sanders)

Approved

 

D.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) No.
111414 between Gila County and the City of
Globe to facilitate the payment by the County
to the City of Globe for any service -related
work which may arise during the term of the
IGA in an amount not to exceed $50,000
without prior written approval for the period of
December 2, 2014, to December 1, 2015.  
(Jeff Hessenius)

Approved

 

E.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve a
Commercial Service Order and Service Level
Agreement between Gila County and
Suddenlink for a 100 Mb point-to-point
connection between the Globe Courthouse and
the Payson Sheriff’s Office, replacing the
current T1 technology, for a term of 4 years at
an annual cost of $19,200 and a one-time
activation and setup fee of $250; and

Approved



authorize the County Manager's signature on
the Commercial Service Order and Service
Level Agreement.  (Jacque Griffin)

 

F.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve the
purchase of the property at 1309 S. South
Street in Globe, Arizona, in an amount not to
exceed $57,500 plus closing costs, and
authorize the Chairman's signature on the title
documents and deed.  (Steve Stratton and
Jeff Hessenius)

Approved

 

G.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve
Agreement No. 122314-1 between Gila County
and the Globe-Miami Regional Chamber of
Commerce for continued County financial
assistance in the amount of $30,000 to aide in
the marketing campaigns of the Globe-Miami
Chamber of Commerce, the Payson Chamber
of Commerce, and the Tonto Basin Chamber
of Commerce for FY 2014-2015.  (Don
McDaniel)

Approved

 

H.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve the
proposal option selected by the Board of
Supervisors, between Gila County and Empire
CAT for the purchase or lease-purchase of one
2015, CT660S SBA 6x4 roll-on/roll-off truck
in the total amount of the Option selected.  
(Jeff Hessenius and Steve Stratton)

Tabled

 

4. CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any
matter on the Consent Agenda will be
removed from the Consent Agenda and
discussed and voted upon as a regular
agenda item upon the request of any
member of the Board of Supervisors.)

 

 



A.   Approval of Amendment No. 1 to an
Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No.
KR13-0132) between the Arizona Supreme
Court, Administrative Office of the Courts
(AOC), and the Gila County Board of
Supervisors through the County School
Superintendent for Title I, Special Education,
and other associated funds in the amount of
$36,786 to support the Gila County Juvenile
Detention Education Program effective upon
the date of final signature through June 30,
2016.

Approved

 

B.   Approval of Amendment No. 1 to an
Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No.
ADHS13-028437) between Gila County and
the Arizona Department of Health Services
decreasing the total Agreement amount from
$238,000 to $102,000 for the period
of January 1, 2015, through July 31, 2017,
that is used to provide for the Maternal,
Infant, and Early Childhood Home Visiting
program.

Approved

 

C.   Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement
between Gila County and the Town of Kearny,
whereby the Town of Kearny Library will
become a designated "Access Point" under the
Workforce Investment Act for the period
of January 1, 2015, through June 30, 2015.

Approved

 

D.   Approval of an Independent Contractor
Agreement - 2015 Utility Assistance Programs
(Contract No. 01142015) between the Arizona
Community Action Association (ACAA) and the
Gila County Community Services Division,
Community Action Program, whereby ACAA
will administer funding in the amount of
$9,000 which will be used to  provide

Approved



weatherization services, utility repair and
replacement, utility deposits, and bill payment
assistance to eligible citizens residing in Gila
County for the period of January 14, 2015,
through September 30, 2015.

 

E.   Approval of a Memorandum of Understanding
between Gila County and Greater
Florence Chamber of Commerce,
whereby Greater Florence Chamber of
Commerce will become a designated "Access
Point" under the Workforce Investment Act for
the period of January 19, 2015, through June
30, 2015.

Approved

 

F.   Approval of Subgrantee Agreement No.
14-AZDOHS-HSGP-140302-02 between
Arizona Department of Homeland Security and
the Gila County Sheriff's Office in the amount
of $35,375 for the Critical Incident Responder
Safety and Health-Dive Team Project for a
performance period of October 1, 2014,
through September 30, 2015.

Approved

 

G.   Approval of Subgrantee Agreement No.
14-AZDOHS-HSGP-140302-01 between
Arizona Department of Homeland Security and
the Gila County Sheriff's Office in the amount
of $25,912 for the Communications
Upgrade-Dispatch Project for a performance
period of October 1, 2014, through September
30, 2015.

Approved

 

H.   Approval of Subgrantee
Agreement-Reallocation No.
13-AZDOHS-HSGP-130301-02 between
Arizona Department of Homeland Security and
the Gila County Sheriff's Office in the amount

Approved



of $12,956 for the Communications
Upgrade-Dispatch Project for a performance
period of January 1, 2015, through July 31,
2015.

 

I.   Approval of the following precinct
committeemen appointments as submitted by
the Gila County Republican Committee:  Star
Valley - Laura Bartlett-Armstrong; Star Valley
- Dawn Brunson; and, Star Valley - Michael
White.

Approved

 

J.   Acknowledgment of the January 2015 monthly
activity report submitted by the Globe
Regional Constable's Office.

Acknowledged

 

K.   Acknowledgment of the January 2015 monthly
activity report submitted by the Payson
Regional Constable's Office

Acknowledged

 

L.   Approval of the January 20, 2015, Board of
Supervisors' meeting minutes.

Approved

 

M.   Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000
which have been approved by the County
Manager for the weeks of January 19, 2015,
to January 23, 2015; and January 26, 2015 to
January 30, 2015.

Acknowledged

 

N. Approval of finance
reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of
February 10, 2015, and February 17, 2015.

Approved

 

5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is No Comments



5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is
held for public benefit to allow individuals to
address the Board of Supervisors on any issue
within the jurisdiction of the Board of
Supervisors. Board members may not discuss
items that are not specifically identified on the
agenda. Therefore, pursuant to Arizona
Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the
conclusion of an open call to the public,
individual members of the Board of
Supervisors may respond to criticism made by
those who have addressed the Board, may ask
staff to review a matter or may ask that a
matter be put on a future agenda for further
discussion and decision at a future date.

No Comments

 

6. At any time during this meeting pursuant to
A.R.S. §38-431.02(K), members of the Board of
Supervisors and the County Manager may
present a brief summary of current events. No
action may be taken on issues presented.

Presented

 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928)
425-3231 AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL
7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE AND ASK THE OPERATOR TO CONNECT YOU TO
(928) 425-3231.

THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING
LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE BOARD’S ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION §38-431.03(A)((3)

THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE
MEETING



   

ARF-2964     Public Hearing      2. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/17/2015  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, Director 
Submitted By: Christine Lopez, Grants Administrator, Community Services Division
Department: Community Services Division Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.
Fiscal Year: 2015 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

07-1-2015 to 06-30-2016 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Community Development Block Grant State Special Projects Application for FY 2014 funds.

Background Information
The Arizona Department of Housing expects to allocate approximately $1,178,677 in Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding for a State Special Projects Account.  Each year the Arizona
Department of Housing takes the remainder of the previous fiscal years' (FY 13/14) CDBG account
funds, places them in an account titled "State Special Projects", and offers these funds via a Notice of
Funding Availability (NOFA) in a competitive funding round application process.   The FY 13/14  CDBG
State Special Project Account funds will be awarded for projects/ programs operating in fiscal year 2015
through 2016 (FY2015/2016).   The maximum amount of funding an agency may apply for is $330,000.

In the past, Gila County Community Services has received State Special Projects funding which was
utilized to operate an Owner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation program.

Evaluation
This is an application to submit for Community Development Block Grant FY 13/14 State Special
Project Account funds.  CDBG State Special Projects funds are funneled through the Arizona
Department of Housing.  Funding, if awarded, would be in the amount of $330,000.

A public hearing regarding the use of CDBG funds must be held at this time.  This request is based on
citizen input, as well as local and state planning objectives presented at previous public
hearings.  Public hearings requesting citizen input were held on January 30, 2015, and February 2,
2015.  The public hearings address use of all CDBG funds that will be applied for in FY 2015,
including  Community Development Block Grant Regional Account funding in the amount of
approximately $113,000 to be utilized for owner-occupied housing rehabilitation. 

Conclusion
If approval is granted and funding awarded, Gila County Community Services will be able to provide
services in the form of single family owner-occupied housing rehabilitation to eligible citizens residing in
Gila County.  Resolution No. 15-02-01 authorizes the submission of an application for FY 2014 CDBG
State Special Projects Account funds and a future application for FY 2015/2016 Community
Development Block Grant Regional Account, certifying that said application meets the community's
previously identified housing and community development needs and the requirements of the activities
outlined in said application.  Resolution No. 15-02-02 authorizes the adoption of Owner-Occupied
Housing Rehabilitation Guidelines dated April 5, 2006, in relation to an application for FY 2015
Community Development Block Grant Regional Account and FY 2014 State Special Projects funds for an
owner occupied housing rehabilitation activity. Resolution No. 15-02-03 authorizes adopting a
Residential Anti-Displacement and Relocation Assistance Plan for FY 2015 as required under section 104



(D) of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 as amended.

Recommendation
The Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve this
application and adopt the associated resolutions.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the submission of an application for FY 2013/2014 State
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) State Special Projects funds in the amount of $300,000
that will be used for a proposed CDBG owner occupied housing rehabilitation project in Gila County and
adopt related Resolution Nos. 15-02-01, 15-02-02, and 15-02-03, which are included as part of this
application.  (Malissa Buzan)

Attachments
FY 14/15 CDBG SSP Application
Resolution No. 15-02-01
Resolution No. 15-02-02
Resolution No. 15-02-03
2014 CDBG Disclosure Report
OOHR Housing Rehab Guidelines
CDBG Public Hearing Notice
CDBG Application Certification



 

 Page 1 of 3 

  REV. 3‐2013 

                                                 FORM 1 
FY 14/15 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 

APPLICATION COVER SHEET 

 
A. Regional Account (RA) COG:               B. State Special Project (SSP) OOHR 

  C. Colonias    D. NRS:  Date approved:      /    /           Approval on page:            

1. Applicant and DUNS Number: 

          Gila County  02407139 

2. Legislative/ Congressional Districts: 

1/5 

3. Address (with 9‐digit zip code): 5515 S. Apache Ave, Suite 200, 

Globe, Az. 85501 

  Name of County Applicant Located In: Gila 
4. Contact Person/Title (Grantee)  
Malissa Buzan/Director 

5. Contact Person/Title (COG/Other):  

Malissa Buzan/Director 

Phone/Fax/Email: 928‐425‐7631/928‐425‐

9468/mbuzan@gilacountyaz.gov 
Phone/Fax/Email: 928‐425‐9468 mbuzan@gilacountyaz.gov 

6.  Complete the following information for the activities for which you are requesting funds in a single contract (maximum of 2 

including Administration). Complete an additional Form 1 for each additional activity included in the application. Item d: Fund 

types are (1) Leverage, (2) Program Income, or (3) Other. 

a. Activity Name  b. CDBG Funds c. Non‐CDBG Funds d. Fund Type  e. Total Funds

1.    Administration    54,000.00 0 CDBG  54,000.00

2.     OOHR  246,000.00 0 CDBG  246,000.00

Total CDBG Funds Requested for this Project (Activities #1 and #2):   $   300,000.00

8.  List all other activities applied for this fiscal year.  Indicate by  which application includes the required general information 

(Certifications, Disclosure Report, etc.) and administration funds.   Note that there will be a separate contract for each activity 

except Administration. 

Activity Name  Amount (CDBG $ only)  CDBG USE ONLY ‐ Contract No. 

  a. CDBG Regional Account FY 13  112,009  

  b.  CDBG Regional Account FY 14  113,139  

  c.                         

  d.                         

9.  Total CDBG Funds Requested (all activities applied for this fiscal year, including administration):  $                     525,146.00 

10. Certification:  To the best of my knowledge and belief, data in this application are true and correct, the document has been duly 

authorized by the governing body of the applicant and the applicant will comply with the attached Certifications if the assistance is 

approved. 

Signature of the Chief Elected Official  Date: 

February 17, 2015 

Name (typed): Michael A. Pastor    Title: Chairman, Gila County Board of Supervisors 

 



 

 Page 2 of 3 

  REV. 3‐2013 

 
FORM 1 

FY ____ COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 

APPLICATION COVER SHEET 
 

A., B. and C.  Indicate whether this application is to a Regional Account, SSP or to the Colonias Set Adise. If to a Regional 

Account, indicate which COG by name, i.e., NACOG, WACOG, CAAG or SEAGO.  

 

D.   Indicate if the application includes a Neighborhood Revitalization Strategy (NRS).  A NRS must be approved before 

the application is submitted and the application must include a copy of the approval letter from ADOH.  

 

LINE ITEM INSTRUCTIONS: 

 

  1.  Provide the name of the applicant. 

 

  2.  Indicate the Congressional (federal) and Legislative (state) District(s) in which your community is located. 

 

  3.  Provide the complete mailing address, including zip code + four, of the applicant community and the county it is 

located in. 

 

  4.‐5.  Enter the name, title, telephone number, fax number, and e‐mail address for a Contact Person who is a local 

government employee or elected official.  

 

COG staff may be named as a CDBG co‐contact but a person employed by or an elected official of the local 

government must be named as the primary CDBG Contact Person.  

 

CDBG prefers having one primary CDBG Contact Person with the Grantee and COG.  However, we realize that 

some grantees wish to have additional persons named.  These should be provided on an additional attached sheet 

and be officially designated as well. 

 

  6.a.  List only ONE (1) activity other than Administration. Please include a descriptive activity name, e.g., type of public 

improvement and whether new or replacement with the type of activity following the descriptive name.   

 

  6.b.  Show the amount of CDBG funds requested for each activity. Use whole dollars only. If Activity #1, 

Administration, will not be funded with CDBG funds or is included with another activity, enter ‐0‐ in the space; do 

NOT delete the column.  

 

  6.c.  Show the total of all ʺNon‐CDBG Fundsʺ that will be necessary to complete the activity.  ʺNon‐CDBG Fundsʺ 

include three categories of funds/resources: 

 

 (L) Leverage, which must meet the definition in the specific COGsʹ MOD (for an RA application), or the 

definition in the handbook (for an SSP application), and must be tracked by the community. 
 

 (PI) Program Income from a prior CDBG grant. 
 

 (O) Other, reflects the minimum amount of other funds or the value of other resources (such as city crews or 

equipment) necessary to complete the activity as described in the application. 

 

  6.d.  Indicate the type of funds, i.e., CDBG, Leverage, Program Income, or Other.  Include a copy of either an adopted 

resolution or legally‐binding commitment to support guarantee of other funds. 

 6.e.   Total of (b) and (c) for each activity 



 

 Page 3 of 3 

  REV. 3‐2013 

  7.  Show the total amount of CDBG funds from the two activities listed in Section 6. 

  8.  Include the amount of CDBG funds requested for each activity and indicate which activity/contract will include 

Administration funds and other required information that is submitted with only one application/activity such as 

Certifications, Disclosure Report, Public Participation information, etc. 

  9.  Show the total amount of CDBG funds for ALL applications submitted this fiscal year. 

  10.  This form must have an original signature. Only the Chief Elected Official or other individual as authorized by the 

governing body of the applicant in the Resolution to Submit an Application for CDBG funds can provide this 

signature. 



 

    Page 1 of 2 

REV. 5‐2013 

 

                                                          FORM 2 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 

GENERAL ADMINISTRATION SUMMARY 

1.  Applicant:  Gila County       

ITEM    a. CDBG $  b. Non‐CDBG $*  c. Total 

2.  TAAP. Total costs for COG Technical Assistance and 

Application Preparation, as per local government/ 

COG Agreement 

                                   

3.  Salaries, Wages, Fringe Benefits  % or 

Hours 

 

3.1     Position #1 Title:Director  10%  10545.00                         

3.2     Position #2 Title: Admin Assistant   18%  18695.00                         

3.3     Position #3 Title: Fiscal Manager  18%  7350.00                         

3.4     Position #4 Title: Accounting Clerk, Sr.   18%  8960.00               

4.  Professional Services (Contractual)       

4.1     For:                                                

4.2     For:                                                

4.3     For:                                                

5.  Travel  3000.00                         

6.  Office Supplies and Equipment  2000.00                         

7.  Advertising/Publications  250.00                         

8.  Indirect Costs (% documented by cost  

  allocation plan) 

                         

9.  Other Operating Expenses (specify)       

9.1  Item 1: Rent  2500.00                         

9.2  Item 2:                                                

9.3  Item 3:                                                

9.4 Other (Fair Housing, Section 504, etc.)  700.00                         

10.  TOTALS  54,000.00                         

*  Indicate in parentheses if the amount is Leverage (L), Program Income (PI), or Other (O). If the amount is a 
mixture of different types of funds, indicate the amount for each type.  

 

11.  a.  Indicate who will be in charge of the financial record keeping (give name and title): Nick Montague, Accountant 

   

  b.  Provide  the street address  for  the  location of  the  financial  records: 5515 S. Apache Ave., Ste 200, Globe, Az 

85501 
12. Provide a narrative explanation on the source of funds listed in column b. identified as Leverage (L) or Other (O): 

             



Page 1 of 3 
REV. 7‐2013 

 

 

12. Provide a narrative explanation on the source of Non‐CDBG funds listed in column b. identified as Leverage (L) or 

Other (O):              

FORM 3 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 

ACTIVITY BUDGET 

1. Applicant: Gila County  2. Activity Name: OOHR 

  a. CDBG $  b. Non‐CDBG $ *  c. TOTAL $ 

3. Environmental Review Record 

Check box if included in Administration:   
                                   

4. Design/Engineering/Inspection (or other Professional 

Services related to project) 

Previously Procured      Procure      In‐House   

196,800.00              196,800.00 

5. Construction Contract Work (include materials and DB 

wage rates) 
                                   

6. Fixed Asset Equipment                                     

7. Land Acquisition (includes easements) (must comply 

with the Uniform Relocation Act) 
                                   

8. Rehabilitation Services (if this exceeds 20% of total 

activity costs, attach a rationale) 

Procure      In‐House   

49,200.00              49,200.00 

9. Other           (specify or attached as page           )                                     

10. For City/Town, County or Other Construction 

10.1     Purchase of Materials                                     

10.2.a  Employees (documentation attached as page            

regarding number of employees, wages, number of 

hours, etc. ) 

                                   

10.2.b  Offenders                                     

10.2.c  Volunteers                                     

10.3     Equipment (Use vs. Purchase) (documentation 

attached regarding rental rates, number of hours to 

be used, type of equipment, etc.) 

                                   

10.4     Other (attached as page           )                                     

11. TOTALS  246,000.00              246,000.00 

* Indicate in parentheses if the amount on Non‐CDBG is Leverage (L), Program Income (PI), or Other (O). If the amount is a 
mixture of different types of funds, indicate the amount for each type.  



 

              Page 1 of 7 
REV. 3‐2013 

FORM 8

               COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
ACTIVITY DESCRIPTION: HOUSING ACTIVITIES 

 
1.  Applicant:  Gila County  2.  Activity Name: OOHR 

  

3.  Map(s) attached as page(s)              

  Examples of eligible housing activities  include: private housing rehabilitation, public housing rehabilitation and 

modernization,  infrastructure  in  support  of  new  housing,  new  construction  by  eligible  sub‐recipients, housing 

services, property acquisition or conversion. 
 

4.  Type of Housing Activity (check all which apply): 

 
  a.    Single family unit, owner‐occupied residential rehabilitation (Housing Rehab Guidelines required) 
 
  b.    Residential rental rehabilitation, one or two units (one of which must be occupied by  

      low and moderate income persons) (Guidelines required) 
 
  c.    Residential rental rehabilitation, more than two units (51% low and moderate income persons) 
 
  d.    New housing construction (only eligible if executed by a sub‐recipient) 

      Proforma attached as page            
 
  e.    Acquisition or conversion of property for housing 

      Proforma attached as page            
 
  f.    Housing services 
 
  g.    Lead‐based paint hazard evaluation and reduction 
 
  h.    Infrastructure related to a proposed housing project 

      Proforma attached as page            
 
  i.    Home Ownership Assistance (Home Ownership Assistance Guidelines required) 
 
  j.   NRS Area (If the activity will take place in an approved NRS area, persons do not need to be income 

qualified. However, the applicant must also complete Form 13 and attach to application as page           .) 
 
  k.    Commercial Rehabilitation 

      l.      Other (describe):            

5.  WHAT ARE YOU GOING TO DO? 

Describe the activity and what is intended to be accomplished.  See instructions. 

Gila County will provide owner occupied housing rehab to approximately 6 low ‐ moderate income 

households.  We will spend approximately $50,000.00 per project to bring them up to minimum State 

Rehabilitation Standards.   



 

              Page 2 of 7 
REV. 3‐2013 

 

6.  For construction or acquisition or conversion of property, complete the following: 

 

  a.  Is the site properly zoned? Yes   No    If no, when will the zoning issue be resolved? 

           

 

b.  Are all utilities presently available to the site?   Yes    No   If no, which utilities must be brought to the 

site?            

            Who has the responsibility for bringing utilities to the site? 

 

  c.    Provide copy of deed of ownership as page 

7.  WHY ARE YOU GOING TO DO IT? 

  Describe the problems and conditions or other factors that indicate a need for the activity. 

Gila County has an area of 4,768 square miles.  With a high percentage of homes built before 1939.  Our housing 

stock is in a very poor condition, especially in the southern part of Gila County, with a high percentage of elderly 

population.  We would like to continue to preserve our housing stock allowing our elderly and low‐income 

population to remain in their homes as long as possible.  Our economic outloook has remained dismal, with 

above average unemployment rates hovering around 10%, and waves of foreclosure emergencies and ressession, 

that the rest of the State of Arizona is experiencing, our housing stock continues to be wholly inadequate and our 

waiting list for OOHR runs at the 100 applicants range.  That is why we propose to rehabilitate 6 owner occupied 

single family residences.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.  Indicate: 

  a.   Total Number of People to be Served: 12    d.   Total Number of Units: 6 

  b.   Total Low Moderate People: 12    e.  Total Low Moderate Units: 6 

  c.   LM Percentage:               f.  Source of Information as page:            

9. Will there be program income generated from the activity?   Yes    No 

If yes, describe the program income source and estimated amount.  If a DPL is required, this must be completed 

and RLF procedures developed and submitted for approval to CDBG. 

           

 



 

              Page 3 of 7 
REV. 3‐2013 

  

10. Describe the income qualification process to be used. Include the name, title, and phone number of the persons 

responsible for the process and indicate the date the information was obtained. 
 

Estelle Belarde, Housing Assistant, (928) 425‐7631, will be responsible for ensuring that the 6 households meet 

low ‐ moderate income guidelines, by obtaining income and assett verification via third party sources.   

11.  If applicable, it is assumed that the activity will use federal Housing Quality Standards (HQS) as the housing 

rehabilitation standard. If HQS or a more stringent state or local code will not be adhered to, describe the code or 

standard that will be used and provide a rationale for the proposed standard.  This cannot be “NA.”  Please 

specify the specific code that will be followed in your rehab program, which at a minimum must be HQS. 

We will use HQS as well as the State of Arizona Rehabilitation Standards for all projects. 

 

12.  For housing acquisition, conversion, or new construction projects and programs, indicate the entities that will 

act as the owner, developer, and manager, including a name, title, address and phone number of a responsible 

official for each entity (if available). 

n/a 

   

   

13.  a.  For housing acquisition, construction, or conversion projects, attach documentation verifying a  

commitment to finance the project and make the dwellings available to low and moderate income households 

as page n/a. 

 

  b.  Proforma attached as page            

 

14.  For all rental housing projects and programs:  

a. attach a listing of the rents to be charged after rehabilitation (which must be affordable);  

b.  a definition of affordable; 

c.   a method whereby such were made public; and 

d. if available, submit a copy of the draft agreement with the landlord that includes the process to be used to 

solicit tenants (see page           ) 

 



 

              Page 4 of 7 
REV. 3‐2013 

 

15.  For homeownership assistance, include the following: 
 
a. Indicate if potential homeowners will seek their own financing. If a particular financing entity has been identified, 

provide the name, address and contact person for that entity. 

           

 

b.  Name, address, and phone number of the entity that will provide housing support services: 

           

 

16. Ensure that any permanent relocation or displacement impacts of the project have been considered. This could 

potentially occur with the removal of low income housing stock from the market through demolition, acquisition, 

or conversion of dwellings. Contact the Council of Governments or CDBG Program staff for details. 

 

  Permanent Relocation/displacement anticipated?        Yes (Describe plans or see page           )           No 

 

17.  If assistance to an eligible non‐profit organization is proposed, supplemental information must be provided with 

your application. This information must include: 

   

a.  Copy of articles of incorporation attached as page            

 

b.  By‐laws attached as page            

 

c.  Tax exempt status attached as page            

 

d.  Current board of directors attached as page            

 

b. Most recent audit and financial report attached as page            

c. Civil Rights Certification attached as page            

d. Financial Management Certification attached as page            

h.  Statement from the Corporation Commission that the corporation has not been dissolved and is currently in 

good standing, attached as page            

 

 

 



    Page 1 of 2 

REV. 3‐2013 

FORM 12 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 

NATIONAL OBJECTIVE COMPLIANCE 

DEMOGRAPHIC/RACIAL DATA 

1. Applicant 

Name 

Gila County  2. Project 

  Name 

OOHR 

 

 

This form should be used to capture demographic/racial data for CDBG‐funded projects.   

 

3.  Demographic/Ethnicity Data  

a) Source of Racial/Demographic Data: Application Forms 

b) See page(s):            

 

Demographic Category 
Number/ # 

4a) 

Percentage/ % 

4b) 

Hispanic/Latino 

Ethnicity/# 

5a) 

Percentage/ % 

5b) 

Single Race Categories   

White  6 100 2  30

Black/African American             

Asian             

American Indian/Alaskan Native             

Native Hawaiian/Other Pacific Islander             

   

Multi‐Race Categories:   

American Indian/Alaskan Native & 

White 

           

Asian & White             

Black/African American & White             

American Indian/Alaskan Native & 

Black/African American   

           

Other Multi‐Racial             

Non‐Hispanic/Latino Ethnicity            

TOTAL     6)                                           
6 100 2  30

 

Total Hispanic/Latino Ethnicity     7)    2   

 
For reporting purposes, Hispanic is no longer classified as a race, but as an ethnic category.  Thus, those collecting 

data on race must also ask the individual if he/she considers his/herself to be of Hispanic ethnicity.  The Hispanic 

ethnicity has the potential to span across all races. Those who are White, Black, Asian, Pacific Islanders, American 

Indian, or Other Multi‐Racial may also be counted as being Hispanic. 

 



Page 1 of 5 
REV. 3-2013 

 

FORM 16 ‐ HR 
CDBG ‐ MILESTONES FOR PROJECT PLANNING 

HOUSING REHABILITATION 

1. Applicant   Gila County                                                                                                            2. Activity OOHR

Indicate below the initiation and completion dates for activity milestones (i.e. major events that must be accomplished to initiate and implement the CDBG 

funded activity). Month one is the first month after the effective date of the contract. If a milestone has already been achieved on an item pre‐approved by the 

CDBG program, please note it. 

Milestones                               Months  1

June 15 

2

July 15 

3

Aug 15 

4

Sep 15 

5

Oct 15 

6 

Nov 15 

7

Dec 15 

8

Jan 16 

9

Feb 16 

10

Mar 16 

11

Apr 16 

12

May 16 

General ERR  3/15/14                                                                                                                                     

Marketing  Ongoing  X                          X              X                          X                         

Quarterly Progress Reports                                                  10‐15‐15                          1‐15‐16                          4‐15‐16             

Request for Payment (at least quarterly)                                                                                                                                                 

House(s) #1, 2                         

ERR (Appendix A)                                                  10‐15‐15                                                                                     

Initial Inspection & Work write‐ups                                                  x  11‐15‐15                                                                         

Procurement                                                              x  12‐15‐15                                                             

Construction & Final Inspection                                                                                    1‐15‐16  x  x  x  5‐30‐16 

                                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                           

House(s) #3,4                         

ERR (Appendix A)                                                                                                                                                 

Initial Inspection & Work write‐ups                                                                                         2‐1‐16                                     

Procurement                                                                                                              x  x  5‐1‐16 

Construction & Final Inspection                                                                                                                                      x 

                                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                           

 



Page 2 of 5 
REV. 3-2013 

 

House(s) #                                   

ERR (Appendix A)                                                                                                                                                 

Initial Inspection & Work write‐ups                                                                                                                                                 

Procurement                                                                                                                                                 

Construction & Final Inspection                                                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                           

House(s) #                                   

ERR (Appendix A)                                                                                                                                                 

Initial Inspection & Work write‐ups                                                                                                                                                 

Procurement                                                                                                                                                 

Construction & Final Inspection                                                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                           

Milestones                              Months   13

Jun 16 

14

Jul 16 

15

Aug 16 

16

Sep 16 

17

Oct 16 

18 

Nov 16 

19

Dec 16 

20

Jan 17 

21

Feb 17 

22

Mar 17 

23

Apr 17 

24

May 17 

Marketing                                                                                                                                                 

Quarterly Progress Reports              7‐15‐16                          10‐15‐16                          1‐15‐17                          4‐15‐17             

Request for Payment (at least quarterly)                                                                                                                                                 

House(s) #3,4 contd                         

ERR (Appendix A)                                                                                                                                                 

Initial Inspection & Work write‐ups                                                                                                                                                 

Procurement  6‐1‐16                                                                                                                                     

Construction & Final Inspection              x  x  x  10‐15‐16                                                                                     

                                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                           

House(s) #,5 6                         



Page 3 of 5 
REV. 3-2013 

 

ERR (Appendix A)                          8‐1‐16                                                                                                             

Initial Inspection & Work write‐ups                                      9‐1‐16                                                                                                 

Procurement                                                  10‐1‐16                                                                                     

Construction & Final Inspection                                                              x  x  x  1‐15‐17                                     

                                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                           

House(s) #7,8(if needed)                         

ERR (Appendix A)                                                                          11‐1‐16                                                             

Initial Inspection & Work write‐ups                                                                                      12‐15‐16                                                 

Procurement                                                                                                  1‐15‐17                                     

Construction & Final Inspection                                                                                                              x  x  5‐31‐17 

                                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                           

House(s) #                                   

ERR (Appendix A)                                                                                                                                                 

Initial Inspection & Work write‐ups                                                                                                                                                 

Procurement                                                                                                                                                 

Construction & Final Inspection                                                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                           

CLOSEOUT                                                                                                                                      5‐31‐17 

Milestones                              Months   25

           

26

           

27

           

28

           

29

           

30 

           

31

           

32

           

33

           

34

           

35

           

36

           

Marketing                                                                                                                                                 

Quarterly Progress Reports                                                                                                                                                 

Request for Payment (at least quarterly)                                                                                                                                                 

House(s) #                                   



Page 4 of 5 
REV. 3-2013 

 

ERR (Appendix A)                                                                                                                                                 

Initial Inspection & Work write‐ups                                                                                                                                                 

Procurement                                                                                                                                                 

Construction & Final Inspection                                                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                           

House(s) #                                   

ERR (Appendix A)                                                                                                                                                 

Initial Inspection & Work write‐ups                                                                                                                                                 

Procurement                                                                                                                                                 

Construction & Final Inspection                                                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                           

House(s) #                                   

ERR (Appendix A)                                                                                                                                                 

Initial Inspection & Work write‐ups                                                                                                                                                 

Procurement                                                                                                                                                 

Construction & Final Inspection                                                                                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                           

CLOSEOUT                                                                                                                                                 





QT-P11 Households and Families: 2010

2010 Census Summary File 1

NOTE: For information on confidentiality protection, nonsampling error, and definitions, see http://www.census.gov/prod/cen2010/doc/sf1.pdf.

Geography: Gila County, Arizona

Subject Number Percent
HOUSEHOLD TYPE

  Total households 22,000 100.0
    Family households [1] 14,294 65.0
      Male householder 10,190 46.3
      Female householder 4,104 18.7
    Nonfamily households [2] 7,706 35.0
      Male householder 3,857 17.5
        Living alone 3,136 14.3
      Female householder 3,849 17.5
        Living alone 3,303 15.0

HOUSEHOLD SIZE

  Total households 22,000 100.0
    1-person household 6,439 29.3
    2-person household 8,898 40.4
    3-person household 2,599 11.8
    4-person household 1,851 8.4
    5-person household 1,164 5.3
    6-person household 556 2.5
    7-or-more-person household 493 2.2

    Average household size 2.39 ( X )
    Average family size 2.94 ( X )

FAMILY TYPE AND PRESENCE OF RELATED AND
OWN CHILDREN
  Families [3] 14,294 100.0
    With related children under 18 years 5,441 38.1
      With own children under 18 years 4,412 30.9
        Under 6 years only 814 5.7
        Under 6 and 6 to 17 years 870 6.1
        6 to 17 years only 2,728 19.1

  Husband-wife families 10,694 100.0
    With related children under 18 years 3,169 29.6
      With own children under 18 years 2,696 25.2
        Under 6 years only 446 4.2
        Under 6 and 6 to 17 years 579 5.4
        6 to 17 years only 1,671 15.6

  Female householder, no husband present families 2,446 100.0
    With related children under 18 years 1,579 64.6
      With own children under 18 years 1,156 47.3
        Under 6 years only 218 8.9
        Under 6 and 6 to 17 years 216 8.8
        6 to 17 years only 722 29.5

1  of 2 01/20/2015



X Not applicable.
[1] A household that has at least one member of the household related to the householder by birth, marriage, or adoption is a "Family household."
Same-sex couple households are included in the family households category if there is at least one additional person related to the householder by
birth or adoption. Same-sex couple households with no relatives of the householder present are tabulated in nonfamily households. Responses of
"same-sex spouse" were edited during processing to "unmarried partner."
[2] "Nonfamily households" consist of people living alone and households which do not have any members related to the householder.
[3] "Families" consist of a householder and one or more other people related to the householder by birth, marriage, or adoption. They do not include
same-sex married couples even if the marriage was performed in a state issuing marriage certificates for same-sex couples. Same-sex couples are
included in the families category if there is at least one additional person related to the householder by birth or adoption. Responses of "same-sex
spouse" were edited during processing to "unmarried partner." Same-sex couple households with no relatives of the householder present are
tabulated in nonfamily households.
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2010 Census.

Summary File 1, Tables P17, P18, P28, P29, P37, P38, and P39.

2  of 2 01/20/2015



DP05 ACS DEMOGRAPHIC AND HOUSING ESTIMATES

2009-2013 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates

Supporting documentation on code lists, subject definitions, data accuracy, and statistical testing can be found on the American Community Survey
website in the Data and Documentation section.

Sample size and data quality measures (including coverage rates, allocation rates, and response rates) can be found on the American Community
Survey website in the Methodology section.

Although the American Community Survey (ACS) produces population, demographic and housing unit estimates, it is the Census Bureau's Population
Estimates Program that produces and disseminates the official estimates of the population for the nation, states, counties, cities and towns and
estimates of housing units for states and counties.

Subject Gila County, Arizona

Estimate Margin of Error Percent Percent Margin of
Error

SEX AND AGE

    Total population 53,335 ***** 53,335 (X)
      Male 26,497 +/-93 49.7% +/-0.2
      Female 26,838 +/-93 50.3% +/-0.2

      Under 5 years 3,098 +/-57 5.8% +/-0.1
      5 to 9 years 3,113 +/-297 5.8% +/-0.6
      10 to 14 years 3,023 +/-315 5.7% +/-0.6
      15 to 19 years 3,113 +/-147 5.8% +/-0.3
      20 to 24 years 2,494 +/-212 4.7% +/-0.4
      25 to 34 years 4,915 +/-201 9.2% +/-0.4
      35 to 44 years 4,934 +/-63 9.3% +/-0.1
      45 to 54 years 7,143 +/-79 13.4% +/-0.1
      55 to 59 years 4,218 +/-363 7.9% +/-0.7
      60 to 64 years 4,472 +/-359 8.4% +/-0.7
      65 to 74 years 7,587 +/-73 14.2% +/-0.1
      75 to 84 years 3,692 +/-246 6.9% +/-0.5
      85 years and over 1,533 +/-227 2.9% +/-0.4

      Median age (years) 47.9 +/-0.3 (X) (X)

      18 years and over 42,121 +/-79 79.0% +/-0.1
      21 years and over 40,612 +/-226 76.1% +/-0.4
      62 years and over 15,410 +/-350 28.9% +/-0.7
      65 years and over 12,812 +/-34 24.0% +/-0.1

      18 years and over 42,121 +/-79 42,121 (X)
        Male 20,782 +/-88 49.3% +/-0.2
        Female 21,339 +/-79 50.7% +/-0.2

      65 years and over 12,812 +/-34 12,812 (X)
        Male 6,117 +/-18 47.7% +/-0.1
        Female 6,695 +/-29 52.3% +/-0.1

RACE

    Total population 53,335 ***** 53,335 (X)

1  of 3 01/20/2015



Subject Gila County, Arizona

Estimate Margin of Error Percent Percent Margin of
Error

      One race 52,160 +/-338 97.8% +/-0.6
      Two or more races 1,175 +/-338 2.2% +/-0.6

      One race 52,160 +/-338 97.8% +/-0.6
        White 42,459 +/-417 79.6% +/-0.8
        Black or African American 306 +/-96 0.6% +/-0.2
        American Indian and Alaska Native 7,910 +/-192 14.8% +/-0.4
          Cherokee tribal grouping 13 +/-19 0.0% +/-0.1
          Chippewa tribal grouping 0 +/-30 0.0% +/-0.1
          Navajo tribal grouping 399 +/-150 0.7% +/-0.3
          Sioux tribal grouping 21 +/-27 0.0% +/-0.1
        Asian 194 +/-93 0.4% +/-0.2
          Asian Indian 69 +/-80 0.1% +/-0.1
          Chinese 8 +/-13 0.0% +/-0.1
          Filipino 93 +/-69 0.2% +/-0.1
          Japanese 12 +/-21 0.0% +/-0.1
          Korean 0 +/-30 0.0% +/-0.1
          Vietnamese 12 +/-20 0.0% +/-0.1
          Other Asian 0 +/-30 0.0% +/-0.1
        Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander 16 +/-25 0.0% +/-0.1
          Native Hawaiian 16 +/-25 0.0% +/-0.1
          Guamanian or Chamorro 0 +/-30 0.0% +/-0.1
          Samoan 0 +/-30 0.0% +/-0.1
          Other Pacific Islander 0 +/-30 0.0% +/-0.1
        Some other race 1,275 +/-319 2.4% +/-0.6
      Two or more races 1,175 +/-338 2.2% +/-0.6
        White and Black or African American 136 +/-85 0.3% +/-0.2
        White and American Indian and Alaska Native 519 +/-219 1.0% +/-0.4
        White and Asian 232 +/-120 0.4% +/-0.2
        Black or African American and American Indian and
Alaska Native

21 +/-20 0.0% +/-0.1

  Race alone or in combination with one or more other
races
    Total population 53,335 ***** 53,335 (X)
      White 43,602 +/-399 81.8% +/-0.7
      Black or African American 545 +/-110 1.0% +/-0.2
      American Indian and Alaska Native 8,533 +/-195 16.0% +/-0.4
      Asian 448 +/-81 0.8% +/-0.2
      Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander 23 +/-28 0.0% +/-0.1
      Some other race 1,449 +/-360 2.7% +/-0.7

HISPANIC OR LATINO AND RACE

    Total population 53,335 ***** 53,335 (X)
      Hispanic or Latino (of any race) 9,702 ***** 18.2% *****
        Mexican 8,492 +/-378 15.9% +/-0.7
        Puerto Rican 42 +/-64 0.1% +/-0.1
        Cuban 22 +/-23 0.0% +/-0.1
        Other Hispanic or Latino 1,146 +/-358 2.1% +/-0.7
      Not Hispanic or Latino 43,633 ***** 81.8% *****
        White alone 34,645 +/-43 65.0% +/-0.1
        Black or African American alone 270 +/-74 0.5% +/-0.1
        American Indian and Alaska Native alone 7,839 +/-174 14.7% +/-0.3
        Asian alone 194 +/-93 0.4% +/-0.2
        Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander alone 16 +/-25 0.0% +/-0.1

        Some other race alone 27 +/-43 0.1% +/-0.1
        Two or more races 642 +/-228 1.2% +/-0.4
          Two races including Some other race 0 +/-30 0.0% +/-0.1
          Two races excluding Some other race, and Three
or more races

642 +/-228 1.2% +/-0.4

2  of 3 01/20/2015



Subject Gila County, Arizona

Estimate Margin of Error Percent Percent Margin of
Error

  Total housing units 32,749 +/-102 (X) (X)

Data are based on a sample and are subject to sampling variability. The degree of uncertainty for an estimate arising from sampling variability is
represented through the use of a margin of error. The value shown here is the 90 percent margin of error. The margin of error can be interpreted
roughly as providing a 90 percent probability that the interval defined by the estimate minus the margin of error and the estimate plus the margin of
error (the lower and upper confidence bounds) contains the true value. In addition to sampling variability, the ACS estimates are subject to
nonsampling error (for a discussion of nonsampling variability, see Accuracy of the Data). The effect of nonsampling error is not represented in these
tables.

The ACS questions on Hispanic origin and race were revised in 2008 to make them consistent with the Census 2010 question wording. Any changes
in estimates for 2008 and beyond may be due to demographic changes, as well as factors including questionnaire changes, differences in ACS
population controls, and methodological differences in the population estimates, and therefore should be used with caution. For a summary of
questionnaire changes see http://www.census.gov/acs/www/methodology/questionnaire_changes/. For more information about changes in the
estimates see http://www.census.gov/population/hispanic/files/acs08researchnote.pdf.

For more information on understanding race and Hispanic origin data, please see the Census 2010 Brief entitled, Overview of Race and Hispanic
Origin: 2010, issued March 2011. (pdf format)

While the 2009-2013 American Community Survey (ACS) data generally reflect the February 2013 Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
definitions of metropolitan and micropolitan statistical areas; in certain instances the names, codes, and boundaries of the principal cities shown in
ACS tables may differ from the OMB definitions due to differences in the effective dates of the geographic entities.

Estimates of urban and rural population, housing units, and characteristics reflect boundaries of urban areas defined based on Census 2010 data. As
a result, data for urban and rural areas from the ACS do not necessarily reflect the results of ongoing urbanization.

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2009-2013 5-Year American Community Survey

Explanation of Symbols:

    1.  An '**' entry in the margin of error column indicates that either no sample observations or too few sample observations were available to
compute a standard error and thus the margin of error. A statistical test is not appropriate.
    2.  An '-' entry in the estimate column indicates that either no sample observations or too few sample observations were available to compute an
estimate, or a ratio of medians cannot be calculated because one or both of the median estimates falls in the lowest interval or upper interval of an
open-ended distribution.
    3.  An '-' following a median estimate means the median falls in the lowest interval of an open-ended distribution.
    4.  An '+' following a median estimate means the median falls in the upper interval of an open-ended distribution.
    5.  An '***' entry in the margin of error column indicates that the median falls in the lowest interval or upper interval of an open-ended distribution. A
statistical test is not appropriate.
    6.  An '*****' entry in the margin of error column indicates that the estimate is controlled. A statistical test for sampling variability is not appropriate.
    7.  An 'N' entry in the estimate and margin of error columns indicates that data for this geographic area cannot be displayed because the number of
sample cases is too small.
    8.  An '(X)' means that the estimate is not applicable or not available.

3  of 3 01/20/2015



Page 1 of 7 

REV. 3‐2013 

 
 

Applicant: Gila County 

 

CDBG Contract No.(if known):                RA for FFY             SSP for FFY 14/15 

 

 

CDBG DISCLOSURE REPORT 
FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR 

 10/1/2015‐ 9/30/2016 

 

This form must be completed and submitted with each application for CDBG funds. 

 

PART I ‐ APPLICANT INFORMATION 

1. Applicant, Complete Address with 9‐digit zip code, Phone Number:  

Gila County Community Services Division 

5515 S. Apache Avenue, Suite 200 

Globe, Arizona 85501‐4430     Telephone:  928‐425‐7631 

2.  Federal Employer Identification Number:   86‐60000444         

3.  Indicate whether this is:           Initial Report    Update Report #           

4.  Amount of this CDBG Grant Applied for: $300,000.00 

PART II ‐ THRESHOLD DETERMINATION 

1.  Is the amount listed in 4(above) more than $500,000?                   Yes       No 

2.  Have you received, can reasonably expect to receive, or applied for other HUD assistance (through 

programs  listed  in Appendix A  of  the  Instructions) during  the  current  federal  fiscal  year, which 

when added to 4. (above) amounts to more than $500,000?           Yes       No 



Page 2 of 7 

REV. 3‐2013 

 

PART III ‐ OTHER GOVERNMENT ASSISTANCE PROVIDED/APPLIED FOR 

Provide the requested information for any other Federal, State and/or local governmental 

assistance either awarded or applied for, which will be used in conjunction with this CDBG grant. 

Name and Address of Agency Providing or 

Applied to for Assistance 

Program Type of 

Assistance 

Amount 

Requested or 

Awarded 

Arizona Dep’t. of Housing  HOME  OOHR  440,000.00

Phoenix AZ                          $         

                                    $         

                                    $         

     

AZCAA  DOE, 

LIHEAP 

Weatheriza

tion 

$         

Phoenix, AZ    SWG/APS  Weatheriza

tion 

$206,000.00

  URRD      7,000.00

               

                                    $         

                                    $         

                                    $         

PART IV ‐ INTERESTED PARTIES 

Identify any person or entity that has a pecuniary interest in this project that exceeds $50,000 or 10% 

of the CDBG assistance (whichever is lower). All consultants, developers or contractors involved in 

the CDBG application or in the planning, development or implementation of the project must be 

identified as an interested party unless procured through a competitive process. 

List of all Persons with a Reportable 

Financial Interest in the Project 

Social Security No. 

or Employer ID 

No. 

Type of 

Participation in the 

Project 

Financial 

Interest in the 

Project            

($ and %) 

                                    $           /           % 

                                    $           /           % 

                                    $           /           % 

                                    $           /           % 

                                    $           /           % 

                                    $           /           % 

                                    $           /           % 

                                    $           /           % 

                                    $           /           % 

                                    $           /           % 

                                    $           /           % 

 



Page 3 of 7 

REV. 3‐2013 

PART V ‐ EXPECTED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 

Identify the source and use of all assistance (include this CDBG grant and all other governmental 

and non‐governmental sources) that has been or may be used in this contract. 

Activity No. and Source  Use 

HOME Partnership Program Fund  Housing Rehabilitation 

URRD   Minor Repair 

DOE/SWG/APS/LIHEAP WAP  Weatherization 

                       

                       

                       

                       

                       

                       

                       

                       

                       

                       

                       

                       

                       

                       

                       

                       

                       

                       

   

PART VI ‐ CERTIFICATION 

I hereby certify that the information provided in this disclosure is true and correct and I am aware that 

any  false  information  or  lack  of  information  knowingly made  or  omitted may  subject me  to  civil  or 

criminal penalties under Section 1001 of Title 18 of the United States Code. In addition, I am aware that if 

I  knowingly  and materially violate  any  required disclosure  of  information,  including  intentional non‐

disclosure, I am subject to a civil money penalty not to exceed $10,000 for each violation. 

 

 

February 17, 2015 

Michael A. Pastor, Chairman  



Page 4 of 7 

REV. 3‐2013 

DISCLOSURE REPORT INSTRUCTIONS 

 

All communities receiving CDBG grants must complete and submit the Disclosure Report either with the 

application or after receipt of the CDBG award letter. Note that no contract will be issued until the CDBG 

Program receives a completed Disclosure Report.  

 

PART I ‐ GRANTEE INFORMATION 

 
Complete information requested. 

Updated reports are required if:  

 Information was omitted from the initial report;  

 Additional interested parties are identified (unless such are identified through other documents such as 

those relating to the procurement process); 

 A person or entityʹs pecuniary interest has increased; 

 Government assistance has increased by $250,000 or 10% (whichever is lower); 

 There is a change in the source and/or use of funds that exceeds the amount of all previously disclosed 

sources and/or uses of funds by $250,000 or 10% (whichever is lower). 

 

PART II ‐ THRESHOLD DETERMINATION 

 
  Complete information requested. 

 

PART III ‐ OTHER GOVERNMENT ASSISTANCE PROVIDED/APPLIED FOR 

 
  Complete information requested. 

 

PART IV ‐ INTERESTED PARTIES 

 
Interested parties are those persons and entities with a reportable pecuniary interest in the project. A pecuniary 

interest means any financial involvement in the project, including such situations in which a person or entity: 

 

 Has an equity interest in the project,  

 Shares in any profit or resale; 

 Shares in any distribution of cash surplus or other assets of the project; 

 Receives compensation for any goods or services provided in connection with the project. (Exception: if 

compensated as a result of a competitive procurement process.) 

 

(The following are not considered interested parties: local CDBG administrative staff, recipients of housing rehab 

assistance, and rehab contractors as long as the rehab agreement is between the property owner and the 

contractor.) 



Page 5 of 7 

REV. 3‐2013 

 
If an entity is disclosed, the information provided in Part IV must include the identification of each officer, 

director, principal stockholder or other official of the entity.  

 

Applicants/grantees may not be aware of all interested parties when completing this report. If, as the project is 

implemented, the grantee becomes aware of other interested parties, it should submit an updated Disclosure 

Report.  

 

PART V ‐ EXPECTED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 

 
Note that this section must include all other assistance identified in Part III as well as the CDBG funds.  

 

Describe the ʺUses of Fundsʺ in general terms ‐ do not provide line item budget information. 

 

PART VI ‐ CERTIFICATION 

 
Have Chief Elected Official sign and date form. 

 

Original must be included with application. 



Page 6 of 7 

REV. 3‐2013 

 

APPENDIX A 

 
The following HUD programs are considered ʺcovered assistanceʺ for purposes of the Disclosure Report. All 

applicants for CDBG funds must review this list to determine if they are receiving or can reasonably expect to 

receive assistance from any of these covered sources in determining whether they reach the threshold (Part II). 

Applicants must consider: a) ALL CDBG funds for which they will apply, both RA and all SSPs; b) ALL other 

ʺcovered assistanceʺ whether received directly from HUD or through the State, e.g., ADOH or DES. 

 

NOTE:  This list does NOT include the HOME program. 

 

1.  Section 312 Rehab Loans under 24 CFR Part 510 except loans for single‐family properties 

2.  Rental Rehabilitation Grant Programs 

3.  Specific projects or activities under Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 to: 

  a) HUD for a Special Purpose Grant 

  b) HUD for a loan under 24 CFR Part 470, Subpart M 

  c) HUD for a grant to an Indian tribe under Title I 

  d) HUD for a grant under the HUD administered Small Cities program; and 

  e) a state or unit of general local government for CDBG  

4.  Emergency Shelter Grants (specific project or activity), under 24 CFR part 576  

5.  Transitional Housing under 24 CFR part 577 

6.  Permanent Housing for Handicapped Homeless Persons under 24 CFR part 578   

7.  Section 8 Housing Assistance Payments (only project‐based housing under the Existing Housing and 

Moderate Rehab Programs under 224 CFR part 88 but including the Moderate Rehabilitation Program for 

Single Room Occupancy Dwellings for the Homeless under Subpart H) 

8.  Section 9 Housing Assistance Payments for Housing for the elderly or handicapped under 24 CFR part 855 

9.  Loans for Housing for the Elderly or Handicapped including operating assistance for Housing for the 

Handicapped under Section 162 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1987 and Seed Money 

Loans under Section 106(b) of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968 

10.  Section 8 Housing Assistance Payments, Special Allocations under 24 CFR part 886 

11.  Flexible Subsidy under 25 CFR part 219, both Operating Assistance under Subpart B and Capital 

Improvement Loans under Subpart C 

12.  Low Rent Housing Opportunities under 24 CFR part 904 

13.  Indian Housing under 24 CFR part 905 

14.  Public Housing Development under 24 CFR art 942 

15.  Comprehensive Improvement Assistance under 24 CFR part 968 

16.  Resident Management under 24 CFR part 964, Subpart C 

17.  Neighborhood Development Demonstration under Section 123 of the Housing and Urban Rural Recovery 

Act of 1983 



Page 7 of 7 

REV. 3‐2013 

18.  Nehemiah Grants under 24 CFR part 280 

19.  Research and Technology Grants under Title V of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1970 

20.  Congregate Services under the Congregate Housing Services Act of 1978 

21.  Counseling Under  Section 106 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968 

22.  Fair Housing Initiates under 24 CFR part 125 

23.  Public Housing Drug Elimination Grants under Section 5129 of the Anti Drug Abuse Act of 1988 

24.  Fair Housing Assistance under 24 CFR part 111 

25.  Public Housing Early Childhood Development Grants under Section 222 of the Housing and urban Rural 

Recovery Act of 1983 

26.  Mortgage Insurance under 24 CFR Subtitle B, chapter II (only multifamily and non residential) 

27.  Supplemental Assistance for Facilities to Assist the Homeless under 24 CFR part 57928.  Shelter Plus 

Care Assistance under Section 837 of the Cranston Gonzales National Affordable Housing Act 

29.  Planning and Implementation Grants for HOPE for Public and Indian Housing Homeownership under 

Title IV, Subtitle A of the Cranston‐Gonzales National Affordable Housing Act 

30.  Planning and Implementation Grants for HOPE for Homeownership of Multifamily Units under Title IV, 

Subtitle B of the Cranston‐Gonzales National Affordable Housing Act 

31.  HOPE for Elderly Independence Demonstration under section 803 of the Cranston‐Gonzales National 

Affordable Housing Act.  

 



Page 1 of 4 

03‐2013 

CERTIFICATIONS 

APPLICANT CERTIFICATIONS FOR FY 14/15 
The applicant hereby assures and certifies that: 

 

  1.   It possesses legal authority to apply for Community Development Block Grant funds, and to 

execute the proposed program. 

  2.  Prior to the submission of the application, the applicantʹs governing body has duly adopted or 

passed as an official act a resolution authorizing the submission of the application, including all 

understandings, assurances, statutes, regulations and orders contained therein, and directing and 

authorizing the person identified as the official representative of the applicant to act in 

connection with the application and to provide such additional information as may be required.  

  3.  Its chief executive officer or other officer of the applicant approved by the State: 

  a.  Consents to assume the status of a responsible Federal official under the National 

Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (NEPA) and other provisions of Federal law, as specified at 

24 CFR 58.1(a) (3) and (a)(4), which further the purposes of NEPA insofar as the provisions of 

such Federal law apply to this program. 

  b.  Is authorized and consents on behalf of the applicant and him(her)self to accept the 

jurisdiction of the federal and State courts for the purpose of enforcement of his/her 

responsibilities as such an official.  

  4.  It will comply with the provisions of Executive Order 11990, relating to evaluation of flood 

hazards and Executive Order 11288 relating to the prevention, control and abatement of water 

pollution. 

  5.  It will, in connection with its performance of environmental assessments under the National 

Environmental Policy Act of 1969, comply with Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation 

Act of 1966 (16 U.S.C. 470), Executive Order 11593, and the Preservation of Archeological and 

Historical Data Act of 1966, P.L. 93‐291 (16 U.S.C. 469a‐1, et.seq.). 

  6.  It will administer and enforce the labor standard requirements of the Davis Bacon Act, as 

amended at 40 U.S.C. 276a‐276a‐5, and the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act at 40 

U.S.C. 327‐333. 

  7.  It will comply with the provisions of 24 CFR Part 24 relating to the employment, engagement of 

services, awarding of contracts or funding of any contractors or subcontractors during any period 

of debarment, suspension or placement in ineligibility status. 

  8.  It shall comply with the requirements of the 1992 Lead Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act of 

42 U.S.C. 4821‐4846 (also Title X of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1992) and 

implementing regulations at 24 CFR Part 35. 

  9.  It will comply with the provisions of 24 CFR part 58 ʺUniform Grant Administrative 

Requirementsʺ and OMB Circular A‐87. 

  10.  It will comply with the American Disabilities Act and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act, as 

amended. 



Page 2 of 4 

03‐2013 

 

  11.  It will comply with 

   a.  Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Pub. L. 88‐ 352), and the regulations issued pursuant 

thereto (24 CFR Part 1). 

   b.  Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (Pub. L. 90‐ 284), as amended. 

   c.  Section 109 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974. 

   d.  Executive Order 11063 pertaining to equal opportunity in housing and nondiscrimination in 

the sale or rental of housing built with Federal assistance. 

   e.  Executive Order 11246, and the regulations issued pursuant thereto (24 CFR Part 130 and 41 

CFR Chapter 60). 

   f.  Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended. 

  g.  Federal Fair Housing Act of 1988, P.L. 100‐430. 

h. The prohibitions against discrimination on the basis of age under the Age Discrimination Act 

of 1973, 42. U.S.C. 6101‐07, and the prohibitions against discrimination against persons with 

handicaps under Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (P.L. 93‐112), as amended, and 

the regulations at 24 CFR Part 8. 

i. The requirements of the Architectural Barriers Act of 1966 at 42 U.S.C. 4151‐415. 

 

12.    It will comply with the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act 

of 1970 and implementing regulations. 

13.         The Applicant certifies that there was no participation in any aspect or manner of the due 

diligence, compilation, preparation, or submission process relating to this Application, or the 

project that is the subject of this Application, by any person(s) or entity(ies) in violation of 

applicable State of Arizona (such as those found at A.R.S. §§ 38‐501 ‐ 38‐511) or federal (such as 

those found at 24 CFR 92.365 relating to the administration of HOME funds or 24 CFR 570.611 

relating to the administration of CDBG funds) conflict of interest laws .  Should ADOH determine 

that such a conflict exists; the Application will be discontinued from consideration of the award 

at issue.  Further, violations of any other applicable state or federal law will similarly result in 

disqualification of the Application from consideration of said award. Applicant further certifies It 
will comply with applicable conflict of interest provisions, incorporate such in all contracts and 

establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using positions for a purpose that is or gives the 

appearance of being motivated by a desire for private gain for themselves or others, particularly 

those with whom they have family, business, or other ties. 

  14.  It will comply with the provisions of the Hatch Act that limits the political activity of employees. 

  15.  It will give representatives of the State, the Secretary of HUD, the Inspector General, and the 

General Accounting Office access to all books, accounts, records, reports, files and other papers, 

things, or property belonging to it or in use by it pertaining to the administration of State CDBG 

assistance. 

  16.  It will ensure that the facilities under its ownership, lease or supervision which shall be utilized 

in the accomplishment of the program are not listed on the Environmental Protection Agencyʹs 

(EPA) list of violating facilities and that it will notify the State of the receipt of any 

communication from the Director of the EPA Office of Federal Activities indicating that a facility 

to be used in the project is under consideration for listing by the EPA. 

  17.  It will comply with the flood insurance purchase requirements of Section 102(a) of the Flood 

Disaster Protection Act of 1973, Pub.L. 93‐234, 87 Stat., 975, approved December 31, 1973. Section 

103 (a) required, on and after March 2, 1974. 



Page 3 of 4 

03‐2013 

  18.  It has AND WILL COMPLY WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THE STATE OF ARIZONA CITIZEN 

AND PUBLIC PARTICIPATION PLAN FOR THE STATE OF ARIZONA CDBG PROGRAM. 

  19.  It has developed plans to minimize displacement of persons as a result of activities assisted in 

whole or in part with CDBG funds and to assist persons actually displaced as a result of such 

activities, and has provided information about such plans to the public. 

  20.  It will not recover any capital costs of public improvements assisted in whole or in part with 

CDBG funds by assessing any amount against properties owned and occupied by persons of low 

and moderate income, including any fee charged or assessment made as a condition of obtaining 

access to such public improvements unless: 

   a.  the CDBG funds are used to pay the proportion of the fee or assessment that is financed 

from other revenue sources, or: 

   b.  it will certify to the State in writing that it lacks sufficient CDBG funds to comply with (a) 

but that it will not assess properties owned by very low‐income persons. 

 

  21.  It will provide all other funds/resources identified in the application, or any additional 

funds/resources necessary to complete the project as described in the application as submitted, or 

as may be later amended. 

  22.  It will comply with the requirements of the Single Audit Act of 1996 and OMB Circular A‐133; 

and if the grant is closed out prior to all funds having been audited, it shall refund to ADOH any 

costs disallowed as a result of any audit conducted after the date of grant closeout. 

  23.  It hereby adopts and will enforce a policy prohibiting the use of excessive force by law 

enforcement agencies within its jurisdiction against any individuals engaged in nonviolent civil 

rights demonstrations; and will enforce applicable State and local laws against physically barring 

entrance to or exit from a facility or location which is the subject of such nonviolent civil rights 

demonstrations within its jurisdiction. 

  24.  It will ensure that, to the best of the knowledge and belief of the undersigned: 

a.  no Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the 

undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or 

employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an 

employee of a Member of Congress in the connection with the awarding of any Federal 

contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into 

of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or 

modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement; 

b.  if any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any 

person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a 

Member of Congress, and officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of 

Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, 

the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form ‐ LLL, ʺDisclosure Form to 

Report Lobbying,ʺ in accordance with its instructions. 

c.  the undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the 

award documents for all sub‐awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub‐grants, and 

contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub‐recipients shall 

certify and disclose accordingly. 

 

   ̋ This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was 

placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this 

certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by 

Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required 



Page 4 of 4 

03‐2013 

certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more 

than $100,000 for each such failure.ʺ 

 

 

  25.  It shall comply with the provisions of Section 102 of the HUD Reform Act of 1989. 

  26.  It shall ensure that efforts are made to recruit minority, disabled and woman owned businesses 

for its vendor/supplier lists. 

 

CERTIFIED BY: 

 

 

___________________________________________      February 17, 2015 

Signature of Mayor or Chair of County Board          Date 

 

Michael A. Pastor, Chairman, Gila County Board of Supervisors 

Typed Name of Mayor or Chair of County Board        

 

NOTE:   The Attorney General has ruled that these Certifications must have an original signature 

when submitted to the CDBG Program. If an applicant submits more than one application, 

the Certifications should be included in the application that includes administration funds 

and other general items such as public participation, resolutions, etc. 



 

Resolution No. 15-02-01  Page 1 of 2 
      

 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-02-01 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF AN APPLICATION FOR 
FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2013/14 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK 
GRANT (CDBG), STATE SPECIAL PROJECTS, AND A FUTURE 
APPLICATION FOR REGIONAL ACCOUNT (RA) FUNDS, 
CERTIFYING THAT SAID APPLICATION MEETS THE 
COMMUNITY’S PREVIOUSLY IDENTIFIED HOUSING AND 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT NEEDS AND THE REQUIREMENTS 
OF THE CDBG PROGRAM; AND AUTHORIZING ALL ACTIONS 
NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT AND COMPLETE THE ACTIVITIES 
OUTLINED IN SAID APPLICATION. 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors is desirous of undertaking community 
development activities; and 
 
WHEREAS, the State of Arizona is administering the CDBG program; and   
 
WHEREAS, the activities outlined within this application address the community’s low and 
moderate income population housing needs; and 
 
WHEREAS, recipients of funds from the CDBG program are required to comply with the 
program guidelines, and state and federal statutes and regulations. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors authorizes an 
application to be made to the State of Arizona, Department of Housing for FY 2013/2014 
Community Development Block Grant, State Special Projects, and Regional Account program 
funds; authorizes its Chairman to sign the application and contract or grant documents for receipt 
and use of these funds for owner occupied housing rehabilitation; and 3) authorizes its Chairman 
to take all actions necessary to implement and complete the activities submitted in said 
application; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors will comply with all 
Community Development Block Grant program guidelines; state and federal statutes and 
regulations applicable to the Community Development Block Grant program; and the 
certifications contained in this application. 



 

Resolution No. 15-02-01  Page 2 of 2 

 

 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of February 2015, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona 
 
Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk   Michael A. Pastor, Chairman    
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Bryan Chambers 
Deputy County Attorney/Civil Bureau Chief 



 

Resolution No. 15-02-02  Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-02-02 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
AUTHORIZING THE ADOPTION OF OWNER-OCCUPIED HOUSING 
REHABILITATION GUIDELINES DATED APRIL 5, 2006, IN 
RELATION TO AN APPLICATION FOR FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2013/2014 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) STATE 
SPECIAL PROJECT ACCOUNT AND FISCAL YEAR 2015 REGIONAL 
ACCOUNT PROGRAM FUNDS FOR AN OWNER OCCUPIED HOUSING 
REHABILITATION ACTIVITY. 

 
 
WHEREAS, Gila County is desirous of undertaking an owner-occupied housing rehabilitation 
program; and 
 
WHEREAS, this program is funded with CDBG and State Special Project Account program 
funds provided by the State of Arizona; and 
 
WHEREAS, the CDBG and State Special Project Account program requires that every local 
government requesting SHF funds for housing rehabilitation adopt specific guidelines for such a 
program; and 
 
WHEREAS, Gila County has developed such Owner-Occupied Housing Rehabilitation 
Guidelines (OOHRGs) dated April 5, 2006, which have been pre-approved by the CDBG 
program.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors hereby 
adopts such OOHRGs dated April 5, 2006, in order to implement its housing rehabilitation 
program that will be funded through its applications for FY 2013/14 CDBG State Special Project 
Account and FY 2015 Regional Account program funds; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Gila County shall utilize such OOHRGs, without 
revisions except such authorized by the chief elected official or a person authorized in writing to 
approve such revisions via the CDBG and State Special Project Account program’s CD-1 form, 
with such revisions submitted to the CDBG and State Special Project Account program within a 
maximum of 10 working days of authorization. 
 
 
 
 



 

Resolution No. 15-02-02                                       Page 2 of 2 

 

 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of February 2015, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona 
 
Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk   Michael A. Pastor, Chairman    
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Bryan Chambers 
Deputy County Attorney/Civil Bureau Chief 
 



 

 
Resolution No. 15-02-03                                                                                                                                                      Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-02-03 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
ADOPTING A RESIDENTIAL ANTI-DISPLACEMENT AND 
RELOCATION ASSISTANCE PLAN FOR FY 2015-2016, AS REQUIRED 
UNDER SECTION 104(d) OF THE HOUSING AND COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT ACT OF 1974 AS AMENDED. 

 
 
WHEREAS, Section 104(d) of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as 
amended, and implementing regulations require that each applicant for Community Development 
Block Grant funds must adopt, make public and certify that it is following a residential anti-
displacement and relocation assistance plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, Gila County is submitting an application to the Arizona Department of Housing for 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and State Special Project funds. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Gila County Board of Supervisors does 
hereby adopt the Residential Anti-displacement and Relocation Assistance Plan as described 
below. 
 
RESIDENTIAL ANTIDISPLACEMENT AND RELOCATION ASSISTANCE PLAN 
The County of Gila will replace all occupied and vacant occupy-able low/moderate income 
dwelling units demolished or converted to a use other than as low/moderate income housing as a 
direct result of activities assisted with funds provided under the Housing and Community 
Development Act of 1974 as amended. 
 
All replacement housing will be provided within three years of the commencement of the 
demolition or rehabilitation relating to conversion. 
 
Before obligating or expending funds that will directly result in such demolition or conversion, 
the County of Gila will make public and submit to the Arizona Department of Housing the 
following information in writing:  
 
1. A description of the proposed activity; 
2. The general location on a map and approximate number of dwelling units by size (number of 
bedrooms) that will be demolished or converted to a use other than as LM dwelling units as a 
direct result of the assisted activity; 
 



 

Resolution No. 15-02-03                                     Page 2 of 2 

 

3. A time schedule for the commencement and completion of the demolition or conversion; 
4. The general location on a map and approximate number of dwelling units by size (number of 
bedrooms) that will be provided as replacement dwelling units; 
5. The source of funding and a time schedule for the provision of replacement dwelling units; 
and 
6. The basis for concluding that each replacement dwelling unit will remain a LM dwelling unit 
for at least 10 years from the date of initial occupancy. 
7. Information demonstrating that any proposed replacement of housing units with smaller 
dwelling units (e.g., a 2-bedroom unit with two 1-bedroom units), or any proposed replacement 
of efficiency or single-room occupancy (SRO) units with units of a different size, is appropriate 
and consistent with the housing needs and priorities identified in the State of Arizona's approved 
Consolidated Plan (CP). 
 
Gila County Housing Services will provide relocation assistance, as described in the ACT and 
implementing regulations, to each LM household displaced by demolition of housing or by the 
conversion of a LM dwelling unit to another use as a direct result of assisted activities. 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of February 2015, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona 
 
Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk   Michael A. Pastor, Chairman    
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Bryan Chambers, Deputy County Attorney/ 
Civil Bureau Chief 



Page 1 of 7 

REV. 3‐2013 

 
 

Applicant: Gila County 

 

CDBG Contract No.(if known):                RA for FFY             SSP for FFY 14 

 

 

CDBG DISCLOSURE REPORT 
FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR 

 10/1/2013‐ 9/30/2014 

 

This form must be completed and submitted with each application for CDBG funds. 

 

PART I ‐ APPLICANT INFORMATION 

1. Applicant, Complete Address with 9‐digit zip code, Phone Number:  

Gila County Community Services Division 

5515 S. Apache Avenue, Suite 200 

Globe, Arizona 85501‐4430     Telephone:  928‐425‐7631 

2.  Federal Employer Identification Number:   86‐60000444         

3.  Indicate whether this is:           Initial Report    Update Report #           

4.  Amount of this CDBG Grant Applied for: $300,000.00 

PART II ‐ THRESHOLD DETERMINATION 

1.  Is the amount listed in 4(above) more than $500,000?                   Yes       No 

2.  Have you received, can reasonably expect to receive, or applied for other HUD assistance (through 

programs  listed  in Appendix A  of  the  Instructions) during  the  current  federal  fiscal  year, which 

when added to 4. (above) amounts to more than $500,000?           Yes       No 



Page 2 of 7 

REV. 3‐2013 

 

PART III ‐ OTHER GOVERNMENT ASSISTANCE PROVIDED/APPLIED FOR 

Provide the requested information for any other Federal, State and/or local governmental 

assistance either awarded or applied for, which will be used in conjunction with this CDBG grant. 

Name and Address of Agency Providing or 

Applied to for Assistance 

Program Type of 

Assistance 

Amount 

Requested or 

Awarded 

Arizona Dep’t. of Housing  HOME  OOHR  440,000.00

Phoenix AZ                          $         

                                    $         

                                    $         

     

AZCAA  DOE, 

LIHEAP 

Weatheriza

tion 

$         

Phoenix, AZ    SWG/APS  Weatheriza

tion 

$206,000.00

  URRD      7,000.00

               

                                    $         

                                    $         

                                    $         

PART IV ‐ INTERESTED PARTIES 

Identify any person or entity that has a pecuniary interest in this project that exceeds $50,000 or 10% 

of the CDBG assistance (whichever is lower). All consultants, developers or contractors involved in 

the CDBG application or in the planning, development or implementation of the project must be 

identified as an interested party unless procured through a competitive process. 

List of all Persons with a Reportable 

Financial Interest in the Project 

Social Security No. 

or Employer ID 

No. 

Type of 

Participation in the 

Project 

Financial 

Interest in the 

Project            

($ and %) 

                                    $           /           % 

                                    $           /           % 

                                    $           /           % 

                                    $           /           % 

                                    $           /           % 

                                    $           /           % 

                                    $           /           % 

                                    $           /           % 

                                    $           /           % 

                                    $           /           % 

                                    $           /           % 

 



Page 3 of 7 

REV. 3‐2013 

PART V ‐ EXPECTED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 

Identify the source and use of all assistance (include this CDBG grant and all other governmental 

and non‐governmental sources) that has been or may be used in this contract. 

Activity No. and Source  Use 

HOME Partnership Program Fund  Housing Rehabilitation 

URRD   Minor Repair 

DOE/SWG/APS/LIHEAP WAP  Weatherization 

                       

                       

                       

                       

                       

                       

                       

                       

                       

                       

                       

                       

                       

                       

                       

                       

                       

                       

   

PART VI ‐ CERTIFICATION 

I hereby certify that the information provided in this disclosure is true and correct and I am aware that 

any  false  information  or  lack  of  information  knowingly made  or  omitted may  subject me  to  civil  or 

criminal penalties under Section 1001 of Title 18 of the United States Code. In addition, I am aware that if 

I  knowingly  and materially violate  any  required disclosure  of  information,  including  intentional non‐

disclosure, I am subject to a civil money penalty not to exceed $10,000 for each violation. 

 

 

February 17, 2015 

Michael A. Pastor, Chairman  



Page 4 of 7 

REV. 3‐2013 

DISCLOSURE REPORT INSTRUCTIONS 

 

All communities receiving CDBG grants must complete and submit the Disclosure Report either with the 

application or after receipt of the CDBG award letter. Note that no contract will be issued until the CDBG 

Program receives a completed Disclosure Report.  

 

PART I ‐ GRANTEE INFORMATION 

 
Complete information requested. 

Updated reports are required if:  

 Information was omitted from the initial report;  

 Additional interested parties are identified (unless such are identified through other documents such as 

those relating to the procurement process); 

 A person or entityʹs pecuniary interest has increased; 

 Government assistance has increased by $250,000 or 10% (whichever is lower); 

 There is a change in the source and/or use of funds that exceeds the amount of all previously disclosed 

sources and/or uses of funds by $250,000 or 10% (whichever is lower). 

 

PART II ‐ THRESHOLD DETERMINATION 

 
  Complete information requested. 

 

PART III ‐ OTHER GOVERNMENT ASSISTANCE PROVIDED/APPLIED FOR 

 
  Complete information requested. 

 

PART IV ‐ INTERESTED PARTIES 

 
Interested parties are those persons and entities with a reportable pecuniary interest in the project. A pecuniary 

interest means any financial involvement in the project, including such situations in which a person or entity: 

 

 Has an equity interest in the project,  

 Shares in any profit or resale; 

 Shares in any distribution of cash surplus or other assets of the project; 

 Receives compensation for any goods or services provided in connection with the project. (Exception: if 

compensated as a result of a competitive procurement process.) 

 

(The following are not considered interested parties: local CDBG administrative staff, recipients of housing rehab 

assistance, and rehab contractors as long as the rehab agreement is between the property owner and the 

contractor.) 



Page 5 of 7 

REV. 3‐2013 

 
If an entity is disclosed, the information provided in Part IV must include the identification of each officer, 

director, principal stockholder or other official of the entity.  

 

Applicants/grantees may not be aware of all interested parties when completing this report. If, as the project is 

implemented, the grantee becomes aware of other interested parties, it should submit an updated Disclosure 

Report.  

 

PART V ‐ EXPECTED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 

 
Note that this section must include all other assistance identified in Part III as well as the CDBG funds.  

 

Describe the ʺUses of Fundsʺ in general terms ‐ do not provide line item budget information. 

 

PART VI ‐ CERTIFICATION 

 
Have Chief Elected Official sign and date form. 

 

Original must be included with application. 



Page 6 of 7 

REV. 3‐2013 

 

APPENDIX A 

 
The following HUD programs are considered ʺcovered assistanceʺ for purposes of the Disclosure Report. All 

applicants for CDBG funds must review this list to determine if they are receiving or can reasonably expect to 

receive assistance from any of these covered sources in determining whether they reach the threshold (Part II). 

Applicants must consider: a) ALL CDBG funds for which they will apply, both RA and all SSPs; b) ALL other 

ʺcovered assistanceʺ whether received directly from HUD or through the State, e.g., ADOH or DES. 

 

NOTE:  This list does NOT include the HOME program. 

 

1.  Section 312 Rehab Loans under 24 CFR Part 510 except loans for single‐family properties 

2.  Rental Rehabilitation Grant Programs 

3.  Specific projects or activities under Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 to: 

  a) HUD for a Special Purpose Grant 

  b) HUD for a loan under 24 CFR Part 470, Subpart M 

  c) HUD for a grant to an Indian tribe under Title I 

  d) HUD for a grant under the HUD administered Small Cities program; and 

  e) a state or unit of general local government for CDBG  

4.  Emergency Shelter Grants (specific project or activity), under 24 CFR part 576  

5.  Transitional Housing under 24 CFR part 577 

6.  Permanent Housing for Handicapped Homeless Persons under 24 CFR part 578   

7.  Section 8 Housing Assistance Payments (only project‐based housing under the Existing Housing and 

Moderate Rehab Programs under 224 CFR part 88 but including the Moderate Rehabilitation Program for 

Single Room Occupancy Dwellings for the Homeless under Subpart H) 

8.  Section 9 Housing Assistance Payments for Housing for the elderly or handicapped under 24 CFR part 855 

9.  Loans for Housing for the Elderly or Handicapped including operating assistance for Housing for the 

Handicapped under Section 162 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1987 and Seed Money 

Loans under Section 106(b) of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968 

10.  Section 8 Housing Assistance Payments, Special Allocations under 24 CFR part 886 

11.  Flexible Subsidy under 25 CFR part 219, both Operating Assistance under Subpart B and Capital 

Improvement Loans under Subpart C 

12.  Low Rent Housing Opportunities under 24 CFR part 904 

13.  Indian Housing under 24 CFR part 905 

14.  Public Housing Development under 24 CFR art 942 

15.  Comprehensive Improvement Assistance under 24 CFR part 968 

16.  Resident Management under 24 CFR part 964, Subpart C 

17.  Neighborhood Development Demonstration under Section 123 of the Housing and Urban Rural Recovery 

Act of 1983 



Page 7 of 7 

REV. 3‐2013 

18.  Nehemiah Grants under 24 CFR part 280 

19.  Research and Technology Grants under Title V of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1970 

20.  Congregate Services under the Congregate Housing Services Act of 1978 

21.  Counseling Under  Section 106 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968 

22.  Fair Housing Initiates under 24 CFR part 125 

23.  Public Housing Drug Elimination Grants under Section 5129 of the Anti Drug Abuse Act of 1988 

24.  Fair Housing Assistance under 24 CFR part 111 

25.  Public Housing Early Childhood Development Grants under Section 222 of the Housing and urban Rural 

Recovery Act of 1983 

26.  Mortgage Insurance under 24 CFR Subtitle B, chapter II (only multifamily and non residential) 

27.  Supplemental Assistance for Facilities to Assist the Homeless under 24 CFR part 57928.  Shelter Plus 

Care Assistance under Section 837 of the Cranston Gonzales National Affordable Housing Act 

29.  Planning and Implementation Grants for HOPE for Public and Indian Housing Homeownership under 

Title IV, Subtitle A of the Cranston‐Gonzales National Affordable Housing Act 

30.  Planning and Implementation Grants for HOPE for Homeownership of Multifamily Units under Title IV, 

Subtitle B of the Cranston‐Gonzales National Affordable Housing Act 

31.  HOPE for Elderly Independence Demonstration under section 803 of the Cranston‐Gonzales National 

Affordable Housing Act.  

 









 

GILA COUNTY HOUSING 
SERVICES 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
OWNER-OCCUPIED 
HOUSING REHAB 

GUIDELINES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adopted 4/5/2006, Revised January 2015 



Adopted 4/05/06         Revised  January 2015 
 

                                         1 

Gila County Housing Services Program Guidelines 
Table of Contents 

 
 

HOUSING REHABILITATION GUIDELINES 
Purpose .......................................................................................................................................................................... 2 
Funding .......................................................................................................................................................................... 2 
Target Area .................................................................................................................................................................... 3 
Accessibility .................................................................................................................................................................. 3 
Eligibility Requirements ................................................................................................................................................ 3 
Manufactured Home Requirements ............................................................................................................................... 3 
Priority Populations ....................................................................................................................................................... 4 
Non-Discrimination ....................................................................................................................................................... 4 
Affordability to Low Income Households ..................................................................................................................... 4 
Grant/Loan ..................................................................................................................................................................... 4 
Affordability Period ....................................................................................................................................................... 5 
Loan Servicing ............................................................................................................................................................... 5 
Program Income............................................................................................................................................................. 6 
Deferral Conditions ....................................................................................................................................................... 6 
Self-Help or Sweat Equity ............................................................................................................................................. 6 
Standard and Specifications ........................................................................................................................................... 6 
Temporary Relocation ................................................................................................................................................... 6 
Replacement Rehabilitation ........................................................................................................................................... 7 
Acquisition ..................................................................................................................................................................... 7 
Lead Based Paint HUD Regulations.............................................................................................................................. 7 
Marketing to General Public/Possible Applicants ......................................................................................................... 8 
Marketing to Contractors ............................................................................................................................................... 8 
Staffing and Administrative Structure ........................................................................................................................... 9 
Pre-Screening Process ................................................................................................................................................. 10 
Application Process ..................................................................................................................................................... 10 
Work-Write Up ............................................................................................................................................................ 11 
Cost Estimates ............................................................................................................................................................. 12 
Mandatory Walk-Thru ................................................................................................................................................. 12 
Procurement ................................................................................................................................................................. 13 
Pre-Construction Conference ....................................................................................................................................... 14 
Agreements, Contracts, and Other Documents ............................................................................................................ 14 
Property Inspections .................................................................................................................................................... 14 
Change Orders ............................................................................................................................................................. 14 
Schedule of Contractor Payment ................................................................................................................................. 15 
Warranties .................................................................................................................................................................... 15 
Reporting, Case Management and Tracking  ............................................................................................................... 15 
Housing Maintenance Counseling ............................................................................................................................... 15 
Energy Efficiency Guidelines ...................................................................................................................................... 16 
Green Technology ....................................................................................................................................................... 16 
Rehabilitation Assessed Value ..................................................................................................................................... 16 
Grievance/Protest Procedure ........................................................................................................................................ 16 
Conflict of Interest ....................................................................................................................................................... 18 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Adopted 4/05/06         Revised  January 2015 
 

                                         2 

 
OWNER-OCCUPIED HOUSING REHABILITATION 

 
PURPOSE 
The Gila County Owner-Occupied Housing Rehabilitation Program is designed to serve low 
income homeowners with health, safety, energy efficiency, and renewable (green) related home 
repairs within Gila County.  The program is generally defined by these guidelines.  These 
guidelines apply only to the owner-occupied housing rehabilitation loans and/or emergency 
repair grants funded by Gila County Housing Services Program. 
 
Goals 
 

 To improve the quality, health, safety and energy efficiency of the housing stock and to 
promote neighborhood revitalization in Gila County. 
 

 To benefit elderly, handicapped, and families with children whose income levels are at or 
below 80% of Gila County Median Income Limits. 

 
Objectives 
 

 To invest sufficient funds in each home, that is owned and occupied as a primary 
residence by low income homeowners to meet the State of Arizona Rehabilitation 
Standards at a minimum. 

 
 To provide technical assistance, counseling and follow-up services to eligible families, 

including but not limited to: 
 

a. Ownership, revitalization, and neighborhood responsibilities 
b. Budgeting for property taxes and insurance 
c. Property maintenance 
d. Energy conservation 

 
 To provide referral services to the various agencies offering assistance in the areas of 

housing, medical, financial hardship, legal aid, etc. 
 
The goals and objectives of the Gila County Housing Services Department can be properly 
implemented and accomplished by having: 

 Properly trained personnel to provide assistance from the initial contact through 
completion of work and loan services 

 Properly trained code enforcement personnel (education/human relations) to serve as 
liaison for all available programs and tasks associated with the Housing Services 
Department programs 

 A network of County and human services agencies which will provide support services 
for the programs listed under this department. 
 

FUNDING 
Funding from a variety of sources, such as, Community Development Block Grant (CDBG), 
HOME Partnership Project, Housing Trust Funds, Arizona Department of Energy, Low Income 
Home Energy Assistance Program.  Any project may have one or any combination of funds as 



Adopted 4/05/06         Revised  January 2015 
 

                                         3 

necessary, to accomplish the goal of providing decent, safe housing.  HOME Partnership Project 
and Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) fund sources have specific minimum and 
maximum code requirements that must be followed.  The use of a particular fund source, at the 
discretion of the Community Services Director, will determine whether the project is a partial or 
full rehabilitation.   
 
Funding limits per unit are:  rehab maximum of $55,000; and reconstruction maximum of 
$80,000.  
 
Prior to starting an Owner Occupied Housing Rehab project, the property valuation, will not 
exceed ninety five percent (95%) of the area median purchase price for single family housing as 
determined and published by HUD.  
 
TARGET AREA 
The target area consists of all of Gila County with the exception of Indian Reservations and 
floodplains.  Gila County encompasses 4,752 square miles. 
 
ACCESSIBILITY 
The program will provide assistance to potential participants who have special barriers to ensure 
equal access to benefits.  For Spanish speaking persons, we will utilize Spanish speaking staff to 
assist with the entire rehabilitation process.  Gila County Housing Services offices/facilities 
comply with ADA accessibility requirements.   
 
ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS 

 The property must be located within Gila County boundaries excluding Indian 
Reservations and floodplains. 

 Participants must be at or below 50% to 80% of area median income guidelines for the 
area based on family size at the time funds are committed to the property.  Income must 
be verified, whenever possible, by third party verifications.  (Owner must sign an authorization 
to verify income and income must be re-verified if over 6 months time has elapsed since the commencement 
of the project.) 

 The applicant must provide verification that the property is owner occupied as a primary 
residence at least 12 months before application, during construction and for the entire 
recapture period. 

 The property must be free from liens that unduly restrict the marketable ownership 
interest.   If the home is on the market for sale, it will not be eligible for assistance. 

 The home must be suitable for rehabilitation under the time and funding constraints of the 
program, including the ability to improve the property up to minimum code with funding 
available.  If all funding assistance is not sufficient to rehab the unit to minimum 
standards, the application will be denied or placed back on the waiting list, at the 
discretion of the Community Services Director.  

 Homeowner must provide verification of Total Loss Coverage Insurance at the time of 
application for services. 

 Homeowner must hold a Fee Simple Title or a 99-year leasehold on the property, 
verifiable by a preliminary title search only, deeds alone do not suffice. 

 Property taxes must be paid and current at the time of application for services. 
 

MANUFACTURED HOME REQUIREMENTS 
All Manufactured housing units must meet the following: 



Adopted 4/05/06         Revised  January 2015 
 

                                         4 

a. Placed on a permanent foundation (required certification) and is connected to permanent 
utility hook-ups; 

b. Is located on land that is held in fee-simple title, or long-term ground lease with a term of at 
least 99 years (50 years for tribal land); and  

c. Meets the construction standards of 24CFR 3280 if manufactured after June 15, 1976, or, 
meets applicable local and/or state codes if manufactured prior to June 15, 1976.  

 
Manufactured housing units must be permanently affixed to land owned by the household and 
not in a leased mobile park. 

 
PRIORITY POPULATIONS 
Gila County will give priority assignment to the following: 

a. Households including children under the age of 18 years old  
b. Households with a physically disabled family member 
c. Households including an elderly (60 years of age or older) family member;  

and 
d. Households with income at or below 50% of area median income 
e. Households with income at or below 60% o area median income 
f. Households with income at or below 80% of area median income  

  
NON-DISCRIMINATION  
The program will not discriminate against any potential participant based on race, color, religion, 
gender, family status, disability, or violate any other applicable federal statute. 
 
AFFORDABILITY TO LOW-INCOME HOUSEHOLDS 
Owner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation funds will be invested in each home to meet, at a 
minimum, the State of Arizona Rehabilitation Standards Guidelines and local building codes.   
Lien amounts placed on rehabilitated homes will not be allowed to exceed 100 percent combined 
loan to value.   In some cases, reconstruction will be more cost effective than rehabilitation. 
 
GRANT/LOAN 
Owner-Occupied Housing Rehabilitation assistance to homeowners may be in the form of: 
 

 FORGIVABLE LOANS – These loans do not require scheduled repayment by 
beneficiaries, forgiveness of the loan is conditional upon the beneficiary complying with 
program and occupancy requirements, as well as, the requirements of the loan documents.  
A forgivable loan may include repayment of only a portion of the principal amount.  
Forgiveness may be proportional based on the beneficiary’s continued owner occupancy 
for the recapture period or conditioned upon other locally defined criteria.   The 
forgivable loan must be secured by a promissory and a Deed of Trust naming Gila County 
as beneficiary.   
 

 EMERGENCY REPAIR GRANT (ERG) – This is an outright grant (not to exceed 
$10,000) to low income residents to address emergency conditions for the purpose of 
eliminating a threat to life, safety, and/or eliminating an imminent health hazard.    
 

AFFORDABILITY PERIOD 
Loan Amount      Recapture Period 
$10,000 or less     no repayment is required 



Adopted 4/05/06         Revised  January 2015 
 

                                         5 

$10,001 to $15,000     5 years 
$15000 to $40,000     10 years 
Over $40,000      15 years  

 
Affordability Options: 
 

 Owner Moved/Home Rented – this is a violation of affordability, steps will be taken to 
enforce repayment of the lien in this circumstance 

 Owner Passes Away - In the event of the homeowner’s death during the affordability 
period there are two options: 

o in the event a qualifying* immediate family member inherits the property, he/she 
may assume the balance of the deferred payment loan;  

o the lien may be released at the discretion of the Community Services Director   
 Owner Wants to Sell – repayment of the lien will be enforced 
 Foreclosures – Options include: 

o In the event of a Foreclosure or Deed in Lieu of Foreclosure, any provisions of the 
Deed of Trust or any provisions in any collateral agreement restricting the use of 
the property or otherwise restricting the Homeowner’s ability to sell the property 
shall have no further force or effect on subsequent owners or purchasers of the 
property.   Any person, including successors or assigns (other than the homeowner 
or a person or entity related to the homeowner), receiving title to the property 
through foreclosure or deed in lieu of foreclosure of the First Mortgage/Deed of 
Trust shall receive title to the property free and clear from such restrictions.    

o The lien created by the Deed of Trust will be released upon Foreclosure, transfer 
of Deed in Lieu of Foreclosure, assignment to HUD or market sale.  

 Subordination of Lien Position –  Loan subordination will only be allowed when: 1) the 
refinancing results in a fixed rate, lower monthly payment; and 2) loan subordination will 
not be allowed under any circumstances for a cash-out refinancing.    

 End of Affordability Period - the Housing Coordinator will process and record the lien 
release documents at the end of the affordability period.   Each homeowner will be sent 
an annual statement of during the affordability period to inform them of their lien status.    

 
If these guidelines are adopted by other entities with whom Gila County is the sub-recipient, then 
the Grantor entity shall be responsible for securing the lien and promissory note for the 
forgivable loan.    

 
LOAN SERVICING 
Gila County Housing Services uses Pioneer Title Company in Payson, Arizona to process the 
Deed of Trusts and Promissory Notes on each project.  They will act as the loan servicing agents 
for our program.    
 
The Deed of Trust and Promissory Note will be signed by the homeowner at the beginning of the 
housing rehabilitation process.   A standard rehab project amount will be utilized at this time, 
with revisions prior to recording the documents.   
 
 
*qualifying – must meet all State Housing Fund Income Guidelines, and other criteria as applicable. 
 
 



Adopted 4/05/06         Revised  January 2015 
 

                                         6 

PROGRAM INCOME 
In the event that Gila County Housing Services recaptures any funds, we will remit them to the 
Arizona Department of Housing. 
 
DEFERRAL CONDITIONS 
The decision to defer work in a dwelling is difficult, but necessary in some cases.  If a decision to 
defer has been made, work must be postponed until the problems can be resolved and/or 
alternative sources of help are found.  
Deferral conditions may include: 

 The client is uncooperative, abusive, or threatening to the crew, contractors, sub-
contractors, auditors, inspectors, or others who must work on or visit the home. 

 There is an animal(s) on the property that poses a health and safety threat to the crew or 
sub-contractors (ie:  a vicious animal, excessive animals) 

 The cleanliness or orderliness of the dwelling poses a health and/or safety problem. 
 If in the judgment of the Housing Services staff, any condition exists which may 

endanger the health and/or safety of the crew or Contactor, the work should not proceed 
until the condition is corrected. 
 

SELF-HELP OR SWEAT EQUITY 
The Housing Services Department does not operate a self-help or sweat equity program.  Gila 
County will not allow the homeowner to perform any scope of the work.  There may be some 
exceptions but only related to general property improvements, i.e. landscaping.  These exceptions 
must be approved by the Director. 
 
STANDARD AND SPECIFICATIONS 
All housing rehabilitation projects will meet: 
 State of Arizona Rehabilitation Standards (Attachment 3) or local code.  In addition Gila 

County has adopted the Uniform Building Code (UBC) (1991), National Electric Code 
(NEC)(1990), Uniform Mechanical Code (UMC)(1991), Uniform Plumbing Code 
(UPC)(1991), Uniform Conservation Code (UCC)(1991), as well as, the Uniform Housing 
Code (UHC)(1991).   

 Gila County uses standard specifications, which are tailored to each specific project which 
may include minor, substantial, and removal of all code violations.  

 Energy Star 
 International Energy Conservation Code (EICC, 2012 Edition or most recently adopted by 

local building jurisdiction) 
 All plumbing fixtures are to be “low-flow” 
 WEATHERIZATION STANDARDS - Gila County will meet Weatherization Standards for 

OOHR Housing Rehab in each home that is rehabilitated with CDBG, SHF, HTF, SSP, 
and/or HOME Partnership Program funding sources. (Issued 10/12/12, Rev. 11/18/13)   

 Uniform Federal Accessibility Standards (Section 504 of the 1974 Rehabilitation Act) and the 
Americans with Disabilities Act, as applicable and needed by homeowner 

 
TEMPORARY RELOCATION  
Temporary housing will be used if necessary to house families whose house is under construction 
through the rehab program.  Funding will be utilized from a variety of programs operated by the 
Gila County Community Services Division. 
 



Adopted 4/05/06         Revised  January 2015 
 

                                         7 

a. If the completion of the identified repairs imposes a health and safety risk to the 
occupants, Gila County Community Services Division will make temporary housing 
arrangements for the period of time estimated by the contractor to complete the repairs. 

b. Temporary relocation with area relatives or friends will be the first alternative. If this is 
not available, the occupants will be temporarily relocated to an area hotel/motel that is 
equipped with a microwave and refrigerator, if available. The occupants will be 
responsible for their own meals.  

c. If necessary, personal belongings of the occupants will be placed in temporary storage at 
either a commercial location or a Gila County storage location, if available. 

d. All temporary relocation costs will be included in the total rehabilitation cost. 
 
REPLACEMENT REHABILITATION   
Replacement is only allowed under the Rehabilitation Program. 

1. Staff will make cost estimates for each dwelling. If the unit is a manufactured home and 
the cost estimate of the necessary repairs exceeds the budgeted amount and if the repairs 
that can be made would still not bring the unit “up to code”, the decision can be made to 
replace the unit with a new or used manufactured home, providing the cost of transport, 
hookup and after-rehab value is within the allowable cost of the program.  

2. The replacement manufactured home will be competitively procured through the 
solicitation of three written quotes, in accordance with Gila County Procurement 
Department Policy. If the homeowner refuses to accept the unit selected by Gila County 
during the first round of the selection process, the homeowner will be allowed a second 
chance to select a unit. Gila County will again attempt to competitively procure a unit for 
the homeowner. If the homeowner refuses to accept the unit selected by Gila County 
during the second round of the selection process, the homeowner’s application will be 
cancelled. The homeowner will be notified in writing of this cancellation and they will 
have ten (10) days from the date of the cancellation letter to request an Administrative 
Review/Informal Hearing on the decision to cancel the application. In the Administrative 
Review/Informal Hearing, the homeowner must prove “just cause” as to the reason for 
not selecting a unit.  

3. On used mobile home replacements, all appliances, utilities and fixtures will be in good 
working order. However, homeowner understands that if this is not a new mobile home, 
homeowner accepts it “as is”. All appliances and fixtures will be replaced with new, if 
enough funding is left in their grant.  

4. Staff will first try to replace mobiles with new factory built ones, as costs allow. 
 

ACQUISITION 
All acquisition of land, which includes long term leases and permanent use easement, must meet 
the requirements of the Uniform Relocation and Real Property Acquisition Act.  This requires 
documentation of various notices to the owner, and appraisals (and review appraisals) in most 
instances.   
 
LEAD BASED PAINT HUD REGULATIONS 
In order to comply and implement lead-based paint requirements, the Housing Services 
Department shall use as guidance the OHD Housing Bulletin #1 issued by the GOHD on 
December, 2001 (Attachment 6 under Section A).  The program shall specifically adhere to the 
evaluation, disclosure, work requirements, and clearance procedures contained in this Bulletin.   
Any interim control or abatement procedures of lead-based paint hazards as prescribed by HUD 
requirements shall be included in the scope of work.  The Housing Services Department shall 



Adopted 4/05/06         Revised  January 2015 
 

                                         8 

also attempt to obtain lead-based paint general liability insurance for lead-based paint hazards 
and encourage contractors to secure lead-based paint hazard liability insurance.  
 
Staff will provide the homeowner with the EPA/HUD Pamphlet “Protect Your Family from Lead 
in Your Home”.  Staff shall also provide the homeowner with the Lead Based Paint Notification 
for the homeowner’s review and signature.  Staff shall specifically review the notification form 
with the homeowner and make every effort to ensure the homeowner is aware of the hazards and 
ways to avoid lead based paint poisoning.  The executed notification is retained in the 
homeowner/client’s file and a copy is provided to the client.  If lead based paint hazards are 
identified by risk assessment and treated the participant shall be provided with the following 
notices:  Notice of Evaluation and Notice of Lead Hazard Reduction.  All brochures are available 
in alternate format for non-English Spanish speaking persons. 
 
MARKETING TO GENERAL PUBLIC/POSSIBLE APPLICANTS 
Gila County makes every effort to promote awareness to the general public by presenting its 
program to local groups, such as the Chamber of Commerce, the Lions Club, the Rotary Club, 
Southern Gila County Network Team, and any other group that expresses interest.   Public 
Service announcements and press releases are also sent to local radio, television and newspapers 
to market our program. 
 
The Housing Services Program makes every possible effort to inform and promote program 
awareness to every segment of the community.  Informational materials are distributed across the 
county and are freely available through various county departments.  Although, “word of mouth” 
is the best and foremost method of communication in our community, the Housing Services 
Program also advertises in the local newspapers within the county.   
 
The Housing Services Program has also developed a network for referrals from: 
 

1. Gila County Health Department, Public Health Nursing, Public Environmental Health 
Dept., Public Gila County Public Fiduciary’s Office, Gila County Community 
Development Office, Gila County Section 8 Housing Program, Workforce Investment 
Department, Gila County Community Action Program. 

2.  Gila County Community Development Office advising of dangerous or condemned 
buildings. 

3.  Gila County Community Development Office or Gila County Health Department 
advising of a broken sewer, leaky roof, etc. during their inspections. 

4. Various social services agencies (Gila Aging, Child Protective Services, Vocational 
Rehabilitation Program, etc.) advising of health and safety issues. 

 
All promotional materials and other marketing tasks are done by the Housing Services Program 
staff on an ongoing basis. 
 
MARKETING TO CONTRACTORS 
The Housing Services Department follows the procedures for procurement and contracting as 
directed in the handbook distributed by the Arizona Department of Housing.  This handbook and 
any updating information/additions to the same are kept by the Director and are available for 
review and reference by any interested person(s).   
 
 



Adopted 4/05/06         Revised  January 2015 
 

                                         9 

STAFFING AND ADMINISTRATIVE STRUCTURE 
The Gila County Housing Services Department currently consists of approximately 6 staff with 
additional services provided by the county departments listed under the heading of the 
Community Services Division on an as needed basis.  The Housing Services Department is 
administered and staffed as follows: 
 
Community Services Director  
Community Services Fiscal Manager 
Community Services Housing Coordinator 
Community Services Housing Project Coordinator – BPI Certified Building Analyst & Quality 
Control Inspector  
Community Services Housing Rehabilitation Specialist – BPI Certified Building Analyst  
Community Services Grants Administrator 
 
The Director provides oversight of the program. The Housing Coordinator is responsible for 
monitoring the expenditure of funds for each project.    
 
The Grants Administrator is responsible for grant applications to funding agency(ies).   
Additional responsibilities include completing:  Environmental Review Reports, Flood Hazard 
Determinations, Set Up Reports, Closure Reports, and Performance/Schedule of Completion 
Reports.  The Grants Administrator will maintain the program guidelines and will assist the 
Housing Coordinator with compliance issues, and periodical monitoring of the administration of 
the program(s).     
 
The Housing Coordinator is responsible for the implementation of the program, expenditure of 
funds and compliance with the program rules and regulations.  The Housing Coordinator’s 
secondary tasks are those related directly to rehabilitation services and working on a one to one 
basis with the applicants from identification to completion of the project. 
 
The Housing Coordinator is responsible for intake, contacting licensed, minority and women 
owned businesses to request their participation in the Housing Services programs, determination 
of eligibility of the property and the applicant, maintenance of waiting lists, correspondence 
between department and homeowner, monitoring and data entry of each project. Also assists the 
Fiscal Manager with financial management and contract closeouts, and assists the Housing 
Project Coordinator and Rehabilitation Specialist with program eligibility. 
 
 The Housing Rehabilitation Project Coordinator and Specialist are responsible for all necessary 
disclosures, preliminary and subsequent inspection of the subject property, preparation of the 
plans and/or specifications for bidding, cost estimating, and final close-out of the project. Both 
positions are responsible for inspecting weatherization items on HOME and CDBG funded 
rehabilitation projects.   During construction, the Housing Project Coordinator and Rehabilitation 
Specialist conduct periodic inspections of the work, interfaces with the homeowner and 
contractor to ensure quality work, approves change orders for referral to the homeowner and 
participates in the final walk through.  Maintenance, energy conservation, and homeowner 
responsibility/neighborhood revitalization counseling will be provided to each participant by any 
member of the Housing Services Department.   The Housing Rehabilitation Project Coordinator 
is a BPI Certified Quality Inspector and is responsible for performing inspections at all properties 
prior to final closeout.    



Adopted 4/05/06         Revised  January 2015 
 

                                         10 

Training for the Housing Services Program staff is provided by Gila County and by attending 
workshops training sessions paid for with grant monies.  In addition to the Housing Services 
Department staff, we will utilize the Gila County Planning/Zoning, Community Development, 
and Engineering Departments for appropriate technical assistance to the program. 

 
PRE-SCREENING PROCESS 
The prospective participant will be asked to complete a pre-screening form, which will be used to 
determine eligibility for a housing rehabilitation project.  The Housing Coordinator will review 
the following requirements: 
 

a. Applicant presently owns the property; 
b. Location of the home is within the county boundaries, excluding Indian Reservations 

and floodplains; 
c. Income verification; 
d. Determination if Property Taxes and Insurances are current on the property; 
e. Household size and composition; 
f. Market value of the home does not exceed guidelines as established by HUD  

 
The prospective participant is then asked to complete the application for services process (See 
Below), based on the information provided, an eligibility determination will be made.   The 
prospective participant will be notified in writing within ten (10) working days of eligibility 
determination to be placed on the waiting list.  The waiting list is based on a first come, first 
serve basis.   
 
Placement on the Waiting List does not constitute a guarantee of approval for services.  A 
perspective participant on the waiting list must meet qualifications in order to be considered for a 
housing rehabilitation project when funding becomes available.   Eligibility for continuation on 
the waiting list is determined every six months.  
 
APPLICATION PROCESS 
The prospective participant(s) will be contacted by Housing Services Coordinator who will then  
verify the application to ensure the information accurately reflects the prospective participant’s 
present situation.   
 
Income will be verified via verification received directly from employers, Social Security 
Administration, Veteran’s Administration, previously filed income tax returns, check stubs, etc.  
During rehab, income verification shall be valid for a period of six (6) months, after which it 
must be recertified if the project has not been completed. All information obtained through this 
process shall be kept in locked files to ensure confidentiality.  
 
The following definitions aid staff in the application process: 
 

 Income - All wages, financial assistance from Social Security, Veteran’s Administration, 
Department of Economic Security, Temporary Assistance to Needy Families, 
Unemployment Insurance, Alimony, Child Support, and income from any other source by 
any member of the household. 
 

 Family/Household – All persons occupying the home, including permanent extended 
family, i.e., elderly parents, single children with children of their own.  In the case of 



Adopted 4/05/06         Revised  January 2015 
 

                                         11 

more than one family per unit, every effort is made to provide the non-owner with 
housing assistance through another program to decrease over-crowding. 

 
Prior to the application being approved, two eligibility determinations/certifications are made: 

1).  Family – based on income and home ownership (if on waiting list more than 6 months 
must be recertified every 6 months.) 
2). Property Ownership – must be owned solely by the applicant and/or co-applicant 

 
During the application process staff will review each case with the. The Housing Coordinator is 
responsible for approval or disapproval of each application.  Housing Services staff will then 
inform the applicant of the type and extent of assistance being offered and advise the applicant of 
the estimated time line for the sequence of events that will be necessary in the 
repair/rehabilitation process. 

 
A title search will be ordered by the staff to ensure that the home is in the applicant(s) name.  A 
preliminary parcel search will be used to determine that there are no taxes owed against the 
property and should arrearages exist, Housing Services staff will meet with the homeowner to 
attempt to resolve the situation. The Administrative Assistant will preliminarily verify ownership 
by obtaining a copy of the deed or title and a tax valuation from the Gila County Assessor’s 
Office.  The participant shall provide the Housing Coordinator with verification of total loss 
coverage insurance on the home. Eligibility determination will not be made nor will the 
repairs/rehabilitation of the property be commenced until all information/verifications are 
received. 
 
If the potential participant has a 504/ADA issue or is non-English speaking, staff provides the 
necessary assistance through the entire process.  
  
The Housing Coordinator shall review and authorize each application prior to the project 
commencing. 
 
Upon acceptance into program, certified staff will schedule an initial property inspection and will 
conduct a visual assessment to identify lead hazards and determine the Scope of Work.  The 
homeowner is also informed that all contracts are strictly between the owner and contractor.  The 
Housing Project Coordinator and/or Housing Rehabilitation Specialist will monitor the progress, 
inspect for proper performance and sign off along with the homeowner after both are satisfied 
with the completed project. 
 
Copies of all forms that are pertinent to the project will be provided to each homeowner at their 
request. 
 
WORK WRITE-UP 
Work Write-Up Forms are prepared by the Housing Project Coordinator and/or Rehabilitation 
Specialist who  are experienced in construction and is required to keep abreast of the latest code 
requirements, construction methods and materials, and particularly, preservation of a designated 
historical building.  It is important in our program to preserve the architectural features of a 
particular era.  In a case where code and preservation conflict, the work shall be done to code, but 
every effort will be made to provide the “look” of a particular feature, structural or nonstructural.  
A change order will be prepared, if necessary, and it will bear approval from the homeowner, 



Adopted 4/05/06         Revised  January 2015 
 

                                         12 

Housing Project Coordinator and/or Rehabilitation Specialist, the Contractor and Housing 
Services Coordinator. 
 
The Housing Project Coordinator and/or Rehabilitation Specialist are responsible for reviewing 
the accuracy of the work write-up and the homeowner will approve final work write-up.  The 
work write-up will call for items that meet code as per the Rehabilitation Standards, but will 
specify brands, sizes, location, etc.  The work write-up may be accompanied by a set of plans 
complete with construction details.  The plans will identify all areas of the house and 
approximate dimensions, door and window location, etc.  The work write-up can be specifically 
cross-referenced. 
 
Only FHA approved improvements are eligible under this program. A Property Inspection 
Checklist is utilized to assist with ensuring homes meet State Rehabilitation Standards and are 
safe, sanitary, decent and energy efficient. 
 
The Housing Project Coordinator, Rehabilitation Specialist and staff utilize a computerized 
specification writing program when preparing the specifications for each project.  Sample 
building specifications are included as Attachment 4, which is a copy of the standardized 
rehabilitation specifications generated by the Respec 8 program when developing the work write-
up for each project.  Staff also has the ability to create additional specifications tailored to each 
project. 
 
COST ESTIMATES 
The Housing Project Coordinator and/or Rehabilitation Specialist are responsible for the 
preparation of a cost estimate for each job.  In addition to the experience and training previously 
mentioned under the work write-up, the Housing Project Coordinator and/or Rehabilitation 
Specialist must keep abreast of the economic conditions in our area with respect to the 
construction trades, including, but not limited to: 
 

a. Availability of qualified contractors with emphasis on disabled, women, and minority 
business enterprises; 

b. Availability/cost of materials; 
c. Present labor costs. 
d. Must have Building Pressure Institute (BPI) and Home Energy Rate Training (HERS) 

Course Certifications   
 

The Housing Project Coordinator and/or Rehabilitation Specialist will prepare a cost estimate of 
each individual dwelling based on the technical specifications as determined in the work write-
up.  The cost estimate will include all costs for materials and labor, as well as, costs for overhead 
and profit.  In order to stretch the rehabilitation dollars, the county and incorporated areas may 
waive permit fees on all projects. 
 
MANDATORY WALK-THRU 
A mandatory Walk-Thru is held on each property prior to bidding.   The Walk-Thru will be 
advertised via public notice at least 7 days in advance of the scheduled time and date of the walk-
thru.  This mandatory process enables contractors to visit the property to view the items listed on 
the bid package and assists in minimizing any misunderstandings with the staff, contractors and 
homeowners regarding work to be accomplished during the project. 
 



Adopted 4/05/06         Revised  January 2015 
 

                                         13 

Gila County will only utilize Contractors who have successfully completed a contractor 
eligibility package.  This package includes verification of licensing, insurances, and that 
contractor is in good standing with the Arizona Registrar of Contractors and SAMS (Systems for 
Award Management).  Any Contractor that does not complete the process, or has otherwise been 
deemed ineligible, will not be able to participate in the program. 
 
PROCUREMENT 
It is standard procedure to advertise for rehabilitation bids in the locally distributed newspaper 
that is contracted by Gila County at the time.  The Housing Services Department also keeps files 
on qualified contractors, who are notified by mail, telephone or by fax of any jobs that may be 
out to bid.   
 
Bids will be solicited from only those contractors who have successfully completed Building 
Pressures Institute (BPI) training and are currently certified as such.  
 
Every effort is made to obtain a minimum of three (3) bids for each house.   
 
The Housing Coordinator shall retain the files on licensed, insured, bonded and otherwise 
qualified (not disbarred) contractors who are notified in writing of any bid invitation.  
Contractors will be encouraged to secure lead based hazard liability insurance as the Housing 
Services Program will grant preference to those with this type of insurance. 
 
Bid Award:  Bids are awarded by the Gila County Procurement Department and the homeowner, 
however, housing staff will recommend the award be made to the lowest qualified bidder.  The 
Housing Project Coordinator reserves the right to reject any and/or all bids for reasons including 
but not limited to the following: 
 

1. The Contractor is not licensed or has had his license suspended or has been 
disbarred from projects involving certain funding sources (i.e. HUD) the 
Contractor’s status is researched online via the website:  www.sam.gov 

2. The Contractor is not able to proceed with the project in a timely manner due to 
other commitments. 

3. The bid submitted is more than 15% below the Cost Estimate and, in the Housing 
Program Coordinator’s judgment, the Contractor will not be able to complete the 
project as specified for the bid price. 

4. The Contractor has failed to complete past projects in a timely or workman like 
manner or has failed to respond appropriately to request for warranty service. 

5. The Contractor has failed to provide lien waivers as required or has had 
mechanic’s liens filed by suppliers or subcontractors on past projects. 

6. Bidding forms are improperly filled out or incomplete. 
7. All bids submitted are more than 15% above the Cost Estimate. 

 
B.  Owner Bid Rejection:  The Owner may reject any or all bids without cause subject to the 
following provisions: 

1. he Owner may choose to reject the lowest qualified bid recommended by the 
Housing Program Coordinator and select a Contractor other than the lowest bidder 
if the Owner is willing to provide from his/her/their own funds and amount equal 
to the difference between the low bid and the selected bid. 



Adopted 4/05/06         Revised  January 2015 
 

                                         14 

2. The Owner may reject all bids at any time up to three working days after the 
contract is closed. 

 
C.  Delays in Awarding Contract:  Generally the contract will be closed and work will begin 
within thirty days of the date of bid submission.  If thirty days have passed since the submittal of 
bids and no contract has been signed, the Contractor has the option of: 

1. Honoring the original bid. 
2. Withdrawing his bid. 
 

If the Contractor chooses to withdraw his bid, the project will be offered to the next qualified low 
bid or a new bid process will begin.  The Housing Program Coordinator reserves the right, with 
the owner’s concurrence, to negotiate any bid. 
 
PRE-CONSTRUCTION CONFERENCE 
A pre-construction conference will be held with the Contractor, homeowner and Housing Staff to 
review the scope of work, and other necessary documents prior to start of the construction on the 
project.   
 
AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS, AND OTHER DOCUMENTS 
Each file contains a checklist noting all documents and verifications (such as check stubs, bank 
statements, property tax statement, title report insurance, etc) required for the housing 
rehabilitation program.  This checklist will reflect the type of documents included in each file and 
will note those that do not apply as “N/A”.  
 
PROPERTY INSPECTIONS 
Property inspections will be performed by a qualified BPI Building Analyst to ensure all work 
complies with the applicable building codes, as well as, for adherence to Department of Energy  
Weatherization standards.   
 
In addition, Housing Program Coordinator and Housing Rehab Specialist will conduct frequent 
inspections to monitor progress, identify problems that may occur, initiate change orders that 
may arise, ensure compliance with State Rehabilitation Standards requirements and non-code 
items.  Staff is certified in the State Rehabilitation Standards inspections, energy audits and in 
general code requirements.  The Housing Program Coordinator is a certified BPI Quality Control 
Inspector.  Each property will be inspected by him/her after construction is completed. Training 
in these areas is provided with Gila County and/or grant funds.  
 
CHANGE ORDERS 
A Change Order may be requested by the contractor due to circumstances which were unforeseen 
and not included in the original Work Write-Up.  An example would be a safety or code violation 
that could not be determined until the actual work began.  The homeowner must be informed of 
Change Orders and agree to these changes in writing.  The contractor must have written approval 
from the Housing Project Coordinator and Director before undertaking any Change Order work, 
for any reason.  Change Orders must be processed through to the Gila County Procurement 
Office and documented in the client file.  If the Change Order is costly the project scope of work 
may be adjusted as not to exceed the projects budget.  ADOH will be notified of all change 
orders accepted on each project.  Multiple requests for change orders can and will result in audit 
findings.  
 



Adopted 4/05/06         Revised  January 2015 
 

                                         15 

SCHEDULE OF CONTRACTOR PAYMENT 
Contractor payments are structured so that the contractor may request to submit an invoice for  
approximately thirty three percent (33%) of the total bid amount at commencement of the job, a 
second draw, not to exceed thirty three  percent (33%) of the remaining balance, may be 
requested when at least fifty percent (50%) of the construction is complete and the final draw is 
submitted once the rehabilitation has been performed to the satisfaction of the contract terms, 
homeowner, and final inspection by the Housing Project Coordinator,  and/or Housing 
Rehabilitation Specialist.   
Upon completion, Housing Program Coordinator and/or Housing Rehab Specialist will inspect 
each completed home, along with the homeowner.  The homeowner will approve and sign off 
that all work has been completed, as well an acknowledgement that they have received all 
necessary warranty information. 
 
WARRANTIES  
All contractors are required to provide a two-year warranty on workmanship as set forth by the 
Arizona Registrar of Contractors. The homeowner is responsible to contact the contractor for any 
warranty-related problems. If the homeowner does not feel the contractor has lived up to 
warrantee obligations, they may contact Housing Services staff to assist in resolution. If no 
resolution is available or it is not to homeowner’s satisfaction, homeowner may appeal to the 
Arizona Registrar of Contractors.   
 
The homeowner must sign the Warranty Documentation Notice to verify receipt of the 
documents.  The Administrative Assistant will also maintain copies of warranties in the client 
file. 
 
REPORTING, CASEMANAGEMENT AND TRACKING  
The Housing Coordinator and Fiscal Manager are responsible for reporting procedures. The 
Weatherization Technician and the Administrative Assistant are responsible for maintenance of 
all case files, and the Housing Services Program staff maintains a real time progress chart 
detailing the progress on each dwelling under construction.  The Housing Rehabilitation 
Specialist and Administrative Assistant prepare monthly progress reports to the Director and the 
Fiscal Manager.  The Fiscal Manager is responsible for all financial and performance reports to 
the Arizona Department of Housing including, but not limited to family and contractor profiles 
(minority, handicapped, ethnicity, etc.).  The Administrative Assistant will enter all project 
completions into a database for the purpose of tracking all current and previous participants in 
the program. 
 
HOMEOWNER COUNSELING 
Each homeowner will be educated on the following subjects, before, during and after rehab: 

 Energy Efficiency measures which can be adopted in their home to increase their comfort 
and increase their awareness of energy usage 

 Must participate in a budget counseling session/class to help them understand the 
importance of developing a budget, including understanding utility consumption, 
maintaining a budget to prevent future financial emergencies, etc.  

 Contractors provide detailed education on the proper use, maintenance and warranties of 
appliances/systems installed in their homes 

 Homeowner responsibility to keep their property clean, safe, and sanitary, before, during 
and after rehab.   

 



Adopted 4/05/06         Revised  January 2015 
 

                                         16 

After construction is completed Housing Services staff will provide applications for local utility 
discount programs, as well as, other topics necessary to enhance homeowner’s understanding of 
their role in the community. 
 
ENERGY EFFICIENCY GUIDELINES 
All owner-occupied family housing rehabilitation projects are required to incorporate The 
Arizona Governor’s Office of Energy Policy, Weatherization Standards.   All new construction is 
to achieve a Home Energy Rating System (HERS) index beyond the baseline of 85.  Final HERS 
index must be submitted prior to receipt of the final draw.  The projected, pre-construction HERS 
index must be submitted to the ADOH once the construction drawings have been completed and 
the final HERS index must be submitted prior to the receipt of the final draw.  All of the above 
assessments and weatherization work are to be overseen by Building Performance Institute, Inc. 
(BPI) certified weatherization professionals.   
 
GREEN TECHNOLOGY 
All projects will be evaluated for the use of alternative energy sources.  These may include   solar 
energy, tank-less water heaters and water harvesting and reuse.   The Arizona Department of 
Housings minimum energy efficiency requirements will be used as a guide for green technology.    
 
REHABILITATION ASSESSED VALUE 

During the HOME and/or CDBG eligibility determination phase Housing Coordinator will 
determine the “After Rehab Value” by conducting an online study using property value sources 
such as Zillow, Home Snap and Trulia.  The value will be determined by researching 
comparables for homes using one of the above named sources, or by using all 3 online 
resources. Gila County staff will obtain at least 3 comparables for each home to determine its 
value. The results will be printed out and retained in the beneficiary file along with the “Rehab 
Value” form.      
 
Effective August 23, 2013 HUD has established the HOME Maximum After‐Rehab Value 
Limits for owner occupied housing rehabilitation. These limits will remain in effect until HUD 
issues new limits. 

 
The  HOME  value  limit  for  existing  housing  to  be  used  for  owner  occupied  housing 
rehabilitation is 95 percent of the median purchase price for the area based on Federal FHA 
single family mortgage program data and other nation‐wide data on the sales of existing 
housing. For further information regarding HUD’s policy change and methodology please visit: 
https://www.onecpd.info/resource/2312/home‐maximum‐purchase‐price‐after‐rehab‐value/ 
 

The rehabilitation assistance will not exceed maximum per state unit investment amounts for 
Gila County.   
 
GRIEVANCE/PROTEST PROCEDURE 
Client Grievance Procedure: 
Clients can be denied services if they do not meet the eligibility requirements of the Housing 
Services Department.  The following procedures will be followed in order to resolve disputes that 
may arise in the Housing Rehabilitation Program. 

 
 All participants will be provided a copy of the procedure and will be required 

to provide a signature to document receipt of the articles. 



Adopted 4/05/06         Revised  January 2015 
 

                                         17 

 
 Complaints arising from disputes regarding the Housing Services 

Department will first be verbally or in writing addressed to the Housing 
Coordinator.  Complaints shall be brought to the attention of the  Housing 
Coordinator within 10 days after the client becomes aware of the problem. 

 
 The Housing Services Assistant will attempt to resolve the dispute within 5 

working days after receipt of the initial complaint. 
 

 If the issue is not resolved within 5 working days with the Housing  
Coordinator, the participant may refer his/her complaint in writing to the 
Director of the Community Services Division at 5515 S. Apache Ave., Globe, 
Arizona 85501. 

 
 The Director or the Director’s designee will be responsible for review and 

response to the written complaint within 10 working days of receipt. 
 

 Participants who wish to appeal the Director’s decision will have 10 working 
days from receipt of the written decision to notify the Community Services 
Division of his/her intention to appeal the decision to the Board of 
Supervisors. 

 
 All complaints submitted to final appeal shall be addressed to the Chairman of 

the Gila County Board of Supervisors, 1400 E. Ash Street, Globe, Arizona 
85501. 

 
 The Board of Supervisors will have 15 working days from receipt of the 

complaint to render a final decision. 
 

This grievance procedure has been approved by the Arizona Department of Housing.  Each 
participant is given a copy of the grievance procedure with a copy being maintained in the case 
file in the Community Services Housing Services Department. 
 
Contractor Grievance Procedure: 
Bid protests shall be submitted in writing to:  Gila County Housing Services Department, 5515 S. 
Apache Ave., Suite 200, Globe, AZ 85501 within ten (10) days of bid award notification.  
Protests must contain at a minimum the name, address and telephone number of the protester, the 
signature of the protestor or its representative and evidence of authority to sign; a detailed 
statement of the legal and factual grounds of the protest including copies of relevant data; and the 
form of relief requested.  Within three (3) business days of receipt, and after consultation with 
legal counsel, the Housing Services Housing Coordinator will respond to the protest.  The Gila 
County Housing Services Department reserves the right to reject any or all bids; to waive 
irregularities of information in any bid; and/or to take any steps determined prudent in order to 
resolve the protest. 
All contractors involved in the bidding process are provided with notice of the protest 
procedures, which are set forth in the Contractor Protest Procedure Form and in the Bid Award 
Notification Letter. In the event of a disagreement between the homeowner and contractor, 
homeowner and Gila County, applicant and Gila County, and/or Contractor and Gila County, to 



Adopted 4/05/06         Revised  January 2015 
 

                                         18 

name a few, the Grievance Procedure or Protest Procedure, whichever is applicable, shall be 
followed. All complaint/protest documentation will be hand delivered or sent by registered mail.  
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
If a person is: 
 
An employee, agent, consultant, officer, elected officer or appointed official of the Gila County 
Community Services Division - Housing Services Department who has CDBG, SHF or HOME 
related responsibilities or access to inside information may not obtain a financial benefit or 
interest from any housing rehabilitation activity for themselves or those with whom they have 
family or business ties during their tenure. 







Page 1 of 4 

03‐2013 

CERTIFICATIONS 

APPLICANT CERTIFICATIONS FOR FY14/15 
The applicant hereby assures and certifies that: 

 

  1.   It possesses legal authority to apply for Community Development Block Grant funds, and to 

execute the proposed program. 

  2.  Prior to the submission of the application, the applicantʹs governing body has duly adopted or 

passed as an official act a resolution authorizing the submission of the application, including all 

understandings, assurances, statutes, regulations and orders contained therein, and directing and 

authorizing the person identified as the official representative of the applicant to act in 

connection with the application and to provide such additional information as may be required.  

  3.  Its chief executive officer or other officer of the applicant approved by the State: 

  a.  Consents to assume the status of a responsible Federal official under the National 

Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (NEPA) and other provisions of Federal law, as specified at 

24 CFR 58.1(a) (3) and (a)(4), which further the purposes of NEPA insofar as the provisions of 

such Federal law apply to this program. 

  b.  Is authorized and consents on behalf of the applicant and him(her)self to accept the 

jurisdiction of the federal and State courts for the purpose of enforcement of his/her 

responsibilities as such an official.  

  4.  It will comply with the provisions of Executive Order 11990, relating to evaluation of flood 

hazards and Executive Order 11288 relating to the prevention, control and abatement of water 

pollution. 

  5.  It will, in connection with its performance of environmental assessments under the National 

Environmental Policy Act of 1969, comply with Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation 

Act of 1966 (16 U.S.C. 470), Executive Order 11593, and the Preservation of Archeological and 

Historical Data Act of 1966, P.L. 93‐291 (16 U.S.C. 469a‐1, et.seq.). 

  6.  It will administer and enforce the labor standard requirements of the Davis Bacon Act, as 

amended at 40 U.S.C. 276a‐276a‐5, and the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act at 40 

U.S.C. 327‐333. 

  7.  It will comply with the provisions of 24 CFR Part 24 relating to the employment, engagement of 

services, awarding of contracts or funding of any contractors or subcontractors during any period 

of debarment, suspension or placement in ineligibility status. 

  8.  It shall comply with the requirements of the 1992 Lead Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act of 

42 U.S.C. 4821‐4846 (also Title X of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1992) and 

implementing regulations at 24 CFR Part 35. 

  9.  It will comply with the provisions of 24 CFR part 58 ʺUniform Grant Administrative 

Requirementsʺ and OMB Circular A‐87. 

  10.  It will comply with the American Disabilities Act and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act, as 

amended. 



Page 2 of 4 

03‐2013 

 

  11.  It will comply with 

   a.  Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Pub. L. 88‐ 352), and the regulations issued pursuant 

thereto (24 CFR Part 1). 

   b.  Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (Pub. L. 90‐ 284), as amended. 

   c.  Section 109 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974. 

   d.  Executive Order 11063 pertaining to equal opportunity in housing and nondiscrimination in 

the sale or rental of housing built with Federal assistance. 

   e.  Executive Order 11246, and the regulations issued pursuant thereto (24 CFR Part 130 and 41 

CFR Chapter 60). 

   f.  Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended. 

  g.  Federal Fair Housing Act of 1988, P.L. 100‐430. 

h. The prohibitions against discrimination on the basis of age under the Age Discrimination Act 

of 1973, 42. U.S.C. 6101‐07, and the prohibitions against discrimination against persons with 

handicaps under Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (P.L. 93‐112), as amended, and 

the regulations at 24 CFR Part 8. 

i. The requirements of the Architectural Barriers Act of 1966 at 42 U.S.C. 4151‐415. 

 

12.    It will comply with the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act 

of 1970 and implementing regulations. 

13.         The Applicant certifies that there was no participation in any aspect or manner of the due 

diligence, compilation, preparation, or submission process relating to this Application, or the 

project that is the subject of this Application, by any person(s) or entity(ies) in violation of 

applicable State of Arizona (such as those found at A.R.S. §§ 38‐501 ‐ 38‐511) or federal (such as 

those found at 24 CFR 92.365 relating to the administration of HOME funds or 24 CFR 570.611 

relating to the administration of CDBG funds) conflict of interest laws .  Should ADOH determine 

that such a conflict exists; the Application will be discontinued from consideration of the award 

at issue.  Further, violations of any other applicable state or federal law will similarly result in 

disqualification of the Application from consideration of said award. Applicant further certifies It 
will comply with applicable conflict of interest provisions, incorporate such in all contracts and 

establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using positions for a purpose that is or gives the 

appearance of being motivated by a desire for private gain for themselves or others, particularly 

those with whom they have family, business, or other ties. 

  14.  It will comply with the provisions of the Hatch Act that limits the political activity of employees. 

  15.  It will give representatives of the State, the Secretary of HUD, the Inspector General, and the 

General Accounting Office access to all books, accounts, records, reports, files and other papers, 

things, or property belonging to it or in use by it pertaining to the administration of State CDBG 

assistance. 

  16.  It will ensure that the facilities under its ownership, lease or supervision which shall be utilized 

in the accomplishment of the program are not listed on the Environmental Protection Agencyʹs 

(EPA) list of violating facilities and that it will notify the State of the receipt of any 

communication from the Director of the EPA Office of Federal Activities indicating that a facility 

to be used in the project is under consideration for listing by the EPA. 

  17.  It will comply with the flood insurance purchase requirements of Section 102(a) of the Flood 

Disaster Protection Act of 1973, Pub.L. 93‐234, 87 Stat., 975, approved December 31, 1973. Section 

103 (a) required, on and after March 2, 1974. 



Page 3 of 4 

03‐2013 

  18.  It has AND WILL COMPLY WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THE STATE OF ARIZONA CITIZEN 

AND PUBLIC PARTICIPATION PLAN FOR THE STATE OF ARIZONA CDBG PROGRAM. 

  19.  It has developed plans to minimize displacement of persons as a result of activities assisted in 

whole or in part with CDBG funds and to assist persons actually displaced as a result of such 

activities, and has provided information about such plans to the public. 

  20.  It will not recover any capital costs of public improvements assisted in whole or in part with 

CDBG funds by assessing any amount against properties owned and occupied by persons of low 

and moderate income, including any fee charged or assessment made as a condition of obtaining 

access to such public improvements unless: 

   a.  the CDBG funds are used to pay the proportion of the fee or assessment that is financed 

from other revenue sources, or: 

   b.  it will certify to the State in writing that it lacks sufficient CDBG funds to comply with (a) 

but that it will not assess properties owned by very low‐income persons. 

 

  21.  It will provide all other funds/resources identified in the application, or any additional 

funds/resources necessary to complete the project as described in the application as submitted, or 

as may be later amended. 

  22.  It will comply with the requirements of the Single Audit Act of 1996 and OMB Circular A‐133; 

and if the grant is closed out prior to all funds having been audited, it shall refund to ADOH any 

costs disallowed as a result of any audit conducted after the date of grant closeout. 

  23.  It hereby adopts and will enforce a policy prohibiting the use of excessive force by law 

enforcement agencies within its jurisdiction against any individuals engaged in nonviolent civil 

rights demonstrations; and will enforce applicable State and local laws against physically barring 

entrance to or exit from a facility or location which is the subject of such nonviolent civil rights 

demonstrations within its jurisdiction. 

  24.  It will ensure that, to the best of the knowledge and belief of the undersigned: 

a.  no Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the 

undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or 

employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an 

employee of a Member of Congress in the connection with the awarding of any Federal 

contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into 

of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or 

modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement; 

b.  if any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any 

person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a 

Member of Congress, and officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of 

Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, 

the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form ‐ LLL, ʺDisclosure Form to 

Report Lobbying,ʺ in accordance with its instructions. 

c.  the undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the 

award documents for all sub‐awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub‐grants, and 

contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub‐recipients shall 

certify and disclose accordingly. 

 

   ̋ This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was 

placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this 

certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by 

Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required 



Page 4 of 4 

03‐2013 

certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more 

than $100,000 for each such failure.ʺ 

 

 

  25.  It shall comply with the provisions of Section 102 of the HUD Reform Act of 1989. 

  26.  It shall ensure that efforts are made to recruit minority, disabled and woman owned businesses 

for its vendor/supplier lists. 

 

CERTIFIED BY: 

 

 

___________________________________________      February 17, 2015 

Signature of Mayor or Chair of County Board          Date 

 

Michael A. Pastor, Chairman, Gila County Board of Supervisors 

Typed Name of Mayor or Chair of County Board        

 

NOTE:   The Attorney General has ruled that these Certifications must have an original signature 

when submitted to the CDBG Program. If an applicant submits more than one application, 

the Certifications should be included in the application that includes administration funds 

and other general items such as public participation, resolutions, etc. 



   
ARF-2989     Regular Agenda Item      3. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/17/2015  
Submitted For: Adam Shepherd, Sheriff 
Submitted By: Sarah White, Chief Administrative Officer, Sheriff's Office
Department: Sheriff's Office

Information
Request/Subject
Resolution No. 15-02-07 and Intergovernmental Services Agreement
between Sheriff's Office and Tonto Apache Tribe.

Background Information
The Tonto Apache Tribe (Tribe) and the Gila County Sheriff's Office
(GCSO) are jurisdictions which are required to implement Title I-Sex
Offender Registration and Notification Act (SORNA) of the Adam Walsh
Child Protection and Safety Act of 2006.  Both agencies wish to work
together on their participation in the Sex Offender Registration and
Notification Program. The Tribe and the GCSO will cooperatively approach
registration under SORNA, with the GCSO providing certain registration
services for offenders who are under the jurisdiction of the Tribe, and who
are required to register under SORNA.

Evaluation
The GCSO will have the following responsibilities:
• Upon request from the Tribe will be responsible for conducting warrants
checks for Tribal Offenders in the National Crime Information Center
(NCIC);
• the GCSO will take photographs of Tribal Offenders for verification
purposes;
• the GCSO will collect fingerprints and palm prints from Tribal Offenders
for purposes of registration;
• the GCSO will collect any other information required and provide
information to the Tribe; and,
• upon request from the Tribe, the GCSO will update Tribal Offender
information in the NCIC/NSOR/ACIC to reflect changes in the Tribal
Offenders registration information. If a Tribal Offender has absconded, or
otherwise cannot be located, the GCSO shall enter the Tribal Offender
into the NCIC Wanted Person File.



The Tribe will have the following responsibilities:
• Will enter in the sex offender registry provided be the Tribal Offenders
required by 42 U.S.C. § 16914(a)(1)-(7), the physical description of the
Tribal Offender and the criminal offense for which Tribal Offenders are
registered;
• the Tribe will also provide the GCSO with the current text of the Tribe’s
laws which define the criminal offenses;
• the Tribe will enter the criminal history of the Tribal Offenders;
• the Tribe will also take photographs of Tribal Offenders for purposes of
registration;
• the Tribe will collect DNA samples and submit them to the FBI for
analysis and entry into the Combined DNA Index System (CODIS);
• the Tribe will photocopy a driver’s license or identification card issued to
each Tribal Offender and enters the photocopied image into the sex
offender registry; and,
• the Tribe will enter into the sex offender registry any other information
provided by the GCSO and required by the Attorney General.
• Resolution Nos. 15-04 and 15-05 were adopted by the Tonto Apache
Tribe on February 10, 2015, and are attached to this agenda item.

Conclusion
The GCSO and the Tribe wish to work together on their participation in
the Sex Offender Registration and Notification Program.

Recommendation
Gila County Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd recommends that the Board of
Supervisors adopt Resolution No. 15-02-07 and approve the
Intergovernmental Services Agreement between the GCSO and the Tribe
for the collection of information required under the Sex Offender
Registration and Notification Act. 

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution 15-02-07 which
authorizes the execution of an Intergovernmental Services Agreement
between the Gila County Sheriff's Office and Tonto Apache Tribe for the
collection of information required under Title I-Sex Offender Registration
and Notification Act of the Adam Walsh Child Protection and Safety Act of
2006 for an initial term to begin once the Agreement has been fully
executed and shall end on May 1, 2017.  (Tim Scott)

Attachments
Intergovernmental Services Agreement



Resolution No. 15-02-07
TAT Resolution 15-04
Legal Explanation

















 
 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-02-07 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE GILA 

COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE AND THE TONTO APACHE TRIBE FOR 

COLLECTION OF INFORMATION REQUIRED UNDER TITLE 1 - SEX 

OFFENDER REGISTRATION AND NOTIFICATION ACT OF THE ADAM 

WALSH CHILD PROTECTION AND SAFETY ACT OF 2006 

 

WHEREAS, Gila County and the Tonto Apache Tribe are jurisdictions which are required to 

implement Title I-Sex Offender Registration and Notification Act (SORNA) of the Adam Walsh Child 

Protection and Safety Act of 2006; and,  

 

WHEREAS, the Gila County Sheriff’s Office (GCSO) and the Tonto Apache Tribe (Tribe) are 

desirous of entering into a mutual agreement to cooperatively approach registration under SORNA, 

whereby the GCSO will provide certain registration services for offenders who are under the 

jurisdiction of the Tribe and who are required to register under SORNA (“Tribal Offenders”); and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Intergovernmental Services Agreement between the GCSO and the Tribe requires 

each entity’s governing body to adopt a resolution which authorizes the execution of the 

Intergovernmental Services Agreement.    

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors hereby 

authorizes the execution of an Intergovernmental Services Agreement between the GCSO and the 

Tribe for collection of information required under Title 1-Sex Offender Registration and Notification 

Act of the Adam Walsh Child Protection and Safety Act of 2006.   

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 17
th

 day of February 2015, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona 

 

Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

_______________________________ _______________________________ 

Marian Sheppard    Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 

Clerk of the Board 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Bryan Chambers 

Deputy Attorney Principal/Civil Bureau Chief 







 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-3013     Regular Agenda Item      3. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/17/2015  

Submitted For: Adam Shepherd, Sheriff 
Submitted By: Sarah White, Chief Administrative Officer, Sheriff's Office
Department: Sheriff's Office
Fiscal Year: FY2016 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

October 1, 2015
through
September 30,
2016

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Governor's Office of Highway Safety FY2016 Mobile Traffic Systems Grant Application.

Background Information
The Gila County Sheriff's Deputies do not currently have the mobile capability in their
vehicles. In order for the Deputies to complete reports and get information they have to
return to the office, which takes valuable time away from responding and patrolling the
roads.

Evaluation
If this grant is awarded to the Gila County Sheriff's Office, the acquisition and use of
Toughbook CF31 with docking stations will greatly enhance the ability of the Sheriff's
Office Deputies in the field to allow for mobile interaction between dispatch and the
office. This will allow the Deputies to be present in the field for longer periods of time
and will allow them to complete their reports and forms in their vehicles.

Conclusion
The Gila County Sheriff's Office is requesting assistance from the Governor's Office of
Highway Safety (GOHS) to purchase (25) Toughbook CF31 Computers with docking
stations for a total amount of $156,054.85.

Recommendation
Gila County Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd recommends that the Board of Supervisors
approve the electronic submission of a grant application for (25) Toughbook CF31
Computers with docking stations to the Governor's Office of Highway Safety in the
amount of $156,054.85.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Gila County Sheriff's Office to



Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Gila County Sheriff's Office to
electronically submit a Grant Application to the Governor's Office of Highway Safety
which, if approved, will be used to purchase 25 Toughbook CF31 computers with
docking stations in the amount of $156,054.85 for a performance period of October 1,
2015, through September 30, 2016.  (Keith Thompson)

Attachments
Grant Application
Quote































   

ARF-3009     Regular Agenda Item      3. C.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/17/2015  

Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Deputy Director 
Submitted By: Steve Sanders, Deputy Director, Public Works Division
Department: Public Works Division Division: Engineering

Information
Request/Subject
Begin Road Abandonment Process for Road and Alley in the Midland City Subdivision

Background Information
The Midland City Subdivision was recorded in 1916. Some of the roads and alleys in the subdivision
have never been built and exist only on the map. A portion of Burnham Street and an adjacent alley
have previously been abandoned. At some time in the past a previous owner of Lot 24 built an addition
onto their home and encroached into the right-of-way. It appears part of a garage on Lot 13 may
encroach into the right-of-way. The alley serves no purpose and runs along the side of a hill.

Evaluation
The current Gila County policy on the abandonment of roadways in Gila County lets staff initiate
abandonment proceedings with approval from the Board of Supervisors. This request is to begin the
process to abandon S. Burnham Street between Lot 13, Block 15, and Lot 24, Block 20 and the alley in
Block 15, all on the Map of Midland City, Official Map No. 48 Gila County Records.

Staff has contacted adjoining owners in the area and they are receptive to acquiring the road and alley.

Conclusion
It is in the best interest of all involved to begin the process to abandon S. Burnham Street between Lot
13, Block 15, and Lot 24, Block 20 and the alley in Block 15, all on the Map of Midland City, Official
Map No. 48 Gila County Records.

Recommendation
The Public Works Division Deputy Director recommends that the Board begin the process to dispose of
S. Burnham St. and the above described alley in Midland City.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to direct staff to begin the process to dispose of S. Burnham St. and a
nearby alley in Midland City.
(Steve Sanders)

Attachments

Abandonment Area
Midland City Plat Map
Abandonment Map









   

ARF-2914     Regular Agenda Item      3. D.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/17/2015  

Submitted For: Jeffrey Hessenius, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator, Finance Division
Department: Finance Division
Fiscal Year: 2014-2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

December 2,
2014 to
December 1,
2015

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Intergovernmental Agreement No. 111414 - City of Globe

Background Information
N/A

Evaluation
From time to time, the County needs to procure services and/or goods from the City of
Globe.  Anticipated service needs from the City of Globe would be for planning, design,
construction, and maintenance of public infrastructure and other facilities.  Per Gila
County's procurement policy, any time a service is provided, some form of contract
needs to executed for those services.  Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) No. 111414,
will serve as the contract between Gila County and the City of Globe, to provide the
proper avenue for payment by the County for work performed by the City of Globe.

The term of the IGA will be from December 2, 2014, to December 1, 2015, and may be
extended by mutual agreement of the parties for up to two additional one-year terms. 
The IGA is for an amount not to exceed $50,000 without prior written approval, during
each one-year term.

Conclusion
It will benefit both the County and the City of Globe to have an IGA in place to facilitate
the performance of services by the City of Globe for the County when required, and
subsequent payment of same.

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve Intergovernmental Agreement



Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve Intergovernmental Agreement
No. 111414, to facilitate the payment by the County to the City of Globe for any service
related work which may arise during the term of the IGA.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) No.
111414 between Gila County and the City of Globe to facilitate the payment by the
County to the City of Globe for any service-related work which may arise during the
term of the IGA in an amount not to exceed $50,000 without prior written approval for
the period of December 2, 2014, to December 1, 2015.  (Jeff Hessenius)

Attachments
IGA No. 111414-City of Globe
Legal Explanation











 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   
ARF-3000     Regular Agenda Item      3. E.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/17/2015  

Submitted For: Kelly Riggs, IT Director 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator, Finance Division
Department: Asst County Manager/Library District Division: Information Technology
Fiscal Year: 2014-2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

Four years upon delivery date Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of a Suddenlink Agreement for a 100 Mb Point-to-Point Connection between Globe and Payson.

Background Information
Gila County has used T1 technology to connect our main service areas of Globe and Payson since our networks were
established.  In the past, this technology was sufficient for our needs, but those needs have changed rapidly in the
last few years.  With the advent of more services being provided in Payson, our bandwidth requirements have grown
larger than our current solution can provide, and it is stifling County business in Payson.  Our main I.T.
infrastructure is located in Globe, which has impacted Payson’s ability to access necessary resources, as well as
conduct business in a timely and consistent manner.  Our current T1 technology is based on older phone structure
and is very limited in capacity, making it mandatory to bundle several of these connections in order to provide the
proper bandwidth required.  Our current solution is at its recommended maximum capacity.  Exceeding that
capacity would create complications in data transfer through our current communication lines.  In order to continue
providing a consistent level of service in Payson, we have had to research more appropriate options.

Evaluation
Rapidly changing and evolving technology forces us to respond and adapt to the requirements of conducting
day-to-day business and delivering services in a cyber-based environment.  Our current bandwidth utilizes an
outdated T1 technology which no longer meets our needs.  The solution we are proposing will bring more than
twenty times our current bandwidth at a lower cost.

The term of the agreement shall be one year from the date that any service commences.  Upon the expiration of the
first year, the agreement shall automatically renew for successive periods of one year each, for three additional
years, unless prior notice of non-renewal is delivered by either party to the other at least thirty days before the
expiration of the Service Term of the then current Renewal Term.  The monthly cost for the service is $1600, or
$19,200 per year.  The cost over a four-year period is $76,800; therefore, it also requires the Board of Supervisors'
approval in addition to the County Manager's approval.

Conclusion
The new Commercial Service Order and Service Level Agreement between Gila County and Suddenlink will provide
increased bandwidth between Globe and Payson at a lower cost than our current provider, which is Network Services.

Recommendation
Staff recommends approval of a Commercial Service Order and a Service Level Agreement with Suddenlink to provide
a 100 Mb point-to-point connection between the Globe Courthouse and the Payson Sheriff’s Office, replacing the
current T1 technology; and authorization by the Board of Supervisors for the County Manager's signature on the
Commercial Service Order and Service Level Agreements from Suddenlink.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Commercial Service Order and Service Level Agreement between Gila
County and Suddenlink for a 100 Mb point-to-point connection between the Globe Courthouse and the Payson
Sheriff’s Office, replacing the current T1 technology, for a term of 4 years at an annual cost of $19,200 and a
one-time activation and setup fee of $250; and authorize the County Manager's signature on the Commercial Service
Order and Service Level Agreement.  (Jacque Griffin)

Attachments



Customer Service Order and Agreement
Legal Explanation















 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



   

ARF-2998     Regular Agenda Item      3. F.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/17/2015  

Submitted For: Jeffrey Hessenius, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator, Finance Division
Department: Finance Division
Fiscal Year: 2014-2015 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

N/A Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Approval to proceed with the acquisition of the property at 1309 S. South Street in
Globe, AZ.

Background Information
In 2007, Gila County began the process of developing a Long Range Facilities
Management Plan to accommodate County managerial needs and growth.  In 2007, it
was determined that the acquisition of future properties would be needed as the
County Government expanded to meet the needs of the constituency.

Evaluation
At the September 30, 2014, Board of Supervisors' Work Session, a question was raised
by Vice-Chairman Tommie C. Martin regarding a property that sits adjacent to
County-owned property.  Vice-Chairman Martin inquired whether the County has
looked into purchasing that property to possibly add additional space for the County
to utilize in the ongoing efforts to cease renting space for County facilities.  Staff was
then directed to look into the possibility of purchasing the lot.

An appraisal was ordered which identified the lot as an improved commercial site of
plus or minus 39,640 square feet (0.91 Acre) located at 1309 S. South Street in Globe,
Arizona 85501.  The property is zoned as C-2-Intermediate Commercial District.  There
is a residence on the property that is described in the appraisal as providing no
contributory value to the property.  It is the County's intention to demolish the
structure that is currently on the property.

Once Gila County had an appraisal report, Public Works Division Director Steve
Stratton negotiated with the property owner to determine a suitable price for the
property.  The property owner settled on a purchase price of $57,500 plus closing costs.

Conclusion
In the past, staff has met with the property owners of 1309 S. South Street in an



In the past, staff has met with the property owners of 1309 S. South Street in an
attempt to purchase the property, which sits in the middle of property owned by Gila
County.  The owners were not agreeable to selling the property on those previous
attempts.   At this time, the property owners are willing to sell the property to Gila
County for a total of $57,500 plus closing costs.  It would be advantageous to Gila
County to purchase this lot, thereby increasing the size of County-owned property in
that location, which will provide the option of additional space for future County
expansion projects.

Recommendation
The Public Works Division Director and the Finance Division Director recommend
approval of the purchase of the property at 1309 S. South Street in Globe, Arizona, to
provide the County with additional space for future expansion projects.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve the purchase of the property at 1309 S.
South Street in Globe, Arizona, in an amount not to exceed $57,500 plus closing
costs, and authorize the Chairman's signature on the title documents and deed. 
(Steve Stratton and Jeff Hessenius)

Attachments
Appraisal for 1309 S. South Street















































































































































   

ARF-2994     Regular Agenda Item      3. G.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/17/2015  

Submitted For: Don McDaniel Jr., County Manager 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator, Finance Division
Department: County Manager
Fiscal Year: 2014-2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

June 30, 2015 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Replacement

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of Agreement No. 122314-1 with the Globe-Miami Regional Chamber of
Commerce.

Background Information
Historically, Gila County has provided funding to the Globe-Miami Regional Chamber
of Commerce to provide assistance for the advertising campaigns of the Globe-Miami
Chamber of Commerce, the Payson Chamber of Commerce, and the Tonto Basin
Chamber of Commerce.  Funding has been included in the FY 2014-2015 budget for
this purpose.

Evaluation
For many years, Gila County has provided annual assistance in funding for the
Globe-Miami Regional Chamber of Commerce.  The Globe-Miami Regional Chamber of
Commerce distributes the funds between the Globe-Miami Chamber of Commerce, the
Payson Chamber of Commerce, and the Tonto Basin Chamber of Commerce.  The
funds are used to market County attractions through media advertising, brochures,
and websites.  On December 9, 2014, the Gila County Board of Supervisors received a
written request from the Globe-Miami Chamber of Commerce for the continued
financial support for their advertising campaigns for Fiscal Year 2014-2015.

As part of the County's continuing efforts to provide transparency, Agreement No.
122314-1 is being executed between Gila County and the Globe-Miami Regional
Chamber of Commerce for the FY 2014-2015 funding.

Conclusion
Based on the annual written reports provided to the Gila County Board of Supervisors
by the Globe-Miami Regional Chamber of Commerce, staff feels the annual financial
assistance provided to the Chamber of Commerce should continue.  In the past, the
funds have been used to successfully develop and attract businesses to Gila County. 
Ellen Kretsch, Executive Director of the Globe-Miami Regional Chamber of Commerce,
will be available to make a brief presentation of the purpose of their request for the



continued funding.

Recommendation
Staff recommends the continued annual support from Gila County to the Globe-Miami
Regional Chamber of Commerce to assist in the marketing campaigns of the
Globe-Miami Chamber of Commerce, the Payson Chamber of Commerce, and the
Tonto Basin Chamber of Commerce.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Agreement No. 122314-1 between Gila
County and the Globe-Miami Regional Chamber of Commerce for continued County
financial assistance in the amount of $30,000 to aide in the marketing campaigns of
the Globe-Miami Chamber of Commerce, the Payson Chamber of Commerce, and the
Tonto Basin Chamber of Commerce for FY 2014-2015.  (Don McDaniel)

Attachments
Agreement 122314-1 with the Globe-Miami Regional Chamber of Commerce
Request for Financial Assistance
Legal Explanation











 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



   

ARF-2983     Regular Agenda Item      3. H.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/17/2015  

Submitted For: Jeffrey Hessenius, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator, Finance Division
Department: Finance Division
Fiscal Year: 2014-2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

TBD Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Replacement

Information
Request/Subject
Empire CAT Proposal 302-01 for 2015 CT660S SBA 6x4 Roll-On/Roll-Off Truck.

Background Information
It is the intent of the Recycle/Landfill Department to purchase a new transfer truck
with roll-on/roll-off capabilities.  The Department has been struggling with
break-downs of the roll-off trucks, which haul bins filled with recycle materials or
waste.  There are only 2 trucks and they pick up bins every day.  They also haul loads
of recycling to the Phoenix area weekly.  It is important to have both trucks available
for maximum coverage.  In the past month, the Department has had to pay another
company to haul and dump our bins because both trucks had mechanical issues and
couldn’t run.
 
In May 2002, the County purchased equipment number C-18, a new Mack for
$101,431, which now has 304,600 miles.  At this time the cost to operate it is
approximately $0.83 per mile.  In February 2008, the County purchased equipment
number C-01, a new International for $156,268, which now has 122,136 miles.  The
cost to operate it is approximately $1.03 per mile and it primarily works in the Timber
Region.  It was recently hauled to Phoenix and may require a new engine which costs
between $20,000 - $30,000.  Both trucks have accumulated a lot of miles as they are
continually being used for recycling, brush pits, area clean-ups, remodeling and other
events.
 
The new truck would be equipped to haul a second 40 cubic yard bin, pending the
purchase of a trailer.  It is equipped with an automatic transmission to cut down on
clutch replacements and down time.  It will be more efficient to operate and easier to
drive in traffic.  Metal, paper and cardboard, out of both landfills, are being hauled to
the recycle yards and getting more money per ton.
 
The plan is to retain both of these trucks and use one as a spare.  The intent is to sell
a C-82, a 1993 Mack 14 wheel dump truck that is used to haul cover material at the
Russell Gulch Landfill.  The purchase was new in 1993 at a cost of $60,107.  It could



be sold at the Gila County on-line auction.

Evaluation
On April 16, 2013, the Gila County Board of Supervisors ratified the Cooperative
Purchasing Agreement between Gila County and the National IPA, a cooperative
purchasing group.  As a member of the National IPA, Gila County can benefit through
an existing contract that Caterpillar has between the City of Tucson and the National
IPA, to buy a 2015 CT660S SBA 6x4 Roll-On/Roll-Off truck. The National IPA discount
is thirty-one percent (31%) off the list price of $192,619, which results in a significant
cost savings of $58,924, for a base price of $133,695.

Option No. 1, Proposal 302-01 - is for  the purchase of the roll-on/roll-off truck.
Proposal 302-01 with Empire CAT shows the sales price for the 2015 CT660S
roll-on/roll-off truck to be $133,694.78 after the National IPA discount.  There is an
additional cost of $45,050 for Body/Allied Equipment (as identified on Page 9 of
Proposal 302-01), a freight charge of $2,125, a document fee of $225 and sales tax of
$14,560.02, which brings the total price to $195,654.80.

Option No. 2, Proposal 344-01 – is for the lease-purchase of the roll-on/roll-off
truck.  Proposal 344-01 reflects the same pricing as Proposal 302-01, with the
exception of the sales tax, which has been removed, which brings the total price to
$181,094.78.

Conclusion
It would benefit Gila County to take advantage of a cooperative agreement that
Caterpillar has with the City of Tucson and National IPA which results in a
$58,924 savings for the discounted pricing offered through the City of Tucson
contract.  Acquisition of the truck may be through an outright purchase or
lease-purchase option.

Recommendation
The Public Works Division Director and the Finance Division Director recommend that
the Board select a proposal Option;  and approve the Option selected for the purchase
or lease-purchase of one 2015, CT660S SBA 6x4 roll-on/roll-off truck in the total
amount of the Option selected.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve the proposal option selected by the Board
of Supervisors, between Gila County and Empire CAT for the purchase or
lease-purchase of one 2015, CT660S SBA 6x4 roll-on/roll-off truck in the total amount
of the Option selected.  (Jeff Hessenius and Steve Stratton)

Attachments
Empire Cat Proposal No. 302-01
Empire Cat Proposal No. 344-01
City of Tucson Heavy Equipment RFP
City of Tucson Heavy Equipment RFP Amendment 1



City of Tucson Heavy Equipment RFP-Amendment 2
City of Tucson Proof of Advertising
City of Tucson Contract with CAT
Contract Amendment No. 1
Contract Amendment No. 2
Contract Amendment No. 3
Contract Amendment No. 4
Contract Amendment No. 5
Contract Amendment No. 6
Contract Amendment No. 7
National IPA Terms and Conditions
NIPA Current Participating Agencies















































 

 
CITY OF TUCSON 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 
 
 REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NUMBER: 120377 
 PROPOSAL DUE DATE: NOVEMBER 14, 2011, AT 4:00 P.M. LOCAL AZ TIME 
 PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL LOCATION: DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT 
  255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ 85701 
   
 MATERIAL OR SERVICE: HEAVY EQUIPMENT, PARTS, ACCESSORIES,  
  SUPPLIES AND RELATED SERVICES 
 
PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE DATE: OCTOBER 27, 2011 
 TIME: 9:00 A.M. LOCAL AZ TIME 
 LOCATION: CITY HALL, FINANCE CONFERENCE ROOM 

             255 W. ALAMEDA, 5TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ   
 

CONFERENCE CALL NUMBER:  1-888-394-8197; PASSCODE:  640963 
 

 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS, C.P.M., CPPB 
 TELEPHONE NUMBER: (520) 837-4140 
  Victoria.Cortinas@tucsonaz.gov 
 

Interested offerors may obtain a copy of this complete solicitation by calling (520) 791-4217. A copy of this 
solicitation and possible future amendments may also be obtained from our Internet site at: 
http://www.tucsonprocurement.com/ by selecting the Bid Opportunities link and the associated solicitation 
number.  
 
Competitive sealed proposals for the specified material or service shall be received by the Department of 
Procurement, 255 W. Alameda, 6th Floor, Tucson, Arizona 85701, until the date and time cited.  
 
Proposals must be in the actual possession of the Department of Procurement at the location indicated, on or 
prior to the exact date and time indicated above. Late proposals shall not be considered. The prevailing clock 
shall be the City Department of Procurement clock. 
 
Proposals must be submitted in a sealed envelope. The Request for Proposal number and the offeror's name and 
address should be clearly indicated on the outside of the envelope. All proposals must be completed in ink or 
typewritten. Questions must be addressed to the Contract Officer listed above. 
 

****NOTICE**** 
 

Effective July 1, 2009, the City will no longer mail Notices of available solicitations via the U.S. Postal Service.  
Email notifications will be provided to those vendors that have updated their vendor record and selected email 
as their preferred delivery method.  For information on how to update your vendor record, please visit 
www.tucsonprocurement.com, click on What's New? and read the section titled "Notice of Solicitations."  You 
may also call (520) 791-4217 if you have questions.   
 
VC/sd 
 
PUBLISH DATE: October 12, 2011 

http://www.tucsonprocurement.com/


CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 2 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 
 
 

INTRODUCTION/ BACKGROUND 
 

The City of Tucson (herein referred to as the City) is requesting proposals from qualified and experienced firms 
to provide HEAVY EQUIPMENT, PARTS, ACCESSORIES, SUPPLIES AND RELATED SERVICES. The City 
requires a contractor who provides a diverse and extensive supply of equipment for purchase and/or rental to 
various locations in the Tucson metropolitan area.  
 
Heavy equipment will include, but not be limited to the following equipment categories:  Landfill, Construction, 
and Material Handling.  The City has approximately 150 pieces of heavy equipment that falls under the heavy 
equipment category.   
 
Requirements and qualifications are defined in detail in the Scope of Services Section of this Request for 
Proposal (RFP).  The City seeks a firm(s) that can supply the specified services, supplies, parts, equipment 
and materials.      
 

NATIONAL CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS 
 
The City, as the Principal Procurement Agency, as defined in Attachment A, has partnered with the National 
Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance Company (“National IPA”) to make the resultant contract (“Master 
Agreement”) from this solicitation available to other public agencies nationally, including state and local 
governmental entities, public and private primary, secondary and higher education entities, non-profit entities, 
and agencies for the public benefit (“Public Agencies”), through National IPA’s cooperative purchasing 
program. The City is acting as the contracting agency for any other Public Agency that elects to utilize the 
resulting Master Agreement.  Use of the Master Agreement by any Public Agency is preceded by their 
registration with National IPA as a Participating Public Agency in National IPA’s cooperative purchasing 
program.  Attachment A contains additional information on National IPA and the cooperative purchasing 
agreement. 
  
With corporate, pricing and sales commitments from the Supplier, National IPA provides marketing and 
administrative support for the Supplier that directly promotes the Supplier’s products and services to 
Participating Public Agencies though multiple channels, each designed to promote specific products and 
services to Public Agencies on a national basis.  Public Agencies benefit from pricing based on aggregate 
spend and the convenience of a contract that has already been advertised and competed.  The Supplier 
benefits from a contract that allows Participating Public Agencies to directly purchase goods and services 
without the Supplier’s need to respond to additional competitive solicitations. As such, the Supplier must be 
able to accommodate a nationwide demand for services and to fulfill obligations as a nationwide Supplier and 
respond to the National IPA documents (Attachment A).  The City reserves the right to deem submissions that 
do not include a response to the National IPA documents as non-responsive. 
 
The City anticipates spending approximately $15 million over the full potential Master Agreement term for 
heavy equipment.  For this fiscal year, the City anticipates purchasing an excavator and a water wagon.  While 
no minimum volume is guaranteed to the Supplier, the estimated annual volume of heavy equipment 
purchased under the Master Agreement through National IPA is approximately $100,000,000.  This projection 
is based on the current annual volumes among the City, other Participating Public Agencies that are 
anticipated to utilize the resulting Master Agreement to be made available to them through National IPA, and 
volume growth into other Public Agencies through a coordinated marketing approach between the Supplier 
and National IPA. 
 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 3 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 
 

 
TENTATIVE SCHEDULE OF EVENTS 

 
To the extent achievable, the following schedule shall govern the review, evaluation and award of the contract.  
The dates are estimates only and the City reserves the right to modify the dates below as necessary. 
 

Activity Estimated Finish Date of Activity 
RFP Published October 12, 2011 
Pre-proposal conference October 27, 2011 
Proposal due date  November 14, 2011 
Review of Proposals by Evaluation Committee and 
Reference Checks 

November 15, 2011 – January 18, 2012 

Vendor Interview / Demonstration  December 7-9, 2011 
Evaluation Committee’s recommendation January 4, 2012 
Final negotiation completed January 4-10, 2012 
Contract award & issuance of purchase order January 15, 2012 

 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
A. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS
 
1.  QUALIFIED FIRMS:  Offerors should meet the minimum qualifications: 
 
   a. Have a strong national presence in the heavy equipment industry. 
   b. Have a distribution model capable of delivering heavy equipment nationwide. 
   c. Have a demonstrated sales presence. 

d. Be able to meet the minimum requirements of the cooperative purchasing program 
detailed herein. 

e. Be able to provide the full range of products, equipment, parts, materials and services to 
meet the demands of the City and all agencies that opt to participate in the cooperative 
purchasing program with the City. 

 
2. PRODUCTION REPORTS:  The Contractor or associated dealer must have the ability to furnish the 

agency ordering equipment and National IPA MONTHLY progress reports confirming status of delivery 
dates as agreed upon.  These reports shall consist of, but not limited to the following: 

a. Copy of Contractor’s order to the factory. 
b. Copy of factory acknowledgment of order indicating scheduled date of production and shipment 

from factory. 
c. Factory generated computer status reports. 
d. Notification to the City of any changes in production or shipping dates. 
e. Any special information the Contractor shall have that would affect the timely delivery of the 

vehicles ordered in accordance with original delivery date promise. 
 
In lieu of written reports submitted to Fleet Services, the Contractor may provide access to an Internet 
based on-line order tracking system.  Any on-line system provided must provide the information 
required above.  The Contractor must provide all access codes necessary to view this information. 

 
3. DELIVERY and DELIVERY DOCUMENTATION:  The following documents are due upon delivery of 

the completed vehicles to the City: 
a. Invoice 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 4 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 
 

b. Warranty document 
c. Level 1 Inspection 
d. Required manuals 

 
 Upon contract award, the Contractor will be required to supply a delivery ticket specifying the purchase 

order number of each vehicle.   
 
 Delivery to the City of Tucson:  All deliveries shall be made Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 

3:00 p.m.  The Contractor shall be required to give the Operations/Fleet Services Department a 
minimum of 24-hour notification prior to delivery with the anticipated time of delivery and quantity of 
units to be delivered. 

 
4. VEHICLE INSPECTION:  The purchasing agency will assist the Contractor or the authorized dealer in 

arranging for inspection of each piece of equipment purchased.  Each vehicle delivered shall be subject 
to a complete inspection by the purchasing agency’s staff prior to acceptance.  Inspection criteria shall 
include, but not be limited to, conformity to the specifications, mechanical integrity, quality, 
workmanship and materials.  If delivered equipment is returned to the Contractor prior to acceptance 
for any reason, all corrections shall be made without any inconvenience to the City. 

 
5. TRAINING:  The Contractor shall provide, at no additional cost, training for each basic unit of 

equipment purchased.  This training shall be adequate to the needs of the typical equipment operator 
and service technician in order to assure proper operation, utilization and maintenance of the 
equipment supplied.  Any manuals necessary to perform the required training shall be furnished by the 
Contractor.  The trainer shall be factory-trained and thoroughly knowledgeable in equipment operator 
and service technician functions.  Training shall be presented in a quality suitable for videotaping.  The 
City reserves the right to videotape part or all of the training provided at no additional cost to the 
agency. 

 
6. REPAIRS:  The Contractor will be responsible for transport of vehicles to and from his place of 

business for repairs, at not additional cost to the City, until such time as the City of Tucson places the 
vehicle in service.  Transport of the vehicle will not be delayed more that one working day from date of 
notification. 

 
7. WARRANTIES:  Offeror shall warrant that all equipment and parts furnished in their offer are newly 

manufactured and free from defects in material and workmanship from the date the City places the 
equipment into service.  Warranty shall also guarantee accepted trade standards of quality, fitness for 
the intended uses, and conformance to promises or specified specifications. No other express or 
implied warranty shall eliminate the vendor’s liability as stated herein. 

 
8. VENDOR SERVICE AND MAINTENANCE:  Contractor will provide and maintain a factory authorized 

parts and service facility within a reasonable distance to the purchasing location. 
 
 For the City, the parts and service facility must be within 125 mile radius of the City of Tucson Price 

Service Center (4004 S. Park Avenue, 85714).  If warranty service is not provided within the Tucson 
metro area, the Contractor shall be responsible for all costs, including fuel and labor, of transporting 
vehicle (s) between the City’s Price Service Center and the Contractor’s service center. The method of 
transportation must be mutually agreed to by the Contractor and the City prior to transport.   

 
For service calls, the City expects the Contractor to provide a response within 60 minutes. 

 
9. VEHICLE RECALL NOTICES:  In the event of any recall notice, technical service bulletin, or other 

important notification affecting a vehicle purchased from this contract, a notice shall be sent to the 
purchasing agency’s representative.  For the City of Tucson, all notices shall be sent to General Services, 
Fleet Services Division, 4004 S. Park Avenue, Building 1, Tucson, AZ 85714.   

 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 5 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 
 
 
B. EQUIPMENT AND PRODUCT REQUIREMENTS:   
 
1.  EQUIPMENT: A complete and comprehensive line of Heavy Equipment to support various needs of 

agencies is requested. The categories include, but are not limited to the following.  
 
Landfill Equipment:

Landfill Dozers 
Landfill Compactors 
Landfill Scraper 

 

Material Handling 
Fork Lift 
Crane / Wheeled 
Crane / Track 

 
 
Construction Equipment
Air Compressor 
Articulated Dump Truck 
Asphalt Cold Planer 
Asphalt Rotary Mixer 
Bucket Truck 
Cement Mixer 
Chip Spreader 
Crack Sealer 
Dozers / Tracked 
Dozers / Wheeled 
Dump Trucks 
Excavators / Tracked 
Excavators / Wheeled 
Ice Resurfacer 
Loaders / Backhoe / Wheeled 
Loaders / Tracked 
Loaders / Wheeled  
Motor Graders 
Patcher Truck 

Paver / Tracked 
Paver / Wheeled  
Rollers / Drum / Vibrate 
Rollers / wheeled / Pneumatic 
Rollers / Drum / Wheeled 
Scrapers  
Skid Steer Loaders 
Soil Compactors 
Sweeper / Scrubber 
Sweeper / Street 
Sweeper / walkway 
Trailer / Tilt 
Trailer / Flatbed 
Trailer / Drop Neck 
Trailer / Utility  
Trencher 
Water Truck 
Water Wagon 

 
2.  CURRENT EQUIPMENT AND PRODUCTS: All equipment and products being offered in response to 

this solicitation shall be in current and ongoing production; shall be formally announced for general 
marketing purposes; shall be a model or type currently functioning in a user (paying customer) 
environment and capable of meeting or exceeding all specifications and requirements set forth in this 
solicitation. 

 
3.  PRICING:  Offerors shall provide a verifiable price index, to include but not limited to a discount from a 

verifiable price index, a reduced net pricing schedule, a hybrid or other supplier specific pricing model.  
The pricing model shall remain firm and will include all charges that may be incurred in fulfilling 
requirement(s) for the twelve-month period following contract award.  Where applicable, pricing shall be 
determined by applying Offerors discounts to the prices listed on their manufacturer’s price lists, retail 
price sheets, catalogs or by utilizing the reduced net pricing schedule.    



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 6 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 
 
 
C. SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
  

1. SERVICES: The City is interested in inclusion of value-add services. These services may be 
provided by the authorized manufacturer or dealer and sample categories include, but are not 
limited to: 

 
a. Repair Services:  The ability to provide repair services through authorized 

manufacturer’s facilities or dealers.  Repairs services may include, but not limited to, 
hourly rate for repairs in shop, hourly rate for repairs in field, weld repairs, machining 
work, etc. 

 
b. Maintenance Services:  The ability to provide various maintenance services and 

options through authorized manufacturer’s facilities or dealers.  Maintenance services 
may include scheduled services based upon the manufactures recommended 
guidelines, to include but not limited to, daily scheduled services, daily fuel dispensing, 
major/ minor machine cleaning, etc. 

 
 For landfill equipment, if the City has purchased the maintenance services from the 

manufacturer’s dealer, the City requires a loaner or rental equipment, at no additional 
cost, if the machine is down for more than 24 hours. 

 
c. Warranties: The ability to provide a full range of extended warranties. 
 
d. Financing Options:  The ability to provide financing options. 
 
e. Trade-In or Buyback Options: The ability to trade-in used equipment or obtain a 

guaranteed buy back price at the time of purchase. 
 
f. Rental: The ability to rent heavy equipment through the manufacturer or dealer. 

 
g. Small Business Program: The ability to incorporate small business enterprises into 

your distribution, sales and product offerings.  
 
h. Green/Sustainability Program:  

1. Policies: Efforts and policies pertaining to green and sustainability.  
2. Products: Impact on product offerings.    
3. Distribution: Impact in distribution. 
4. Certifications: The industry recognized certifications and standards obtained.  

 
i. Training & Education: The ability to provide on-site and/or online training and 

educational programs/seminars. 
 
j. Customer Support Services: The policies on replacements, returns, restocking 

charges, after hours service, after sales support, out of stock, order tracing, technical 
feedback, quality assurance for orders and drop shipments.   

 
k. Other Services/Options: Other value-add services not included in above categories. 
 

 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 7 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 
 

INSTRUCTIONS TO OFFERORS 
 

1. DEFINITION OF KEY WORDS USED IN THE SOLICITATION: 
 For purposes of this solicitation and subsequent contract, the following definitions shall apply: 
 City: The City of Tucson, Arizona  
 Contract: The legal agreement executed between the City and the Contractor/Consultant. The Contract shall include this 

RFP document incorporated herein by reference, all terms, conditions, specifications, scope of work, Amendments, the 
Contractor’s offer and negotiated items as accepted by the City. 

 Contractor/Consultant: The individual, partnership, or corporation who, as a result of the competitive solicitation process, 
is awarded a contract by the City. 

 Contract Representative: The City employee or employees who have specifically been designated to act as a contact 
person or persons to the Contractor, and is responsible for monitoring and overseeing the Contractor's performance under 
this Contract. 

 Director of Procurement: The contracting authority for the City, authorized to sign contracts and amendments thereto on 
behalf of the City. 

 May: Indicates something that is not mandatory but permissible. 
 Offeror: The individual, partnership, or corporation who submits a proposal in response to a solicitation. 
 Shall, Will, Must: Indicates a mandatory requirement. Failure to meet these mandatory requirements, if they constitute a 

substantive requirement, may, at the City’s sole discretion, result in the rejection of a proposal as non-responsive. 
 Should: Indicates something that is recommended but not mandatory. If the Offeror fails to provide recommended 

information, the City may, at its sole option, ask the Offeror to provide the information or evaluate the proposal without the 
information. 

  
2. PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE: If scheduled, the date and time of a Pre-Proposal conference is indicated on the cover 

page of this document. Attendance at this conference is not mandatory. Written minutes and/or notes will not be available, 
therefore attendance is encouraged. If an Offeror is unable to attend the Pre-Proposal Conference questions may be 
submitted in writing. Offerors are encouraged to submit written questions, via electronic mail or facsimile, at least five days 
prior to the Request for Proposal due date to the Contract Officer listed above. The purpose of this conference will be to 
clarify the contents of this Request for Proposal in order to prevent any misunderstanding of the City's position. Any doubt 
as to the requirements of this Request for Proposal or any apparent omission or discrepancy should be presented to the City 
at this conference. The City will then determine the appropriate action necessary, if any, and may issue a written 
amendment to the Request for Proposal. Oral statements or instructions will not constitute an amendment to this Request 
for Proposal. 

 
3. INQUIRIES: Any question related to the Request for Proposal shall be directed to the Contract Officer whose name appears 

above. An offeror shall not contact or ask questions of the department for whom the requirement is being procured. The 
Contract Officer may require any and all questions be submitted in writing. Offerors are encouraged to submit written 
questions via electronic mail or facsimile, at least five days prior to the proposal due date. Any correspondence related to a 
solicitation should refer to the appropriate Request for Proposal number, page and paragraph number. An envelope 
containing questions should be identified as such, otherwise it may not be opened until after the official proposal due date 
and time. Oral interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. Only questions answered by a formal written 
amendment to the Request for Proposal will be binding. 

 
4. AMENDMENT OF REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL: The Offeror shall acknowledge receipt of a Request for Proposal 

Amendment by signing and returning the document by the specified due date and time. 
 
5. FAMILIARIZATION OF SCOPE OF WORK: Before submitting a proposal, each offeror shall familiarize itself with the Scope 

of Work, laws, regulations and other factors affecting contract performance. The Offeror shall be responsible for fully 
understanding the requirements of the subsequent Contract and otherwise satisfy itself as to the expense and difficulties 
accompanying the fulfillment of contract requirements. The submission of a proposal will constitute a representation of 
compliance by the Offeror. There will be no subsequent financial adjustment, other than that provided by the subsequent 
Contract, for lack of such familiarization. 

 
6.  PREPARATION OF PROPOSAL:  

A. All proposals shall be on the forms provided in this Request for Proposal package. It is permissible to copy these forms 
as required. Facsimiles or electronic mail proposals shall not be considered. 

B. At a minimum, your proposal should include the signed Offer and Acceptance form, signed copies of any solicitation 
amendments, completed Price Page and your response to all evaluation criteria. 

C. The Offer and Acceptance page shall be signed by a person authorized to submit an offer. An authorized signature on 
the Offer and Acceptance page, Proposal Amendment(s), or cover letter accompanying the proposal documents shall 
constitute an irrevocable offer to sell the good and/or service specified herein. Offeror shall submit any additional 
requested documentation, signifying intent to be bound by the terms of the agreement. 

D. The authorized person signing the proposal shall initial erasure, interlineations or other modifications on the proposal. 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 8 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 
 
 E. In case of error in the extension of prices in the proposal, unit price shall govern when applicable. 
 F. Periods of time, stated as a number of days, shall be in calendar days. 
 G. It is the responsibility of all offerors to examine the entire Request for Proposal package and seek clarification of any 

requirement that may not be clear and to check all responses for accuracy before submitting a proposal. Negligence in 
preparing a proposal confers no right of withdrawal after due date and time. 

H. The City shall not reimburse the cost of developing, presenting, submitting or providing any response to this solicitation. 
I. Offeror must list any subcontractors to be utilized in the performance of the services specified herein. For each 

subcontractor, details on respective qualifications must be included. 
 
7. PAYMENT DISCOUNTS: Payment discount periods shall be computed from the date of receipt of the material/service or 

correct invoice, whichever is later, to the date City’s payment warrant is mailed.  Unless freight and other charges are 
itemized, any discount provided shall be taken on full amount of invoice. Payment discounts of twenty-one calendar days or 
more shall be deducted from the proposed price in determining the price points.  However, the City shall be entitled to take 
advantage of any payment discount offered by a vendor provided payment is made within the discount period.  

 
8. TAXES: The City of Tucson is exempt from federal excise tax, including the federal transportation tax. 
 
9. PROPOSAL/SUBMITTAL FORMAT: An original and 6 copies (7 total) of each proposal should be submitted on the 

forms and in the format specified in the RFP. Offerors shall also submit 3 electronic copies of the complete proposal 
response on cd, jump drive or zip disc in MS Office97 or .pdf format. Any confidential information shall be submitted in a 
separate file on the cd, jump drive or zip disc. The original copy of the proposal should be clearly labeled "Original" and shall 
be single-sided, three hole punched and in a binder. The material should be in sequence and related to the RFP. The 
sections of the submittal should be tabbed, clearly identifiable and should include a minimum of the following 
sections: the completed Offer and Acceptance Form, all signed Amendments, a copy of this RFP document and the 
Offeror’s response to the Evaluation Criteria including the completed Price Page. Failure to include the requested 
information may have a negative impact on the evaluation of the offeror's proposal.  

 
10. EXCEPTIONS TO CONTRACT PROVISIONS: A response to any Request for Proposal is an offer to contract with the City 

based upon the contract provisions contained in the City’s Request for Proposal, including but not limited to, the 
specifications, scope of work and any terms and conditions. Offerors who wish to propose modifications to the contract 
provisions must clearly identify the proposed deviations and any proposed substitute language. The provisions of the 
Request for Proposal cannot be modified without the express written approval of the Director or his designee. If a proposal 
or offer is returned with modifications to the contract provisions that are not expressly approved in writing by the Director or 
his designee, the contract provisions contained in the City’s Request for Proposal shall prevail. 

 
11. PUBLIC RECORD: All proposals submitted in response to this Request for Proposal shall become the property of the City 

and shall become a matter of public record available for review subsequent to the award notification. 
 
12. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION: The City of Tucson is obligated to abide by all public information laws. If an Offeror 

believes that any portion of a proposal, offer, specification, protest or correspondence contains information that should be 
withheld, a statement advising the Contract Officer of this fact should accompany the submission and the information shall 
be so identified wherever it appears. The City shall review all requests for confidentiality and may provide a written 
determination to designate specified documents confidential or the request may be denied. Price is not confidential and will 
not be withheld. If the confidential request is denied, such information shall be disclosed as public information, unless the 
offeror submits a formal written objection. 

 
13. CERTIFICATION: By signature on the Offer and Acceptance page, solicitation Amendment(s), or cover letter accompanying 

the submittal documents, Offeror certifies: 
A. The submission of the offer did not involve collusion or other anti-competitive practices. 
B. The Offeror shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment in violation of Federal or State 

law. 
C. The Offeror has not given, offered to give, nor intends to give at any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future 

employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip, favor, meal or service to a public servant in connection with the 
submitted offer. 

D. The Offeror hereby certifies that the individual signing the submittal is an authorized agent for the Offeror and has the 
authority to bind the Offeror to the Contract. 

 
14. WHERE TO SUBMIT PROPOSALS: In order to be considered, the Offeror must complete and submit its proposal to the 

City of Tucson Department of Procurement at the location indicated, prior to or at the exact date and time indicated on the 
Notice of Request for Proposal page. The Offeror’s proposal shall be submitted in a sealed envelope. The words “SEALED 
PROPOSAL” with the REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL TITLE, REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NUMBER, PROPOSAL DUE 
DATE AND TIME and OFFEROR’S NAME AND ADDRESS shall be written on the envelope. 

 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 9 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 
 
15. LATE PROPOSALS: Late proposals will be rejected. 
 
16. OFFER AND ACCEPTANCE PERIOD: In order to allow for an adequate evaluation, the City requires an offer in response 

to this solicitation to be valid and irrevocable for ninety (90) days after the proposal due date and time. 
 
17. WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSAL: At any time prior to the specified solicitation due date and time, an offeror may formally 

withdraw the proposal by a written letter, facsimile or electronic mail from the Offeror or a designated representative. 
Telephonic or oral withdrawals shall not be considered. 

 
18. DISCUSSIONS: The City reserves the right to conduct discussions with offerors for the purpose of eliminating minor 

irregularities, informalities, or apparent clerical mistakes in the proposal in order to clarify an offer and assure full 
understanding of, and responsiveness to, solicitation requirements. 

 
19. CONTRACT NEGOTIATIONS: Exclusive or concurrent negotiations may be conducted with responsible offeror(s) for the 

purpose of altering or otherwise changing the conditions, terms and price of the proposed contract unless prohibited. 
Offerors shall be accorded fair and equal treatment in conducting negotiations and there shall be no disclosure of any 
information derived from proposals submitted by competing offerors.  Exclusive or concurrent negotiations shall not 
constitute a contract award nor shall it confer any property rights to the successful offeror. In the event the City deems that 
negotiations are not progressing, the City may formally terminate these negotiations and may enter into subsequent 
concurrent or exclusive negotiations with the next most qualified firm(s). 

 
20. VENDOR APPLICATION: Prior to the award of a Contract, the successful offeror shall register with the City’s Department of 

Procurement. Registration can be completed at http://www.tucsonprocurement.com/ by clicking on Vendor Services.  Please 
note that email notifications of newly published solicitations and amendments will be provided to those vendors that select 
email as their preferred delivery method in their vendor record. 

 
21. CITY OF TUCSON BUSINESS LICENSE:  It is the responsibility of the Contractor to have a City of Tucson Business 

License throughout the life of this contract or a written determination from the City's Business License Section that a license 
is not required.   At any time during the contract, the City may request the Contractor to provide a valid copy of the business 
license or a written determination that a business license is not required.  Application for a City Business License can be 
completed at http://www.tucsonaz.gov/etax.  For questions contact the City's Business License Section at (520) 791-4566 or 
email at tax-license@tucsonaz.gov. 

 
22. UPON NOTICE OF INTENT TO AWARD: The apparent successful offeror shall sign and file with the City, within five (5) 

days after Notice of Intent to Award, all documents necessary to the successful execution of the Contract. 
 
23. AWARD OF CONTRACT: Notwithstanding any other provision of the Request for Proposal, the City reserves the right to: 
 (1) waive any immaterial defect or informality; or 
 (2) reject any or all proposals, or portions thereof; or 
 (3) reissue the Request for Proposal. 
 
 A response to this Request for Proposal is an offer to contract with the City based upon the terms, conditions and Scope of 

Work contained in the City's Request for Proposal. Proposals do not become contracts unless and until they are executed 
by the City's Director of Procurement and the City Attorney. A contract has its inception in the award, eliminating a formal 
signing of a separate contract. All of the terms and conditions of the contract are contained in the Request for Proposal, 
unless any of the terms and conditions are modified by a Request for Proposal amendment, a Contract Amendment, or by 
mutually agreed terms and conditions in the Contract documents. 

 
24. PROPOSAL RESULTS: The name(s) of the successful offeror(s) will be posted on the Procurement Department’s Internet 

site at http://www.tucsonprocurement.com/ upon issuance of a Notice of Intent to Award or upon final contract execution. 
 
25. PROTESTS: A protest shall be in writing and shall be filed with the Director of Procurement. A protest of a Request for 

Proposal shall be received at the Department of Procurement not less than five (5) working days before the Request for 
Proposal due date. A protest of a proposed award or of an award shall be filed within ten (10) days after issuance of 
notification of award or issuance of a notice of intent to award, as applicable. A protest shall include: 

A.    The name, address, and telephone number of the protestant; 
B.    The signature of the protestant or its representative; 
C.    Identification of the Request for Proposal or Contract number; 
D.    A detailed statement of the legal and factual grounds of protest including copies of relevant documents; and 
E.    The form of relief requested. 

http://www.tucsonprocurement.com/
http://www.tucsonprocurement.com/


CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 10 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 
 

PROPOSAL EVALUATION REQUIREMENTS 
 

 
I. PROPOSAL EVALUATION CRITERIA – (listed in relative order of importance) 
  

A. Method of Approach 
B. Price Proposal 
C. Qualifications & Experience 
 

II. REQUIREMENTS SPECIFIC TO EVALUATION CRITERIA: The narrative portion and the materials 
presented in response to this Request for Proposal should be submitted in the same order as requested 
and must contain, at a minimum, the following: 

 
A. Method of Approach 

 
1. National Program 

a. Provide a response to the national program include a detailed response to 
Attachment A, Exhibit A, National IPA Response for National Cooperative Contract 
and provide any proposed exceptions to Attachment A, Exhibit B, National IPA 
Administration Agreement, example. 
 

2. Distribution Network 
a.  Describe how your firm proposes to distribute the equipment, accessories, 

parts, repair and services nationwide.  Describe any parts the distribution 
network will have “on-hand” and those that must be ordered. 

b. Identify all other companies/distributors/dealers that will be involved in 
processing, handling or shipping the products/services to Participating Public 
Agencies. 

c. Provide the number, size and location of your firm’s manufacturing, distribution 
facilities, warehouses, service facilities and dealer networks as applicable. State 
the estimated dollar value of your inventory. Include a map showing heavy 
equipment distribution network coverage nationwide.   

d. Describe your dealer network and their role in providing products, services, etc. 
under this contract. 

 
3. Product  

 a. Provide a detailed written response illustrating how the equipment, accessories, 
parts, supplies and related services offered will meet the requirements of this 
solicitation.  Offerors shall identify and describe their heavy equipment 
categories. For each proposed category, describe in detail and provide at a 
minimum the following types of information:  

  1. Identification and description of equipment categories offered.  

  2. Identification and description of sub categories. 

3.  Identify accessories, parts, services, etc. that are available through the 
manufacturer. 

4. Identify accessories, parts, services, etc. that are available through the 
authorized dealer. 

5. Provide descriptions, catalog(s) or website links for accessories, parts 
and supplies offered. 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 11 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 
 

 b. Describe your warranty program, including 

1. Types of warranties available (by category or equipment) 
2. Describe your warranty claims procedures. 
3. Describe your policy addressing warranty issues related to  

a. Major Component Failures 
b. Engineering Deficiencies 
c. Describe your firm’s standard response time to address warranty 

failure issues. 
c. Is there a dedicated support representative that the City should contact?  If yes, 

provide their name and complete contact information. 
d. Provide information which details the costs, types, and extents of available 

extended warranty coverage for heavy equipment. 
e. Describe how your firm is anticipating and ensuring compliance with the 

Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) emission changes. 

 f. Submit all information that will aid the City in evaluating your proposal.  

 
4. Services 

 a. Provide a detailed written response illustrating how your firm or the authorized 
dealers will provide services to meet the requirements of this solicitation. Offerors 
shall provide the proposed services that will meet the Service Requirements 
section of the Scope Work outlined in this solicitation.  For each proposed 
category, describe and/or provide details explaining your capabilities. In your 
response include information such as:  

b. Provide detailed information explaining your service capabilities. 
c. Provided detailed information explaining the service capabilities of your authorized 
 dealers. 
d. Describe the maintenance programs offered.  If a maintenance program is selected 

by the City, will your firm provide a loaner or rental machine if the machine is down 
for more than 24 hours? 

e. Describe your training programs.  The proposed training program shall include but 
 not limited to: 

1. How will equipment training be conducted? 
2. Describe the training curriculum for the equipment operators. 
3. Describe the training curriculum for the service technicians. 
4. How will you accommodate various work shifts? 
5. What type of documentation is provided with the proposed training? 
6. Is a “train the trainer” program available?  Is this training different than the 

regular initial training?  Can training sessions be recorded for future use 
by the agency? 

 
f. Submit any other services information that will aid the City in evaluating your 
 proposal. 

 
  5. Ordering and Invoices  

a. Describe your order process.   

b. How do agencies work with your firm to determine appropriate equipment needs? 

c. Describe the equipment delivery process and your delivery commitment. 

d. What is your standard equipment delivery timeframes? 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 12 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 
 

e. How does your firm communicate order cut off dates to your customers? 

f. Identify and describe any exceptions or challenges. 

g. Provide details of the capabilities of your E Commerce website including ability to 
display contract pricing, on-line ordering, order tracking, search options, order 
history, technical assistance, lists, technical data and documentation, 
identification of alternate green products, etc. 

h. Describe your invoicing process.  Is electronic invoicing available? Is summary 
invoicing available?  Are there other options on how an agency receives an 
invoice? Submit sample invoices. 

i. Describe how problems – such as a customer ordering a wrong product; a 
customer receiving a defective or wrong product; etc. – are resolved. 

j. Describe how your firm measures performance including identification, 
calculation, tracking and reporting of measurements. 

 
  6. Other 

  a. Describe any government rebate programs applicable.  
 
B. Price Proposal 

 
1. Provide a Price Proposal.  Submit the Price Proposal as a separate and clearly identified 

document.  The Price Proposal shall minimally include the following:  Offerors shall 
submit pricing based on the Equipment, Product Requirements and Service 
Requirement categories identified on the Scope of Services. Pricing should be based 
upon a verifiable pricing structure, such as a fixed percent discount from an index or 
indices or established price list, etc.  Where applicable, Offerors shall provide pricing for 
all product and services offered.  Describe how pricing is determined for a base model 
equipment purchase and how pricing is determined for options, accessories and 
services.  Identify the price list being used and include an electronic copy (or website 
link) so that net prices can be determined.   

 
The price proposal should include pricing for equipment, accessories and options, parts, 
service and any additional value-add goods or services available such as financing, 
rental and used equipment for purchase from the vendor.  Vendors must indicate if 
discounts are based on manufacturer price lists or dealer price lists. 

 
2. The City’s expectation is that the proposed pricing will not include freight.  Based on your 

distribution network, explain how freight is calculated.   
 
3. The discount structure provided by the supplier is intended to remain constant 

throughout the term of the Contact.  Discuss how often price lists are updated and 
provide a listing of price list changes that have taken place over the last 3 years.  
Discuss any known future price list changes or industry changes that will effect pricing 
over the next 5 years.  

 
4. State if pricing is most favorable offered to government agencies. Describe how your 

firm will ensure this contract will continually offer the best pricing available to 
Participating Public Agencies. 

 
5. Provide details of and propose additional discounts for volume orders, special 

manufacturer’s offers, minimum order quantity, free goods program, total annual spend, 
etc. 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 13 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 
 

 
6. Provide information on any ordering methods – such as electronic ordering or payment 

via pCard or EFT – or other criteria which entitle the using agency to additional discounts 
off of a manufacturer’s price list.  If so, please provide the percentage discount. 

 
7. As stated in the Instructions to Offerors, 7. Discounts, the price(s) herein can be 

discounted by _______%, if payment is made within ______ days.  

8 Indicate if payment will be accepted via credit card. ______Yes  ______No 

a. If yes, can commercial payment(s) be made online? _____Yes  _____No 

b. Will a third party be processing the commercial credit card payment(s)? 
   _____Yes  _____No 

c. If yes, indicate the flat fee per transaction $___________ (as allowable, per Section 
5.2.E of Visa Operating Regulations). 

If “no” to above, will consideration be given to accept the card? ____Yes _____No 
 

9. Does your firm have a City of Tucson Business License? _____Yes  _____No 
 If yes, please provide a copy of your City of Tucson Business license.  
 

C. Qualifications and Experience 
 

1. Provide a brief history and description of your company. Describe your market position in 
the local government, educational and medical market spaces.  

 
2. Describe your dealer network and their role in providing products and services under this 

contract. 
 
3. Provide a listing of key personnel who may be assigned to the City’s contract.  Include 

their title within your organization and the description of the type of work they may 
perform.  Please identify an executive corporate sponsor who will be responsible for the 
overall management of the awarded Master Agreement. 

 
4. Summarize your experience in providing equipment, products and services similar to that 

outlined in the Scope of Work.  Provide a minimum of three references for which you have 
provided similar products and services.  References from other public agencies, 
particularly municipal governments, are preferred. Please include company name, 
address, phone, email, and contact person. 

 
5. Please submit any additional information that you feel is applicable to your qualifications 

and experience.   
 
6. Provide the qualifications of technicians that will be servicing equipment throughout the 

nation. 
 
7. Describe your quality control program including but not limited to:  what is your quality 

control procedures, who performs the quality control inspection? What are the 
qualifications of the inspectors?  What items are inspected / tested? Etc. 

 
 

III. GENERAL 
 

A. Shortlist: 
   



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 14 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 
 

The City reserves the right to shortlist the offerors on Method of Approach, Price Proposal and 
Qualifications & Experience of the stated criteria. For the initial scoring, pricing will be evaluated 
subjectively by the evaluation committee.  However, for final award, the City will request specific 
pricing for equipment based upon the City’s specifications.  However, the City may determine that 
shortlisting is not necessary.  
 

B. Interviews/Demonstrations: 
 
 The City reserves the right to conduct interviews and/or product demonstrations with some or all of 

the offerors at any point during the evaluation process. However, the City may determine that 
interviews and/or demonstrations are not necessary. In the event these are conducted, information 
provided during the interview and/or demonstration process shall be taken into consideration when 
evaluating the stated criteria. The City shall not reimburse the offeror for the costs associated with 
the interview and/or demonstration process. 

  
 C. Additional Investigations: 

  
 The City reserves the right to make such additional investigations as it deems necessary to establish 

the competence and financial stability of any offeror submitting a proposal. 
 

D. Prior Experience: 
  
 Experiences with the City and entities that evaluation committee members represent may be taken into 

consideration when evaluating offers. 
 
E. Multiple Awards: 
 
 To provide adequate contract coverage, at the City’s sole discretion, multiple awards may be made. 
 

 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 15 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 
 

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
1. FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL TAXES, LICENSES AND PERMITS:  The Supplier shall comply with all 

Federal, State, and local licenses and permits required for the operation of the business conducted by the 
Supplier as applicable to this Contract.  The Supplier shall, at no expense to the City, National IPA, or other 
Participating Public Agencies, procure and keep in force during the entire period of the Agreement all such 
permits and licenses. 
 

2. SUBCONTRACTORS:  No subcontract shall be made by the contractor with any other party for furnishing 
any of the services herein contracted for without the advance written approval of the Department of 
Procurement.  All subcontractors shall comply with Federal and State laws and regulations that are 
applicable to the services covered by the subcontractor and shall include all the terms and conditions set 
forth herein which shall apply with equal force to the subcontract, as if the subcontractor were the 
Contractor referred to herein.  Contractor is responsible for contract performance whether or not 
subcontractors are used. 
 

3. FOB DESTINATION FREIGHT PREPAID:  Prices shall be FOB Destination Freight Prepaid to the delivery 
location designated. Contractor shall retain title and control of all goods until they are delivered and the 
Contract of coverage has been completed. All risk of transportation and all related charges shall be the 
responsibility of the Contractor. All claims for visible or concealed damage shall be filed by the Contractor. 
The City will assist the Contractor in arranging for inspection. 
 

4. INSURANCE:  The Contractor agrees to: 
 
A. Obtain insurance coverage of the types and amount required in this section and keep such 

insurance coverage in force throughout the life of this Contract. All policies will contain an 
endorsement providing that written notice be given to the City at least ten (10) calendar days prior 
to termination, cancellation, or reduction in coverage in any policy. 

 
B. The Comprehensive General Liability Insurance and Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance 

policies will include the City as an additional insured with respect to liability arising out of the 
performance of this Contract. The Contractor agrees that the insurance hereunder will be primary 
and that any insurance carried by the City will be excess and not contributing. 

 
C. Provide and maintain minimum insurance limits as applicable. 
 Coverage Afforded     Limits of Liability 
 
 Workmen’s Compensation    Statute 
 Employer’s Liability     $100,000 
 
 Comprehensive General    $1,000,000 Bodily Injury 
 Liability Insurance     Combined Single Limit 
 Including:      $100,000 Property Damage 
 (1) Products & Completed 
 Operations 
 (2) Blanket Contractual 
 
 Comprehensive Automobile    $1,000,000 Bodily Injury Liability Insurance 
        Combined Single Limit 
 Including:      $100,000 Property Damage 
 (1) Non-Owned 
 (2) Leased 
 (3) Hired Vehicles 
 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 16 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 
 

 Contractor will present to the City written evidence (Certifications of Insurance) of compliance with 
Items A., B and C. above.  Said evidence shall be to the City Procurement Director’s satisfaction. 

 
5. PAYMENTS:  All payments made by the City of Tucson for goods or services will be made to the vendor 

named on the Offer and Acceptance form. If you do not wish payment to be made to that address, you 
must submit an attached sheet indicating the proper mailing address with this bid. 
 

6. RIGHT TO TERMINATE FOR CHANGE IN OWNERSHIP OR MATERIAL RESTRUCTURE OF THE 
CONTRACTOR:  In addition to the Termination of Contract clause in the Standard Terms and Conditions 
section of this solicitation and resulting contract, the City reserves the right to cancel the whole or part of 
this contract within 60 days written notice of the completion of any material change of ownership in the 
Contractor’s company, including its sale, merger, consolidation or dissolution. 
 

7. TERM AND RENEWAL:  The term of the Contract shall commence upon award and shall remain in effect 
for a period of one (1) year, unless terminated, canceled or extended as otherwise provided herein.  The 
Contractor agrees that the City of Tucson shall have the right, at its sole option, to renew the Contract for 
four (4) additional one-year periods or portions thereof.  In the event that the City exercises such rights, all 
terms, conditions and provisions of the original Contract shall remain the same and apply during the 
renewal period with the possible exception of price and minor scope additions and/or deletions. 
 

8. PRICE ADJUSTMENT: The City will review fully documented requests for price adjustment after any 
Contract has been in effect for one (1) year.  Any price adjustment will only be made at the time of 
Contract renewal and/or extension and will be a factor in the extension review process.  The City will 
determine whether the requested price adjustment or an alternate option, is in the best interest of the 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 17 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 
 

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

1. ADVERTISING: Contractor shall not advertise or publish information concerning this Contract without prior written consent 
of the City’s Director of Procurement. 

 
2. AFFIRMATIVE ACTION: Contractor shall abide by the provisions of the Tucson Procurement Code Chapter 28, Article XII.  
 
3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: The Contractor shall comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with 

Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101, et seq.) and applicable Federal regulations under the Act. 
 
4. APPLICABLE LAW: This Contract shall be governed, and the City and Contractor shall have all remedies afforded to each, 

by the Tucson Procurement Code and the law of the State of Arizona. State law claims shall be brought only in Pima County 
Superior Court.  

 
5. ASSIGNMENT-DELEGATION: No right or interest in this Contract shall be assigned by the Contractor without prior written 

permission of the City, and no delegation of any duty of the Contractor shall be made without prior written permission of the 
City's Director of Procurement. The City shall not unreasonably withhold approval and shall notify the Contractor of the City's 
position by written notice. 

 
6. CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH A.R.S. SEC. 35-393 ET SEQ.:  By signing this contract, the Contractor certifies 

that it does not have scrutinized business operations in Iran as required by A.R.S. sec. 35-393 et seq.  If the City determines 
that the Contractor has submitted a false certification, the City may impose remedies as provided in the Tucson 
Procurement Code up to and including termination of this contract. 

 
7. CHILD/SWEAT-FREE LABOR POLICY: The Contractor shall comply with all applicable provisions of the United States 

Federal and State Child Labor and Worker's Right laws and agrees if called upon to affirm in writing, that they, and any 
subcontractor involved in the provision of goods to the City, are in compliance. 

 
8. CLEAN UP: The Contractor shall at all times keep the contract area, including storage areas used by the Contractor, free 

from accumulation of waste material or rubbish and, prior to completion of the work, remove any rubbish from the premises 
and all tools, scaffolding, equipment and materials not property of the City. Upon completion of the repair, the Contractor 
shall leave the work and premises in clean, neat and workmanlike condition. 

 
9. COMMENCEMENT OF WORK: The Contractor is cautioned not to commence any billable work or provide any material or 

service under this Contract until Contractor receives purchase order or is otherwise directed to do so, in writing, by the City. 
 
10. CONFIDENTIALITY OF RECORDS: The Contractor shall establish and maintain procedures and controls that are 

acceptable to the City for the purpose of assuring that no information contained in its records or obtained from the City or 
from others in carrying out its functions under the Contract shall be used by or disclosed by it, its agents, officers, or 
employees, except as required to efficiently perform duties under the Contract. Persons requesting such information should 
be referred to the City. Information pertaining to individual persons shall not be divulged other than to employees or officers 
of Contractor as needed for the performance of duties under the Contract, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the City. 

 
11. CONTRACT AMENDMENTS: The Procurement Department has the sole authority to: 
 

A. Amend the contract or enter into supplemental verbal or written agreements; 
B. Grant time extensions or contract renewals; 
C. Otherwise modify the scope or terms and provisions of the contract. 

 
This Contract shall only be modified with the approval of the Department of Procurement. Except in the case of a 
documented emergency, approval must be granted prior to performance.  Any contract modification not explicitly approved 
by the Procurement Department through a written contract amendment or change order is performed at the sole risk of the 
Contractor and may not be eligible for payment by the City. 

 
12. CONTRACT: The Contract shall be based upon the Request for Proposal issued by the City and the Offer submitted by the 

Contractor in response to the Request for Proposal. The offer shall substantially conform to the terms, conditions, 
specifications and other requirements set forth within the text of the Request for Proposal. The City reserves the right to 
clarify any contractual terms with the concurrence of the Contractor; however, any substantial non-conformity in the offer, as 
determined by the City's Director of Procurement, shall be deemed non-responsive and the offer rejected. The Contract 
shall contain the entire agreement between the City of Tucson and the Contractor relating to this requirement and shall 
prevail over any and all previous agreements, contracts, proposals, negotiations, purchase orders, or master agreements in 
any form. 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 18 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 
 
 
13. DEFAULT IN ONE INSTALLMENT TO CONSTITUTE TOTAL BREACH: Contractor shall deliver conforming materials in 

each installment or lot of this Contract and may not substitute nonconforming materials. Delivery of nonconforming 
materials, or default of any nature, may constitute breach of the Contract. Noncompliance may be deemed a cause for 
possible Contract termination. 

 
14. DUPLEXED/RECYCLED PAPER: In accordance with efficient resource procurement and utilization policies adopted by the 

City of Tucson, the Contractor shall ensure that, whenever practicable, all printed materials produced by the Contractor in 
the performance of this Contract are duplexed (two-sided copies), printed on recycled paper and labeled as such. 

  
15. EXCLUSIVE POSSESSION: All services, information, computer program elements, reports and other deliverables created 

under this Contract are the sole property of the City of Tucson and shall not be used or released by the Contractor or any 
other person except with prior written permission by the City. 

 
16. FEDERAL IMMIGRATION LAWS AND REGULATIONS:  Contractor warrants that it complies with all Federal Immigration 

laws and regulations that relate to its employees and complies with A.R.S. § 23-214(A) and that it requires the same 
compliance of all subcontractors under this Contract. Contractor acknowledges that pursuant to A.R.S. § 41-4401 and 
effective September 30, 2008, a breach of this warranty is a material breach of this Contract subject to penalties up to and 
including termination of this Contract. The City retains the legal right to audit the records of the Contractor and inspect the 
papers of any employee who works for the Contractor to ensure compliance with this warranty and the Contractor shall 
assist in any such audit.  The Contractor shall include the requirements of this paragraph in each contract with 
subcontractors under this Contract. 

 
If the Contractor or subcontractor warrants that it has complied with the employment verification provisions prescribed by 
sections 274(a) and 274(b) of the Federal Immigration and Nationality Act and the E-verify requirements prescribed by 
A.R.S. § 23-214(A), the Contractor or subcontractor shall be deemed to be in compliance with this provision.  The City may 
request proof of such compliance at any time during the term of this Contract by the Contractor and any subcontractor. 

 
17. FORCE MAJEURE: Except for payment of sums due, neither party shall be liable to the other nor deemed in default under 

this Contract if and to the extent that such party's performance of this Contract is prevented by reason of Force Majeure. 
The term "Force Majeure" means an occurrence that is beyond the control of the party affected and occurs without its fault 
or negligence. Force Majeure shall not include late performance by a subcontractor unless the delay arises out of a Force 
Majeure occurrence in accordance with this Force Majeure term and condition. 

 
 If either party is delayed at any time in the progress of the work by Force Majeure, the delayed party shall notify the other 

party in writing of such delay, as soon as is practical, of the commencement thereof and shall specify the causes of such 
delay in such notice. Such notice shall be hand-delivered or mailed certified-return receipt and shall make a specific 
reference to this article, thereby invoking its provisions. The delayed party shall cause such delay to cease as soon as 
practicable and shall notify the other party in writing when it has done so. The time of completion shall be extended by 
contract modification for a period of time equal to the time that results or effects of such delay prevent the delayed party 
from performing in accordance with this Contract. 

 
18. GRATUITIES: The City may, by written notice to the Contractor, terminate this Contract if it is found that gratuities, in the 

form of entertainment, gifts, meals or otherwise, were offered or given by the Contractor or any agent or representative of 
the Contractor, to any officer or employee of the City amending, or the making of any determinations with respect to the 
performing of such Contract. In the event this Contract is terminated by the City pursuant to this provision, the City shall be 
entitled, in addition to any other rights and remedies, to recover or withhold from the Contractor the amount of the gratuity. 

 
19. HUMAN RELATIONS: Contractor shall abide by the provisions of the Tucson City Code Chapter 28, Article XII. 
 
20. INDEMNIFICATION: To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor, its successors, assigns and guarantors, shall pay, 

defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City of Tucson, its agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials and 
employees from and against all allegations, demands, proceedings, suits, actions, claims, including claims of patent or 
copyright infringement, damages, losses, expenses, including but not limited to, attorney fees, court costs, and the cost of 
appellate proceedings, and all claim adjusting and handling expense, related to, arising from or out of or resulting from any 
actions, acts, errors, mistakes or omissions caused in whole or part by Contractor relating to work, services and/or products 
provided in the performance of this Contract, including but not limited to, any Subcontractor or anyone directly or indirectly 
employed by any of them or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable and any injury or damages claimed by any of 
Contractor’s and Subcontractor’s employees. 

 
21. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: It is understood that each party shall act in its individual capacity and not as an agent, 

employee, partner, joint venturer, or associate of the other. An employee or agent of one party shall not be deemed or 
construed to be the employee or agent of the other party for any purpose. 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 19 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 
 
 
 The Contractor shall not be entitled to compensation in the form of salaries, paid vacation or sick days by the City.  
 
 The City of Tucson will not provide any insurance coverage to the Contractor, including Worker's Compensation coverage. 

The Contractor is advised that taxes, social security payments, and other withholdings shall not be withheld from a City 
payment issued under this Contract and that Contractor should make arrangements to directly pay such expenses. 

 
22. INSPECTION AND ACCEPTANCE: All material or service is subject to final inspection and acceptance by the City. Material 

or service failing to conform to the specifications of this Contract shall be held at the Contractor's risk and may be returned 
to the Contractor. If returned, all costs are the responsibility of the Contractor. Noncompliance may be deemed a cause for 
possible Contract termination.  

 
23. INTERPRETATION-PAROLE EVIDENCE: This Contract is intended by the parties to be a final expression of their 

agreement and is intended also as a complete and exclusive statement of the terms of this agreement. No course of prior 
dealings between the parties and no usage of the trade shall be relevant to supplement or explain any term used in the 
Contract. Acceptance or consent in the course of performance under this Contract shall not be relevant to determine the 
meaning of this Contract even though the accepting or consenting party has knowledge of the nature of the performance 
and the opportunity to object. 

 
24. LICENSES: Contractor shall maintain in current status all Federal, State, and local licenses and permits required for the 

operation of the business conducted by the Contractor as applicable to this Contract. 
 
25. LIENS: All materials, services, and other deliverables supplied to the City under this Contract shall be free of all liens other 

than the security interest. Security interest shall extinguish upon full payment made by the City. Upon the City’s request, the 
Contractor shall provide a formal release of all liens. 

 
26. NO REPLACEMENT OF DEFECTIVE TENDER: Every tender of materials must fully comply with all provisions of this 

Contract. If a tender is made which does not fully comply, this shall conform to the termination clause set forth within this 
document. 

 
27. NON-EXCLUSIVE CONTRACT: Any contract resulting from this solicitation shall be awarded with the understanding and 

agreement that it is for the sole convenience of the City of Tucson. The City reserves the right to obtain like goods or 
services from another source when necessary. 

 
28. OVERCHARGES BY ANTITRUST VIOLATIONS: The City maintains that, in actual practice, overcharges resulting from 

antitrust violations are borne by the purchaser. Therefore, to the extent permitted by law, the Contractor hereby assigns to 
the City any and all claims for such overcharges as to the materials or services used to fulfill the Contract. 

 
29. PAYMENT: The City’s preferred method of payment is via credit card.  The City will issue a Purchase Order and, in some 

cases, either provide a credit card for payment at the time of ordering or pay subsequent invoices by credit card upon 
receipt of goods or services in good order.  However, not all City employees will possess a credit card and, therefore, the 
City reserves the right to make payment by check as it deems necessary. 

  
Unless payment is made by credit card at time of order or point of sale, a separate invoice shall be issued for each shipment 
of material or service performed, and no payment shall be issued prior to receipt of material or service and correct invoice. 

  
The City shall make every effort to process payment for the purchase of materials or services within twenty-one (21) 
calendar days after receipt of materials or services and a correct invoice. 

 
30. PROTECTION OF GOVERNMENT PROPERTY: The Contractor shall use reasonable care to avoid damaging existing 

buildings, equipment, and vegetation (such as trees, shrubs, and grass) on City property. If the Contractor fails to do so and 
damages such property, the Contractor shall replace or repair the damage at no expense to the City, as determined and 
approved by the City’s Director of Procurement. If the Contractor fails or refuses to make such repair or replacement, the 
City will determine a cost and the Contractor shall be liable for the cost thereof, which may be deducted from the Contract 
price. 

 
31. PROVISIONS REQUIRED BY LAW: Each and every provision of law and any clause required by law to be in the Contract 

shall be read and enforced as though it were included herein, and if through mistake or otherwise any such provision is not 
inserted, or is not correctly inserted, then upon the application of either party the Contract shall be amended to make such 
insertion or correction. 

 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 20 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 
 
32. RECORDS: Internal control over all financial transactions related to this Contract shall be in accordance with sound fiscal 

policies. The City may, at reasonable times and places, audit the books and records of the Contractor and/or any 
subcontractors. Said audit shall be limited to this Contract. 

 
33. RIGHT TO ASSURANCE: Whenever one party to this Contract has reason to question, in good faith, the other party's intent 

to perform, the former party may demand that the other party give a written assurance of this intent to perform. In the event 
that a demand is made and no written assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding party may treat this failure as 
the other party’s intent not to perform and as a cause for possible Contract termination. 

 
34. RIGHT TO INSPECT: The City may, at reasonable times, and at the City's expense, inspect the place of business of a 

Contractor or subcontractor which is related to the performance of any Contract as awarded or to be awarded. 
 
35. RIGHTS AND REMEDIES: No provision in this document or in the Contractor's proposal shall be construed, expressly or by 

implication, as a waiver by either party of any existing or future right and/or remedy available by law in the event of any 
claim, default or breach of contract. The failure of either party to insist upon the strict performance of any term or condition 
of the Contract, to exercise or delay the exercise of any right or remedy provided in the Contract or by law, or to accept 
materials or services required by this Contract or by law shall not be deemed a waiver of any right of either party to insist 
upon the strict performance of the Contract. 

 
36. SEVERABILITY: The provisions of this Contract are severable to the extent that any provision or application held to be 

invalid shall not affect any other provision or application of the Contract which may remain in effect without the valid 
provision or application. 

 
37. SHIPMENT UNDER RESERVATION PROHIBITED: No tender of a bill of lading shall operate as a tender of the materials. 

Non-compliance shall conform to the termination clause set forth within this document.  
 
38. SUBCONTRACTS: No subcontract shall be entered into by the Contractor with any other party to furnish any of the 

material/service specified herein without the advance written approval of the City's Director of Procurement. All subcontracts 
shall comply with Federal and State laws and regulations which are applicable to the services covered by the subcontract 
and shall include all the terms and conditions set forth herein which shall apply with equal force to the subcontract, as if the 
subcontractor were the Contractor referred to herein. The Contractor is responsible for contract performance whether or not 
subcontractors are used.  

 
39. SUBSEQUENT EMPLOYMENT: The City may terminate this Contract without penalty or further obligation pursuant to 

A.R.S. Section 38-511 if any person significantly involved in initiating, negotiating, securing, drafting, or creating the 
Contract, on behalf of the City, is or becomes, at any time while the Contract or any extension of the Contract is in effect, an 
employee of, or a contractor to, any other party to this Contract with respect to the subject matter of the Contract. 
Termination shall be effective when written notice from the City's Director of Procurement is received by the parties to this 
Contract, unless the notice specifies a later time. 

 
40. TERMINATION OF CONTRACT: This Contract may be terminated at any time by mutual written consent, or by the City, 

with or without cause, upon giving thirty (30) days written notice. The City, at its convenience, by written notice, may 
terminate this Contract, in whole or in part. If this Contract is terminated, the City shall be liable only for payment under the 
payment provisions of this Contract for services rendered and accepted material received by the City before the effective 
date of termination. 

 
 The City reserves the right to terminate the whole or any part of this Contract due to the failure of the Contractor to carry out 

any term or condition of the Contract. The City will issue a written ten (10) day notice of default to the Contractor for acting 
or failing to act as specified in any of the following: 

 
 In the opinion of the City, the Contractor provides personnel that do not meet the requirements of the Contract; 
 
 In the opinion of the City, the Contractor fails to perform adequately the stipulations, conditions or services/specifications 

required in this Contract; 
 
 In the opinion of the City, the Contractor attempts to impose personnel, materials, products or workmanship of an 

unacceptable quality; 
 
 The Contractor fails to furnish the required service and/or product within the time stipulated in the Contract; 
 
 In the opinion of the City, the Contractor fails to make progress in the performance of the requirements of the Contract; 
 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 21 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 
 
 The Contractor gives the City a positive indication that the Contractor will not or cannot perform to the requirements of the 

Contract. 
 
 Each payment obligation of the City created by this Contract is conditioned upon the availability of City, State and Federal 

funds that are appropriated or allocated for the payment of such an obligation. If funds are not allocated by the City and 
available for the continued purchase of the services and/or materials provided under this Contract, this Contract may be 
terminated by the City at the end of the period for which funds are available. The City will endeavor to notify the Contractor 
in the event that continued service will or may be affected by non-appropriation. No penalty shall accrue to the City in the 
event this provision is exercised, and the City shall not be obligated or liable for any future payments due or for any 
damages as a result of termination under this paragraph. 

  
41. TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS: The title and risk of loss of material or service shall not pass to the City until the City actually 

receives the material or service at the point of delivery, unless otherwise provided within this Contract. 
  
42. WARRANTIES: Contractor warrants that all material or service delivered under this Contract shall conform to the 

specifications of this Contract. Mere receipt of shipment of the material or service specified and any inspection incidental 
thereto by the City shall not alter or affect the obligations of the Contractor or the rights of the City under the foregoing 
warranties. Additional warranty requirements may be set forth in this document. 

 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 22 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 
 

OFFER AND ACCEPTANCE  
 

OFFER
 
TO THE CITY OF TUCSON: 
The Undersigned hereby offers and shall furnish the material or service in compliance with all terms, scope of work, conditions, 
specifications, and amendments in the Request for Proposal which is incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein. 
 
 
         For clarification of this offer, contact: 
 
 
        Name:       
Company Name 
 
        Title:        
Address 
 
        Phone:        
City    State  Zip 
 
        Fax:       
Signature of Person Authorized to Sign 
 
        E-mail:  _________________________________ 
Printed Name 
 
        
Title 
 
 
 
 

ACCEPTANCE OF OFFER 
 

The Offer is hereby accepted. The Contractor is now bound to sell the materials or services specified in the Contract. This Contract 
shall be referred to as Contract No.                              .  
 
 
 
         CITY OF TUCSON, a municipal corporation 
 
Approved as to form this _____ day of                    , 2011.  Awarded this             day of                     , 2011. 
 
 
 
               
As Tucson City Attorney and not personally   Mark A. Neihart, C.P.M., CPPB, A.P.P., CPM 
        As Director of Procurement and not personally 
 
 



ATTACHMENT A 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Requirements for National Cooperative Contract 
To be Administered by  

National Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance Company 

 
The following documents are used in evaluating and administering national cooperative contracts and 
are included for Supplier’s review and response. 

 
National IPA Exhibit A – NATIONAL IPA RESPONSE FOR NATIONAL COOPERATIVE 

CONTRACT  
 
National IPA Exhibit B – NATIONAL IPA ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT, EXAMPLE 
 
National IPA Exhibit C – NATIONAL IPA MASTER INTERGOVERNMENTAL 

COOPERATIVE PURCHASING AGREEMENT, EXAMPLE 
 
National IPA Exhibit D – NATIONAL IPA PRINCIPAL PROCUREMENT AGENCY 

CERTIFICATE, EXAMPLE 
 
National IPA Exhibit E – NATIONAL IPA CONTRACT SALES REPORTING TEMPLATE 
 
National IPA Exhibit F – NATIONAL IPA ADVERTISING COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENT 

 



Requirements for National Cooperative Contract 
Page 24 of 44 

NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 
EXHIBIT A- RESPONSE FOR NATIONAL COOPERATIVE CONTRACT 

 
 

1.0 Scope of National Cooperative Contract 
1.1 Requirement 

The City of Tucson (hereinafter defined and referred to as “Principal Procurement Agency”), on 
behalf of itself and the National Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance Company (“National IPA”), 
is requesting proposals for PRODUCT. The intent of this Request for Proposal is that any contract 
between Principal Procurement Agency and Supplier resulting from this Request for Proposal 
(hereinafter defined and referred to as the “Master Agreement”) be made available to other public 
agencies nationally, including state and local governmental entities, public and private primary, 
secondary and higher education entities, non-profit entities, and agencies for the public benefit 
(“Public Agencies”), through National IPA’s cooperative purchasing program.  The Principal 
Procurement Agency has executed a Principal Procurement Agency Certificate with National IPA (an 
example of which is included as Exhibit D) and has agreed to pursue the Master Agreement.  Use of 
the Master Agreement by any Public Agency, including the Principal Procurement Agency, will be 
preceded by their registration with National IPA as a Participating Public Agency in National IPA’s 
cooperative purchasing program.  Registration with National IPA as a Participating Public Agency is 
accomplished by Public Agencies entering into a Master Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing 
Agreement, an example of which is attached as Exhibit C.  The terms and pricing established in the 
resulting Master Agreement between the Supplier and the Principal Procurement Agency will be the 
same as that available to Participating Public Agencies through National IPA.   

 
All transactions, purchase orders, etc., will occur directly between the Supplier and each Participating 
Public Agency individually, and neither National IPA, any Principal Procurement Agency nor any 
Participating Public Agency, including their respective agents, directors, employees or 
representatives, shall be liable to Supplier for any acts, liabilities, damages, etc. incurred by any other 
Participating Public Agency. 

 
This Exhibit A defines the expectations for qualifying Suppliers based on National IPA’s 
requirements to market the resulting Master Agreement nationally to Public Agencies.  Each section 
in this Exhibit A refers to the capabilities, requirements, obligations, and prohibitions of competing 
Suppliers on a national level in order to serve Participating Public Agencies through National IPA. 

 
These requirements are incorporated into and are considered an integral part of this RFP.  National 
IPA reserves the right to determine whether or not to make the Master Agreement awarded by the 
Principal Procurement Agency available to Participating Public Agencies. 
 

1.2 Marketing and Administrative Support 
During the term of the Master Agreement National IPA intends to provide marketing and 
administrative support for Supplier pursuant to this section 1.2 that directly promotes the Supplier’s 
products and services to Participating Public Agencies through multiple channels, each designed to 
promote specific products and services to Public Agencies on a national basis. 

 
The National IPA marketing team will work in conjunction with Supplier to promote the Master 
Agreement to both existing Participating Public Agencies and prospective Public Agencies through: 
A. Marketing collateral (print, email, presentations) 
B. Website support 
C. Trade shows/conferences/meetings 
D. Advertising 

 
The National IPA sales teams will work in conjunction with Supplier to promote the Master 
Agreement to both existing Participating Public Agencies and prospective Public Agencies through: 
A. Individual sales calls  
B. Joint sales calls 
C. Communications/customer service 
D. Training sessions for Public Agency teams 



NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 
EXHIBIT A- NATIONAL IPA RESPONSE FOR NATIONAL COOPERATIVE CONTRACT 

 
 
E. Training sessions for Supplier teams 

 
The National IPA contracting teams will work in conjunction with Supplier to promote the Master 
Agreement to both existing Participating Public Agencies prospective Public Agencies through: 
A. Serving as the subject matter expert for questions regarding joint powers authority and state 

statutes and regulations for cooperative purchasing 
B. Training sessions for Public Agency teams 
C. Training sessions for Supplier teams 
D. Regular business reviews to monitor program success 
E. General contract administration 

 
Suppliers are required to pay an administrative fee of 2.5% of the greater of the Contract Sales under 
the Master Agreement and guaranteed Contract Sales under this Request for Proposal.  Supplier will 
be required to execute the National IPA Administration Agreement (refer to Exhibit B). 
 

Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings given to them in the Master Agreement 
or in the National Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance Company Administration Agreement between 
Supplier and National IPA (the "National IPA Administration Agreement") 
 
1.3 Estimated Volume 

The dollar volume purchased under the Master Agreement is estimated to be approximately 
$100,000,000 annually.  While no minimum volume is guaranteed to Supplier, the estimated annual 
volume is projected based on the current annual volumes among the Principal Procurement Agency, 
other Participating Public Agencies that are anticipated to utilize the resulting Master Agreement to 
be made available to them through National IPA, and volume growth into other Public Agencies 
through a coordinated marketing approach between Supplier and National IPA.   

 
1.4 Award Basis 

The basis of any contract award resulting from this RFP made by Principal Procurement Agency will 
be the basis of award on a national level through National IPA.  If multiple suppliers are awarded by 
Principal Procurement Agency under the Master Agreement, those same suppliers will be required to 
extend the Master Agreement to Participating Public Agencies through National IPA.  Utilization of 
the Master Agreement by Participating Public Agencies will be at the discretion of the individual 
Participating Public Agency. Certain terms of the Master Agreement specifically applicable to the 
Principal Procurement Agency are subject to modification for each Participating Public Agency as 
Supplier, such Participating Public Agency and National IPA shall agree. 

 
1.5 Objectives of Cooperative Program  

This RFP is intended to achieve the following objectives regarding availability through National 
IPA’s cooperative program:  
A. Provide a comprehensive competitively solicited and awarded national agreement offering the 

Products covered by this solicitation to Participating Public Agencies; 
B. Establish the Master Agreement as the Supplier’s primary go to market strategy to Public 

Agencies nationwide; 
C. Achieve cost savings for Supplier and Public Agencies through a single solicitation process that 

will reduce the Supplier’s need to respond to multiple solicitations; 
D. Combine the aggregate purchasing volumes of Participating Public Agencies to achieve cost 

effective pricing. 
 
2.0 REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS 

As a condition to Supplier entering into the Master Agreement, which would be available to all Public 
Agencies, Supplier must make certain representations, warranties and covenants to both the Principal 
Procurement Agency and National IPA designed to ensure the success of the Master Agreement for all 
Participating Public Agencies as well as the Supplier. 

 
 
 
 



NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 
EXHIBIT A- NATIONAL IPA RESPONSE FOR NATIONAL COOPERATIVE CONTRACT 

 
2.1 Corporate Commitment 

Supplier commits that (1) the Master Agreement has received all necessary corporate authorizations 
and support of the Supplier’s executive management, (2) the Master Agreement is Supplier's primary 
“go to market” strategy for Public Agencies, (3) the Master Agreement will be promoted to all Public 
Agencies, including any existing customers, and Supplier will transition existing customers, upon 
their request, to the Master Agreement, and (4) that the Supplier has read and agrees to the terms and 
conditions of the Administration Agreement with National IPA and will execute such agreement 
concurrent with and as a condition of its execution of the Master Agreement with the Principal 
Procurement Agency. Supplier will identify an executive corporate sponsor and a separate national 
account manager within the RFP response that will be responsible for the overall management of the 
Master Agreement. 
 

2.2 Pricing Commitment 
Supplier commits that the Master Agreement pricing is its lowest available (net to buyer) to Public 
Agencies nationwide and further commits that if a Participating Public Agency is eligible for lower 
pricing through a national, state, regional or local or cooperative contract, that the Supplier will match 
such lower pricing to that Participating Public Agency under the Master Agreement. 
 

2.3 Sales Commitment 
Supplier commits to aggressively market the Master Agreement as its go to market strategy in this 
defined sector and that its sales force will be trained, engaged and committed to offering the Master 
Agreement to Public Agencies through National IPA nationwide. Supplier commits that all Master 
Agreement sales will be accurately and timely reported to National IPA in accordance with the 
National IPA Administration Agreement.  Supplier also commits that its sales force will be 
compensated, including sales incentives, for sales to Public Agencies under the Master Agreement in 
a consistent or better manner compared to sales to Public Agencies if the Supplier were not awarded 
the Master Agreement.  
 

3.0 SUPPLIER QUALIFICATIONS 
Supplier must supply the following information in order for the Principal Procurement Agency to determine 
Supplier’s qualifications to extend the resulting Master Agreement to Participating Public Agencies through 
National IPA.   

 
3.1 Company 

A. Brief history and description of your company.  
B. Total number and location of sales persons employed by your company. 
C. Number and location of support centers (if applicable). 
D. Annual sales for the three previous fiscal years. 
E. Submit your FEIN and Dunn & Bradstreet report. 

 
3.2 Distribution, Logistics 

A. Describe how your company proposes to distribute the products/service nationwide. 
B. Identify all other companies that will be involved in processing, handling or shipping the 

products/service to the end user. 
C. Provide the number, size and location of your company’s distribution facilities, warehouses and 

retail network as applicable. 
D.  State any return and restocking policy and fees, if applicable, associated with returns. 
 

3.3 Marketing and Sales 
A. Provide a detailed ninety-day plan beginning from award date of the Master Agreement 

describing the strategy to immediately implement the Master Agreement as your company’s 
primary go to market strategy for Public Agencies to your teams nationwide, to include, but not 
limited to: 

i. Executive leadership endorsement and sponsorship of the award as the public sector go-
to-market strategy within first 10 days 

ii. Training and education of your national sales force with participation from the executive 
leadership of your company, along with the National IPA team within first 90 days 

 
 



NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 
EXHIBIT A- NATIONAL IPA RESPONSE FOR NATIONAL COOPERATIVE CONTRACT 

 
B. Provide a detailed ninety-day plan beginning from award date of the Master Agreement 

describing the strategy to market the Master Agreement to current Participating Public Agencies, 
existing Pubic Agency customers of Supplier, as well as to prospective Public Agencies 
nationwide immediately upon award, to include, but not limited to: 

i. Creation and distribution of a co-branded press release to trade publications within first 
10 days 

ii. Announcement, contract details and contact information published on the company 
website within first 30 days 

iii. Design, publication and distribution of co-branded marketing materials within first 90 
days 

iv. Commitment to attendance and participation with National IPA at national (i.e. NIGP 
Annual Forum, NPI Conference, etc.), regional (i.e. Regional NIGP Chapter Meetings, 
etc.) and supplier-specific trade shows, conferences and meetings throughout the term of 
the Master Agreement 

v. Commitment to attend, exhibit and participate at the NIGP Annual Forum in an area 
reserved by National IPA for partner suppliers.  Booth space will be purchased and 
staffed by your company.  In addition, you commit to provide reasonable assistance to 
the overall promotion and marketing efforts for the NIGP Annual Forum, as directed by 
National IPA. 

vi. Design and publication of national and regional advertising in trade publications 
throughout the term of the Master Agreement 

vii. Ongoing marketing and promotion of the Master Agreement throughout its term (case 
studies, collateral pieces, presentations, etc.) 

viii. Dedicated National IPA internet web-based homepage with: 
• National IPA standard logo; 
• Copy of original Request for Proposal; 
• Copy of contract and amendments between Principal Procurement Agency and 

Supplier; 
• Summary of Products and pricing; 
• Marketing Materials 
• Electronic link to National IPA’s online registration page; 
• A dedicated toll free number and email address for National IPA 

C. Describe how your company will transition any existing Public Agency customers’ accounts to 
the Master Agreement available nationally through National IPA. Include a list of current 
cooperative contracts (regional and national) your company holds and describe how the Master 
Agreement will be positioned among the other cooperative agreements. 

D. Acknowledge that your company agrees to provide its company/corporate logo(s) to National 
IPA and agrees to provide permission for reproduction of such logo in marketing 
communications and promotions. 

E. Supplier is responsible for proactive direct sales of Supplier’s goods and services to Public 
Agencies nationwide and the timely follow up to leads established by National IPA. All sales 
materials are to use the National IPA logo. At a minimum, the Supplier’s sales initiatives should 
communicate: 

i. Master Agreement was competitively solicited by a Principal Procurement Agency 
ii. Best government pricing 

iii. No cost to participate 
iv. Non-exclusive contract 

F.  Supplier is responsible for the training of its national sales force on the Master Agreement.  At a 
minimum, sales training should include: 

i. Key features of Master Agreement 
ii. Working knowledge of the solicitation process 

iii. Awareness of the range of Public Agencies that can utilize the Master Agreement 
through National IPA 

 
 
 
 
 



NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 
EXHIBIT A- NATIONAL IPA RESPONSE FOR NATIONAL COOPERATIVE CONTRACT 

G. Provide contact information for the person(s), who will be responsible for:  
i. Marketing 

ii. Sales 
iii. Sales Support 
iv. Financial Reporting 
v. Contracts 

H. Describe in detail how your company’s national sales force is structured, including contact 
information for the highest-level executive in charge of the sales team. 

I.  Explain in detail how the sales teams will work with the National IPA team to implement, grow 
and service the national program. 

J.  Explain in detail how your organization will manage the overall national program throughout the 
term of the Master Agreement, including ongoing coordination of marketing and sales efforts, 
timely new Participating Public Agency account set-up, etc. 

K.  State the amount of your company’s Public Agency sales for the previous fiscal year.  Provide a 
list of your top 10 Public Agency customers, the total purchases for each for the previous fiscal 
year along with a key contact for each. 

L. Describe your company’s information systems capabilities and limitations regarding order 
management through receipt of payment, including description of multiple platforms that may be 
used for any of these functions. 

M. Provide the Contract Sales (as defined in Section 10 of the National Intergovernmental 
Purchasing Alliance Company Administration Agreement) that your company will guarantee 
each year under the Master Agreement for the initial three years of the Master Agreement. 

 
$_______.00 in year one 
$_______.00 in year two 
$_______.00 in year three 
 

N. Even though it is anticipated that many Public Agencies will be able to utilize the Master 
Agreement without further formal solicitation, there may be circumstances where Public 
Agencies will issue their own solicitations. The following options are available when responding 
to a solicitation that is for Products covered under the Master Agreement.  

i. Respond with Master Agreement pricing (Contract Sales reported to National IPA). 
ii. If competitive conditions require pricing lower than the standard Master Agreement 

pricing, Supplier may respond with lower pricing through the Master Agreement. If 
Supplier is awarded the contract, the sales are reported as Contract Sales to National 
IPA under the Master Agreement.  

iii. Respond with pricing higher than Master Agreement only in the unlikely event that the 
Public Agency refuses to utilize Master Agreement. 

iv. If alternative or multiple proposals are permitted, respond with pricing higher than 
Master Agreement, and include Master Agreement as the alternate or additional 
proposal. 

 
Detail your strategies under these options when responding to a solicitation. 



NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 
EXHIBIT B-NATIONAL IPA ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT  

 
NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY 

ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT 
 

This ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT is made this ___ day of ______ 20___, between National 
Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance Company (“National IPA”), and ________________ 
(herein “Supplier”). 
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, the _______________________ (herein “Principal Procurement Agency”) has 
entered into a Master Agreement dated _________________, Agreement No_______, by and 
between the Principal Procurement Agency and Supplier, (as may be amended from time to time in 
accordance with the terms thereof, the “Master Agreement”), for the purchase of 
___________________________ (herein “Product”); 
 
 WHEREAS, said Master Agreement provides that any or all public agencies, including 
state and local governmental entities, public and private primary, secondary and higher education 
entities, non-profit entities, and agencies for the public benefit (“Public Agencies”), that register 
with National IPA or otherwise execute a Master Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing 
Agreement (hereinafter referred to as a "Participating Public Agency") may purchase Product at 
prices stated in the Master Agreement; 
 
 WHEREAS, National IPA serves as the contract administrator for Principal Procurement 
Agency with regard to the Master Agreement, which is offered through National IPA to Public 
Agencies; 
 
 WHEREAS, Principal Procurement Agency desires National IPA to proceed with 
administration of the Master Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, National IPA and Supplier desire to enter into this Agreement to make 
available the Master Agreement to Participating Public Agencies on a national basis and to set forth 
certain terms and conditions governing the relationship between National IPA and Supplier. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the payments to be made hereunder and the 
mutual covenants contained in this Agreement, National IPA and Supplier hereby agree as follows: 
 

DEFINITIONS 
 
 1. Capitalized terms used in this Agreement and not otherwise defined herein shall have 
the meanings given to them in the Master Agreement. 
 

Requirements for National Cooperative Contract 
Page 29 of 44 



NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 
EXHIBIT B- NATIONAL IPA ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
 2. The Master Agreement, as attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by 
reference as though fully set forth herein, and the terms and conditions contained therein shall apply 
to this Agreement except as expressly changed or modified by this Agreement.  In the event of any 
conflict between the provisions of this Agreement and the Master Agreement, as between National 
IPA and Supplier the provisions of this Agreement shall prevail.  Supplier acknowledges and agrees 
that the covenants and agreements of Supplier set forth in the solicitation resulting in the Master 
Agreement are incorporated herein and are an integral part hereof. 
 
 3. National IPA shall be afforded all of the rights, privileges and indemnifications 
afforded to Principal Procurement Agency under the Master Agreement, and such rights, privileges 
and indemnifications shall accrue and apply with equal effect to National IPA, its agents, 
employees, directors, and representatives under this Agreement including, but not limited to, the 
Supplier’s obligation to provide appropriate insurance. 
 
 4. National IPA shall perform all of its duties, responsibilities and obligations as 
contract administrator under the Master Agreement as set forth herein, and Supplier hereby 
acknowledges and agrees that National IPA shall act in the capacity of contract administrator under 
the Master Agreement. 
 
 5. With respect to any purchases by Principal Procurement Agency or any Participating 
Public Agency pursuant to the Master Agreement, National IPA: (i) shall not be construed as a 
dealer, re-marketer, representative, partner or agent of any type of the Supplier, Principal 
Procurement Agency or such Participating Public Agency; (ii) shall not be obligated, liable or 
responsible for any order made by Principal Procurement Agency or any Participating Public 
Agency or any employee thereof under the Master Agreement or for any payment required to be 
made with respect to such order; and (iii) shall not be obligated, liable or responsible for any failure 
by Principal Procurement Agency or any Participating Public Agency to comply with procedures or 
requirements of applicable law or the Master Agreement or to obtain the due authorization and 
approval necessary to purchase under the Master Agreement. National IPA makes no representation 
or guaranty with respect to any minimum purchases by Principal Procurement Agency or any 
Participating Public Agency or any employee thereof under this Agreement or the Master 
Agreement. 
 

TERM OF AGREEMENT 
 
 6. This Agreement shall be in effect so long as the Master Agreement remains in effect, 
provided, however, that the provisions of paragraphs 3, 4 and 5 hereof and the indemnifications 
afforded by the Supplier to National IPA herein and in the Master Agreement shall survive the term 
of this Agreement. 
 

NATIONAL PROMOTION 
 
 7. National IPA and Supplier shall publicize and promote the availability of the Master 
Agreement’s products and services to Public Agencies and such agencies’ employees. Supplier’s 
failure to maintain its covenants and commitments contained in this Agreement or any action of the 
Supplier which gives rise to a right by Principal Procurement Agency to terminate the Master 
Agreement shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement and if not cured within thirty (30) 
days of written notice to Supplier shall be deemed a cause for termination of the Master Agreement 



NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 
EXHIBIT B- NATIONAL IPA ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT 

at Principal Procurement Agency’s sole discretion or this Agreement at National IPA’s sole 
discretion. 
 
 8. A copy of the Principal Procurement Agency Certificate executed by Principal 
Procurement Agency and an example of the Master Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing 
Agreement that is agreed to by each Participating Public Agency, which set forth the terms for their 
respective participation with National IPA, are attached hereto as Exhibit B and C, respectively. 
Supplier shall require each Participating Public Agency to register its participation in the National 
IPA program using the electronic registration feature at www.nationalipa.org prior to processing the 
Participating Public Agency’s first sales order.   
 
 9. Upon request, Supplier shall make available to interested Public Agencies a copy of 
the Master Agreement and such price lists or quotes as may be necessary for such Public Agencies 
to evaluate potential purchases. In addition, Supplier shall provide the marketing and administrative 
support set forth in the solicitation resulting in the Master Agreement, including assisting in 
development of marketing materials as reasonably requested by Principal Procurement Agency and 
National IPA. Supplier and National IPA shall provide each respective party with its logo and the 
standard terms of use for their general use in marketing the Master Agreement.  Both parties shall 
obtain approval from the other party prior to use of such logo. 
 

QUARTERLY FEES & MONTHLY REPORTING 
 
 10. Supplier shall pay National IPA an administrative fee in the amount of __% of the 
total purchase price paid to Supplier, less refunds, credits on returns, rebates and discounts, for the 
sale of products and/or services pursuant to the Master Agreement (as amended from time to time 
and including any renewal thereof) ("Contract Sales").  Supplier shall provide National IPA with an 
electronic accounting report, in Microsoft Excel, in the format prescribed by National IPA, on a 
monthly basis summarizing all Contract Sales for such month.  A sample of the Contract Sales 
reporting format is provided as Exhibit D, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  
 
 To the extent Supplier has guaranteed minimum Contract Sales pursuant to the terms of the 
Master Agreement in accordance with the terms of its proposal, the administrative fee shall be 
calculated based on the greater of the Contract Sales and the guaranteed Contract Sales set forth in 
Supplier's proposal. 
 
 11. Supplier shall maintain an accounting of all purchases made by Participating Public 
Agencies under the Master Agreement.  National IPA and Principal Procurement Agency reserve 
the right to audit the accounting for a period of four (4) years from the date National IPA receives 
the accounting. In the event of such an audit, Supplier shall provide all materials reasonably 
requested relating to such audit by Principal Procurement Agency or National IPA at the location 
designated by Principal Procurement Agency or National IPA.  In the event such audit reveals an 
underreporting of Contract Sales and a resulting underpayment of administrative fees, Supplier shall 
promptly pay National IPA the amount of such underpayment, together with interest on such 
amount in accordance with paragraph 12, and shall be obligated to reimburse National IPA's costs 
and expenses for such audit.

 
 12. Reports of Contract Sales for Principal Procurement Agency and Participating Public 
Agencies in each calendar month shall be provided by Supplier to National IPA by the 10th day of 
the following month.  Administrative fee payments are due within thirty (30) days after the end of 
each calendar quarter for Contract Sales during such quarter.  Administrative fee payments shall be 

http://www.nationalipa.org/


NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 
EXHIBIT B- NATIONAL IPA ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT 

accompanied by a report of Contract Sales for the quarter. Failure to provide a monthly report or 
payment of the administrative fees within the time and manner specified shall be regarded as a 
material breach under this Agreement and if not cured within thirty (30) days of written notice to 
Supplier shall be deemed a cause for termination of the Master Agreement at Principal Procurement 
Agency’s sole discretion or this Agreement at National IPA’s sole discretion. All administrative 
fees not paid when due shall bear interest at a rate equal to the lesser of 1 1/2% per month or the 
maximum rate permitted by law until paid in full. 
 
 13. National IPA or its designee may, in National IPA’s sole discretion, compare 
Participating Public Agency records with monthly reports submitted by Supplier. If there is a 
discrepancy, National IPA will notify the Supplier in writing. Supplier will have thirty (30) days 
from the date of such notice to resolve the discrepancy to National IPA’s reasonable satisfaction, 
including paying any administrative fee due and owing. If the Supplier does not so resolve the 
discrepancy, National IPA shall have the right to engage a third party to conduct an independent 
audit of Supplier’s monthly reports and Supplier shall be obligated to reimburse National IPA’s 
costs and expenses for such audit.  Should any audit reveal an underreporting of Contract Sales and 
a resulting underpayment of administrative fees, Supplier shall promptly pay National IPA the 
amount of such underpayment together with interest on such amount in accordance with 
paragraph 12. 
 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
 14. This Agreement, the Master Agreement and the exhibits referenced herein supersede 
any and all other agreements, either oral or in writing, between the parties hereto with respect to the 
subject matter hereto and no other agreement, statement, or promise relating to the subject matter of 
this Agreement which is not contained or incorporated herein shall be valid or binding. 
 
 15. If any action at law or in equity is brought to enforce or interpret the provisions of 
this Agreement or to recover any administrative fee and accrued interest, the prevailing party shall 
be entitled to reasonable attorney’s fees and costs in addition to any other relief to which it may be 
entitled. 
 
 16. This Agreement and National IPA’s rights and obligations hereunder may be 
assigned at National IPA’s sole discretion, to an existing or newly established legal entity that has 
the authority and capacity to perform National IPA’s obligations hereunder.  Supplier may not 
assign its obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of National IPA. 

 
 17. All written communications given hereunder shall be delivered by first-class mail, 
postage prepaid, or overnight delivery on receipt to the addresses as set forth below.  

 
A.  National Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance Company 
 National IPA 

Attn: President 
1600 Westgate Circle 
Suite 275 
Brentwood, TN 37027 

 
B.  Principal Procurement Agency 

 
 



NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 
EXHIBIT B- NATIONAL IPA ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT 

 
C.  Supplier 
 

 
 18. If any provision of this Agreement shall be deemed to be, or shall in fact be, illegal, 
inoperative or unenforceable, the same shall not affect any other provision or provisions herein 
contained or render the same invalid, inoperative or unenforceable to any extent whatever. 
 
 19. This Agreement may not be effectively amended, changed, modified, or altered 
without the prior written consent of the parties hereto. 
 
 20. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon National IPA, 
the Supplier and any successor and assign thereto; subject, however, to the limitations contained 
herein. 

 
 

 
Authorized Signature, Supplier NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL 

PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY            
 
 
    
Signature   Signature  
 
    
Name  Name  
 
    
Title  Title 
 
    
Date  Date 
 
 



NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 
EXHIBIT C- NATIONAL IPA MASTER INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATIVE PURCHASING 

AGREEMENT 
 

MASTER INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATIVE PURCHASING AGREEMENT 
 

This Agreement is made between certain government agencies that execute a Principal Procurement Agency 
Certificate (“Principal Procurement Agencies”) to be appended and made a part hereof and other public agencies 
(“Participating Public Agencies”) that register electronically with National Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance 
Company (“National IPA”) or otherwise execute a Participating Public Agency Certificate to be appended and made a 
part hereof. 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, after a competitive solicitation and selection process by Principal Procurement Agencies, a 
number of Suppliers have entered into Master Agreements to provide a variety of goods, products and services based 
on national volumes (herein “Products”); 

 
WHEREAS, Master Agreements are made available by Principal Procurement Agencies through National 

IPA and provide that Participating Public Agencies may purchase Products on the same terms, conditions and pricing as 
the Principal Procurement Agency, subject to any applicable local purchasing ordinances and the laws of the State of 
purchase; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained in this agreement, and of the mutual 

benefits to result, the parties agree as follows: 
 
1. That each party will facilitate the cooperative procurement of Products. 
 
2. That the procurement of Products subject to this agreement shall be conducted in accordance with and 

subject to the relevant statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations that govern each party’s 
procurement practices. 

 
3. That the cooperative use of solicitations obtained by a party to this agreement shall be in accordance 

with the terms and conditions of the solicitation, except as modification of those terms and conditions 
is otherwise allowed or required by applicable law. 

 
4. That the Principal Procurement Agencies will make available, upon reasonable request and subject to 

convenience, information which may assist in improving the procurement of products by the 
Participating Public Agencies. 

 
5. That a procuring party will make timely payments to the Supplier for Products 

received in accordance with the terms and conditions of the procurement. Payment 
for Products and inspections and acceptance of Products ordered by the procuring 
party shall be the exclusive obligation of such procuring party. Disputes between 
procuring party and Supplier are to be resolved in accord with the law and venue 
rules of the State of purchase. 

 
6. The procuring party shall not use this agreement as a method for obtaining additional 

concessions or reduced prices for similar products or services. 
 

7. The procuring party shall be responsible for the ordering of Products under this 
agreement. A non-procuring party shall not be liable in any fashion for any violation 
by a procuring party, and the procuring party shall hold non-procuring party 
harmless from any liability that may arise from action or inaction of the procuring 
party. 

 

Requirements for National Cooperative Contract 
Page 34 of 44 



NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 
EXHIBIT C- NATIONAL IPA MASTER INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATIVE PURCHASING 

AGREEMENT 
 
 

8. This agreement shall remain in effect until termination by a party giving 30 days written notice to the 
other party.  The provisions of paragraphs 5, 6 and 7 hereof shall survive any such termination. 

 
9. This agreement shall take effect after execution of the Principal Procurement Agency 

Certificate or Participating Public Agency Registration, as applicable. 
 



 
NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT D – PRINCIPAL PROCUREMENT AGENCY CERTIFICATE 
 

PRINCIPAL PROCUREMENT AGENCY CERTIFICATE 
 

I hereby acknowledge, on behalf of NAME OF PPA (“Principal Procurement Agency”), that I have 
read and agree to the general terms and conditions set forth in the enclosed Master 
Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement regulating the use of the Master Agreements 
and purchase of Products that from time to time are made available by Principal Procurement 
Agencies to Participating Public Agencies nationwide through National Intergovernmental 
Purchasing Alliance Company (“National IPA”).  

 
I understand that the purchase of one or more Products under the provisions of the Master 
Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement is at the sole and complete discretion of the 
Participating Public Agency. 
 
In its capacity as Principal Procurement Agency for National IPA, NAME OF PPA agrees to pursue 
Master Agreements for Products as specified in the attached exhibits to this agreement. 

 
 

 
Authorized Signature, Principal Procurement Agency     
 
 
   
Signature    
 
   
Name   
 
   
Title   
 
   
Date  

 
 
 



Requirements for National Cooperative Contract 
Page 37 of 44 

NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 
EXHIBIT E- NATIONAL IPA CONTRACT SALES REPORTING TEMPLATE 

(to be submitted electronically in Microsoft Excel format) 

National IPA Contract Sales Monthly/Quarterly Report 
Supplier Name:        

Contract Sales Report Month/Quarter:        

 

 

Participating Agency Name City State 
Zip 

Code 

Participating Agency #        
{Assigned by National IPA and 

provided to Supplier} 

Contract 
Sales for 
Month ($) 

Admin Fee 
% Admin Fee $ 

              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              

    Report Totals      

    Cumulative Contract Sales     
 



Requirements for National Cooperative Contract 
Page 1 of 44 

NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 
EXHIBIT F- NATIONAL IPA ADVERTISING COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENT 

 
Pursuant to certain state notice provisions, including but not limited to Oregon Revised Statutes Chapter 279A.220, the 
following public agencies and political subdivisions of the referenced public agencies are eligible to register with National 
IPA and access the Master Agreement contract award made pursuant to this solicitation, and are hereby given notice of the 
foregoing request for proposals for purposes of complying with the procedural requirements of said statutes: 
 
Nationwide: 
 
State of Alabama* State of Hawaii State of Massachusetts State of New Mexico State of South 

Dakota 
State of Alaska State of Idaho State of Michigan State of New York State of Tennessee 
State of Arizona State of Illinois State of Minnesota State of North Carolina State of Texas 
State of Arkansas State of Indiana State of Mississippi State of North Dakota State of Utah 
State of California State of Iowa State of Missouri State of Ohio State of Vermont 
State of Colorado State of Kansas State of Montana State of Oklahoma* State of Virginia 
State of Connecticut State of Kentucky State of Nebraska State of Oregon State of 

Washington 
State of Delaware State of Louisiana State of Nevada State of Pennsylvania State of West 

Virginia 
State of Florida State of Maine State of New 

Hampshire 
State of Rhode Island State of Wisconsin 

State of Georgia State of Maryland State of New Jersey State of South Carolina State of Wyoming 
District of Columbia     
 
Lists of political subdivisions and local governments in the above referenced states / districts may be found at 
http://www.usa.gov/Agencies/State_and_Territories.shtml and http://www.usa.gov/Agencies/Local.shtml
 
*Some public agencies and political subdivisions of these states may be restricted by state statutes that limit competition 
among cooperative purchasing organizations by only allowing use of purchasing cooperatives sponsored by certain 
National Associations.   
 
Certain Public Agencies and Political Subdivisions: 
 
Cities, Towns, Villages and Boroughs including but not limited to: 
BAKER CITY GOLF COURSE, OR 
CITY OF ADAIR VILLAGE, OR 
CITY OF ASHLAND, OR 
CITY OF AUMSVILLE, OR 
CITY OF AURORA, OR 
CITY OF BAKER, OR 
CITY OF BATON ROUGE, LA 
CITY OF BEAVERTON, OR 
CITY OF BEND, OR 
CITY OF BOARDMAN, OR 
CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LA 
CITY OF BURNS, OR 
CITY OF CANBY, OR 
CITY OF CANYONVILLE, OR 
CITY OF CLATSKANIE, OR 
CITY OF COBURG, OR 
CITY OF CONDON, OR 
CITY OF COQUILLE, OR 
CITY OF CORVALLI, OR 
CITY OF CORVALLIS PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT, OR 

http://www.usa.gov/Agencies/State_and_Territories.shtml
http://www.usa.gov/Agencies/Local.shtml


 
CITY OF COTTAGE GROVE, OR 
CITY OF EUGENE, OR 
CITY OF FOREST GROVE, OR 
CITY OF GRANTS PASS, OR 
CITY OF GRESHAM, OR 
CITY OF HILLSBORO, OR 
CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, OR 
CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU, HI 
CITY OF KENNER, LA 
CITY OF LA GRANDE, OR 
CITY OF LAFAYETTE, LA 
CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, OR 
CITY OF LEBANON, OR 
CITY OF MCMINNVILLE, OR 
CITY OF MEDFORD, OR 
CITY OF METAIRIE, LA 
CITY OF MILL CITY, OR 
CITY OF MILWAUKIE, OR 
CITY OF MONROE, LA 
CITY OF MOSIER, OR 
CITY OF NEW ORLEANS, LA 
CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OR 
CITY OF OREGON CITY, OR 
CITY OF PILOT ROCK, OR 
CITY OF PORTLAND, OR 
CITY OF POWERS, OR 
CITY OF PRINEVILLE, OR 
CITY OF RIDDLE, OR 
CITY OF ROSEBURG, OR 
CITY OF REDMOND, OR 
CITY OF SALEM, OR 
CITY OF SANDY, OR 
CITY OF SCAPPOOSE, OR 
CITY OF SHADY COVE, OR 
CITY OF SHERWOOD, OR 
CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LA 
CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OR 
CITY OF ST. HELENS, OR 
CITY OF ST. PAUL, OR 
CITY OF TIGARD, OR 
CITY OF TROUTDALE, OR 
CITY OF TUALATIN, OR 
CITY OF WARRENTON, OR 
CITY OF WILSONVILLE, OR 
CITY OF WINSTON, OR 
LEAGUE OF OREGON CITES 
THE CITY OF HAPPY VALLEY OREGON 
 
Counties and Parishes including but not limited to: 
ASCENSION PARISH, LA 
ASSOCIATION OF OREGON COUNTIES 
BAKER COUNTY, OR 
BENTON COUNTY, OR 
BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY, OR 
CADDO PARISH, LA 
CALCASIEU PARISH, LA 
CALCASIEU PARISH SHERIFF’S OFFICE, LA 
CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU, HI 
CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OR 
CLACKAMAS COUNTY DEPT OF TRANSPORTATION, OR 
CLATSOP COUNTY, OR 



 
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OR 
COOS COUNTY, OR 
COOS COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT, OR 
COUNTY OF HAWAII, OR 
CROOK COUNTY, OR 
CROOK COUNTY ROAD DEPARTMENT, OR 
CURRY COUNTY, OR 
DESCHUTES COUNTY, OR 
DOUGLAS COUNTY, OR 
EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH, LA 
GILLIAM COUNTY, OR 
GRANT COUNTY, OR 
HARNEY COUNTY, OR 
HARNEY COUNTY SHERIFFS OFFICE, OR 
HAWAII COUNTY, HI 
HOOD RIVER COUNTY, OR 
JACKSON COUNTY, OR 
JEFFERSON COUNTY, OR 
JEFFERSON PARISH, LA 
JOSEPHINE COUNTY GOVERNMENT, OR 
LAFAYETTE CONSOLIDATED GOVERNMENT, LA 
LAFAYETTE PARISH, LA 
KAUAI COUNTY, HI 
KLAMATH COUNTY, OR 
LAKE COUNTY, OR 
LANE COUNTY, OR 
LINCOLN COUNTY, OR 
LINN COUNTY, OR 
LIVINGSTON PARISH, LA 
MALHEUR COUNTY, OR 
MAUI COUNTY, HI 
MARION COUNTY, SALEM, OR 
MORROW COUNTY, OR 
MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OR 
MULTNOMAH COUNTY BUSINESS AND COMMUNITY SERVICES, OR 
MULTNOMAH COUNTY SHERIFFS OFFICE, OR 
MULTNOMAH LAW LIBRARY, OR 
ORLEANS PARISH, LA 
PLAQUEMINES PARISH, LA 
POLK COUNTY, OR 
RAPIDES PARISH, LA 
SAINT CHARLES PARISH, LA 
SAINT LANDRY PARISH, LA 
SAINT TAMMANY PARISH, LA 
SHERMAN COUNTY, OR 
TERREBONNE PARISH, LA 
TILLAMOOK COUNTY, OR 
TILLAMOOK COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE, OR 
UMATILLA COUNTY, OR 
UNION COUNTY, OR 
WALLOWA COUNTY, OR 
WASCO COUNTY, OR 
WASHINGTON COUNTY, OR 
WEST BATON ROUGE PARISH, LA 
WHEELER COUNTY, OR 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OR 
 
Other Agencies including Associations, Boards, Districts, Commissions, Councils, Public Corporations, Public 
Development Authorities, Reservations and Utilities including but not limited to: 
BEND METRO PARK AND RECREATION DISTRICT 
BOARDMAN PARK AND RECREATION DISTRICT 



 
CENTRAL OREGON INTERGOVERNMENTAL COUNCIL 
CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER 
CLATSKANIE PEOPLE'S UTILITY DISTRICT 
CLEAN WATER SERVICES 
CONFEDERATED TRIBES OF THE UMATILLA INDIAN RESERVATION 
COOS FOREST PROTECTIVE ASSOCIATION 
CHEHALEM PARK AND RECREATION DISTRICT 
EUGENE WATER AND ELECTRIC BOARD 
HOODLAND FIRE DISTRICT #74 
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF PORTLAND 
ILLINOIS VALLEY FIRE DISTRICT 
LAFAYETTE AIRPORT COMMISSION, LA 
LOUISIANA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION, LA 
MEDFORD WATER COMMISSION 
METRO REGIONAL GOVERNMENT 
METRO REGIONAL PARKS 
METROPOLITAN EXPOSITION RECREATION COMMISSION 
METROPOLITAN SERVICE DISTRICT (METRO) 
PORTLAND DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION, OR 
OREGON COAST COMMUNITY ACTION 
OREGON HOUSING AND COMMUNITY SERVICES 
OREGON LEGISLATIVE ADMINISTRATION 
SOUTHEASTERN LOUISIANAN UNIVERSITY 
TRI-COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT OF OREGON 
TUALATIN HILLS PARK & RECREATION DISTRICT 
TUALATIN VALLEY FIRE & RESCUE 
WILLAMALANE PARK AND RECREATION DISTRICT 
WILLAMETTE HUMANE SOCIETY 
 
 
K-12 including but not limited to: 
BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BEND-LA PINE SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BROOKING HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.17-C 
CADDO PARISH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
CALCASIEU PARISH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
CANBY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
CANYONVILLE CHRISTIAN ACADEMY 
CASCADES ACADEMY OF CENTRAL OREGON 
CENTENNIAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
CENTRAL CATHOLIC HIGH SCHOOL 
CENTRAL POINT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.6 
CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 13J 
COOS BAY SC'HOOL DISTRICT NO.9 
COUNTY OF YAMHILL SCHOOL DISTRICT 29 
CULVER SCHOOL DISTRICT  
DALLAS SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.2 
DAVID DOUGLAS SCHOOL DISTRICT 
DAYTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.8 
DE LA SALLE N CATHOLIC HS 
DESCHUTES COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.6 
DUFUR SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.29 
EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ESTACADA SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.10B 
FOREST GROVE SCHOOL DISTRICT 
GEORGE MIDDLE SCHOOL 
GLADSTONE SCHOOL DISTRICT 
GRANTS PASS SCHOOL DISTRICT 7 
GREATER ALBANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT 
HEAD START OF LANE COUNTY 
HIGH DESERT EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 



 
HILLSBORO SCHOOL DISTRICT 
HOOD RIVER COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
JACKSON CO SCHOOL DIST NO.9 
JEFFERSON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 509-J 
JEFFERSON PARISH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
JEFFERSON SCHOOL DISTRICT 
KLAMATH FALLS CITY SCHOOLS 
LAFAYETTE PARISH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
LAKE OSWEGO SCHOOL DISTRICT 7J 
LANE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 4J 
LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
LINN CO. SCHOOL DlST. 95C 
LIVINGSTON PARISH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
LOST RIVER JR/SR HIGH SCHOOL 
LOWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.71 
MARION COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MARION COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 103 
MCMINNVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT NOAO 
MEDFORD SCHOOL DISTRICT 549C 
MITCH CHARTER SCHOOL 
MONROE SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1J 
MUL TNOMAH EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 
MULTISENSORY LEARNING ACADEMY 
NEAH-KAH-NIE DISTRICT NO.56 
NESTUCCA VALLEY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.101 
NOBEL LEARNING COMMUNITIES 
NORTH BEND SCHOOL DISTRICT 13 
NORTH CLACKAMAS SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NORTH WASCO CTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 21 
NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 
ONTARIO MIDDLE SCHOOL 
OREGON TRAIL SCHOOL DISTRICT NOA6 
ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PHOENIX-TALENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NOA 
PORTLAND JEWISH ACADEMY 
PORTLAND PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
RAPIDES PARISH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
REDMOND SCHOOL DISTRICT 
REYNOLDS SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ROGUE RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.35 
ROSEBURG PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
SCAPPOOSE SCHOOL DISTRICT 1J 
SEASIDE SCHOOL DISTRICT 10 
SHERWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT 88J 
SILVER FALLS SCHOOL DISTRICT 4J 
SOUTH LANE SCHOOL DISTRICT 45J3 
SOUTHERN OREGON EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 
SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.19 
SWEET HOME SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.55 
TERREBONNE PARISH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
THE CATLIN GABEL SCHOOL 
TIGARD-TUALATIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 
UMATILLA MORROW ESD 
WEST LINN WILSONVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT 
WILLAMETTE EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 
WOODBURN SCHOOL DISTRICT 
YONCALLA SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.32 
 
  
Higher Education 
ARGOSY UNIVERSITY 



 
BATON ROUGE COMMUNITY COLLEGE, LA 
BIRTHINGWAY COLLEGE OF MIDWIFERY 
BLUE MOUNTAIN COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
BRIGHAM YOUNG UNIVERSITY - HAWAII 
CENTRAL OREGON COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
CHEMEKETA COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
CLACKAMAS COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
COLLEGE OF THE MARSHALL ISLANDS 
COLUMBIA GORGE COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
DEVRY UNIVERSITY - PORTLAND 
GEORGE FOX UNIVERSITY 
KLAMATH COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 
LANE COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
LEWIS AND CLARK COLLEGE 
LINFIELD COLLEGE 
LINN-BENTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
LOUISIANA COLLEGE, LA 
MARYLHURST UNIVERSITY 
MT. HOOD COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
MULTNOMAH BIBLE COLLEGE 
NATIONAL COLLEGE OF NATURAL MEDICINE 
NORTHWEST CHRISTIAN COLLEGE 
OREGON HEALTH AND SCIENCE UNIVERSITY 
OREGON UNIVERSITY SYSTEM 
PACIFIC UNIVERSITY 
PIONEER PACIFIC COLLEGE 
PORTLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
PORTLAND STATE UNIVERSITY 
REED COLLEGE 
RESEARCH CORPORATION OF THE UNIVERSITY OF HAWAII 
ROGUE COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
SOUTHERN OREGON UNIVERSITY (OREGON UNIVERSITY SYSTEM) 
SOUTHWESTERN OREGON COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
TULANE UNIVERSITY 
TILLAMOOK BAY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
UMPQUA COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
UNIVERSITY OF HAWAII BOARD OF REGENTS 
UNIVERSITY OF OREGON-GRADUATE SCHOOL 
UNIVERSITY OF PORTLAND 
UNIVERSITY OF NEW ORLEANS 
WESTERN OREGON UNIVERSITY 
WESTERN STATES CHIROPRACTIC COLLEGE 
WILLAMETTE UNIVERSITY 
XAVIER UNIVERISTY 
 
State Agencies 
ADMIN. SERVICES OFFICE 
BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS 
HAWAII CHILD SUPPORT ENFORCEMENT AGENCY 
HAWAII DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
HAWAII HEALTH SYSTEMS CORPORATION 
OFFICE OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS 
OFFICE OF THE STATE TREASURER 
OREGON BOARD OF ARCHITECTS 
OREGON CHILD DEVELOPMENT COALITION 
OREGON DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 
OREGON DEPARTMENT OF FORESTRY 
OREGON DEPT OF TRANSPORTATION 
OREGON DEPT. OF EDUCATION 
OREGON LOTTERY 
OREGON OFFICE OF ENERGY 



 
OREGON STATE BOARD OF NURSING 
OREGON STATE DEPT OF CORRECTIONS 
OREGON STATE POLICE 
OREGON TOURISM COMMISSION 
OREGON TRAVEL INFORMATION COUNCIL 
SANTIAM CANYON COMMUNICATION CENTER 
SEIU LOCAL 503, OPEU 
SOH- JUDICIARY CONTRACTS AND PURCH 
STATE DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE 
STATE OF HAWAII 
STATE OF HAWAII 
STATE OF HAWAII, DEPT. OF EDUCATION 
STATE OF LOUISIANA 
STATE OF LOUISIANA DEPT. OF EDUCATION 
 

 



DESIGN & CONSTRUCTION SERVICES, SERVICE CONTRACTING, PURCHASING, 
STORES, REPROGRAPHICS, MAIL SERVICES, ADMINISTRATION 

CITY HALL • 255 W. ALAMEDA • P.O. BOX 27210 • TUCSON, AZ  85726-7210 
(520) 791-4217 • FAX (520) 791-4735 • TTY (520) 791-2639 

www.tucsonaz.gov 
 
 

 
CITY OF TUCSON 

DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT 
 

 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
 

HEAVY EQUIPMENT, PARTS, ACCESSORIES, SUPPLIES & RELATED 
SERVICES 

 
DATE ISSUED: OCTOBER 18, 2011 

 
 
 
 

The referenced document has been modified as per the attached Amendment No. One (1). 
 
Please sign this Amendment where designated and return the executed copy with the 
submission of your proposal.  This amendment is hereby made part of the referenced proposal 
as though fully set forth therein.  Any questions regarding this amendment should be addressed 
to Victoria Cortinas, C.P.M., CPPB, Principal Contract Officer at (520) 837-4140. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL AMENDMENT 
 

CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT                                REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO.: 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701                                   RFP AMENDMENT NO.: ONE (1) 
P.O. BOX 27210, TUCSON, AZ  85726                                                                          PAGE 1 of 1 
(520) 837-4140                                                             RFP DUE DATE: NOVEMBER 14, 2011 @ 4:00 P.M., LOCAL AZ TIME  
ISSUE DATE: OCTOBER 18, 2011                                                                  CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 

A SIGNED COPY OF THIS AMENDMENT MUST BE SUBMITTED WITH YOUR SEALED PROPOSAL. 
THIS REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL IS AMENDED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 
This Request for Proposal is hereby modified as follows: 
 

1. The location of the Pre-Proposal Conference has changed to City of Tucson, Public Works Building, 
201 N. Stone Avenue, 4th Floor North Conference Room, Tucson, AZ  85701.  The appointment time of 
9:00 a.m. Arizona time remains the same.   
 
Please note:  There are two parking garages in the vicinity of the Public Works Building.  One is just 
west of the Public Works Building and the other is across the street at the Pima Main Library with both 
entrances off Alameda Street.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 

ALL OTHER PROVISIONS OF THE REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL SHALL REMAIN IN THEIR ENTIRETY. 
VENDOR HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES RECEIPT AND UNDERSTANDING OF THE ABOVE AMENDMENT. 

 
 
 

________________________________________    ______________________________________ 
             Signature         Date       Company Name 

 
________________________________________    ______________________________________ 

             Typed Name and Title         Address 
 

        ______________________________________ 
             City  State  Zip 



DESIGN & CONSTRUCTION SERVICES, SERVICE CONTRACTING, PURCHASING, 
STORES, REPROGRAPHICS, MAIL SERVICES, ADMINISTRATION 

CITY HALL • 255 W. ALAMEDA • P.O. BOX 27210 • TUCSON, AZ  85726-7210 
(520) 791-4217 • FAX (520) 791-4735 • TTY (520) 791-2639 

www.tucsonprocurement.com 
 
 

 
CITY OF TUCSON 

DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT 
 

 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
 

HEAVY EQUIPMENT, PARTS, ACCESSORIES, SUPPLIES & RELATED 
SERVICES 

 
DATE ISSUED: NOVEMBER 3, 2011 

 
 
 
 

The referenced document has been modified as per the attached Amendment No. Two (2). 
 
Please sign this Amendment where designated and return the executed copy with the 
submission of your proposal.  This amendment is hereby made part of the referenced proposal 
as though fully set forth therein.  Any questions regarding this amendment should be addressed 
to Victoria Cortinas, C.P.M., CPPB, Principal Contract Officer at (520) 837-4140. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VC/swb 
 



 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL AMENDMENT 
 

CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT                                REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO.:120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701                                  RFP AMENDMENT NO.: TWO(2) 
P.O. BOX 27210, TUCSON, AZ  85726                                                                         PAGE 1 of 3 
(520) 837-4140                                                       RFP DUE DATE: NOVEMBER 16, 2011 @ 4:00 P.M., LOCAL AZ TIME  
ISSUE DATE: NOVEMER 3, 2011                                                             CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 

A SIGNED COPY OF THIS AMENDMENT MUST BE SUBMITTED WITH YOUR SEALED PROPOSAL. 
THIS REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL IS AMENDED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 
Pursuant to the Pre-Proposal Conference on Friday, October 27, 2011, this Request for 
Proposal is hereby modified as follows: 
 
1. The City of Tucson has posted Request for Proposal 130377 in Microsoft Word version on our website 

at http://www.tucsonprocurement.com/bidders_bidopportunities.aspx?Orderby=ContractNum 
 
2. Due Date:  The Due Date has changed to Wednesday, November 16, 2011.  Time and location 

remain the same. 
 
3. Page 2, Introduction/Background, first paragraph, second sentence, Change sentence to read as 

follows:  “The City requires a contractor who provides a diverse and extensive supply of equipment for 
purchase, lease and/or rental to various locations in the Tucson metropolitan area. 

 
4. Page 3, Tentative Schedule of Events, Replace the original schedule with the following (changes are 

indicated in bold): 
 

Activity Estimated Finish Date of Activity 
RFP Published October 12, 2011 
Pre-proposal conference October 27, 2011 
Proposal due date  November 16, 2011 
Review of Proposals by Evaluation Committee 
and Reference Checks 

November 17, 2011 – January 13, 2012 

Vendor Interview  December 15-16, 2011 
Evaluation Committee’s recommendation January 13, 2012 
Final negotiation completed January 19, 2012 
Contract award  January 20, 2012 

 
5. Scope of Work, Section A. General Requirements 

a. Page 4, Item 6. Repairs, Replace this section with the following:  If the vehicle requires repairs 
prior to acceptance, the Contractor will be responsible to transport of equipment to and from his 
place of business for repairs until such time as the equipment is placed in service, at no 
additional cost, to the purchasing agency.  Transport of the vehicle will not be delayed more that 
one working day from date of notification. 
 
For the City of Tucson, repair work can be performed on City of Tucson premises.  The City’s 
Fleet Services has agreed to offer a service bay in the maintenance facility. 
 

b. Page 4, Item 8. Vendor Service and Maintenance, second paragraph, Replace entire paragraph 
with the following “For the City of Tucson, the parts and service facility must be within City of 
Tucson metropolitan area.”   

http://www.tucsonprocurement.com/bidders_bidopportunities.aspx?Orderby=ContractNum


 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL AMENDMENT 
 

CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT                              REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO.: 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701                              RFP AMENDMENT NO.: TWO (2) 
P.O. BOX 27210, TUCSON, AZ  85726                                                                         PAGE 2 of 3 
(520) 837-4140                                                       RFP DUE DATE: NOVEMBER 16, 2011 @ 4:00 P.M., LOCAL AZ TIME  
ISSUE DATE: NOVEMER 3, 2011                                                        CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 

A SIGNED COPY OF THIS AMENDMENT MUST BE SUBMITTED WITH YOUR SEALED PROPOSAL. 
THIS REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL IS AMENDED AS FOLLOWS: 

 
6. Scope of Work, Section B. Equipment and Product Requirements 

a. Item 1, Equipment, Replace the original heavy equipment categories with the following: 
 
Landfill Equipment

Landfill Dozers 
Landfill Compactors 
Landfill Scraper 

 
Construction Equipment
Articulated Dump Truck 
Dozers / Tracked 
Dozers / Wheeled 
Dump Trucks 
Excavators / Tracked 
Excavators / Wheeled 
Loaders / Backhoe / Wheeled 
Loaders / Tracked 
Loaders / Wheeled  
Motor Graders 
Scrapers  
Skid Steer Loaders 
Soil Compactors 
Trencher 
Water Truck 
Water Wagon 
 
Material Handling 
Crane / Track 
Crane / Wheeled 
Fork Lift-Straight Mast 
Fork Lift – Telescopic-Forward / High 
Reach 
 
 
 

Pavement Repair/Maintenance 
Asphalt Cold Planer 
Asphalt Rotary Mixer 
Bituminous Distribution Truck 
Chip Spreader 
Crack Sealer 
Patcher Truck 
Paver / Tracked 
Paver / Wheeled  
Rollers / Drum / Wheeled 
Rollers / Drum / Vibrate 
Rollers / Wheeled / Pneumatic 
 
Sweepers 
Sweeper / Scrubber 
Sweeper / Street 
Sweeper / Walkway 
 
Transport 
Trailer / Drop Neck 
Trailer / Flatbed 
Trailer / Tilt 
Trailer / Utility 
 
Miscellaneous 
Air Compressor 
Bucket Truck 
Cement Mixer 
Generator / Power Systems 
Ice Resurfacer 
Tractor / Boom Mower 

7. Scope of Work, Section C. Service Requirements 
a. Item k, Change section to read: “Lease/Rental:  The ability to lease/rent heavy equipment 

through the manufacturer or dealer.” 



 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL AMENDMENT 
 

CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT                             REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO.: 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701                              RFP AMENDMENT NO.: TWO (2) 
P.O. BOX 27210, TUCSON, AZ  85726                                                                  PAGE 3 of 3 
(520) 837-4140                                                  RFP DUE DATE: NOVEMBER 16, 2011 @ 4:00 P.M., LOCAL AZ TIME  
ISSUE DATE: NOVEMER 3, 2011                                                        CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 

A SIGNED COPY OF THIS AMENDMENT MUST BE SUBMITTED WITH YOUR SEALED PROPOSAL. 
THIS REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL IS AMENDED AS FOLLOWS: 

 
 

8. Proposal Evaluation Requirements 
a. Page 10, Section II., A. 2., Add Item e. Describe your shipping process including how equipment 

is shipped to the customer and how shipping charges are assessed (region, zone, zip code, 
etc.).  It is the City’s intention that equipment shall be delivered F.O.B. Destination to all 
customers and freight prepaid to the City of Tucson.  Orders for other agencies may be subject 
to freight charges. 

 
b. Page 12, Section B. Price Proposal, Item 1, Add the following: 

i. Offerors should include pricing for their entire heavy equipment line based upon the 
categories stated above and not just for the specific pieces of equipment listed.   

 
ii. To allow for ordering flexibility, equipment that is mounted to a chassis, Offerors should 

provide separate pricing structure for the chassis and the truck as well as a total price or 
price structure for the complete piece of equipment. 

 
c. Page 14, Section III, Item B., Change section to read: “Interview:  The City reserves the right to 

conduct interviews with some or all of the offerors at any point during the evaluation process. 
However, the City may determine that interviews are not necessary. In the event interviews are 
conducted, information provided during the interview shall be taken into consideration when 
evaluating the stated criteria. The City shall not reimburse the offeror for the costs associated 
with the interview process.” 

 
9. Page 15, Item 3, FOB Destination Freight Prepaid, Clarification, It is the City’s intention that equipment 

shall be delivered F.O.B. Destination to all customers and freight prepaid to the City of Tucson.  Orders 
for other agencies may be subject to freight charges. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

ALL OTHER PROVISIONS OF THE REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL SHALL REMAIN IN THEIR ENTIRETY. 
VENDOR HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES RECEIPT AND UNDERSTANDING OF THE ABOVE AMENDMENT. 

 
 
 

________________________________________    ______________________________________ 
             Signature         Date       Company Name 

 
________________________________________    ______________________________________ 

             Typed Name and Title         Address 
 

        
             City  State  Zip 

______________________________________ 















Model Minimum Member Discount

Articulated Trucks 14%

Backhoe Loaders 21%

Generators 17% ‐ 50%

Integrated Tool Carriers 21% ‐ 26%

Landfill Compactors 14%

Motor Graders 23% ‐ 37%

Paving Products 14% ‐ 18%

Skid Steer Loaders 16%

Towed Scrapers 15%

Track Excavators 12% ‐ 25%

Track Loaders 20% ‐ 23%

Track Type Tractors                                     10% ‐ 25%

Tractor Scrapers 15% ‐ 17%
Vocational Trucks 23%

Wheel Dozers 15%

Wheel Loaders 12% ‐ 26%

Wheeled Excavators 32% ‐ 35%

Work tools 15%

The following items are also available under the contract:

  Financing Options 

 Used Vocational Trucks & Work Tools ‐ pricing to be negotiated with local participating dealer

 Rentals ‐ product and service pricing to be negotiated with local participating dealer

 Parts ‐ product pricing to be negotiated with local participating dealer
Service/Repair ‐ product pricing to be negotiated with local participating dealer
 Extended Warranties ‐ product pricing to be negotiated with local participating dealer

 Maintenance Agreements ‐ product pricing to be negotiated with local participating dealer

Trade‐In or Buyback Options ‐ to be negotiated with local participating dealer

Used Equipment ‐ subject to availability, 20% discount off the original list price of used Caterpillar equipment 

    that is currently in the Cat Dealers rental fleet, excluding vocational trucks and work tools

Accessories/Allied Products (trailers, etc.) ‐ product pricing to be negotiated with local participating dealer 

Caterpillar Product and Service Pricing





























































































 

 
CITY OF TUCSON 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 
 
 REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NUMBER: 120377 
 PROPOSAL DUE DATE: NOVEMBER 14, 2011, AT 4:00 P.M. LOCAL AZ TIME 
 PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL LOCATION: DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT 
  255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ 85701 
   
 MATERIAL OR SERVICE: HEAVY EQUIPMENT, PARTS, ACCESSORIES,  
  SUPPLIES AND RELATED SERVICES 
 
PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE DATE: OCTOBER 27, 2011 
 TIME: 9:00 A.M. LOCAL AZ TIME 
 LOCATION: CITY HALL, FINANCE CONFERENCE ROOM 

             255 W. ALAMEDA, 5TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ   
 

CONFERENCE CALL NUMBER:  1-888-394-8197; PASSCODE:  640963 
 

 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS, C.P.M., CPPB 
 TELEPHONE NUMBER: (520) 837-4140 
  Victoria.Cortinas@tucsonaz.gov 
 

Interested offerors may obtain a copy of this complete solicitation by calling (520) 791-4217. A copy of this 
solicitation and possible future amendments may also be obtained from our Internet site at: 
http://www.tucsonprocurement.com/ by selecting the Bid Opportunities link and the associated solicitation 
number.  
 
Competitive sealed proposals for the specified material or service shall be received by the Department of 
Procurement, 255 W. Alameda, 6th Floor, Tucson, Arizona 85701, until the date and time cited.  
 
Proposals must be in the actual possession of the Department of Procurement at the location indicated, on or 
prior to the exact date and time indicated above. Late proposals shall not be considered. The prevailing clock 
shall be the City Department of Procurement clock. 
 
Proposals must be submitted in a sealed envelope. The Request for Proposal number and the offeror's name and 
address should be clearly indicated on the outside of the envelope. All proposals must be completed in ink or 
typewritten. Questions must be addressed to the Contract Officer listed above. 
 

****NOTICE**** 
 

Effective July 1, 2009, the City will no longer mail Notices of available solicitations via the U.S. Postal Service.  
Email notifications will be provided to those vendors that have updated their vendor record and selected email 
as their preferred delivery method.  For information on how to update your vendor record, please visit 
www.tucsonprocurement.com, click on What's New? and read the section titled "Notice of Solicitations."  You 
may also call (520) 791-4217 if you have questions.   
 
VC/sd 
 
PUBLISH DATE: October 12, 2011 

http://www.tucsonprocurement.com/


CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 2 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 
 
 

INTRODUCTION/ BACKGROUND 
 

The City of Tucson (herein referred to as the City) is requesting proposals from qualified and experienced firms 
to provide HEAVY EQUIPMENT, PARTS, ACCESSORIES, SUPPLIES AND RELATED SERVICES. The City 
requires a contractor who provides a diverse and extensive supply of equipment for purchase and/or rental to 
various locations in the Tucson metropolitan area.  
 
Heavy equipment will include, but not be limited to the following equipment categories:  Landfill, Construction, 
and Material Handling.  The City has approximately 150 pieces of heavy equipment that falls under the heavy 
equipment category.   
 
Requirements and qualifications are defined in detail in the Scope of Services Section of this Request for 
Proposal (RFP).  The City seeks a firm(s) that can supply the specified services, supplies, parts, equipment 
and materials.      
 

NATIONAL CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS 
 
The City, as the Principal Procurement Agency, as defined in Attachment A, has partnered with the National 
Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance Company (“National IPA”) to make the resultant contract (“Master 
Agreement”) from this solicitation available to other public agencies nationally, including state and local 
governmental entities, public and private primary, secondary and higher education entities, non-profit entities, 
and agencies for the public benefit (“Public Agencies”), through National IPA’s cooperative purchasing 
program. The City is acting as the contracting agency for any other Public Agency that elects to utilize the 
resulting Master Agreement.  Use of the Master Agreement by any Public Agency is preceded by their 
registration with National IPA as a Participating Public Agency in National IPA’s cooperative purchasing 
program.  Attachment A contains additional information on National IPA and the cooperative purchasing 
agreement. 
  
With corporate, pricing and sales commitments from the Supplier, National IPA provides marketing and 
administrative support for the Supplier that directly promotes the Supplier’s products and services to 
Participating Public Agencies though multiple channels, each designed to promote specific products and 
services to Public Agencies on a national basis.  Public Agencies benefit from pricing based on aggregate 
spend and the convenience of a contract that has already been advertised and competed.  The Supplier 
benefits from a contract that allows Participating Public Agencies to directly purchase goods and services 
without the Supplier’s need to respond to additional competitive solicitations. As such, the Supplier must be 
able to accommodate a nationwide demand for services and to fulfill obligations as a nationwide Supplier and 
respond to the National IPA documents (Attachment A).  The City reserves the right to deem submissions that 
do not include a response to the National IPA documents as non-responsive. 
 
The City anticipates spending approximately $15 million over the full potential Master Agreement term for 
heavy equipment.  For this fiscal year, the City anticipates purchasing an excavator and a water wagon.  While 
no minimum volume is guaranteed to the Supplier, the estimated annual volume of heavy equipment 
purchased under the Master Agreement through National IPA is approximately $100,000,000.  This projection 
is based on the current annual volumes among the City, other Participating Public Agencies that are 
anticipated to utilize the resulting Master Agreement to be made available to them through National IPA, and 
volume growth into other Public Agencies through a coordinated marketing approach between the Supplier 
and National IPA. 
 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 3 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 
 

 
TENTATIVE SCHEDULE OF EVENTS 

 
To the extent achievable, the following schedule shall govern the review, evaluation and award of the contract.  
The dates are estimates only and the City reserves the right to modify the dates below as necessary. 
 

Activity Estimated Finish Date of Activity 
RFP Published October 12, 2011 
Pre-proposal conference October 27, 2011 
Proposal due date  November 14, 2011 
Review of Proposals by Evaluation Committee and 
Reference Checks 

November 15, 2011 – January 18, 2012 

Vendor Interview / Demonstration  December 7-9, 2011 
Evaluation Committee’s recommendation January 4, 2012 
Final negotiation completed January 4-10, 2012 
Contract award & issuance of purchase order January 15, 2012 

 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
A. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS
 
1.  QUALIFIED FIRMS:  Offerors should meet the minimum qualifications: 
 
   a. Have a strong national presence in the heavy equipment industry. 
   b. Have a distribution model capable of delivering heavy equipment nationwide. 
   c. Have a demonstrated sales presence. 

d. Be able to meet the minimum requirements of the cooperative purchasing program 
detailed herein. 

e. Be able to provide the full range of products, equipment, parts, materials and services to 
meet the demands of the City and all agencies that opt to participate in the cooperative 
purchasing program with the City. 

 
2. PRODUCTION REPORTS:  The Contractor or associated dealer must have the ability to furnish the 

agency ordering equipment and National IPA MONTHLY progress reports confirming status of delivery 
dates as agreed upon.  These reports shall consist of, but not limited to the following: 

a. Copy of Contractor’s order to the factory. 
b. Copy of factory acknowledgment of order indicating scheduled date of production and shipment 

from factory. 
c. Factory generated computer status reports. 
d. Notification to the City of any changes in production or shipping dates. 
e. Any special information the Contractor shall have that would affect the timely delivery of the 

vehicles ordered in accordance with original delivery date promise. 
 
In lieu of written reports submitted to Fleet Services, the Contractor may provide access to an Internet 
based on-line order tracking system.  Any on-line system provided must provide the information 
required above.  The Contractor must provide all access codes necessary to view this information. 

 
3. DELIVERY and DELIVERY DOCUMENTATION:  The following documents are due upon delivery of 

the completed vehicles to the City: 
a. Invoice 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 4 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 
 

b. Warranty document 
c. Level 1 Inspection 
d. Required manuals 

 
 Upon contract award, the Contractor will be required to supply a delivery ticket specifying the purchase 

order number of each vehicle.   
 
 Delivery to the City of Tucson:  All deliveries shall be made Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 

3:00 p.m.  The Contractor shall be required to give the Operations/Fleet Services Department a 
minimum of 24-hour notification prior to delivery with the anticipated time of delivery and quantity of 
units to be delivered. 

 
4. VEHICLE INSPECTION:  The purchasing agency will assist the Contractor or the authorized dealer in 

arranging for inspection of each piece of equipment purchased.  Each vehicle delivered shall be subject 
to a complete inspection by the purchasing agency’s staff prior to acceptance.  Inspection criteria shall 
include, but not be limited to, conformity to the specifications, mechanical integrity, quality, 
workmanship and materials.  If delivered equipment is returned to the Contractor prior to acceptance 
for any reason, all corrections shall be made without any inconvenience to the City. 

 
5. TRAINING:  The Contractor shall provide, at no additional cost, training for each basic unit of 

equipment purchased.  This training shall be adequate to the needs of the typical equipment operator 
and service technician in order to assure proper operation, utilization and maintenance of the 
equipment supplied.  Any manuals necessary to perform the required training shall be furnished by the 
Contractor.  The trainer shall be factory-trained and thoroughly knowledgeable in equipment operator 
and service technician functions.  Training shall be presented in a quality suitable for videotaping.  The 
City reserves the right to videotape part or all of the training provided at no additional cost to the 
agency. 

 
6. REPAIRS:  The Contractor will be responsible for transport of vehicles to and from his place of 

business for repairs, at not additional cost to the City, until such time as the City of Tucson places the 
vehicle in service.  Transport of the vehicle will not be delayed more that one working day from date of 
notification. 

 
7. WARRANTIES:  Offeror shall warrant that all equipment and parts furnished in their offer are newly 

manufactured and free from defects in material and workmanship from the date the City places the 
equipment into service.  Warranty shall also guarantee accepted trade standards of quality, fitness for 
the intended uses, and conformance to promises or specified specifications. No other express or 
implied warranty shall eliminate the vendor’s liability as stated herein. 

 
8. VENDOR SERVICE AND MAINTENANCE:  Contractor will provide and maintain a factory authorized 

parts and service facility within a reasonable distance to the purchasing location. 
 
 For the City, the parts and service facility must be within 125 mile radius of the City of Tucson Price 

Service Center (4004 S. Park Avenue, 85714).  If warranty service is not provided within the Tucson 
metro area, the Contractor shall be responsible for all costs, including fuel and labor, of transporting 
vehicle (s) between the City’s Price Service Center and the Contractor’s service center. The method of 
transportation must be mutually agreed to by the Contractor and the City prior to transport.   

 
For service calls, the City expects the Contractor to provide a response within 60 minutes. 

 
9. VEHICLE RECALL NOTICES:  In the event of any recall notice, technical service bulletin, or other 

important notification affecting a vehicle purchased from this contract, a notice shall be sent to the 
purchasing agency’s representative.  For the City of Tucson, all notices shall be sent to General Services, 
Fleet Services Division, 4004 S. Park Avenue, Building 1, Tucson, AZ 85714.   

 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 5 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 
 
 
B. EQUIPMENT AND PRODUCT REQUIREMENTS:   
 
1.  EQUIPMENT: A complete and comprehensive line of Heavy Equipment to support various needs of 

agencies is requested. The categories include, but are not limited to the following.  
 
Landfill Equipment:

Landfill Dozers 
Landfill Compactors 
Landfill Scraper 

 

Material Handling 
Fork Lift 
Crane / Wheeled 
Crane / Track 

 
 
Construction Equipment
Air Compressor 
Articulated Dump Truck 
Asphalt Cold Planer 
Asphalt Rotary Mixer 
Bucket Truck 
Cement Mixer 
Chip Spreader 
Crack Sealer 
Dozers / Tracked 
Dozers / Wheeled 
Dump Trucks 
Excavators / Tracked 
Excavators / Wheeled 
Ice Resurfacer 
Loaders / Backhoe / Wheeled 
Loaders / Tracked 
Loaders / Wheeled  
Motor Graders 
Patcher Truck 

Paver / Tracked 
Paver / Wheeled  
Rollers / Drum / Vibrate 
Rollers / wheeled / Pneumatic 
Rollers / Drum / Wheeled 
Scrapers  
Skid Steer Loaders 
Soil Compactors 
Sweeper / Scrubber 
Sweeper / Street 
Sweeper / walkway 
Trailer / Tilt 
Trailer / Flatbed 
Trailer / Drop Neck 
Trailer / Utility  
Trencher 
Water Truck 
Water Wagon 

 
2.  CURRENT EQUIPMENT AND PRODUCTS: All equipment and products being offered in response to 

this solicitation shall be in current and ongoing production; shall be formally announced for general 
marketing purposes; shall be a model or type currently functioning in a user (paying customer) 
environment and capable of meeting or exceeding all specifications and requirements set forth in this 
solicitation. 

 
3.  PRICING:  Offerors shall provide a verifiable price index, to include but not limited to a discount from a 

verifiable price index, a reduced net pricing schedule, a hybrid or other supplier specific pricing model.  
The pricing model shall remain firm and will include all charges that may be incurred in fulfilling 
requirement(s) for the twelve-month period following contract award.  Where applicable, pricing shall be 
determined by applying Offerors discounts to the prices listed on their manufacturer’s price lists, retail 
price sheets, catalogs or by utilizing the reduced net pricing schedule.    



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 6 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 
 
 
C. SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
  

1. SERVICES: The City is interested in inclusion of value-add services. These services may be 
provided by the authorized manufacturer or dealer and sample categories include, but are not 
limited to: 

 
a. Repair Services:  The ability to provide repair services through authorized 

manufacturer’s facilities or dealers.  Repairs services may include, but not limited to, 
hourly rate for repairs in shop, hourly rate for repairs in field, weld repairs, machining 
work, etc. 

 
b. Maintenance Services:  The ability to provide various maintenance services and 

options through authorized manufacturer’s facilities or dealers.  Maintenance services 
may include scheduled services based upon the manufactures recommended 
guidelines, to include but not limited to, daily scheduled services, daily fuel dispensing, 
major/ minor machine cleaning, etc. 

 
 For landfill equipment, if the City has purchased the maintenance services from the 

manufacturer’s dealer, the City requires a loaner or rental equipment, at no additional 
cost, if the machine is down for more than 24 hours. 

 
c. Warranties: The ability to provide a full range of extended warranties. 
 
d. Financing Options:  The ability to provide financing options. 
 
e. Trade-In or Buyback Options: The ability to trade-in used equipment or obtain a 

guaranteed buy back price at the time of purchase. 
 
f. Rental: The ability to rent heavy equipment through the manufacturer or dealer. 

 
g. Small Business Program: The ability to incorporate small business enterprises into 

your distribution, sales and product offerings.  
 
h. Green/Sustainability Program:  

1. Policies: Efforts and policies pertaining to green and sustainability.  
2. Products: Impact on product offerings.    
3. Distribution: Impact in distribution. 
4. Certifications: The industry recognized certifications and standards obtained.  

 
i. Training & Education: The ability to provide on-site and/or online training and 

educational programs/seminars. 
 
j. Customer Support Services: The policies on replacements, returns, restocking 

charges, after hours service, after sales support, out of stock, order tracing, technical 
feedback, quality assurance for orders and drop shipments.   

 
k. Other Services/Options: Other value-add services not included in above categories. 
 

 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 7 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 
 

INSTRUCTIONS TO OFFERORS 
 

1. DEFINITION OF KEY WORDS USED IN THE SOLICITATION: 
 For purposes of this solicitation and subsequent contract, the following definitions shall apply: 
 City: The City of Tucson, Arizona  
 Contract: The legal agreement executed between the City and the Contractor/Consultant. The Contract shall include this 

RFP document incorporated herein by reference, all terms, conditions, specifications, scope of work, Amendments, the 
Contractor’s offer and negotiated items as accepted by the City. 

 Contractor/Consultant: The individual, partnership, or corporation who, as a result of the competitive solicitation process, 
is awarded a contract by the City. 

 Contract Representative: The City employee or employees who have specifically been designated to act as a contact 
person or persons to the Contractor, and is responsible for monitoring and overseeing the Contractor's performance under 
this Contract. 

 Director of Procurement: The contracting authority for the City, authorized to sign contracts and amendments thereto on 
behalf of the City. 

 May: Indicates something that is not mandatory but permissible. 
 Offeror: The individual, partnership, or corporation who submits a proposal in response to a solicitation. 
 Shall, Will, Must: Indicates a mandatory requirement. Failure to meet these mandatory requirements, if they constitute a 

substantive requirement, may, at the City’s sole discretion, result in the rejection of a proposal as non-responsive. 
 Should: Indicates something that is recommended but not mandatory. If the Offeror fails to provide recommended 

information, the City may, at its sole option, ask the Offeror to provide the information or evaluate the proposal without the 
information. 

  
2. PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE: If scheduled, the date and time of a Pre-Proposal conference is indicated on the cover 

page of this document. Attendance at this conference is not mandatory. Written minutes and/or notes will not be available, 
therefore attendance is encouraged. If an Offeror is unable to attend the Pre-Proposal Conference questions may be 
submitted in writing. Offerors are encouraged to submit written questions, via electronic mail or facsimile, at least five days 
prior to the Request for Proposal due date to the Contract Officer listed above. The purpose of this conference will be to 
clarify the contents of this Request for Proposal in order to prevent any misunderstanding of the City's position. Any doubt 
as to the requirements of this Request for Proposal or any apparent omission or discrepancy should be presented to the City 
at this conference. The City will then determine the appropriate action necessary, if any, and may issue a written 
amendment to the Request for Proposal. Oral statements or instructions will not constitute an amendment to this Request 
for Proposal. 

 
3. INQUIRIES: Any question related to the Request for Proposal shall be directed to the Contract Officer whose name appears 

above. An offeror shall not contact or ask questions of the department for whom the requirement is being procured. The 
Contract Officer may require any and all questions be submitted in writing. Offerors are encouraged to submit written 
questions via electronic mail or facsimile, at least five days prior to the proposal due date. Any correspondence related to a 
solicitation should refer to the appropriate Request for Proposal number, page and paragraph number. An envelope 
containing questions should be identified as such, otherwise it may not be opened until after the official proposal due date 
and time. Oral interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. Only questions answered by a formal written 
amendment to the Request for Proposal will be binding. 

 
4. AMENDMENT OF REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL: The Offeror shall acknowledge receipt of a Request for Proposal 

Amendment by signing and returning the document by the specified due date and time. 
 
5. FAMILIARIZATION OF SCOPE OF WORK: Before submitting a proposal, each offeror shall familiarize itself with the Scope 

of Work, laws, regulations and other factors affecting contract performance. The Offeror shall be responsible for fully 
understanding the requirements of the subsequent Contract and otherwise satisfy itself as to the expense and difficulties 
accompanying the fulfillment of contract requirements. The submission of a proposal will constitute a representation of 
compliance by the Offeror. There will be no subsequent financial adjustment, other than that provided by the subsequent 
Contract, for lack of such familiarization. 

 
6.  PREPARATION OF PROPOSAL:  

A. All proposals shall be on the forms provided in this Request for Proposal package. It is permissible to copy these forms 
as required. Facsimiles or electronic mail proposals shall not be considered. 

B. At a minimum, your proposal should include the signed Offer and Acceptance form, signed copies of any solicitation 
amendments, completed Price Page and your response to all evaluation criteria. 

C. The Offer and Acceptance page shall be signed by a person authorized to submit an offer. An authorized signature on 
the Offer and Acceptance page, Proposal Amendment(s), or cover letter accompanying the proposal documents shall 
constitute an irrevocable offer to sell the good and/or service specified herein. Offeror shall submit any additional 
requested documentation, signifying intent to be bound by the terms of the agreement. 

D. The authorized person signing the proposal shall initial erasure, interlineations or other modifications on the proposal. 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 8 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 
 
 E. In case of error in the extension of prices in the proposal, unit price shall govern when applicable. 
 F. Periods of time, stated as a number of days, shall be in calendar days. 
 G. It is the responsibility of all offerors to examine the entire Request for Proposal package and seek clarification of any 

requirement that may not be clear and to check all responses for accuracy before submitting a proposal. Negligence in 
preparing a proposal confers no right of withdrawal after due date and time. 

H. The City shall not reimburse the cost of developing, presenting, submitting or providing any response to this solicitation. 
I. Offeror must list any subcontractors to be utilized in the performance of the services specified herein. For each 

subcontractor, details on respective qualifications must be included. 
 
7. PAYMENT DISCOUNTS: Payment discount periods shall be computed from the date of receipt of the material/service or 

correct invoice, whichever is later, to the date City’s payment warrant is mailed.  Unless freight and other charges are 
itemized, any discount provided shall be taken on full amount of invoice. Payment discounts of twenty-one calendar days or 
more shall be deducted from the proposed price in determining the price points.  However, the City shall be entitled to take 
advantage of any payment discount offered by a vendor provided payment is made within the discount period.  

 
8. TAXES: The City of Tucson is exempt from federal excise tax, including the federal transportation tax. 
 
9. PROPOSAL/SUBMITTAL FORMAT: An original and 6 copies (7 total) of each proposal should be submitted on the 

forms and in the format specified in the RFP. Offerors shall also submit 3 electronic copies of the complete proposal 
response on cd, jump drive or zip disc in MS Office97 or .pdf format. Any confidential information shall be submitted in a 
separate file on the cd, jump drive or zip disc. The original copy of the proposal should be clearly labeled "Original" and shall 
be single-sided, three hole punched and in a binder. The material should be in sequence and related to the RFP. The 
sections of the submittal should be tabbed, clearly identifiable and should include a minimum of the following 
sections: the completed Offer and Acceptance Form, all signed Amendments, a copy of this RFP document and the 
Offeror’s response to the Evaluation Criteria including the completed Price Page. Failure to include the requested 
information may have a negative impact on the evaluation of the offeror's proposal.  

 
10. EXCEPTIONS TO CONTRACT PROVISIONS: A response to any Request for Proposal is an offer to contract with the City 

based upon the contract provisions contained in the City’s Request for Proposal, including but not limited to, the 
specifications, scope of work and any terms and conditions. Offerors who wish to propose modifications to the contract 
provisions must clearly identify the proposed deviations and any proposed substitute language. The provisions of the 
Request for Proposal cannot be modified without the express written approval of the Director or his designee. If a proposal 
or offer is returned with modifications to the contract provisions that are not expressly approved in writing by the Director or 
his designee, the contract provisions contained in the City’s Request for Proposal shall prevail. 

 
11. PUBLIC RECORD: All proposals submitted in response to this Request for Proposal shall become the property of the City 

and shall become a matter of public record available for review subsequent to the award notification. 
 
12. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION: The City of Tucson is obligated to abide by all public information laws. If an Offeror 

believes that any portion of a proposal, offer, specification, protest or correspondence contains information that should be 
withheld, a statement advising the Contract Officer of this fact should accompany the submission and the information shall 
be so identified wherever it appears. The City shall review all requests for confidentiality and may provide a written 
determination to designate specified documents confidential or the request may be denied. Price is not confidential and will 
not be withheld. If the confidential request is denied, such information shall be disclosed as public information, unless the 
offeror submits a formal written objection. 

 
13. CERTIFICATION: By signature on the Offer and Acceptance page, solicitation Amendment(s), or cover letter accompanying 

the submittal documents, Offeror certifies: 
A. The submission of the offer did not involve collusion or other anti-competitive practices. 
B. The Offeror shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment in violation of Federal or State 

law. 
C. The Offeror has not given, offered to give, nor intends to give at any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future 

employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip, favor, meal or service to a public servant in connection with the 
submitted offer. 

D. The Offeror hereby certifies that the individual signing the submittal is an authorized agent for the Offeror and has the 
authority to bind the Offeror to the Contract. 

 
14. WHERE TO SUBMIT PROPOSALS: In order to be considered, the Offeror must complete and submit its proposal to the 

City of Tucson Department of Procurement at the location indicated, prior to or at the exact date and time indicated on the 
Notice of Request for Proposal page. The Offeror’s proposal shall be submitted in a sealed envelope. The words “SEALED 
PROPOSAL” with the REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL TITLE, REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NUMBER, PROPOSAL DUE 
DATE AND TIME and OFFEROR’S NAME AND ADDRESS shall be written on the envelope. 

 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 9 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 
 
15. LATE PROPOSALS: Late proposals will be rejected. 
 
16. OFFER AND ACCEPTANCE PERIOD: In order to allow for an adequate evaluation, the City requires an offer in response 

to this solicitation to be valid and irrevocable for ninety (90) days after the proposal due date and time. 
 
17. WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSAL: At any time prior to the specified solicitation due date and time, an offeror may formally 

withdraw the proposal by a written letter, facsimile or electronic mail from the Offeror or a designated representative. 
Telephonic or oral withdrawals shall not be considered. 

 
18. DISCUSSIONS: The City reserves the right to conduct discussions with offerors for the purpose of eliminating minor 

irregularities, informalities, or apparent clerical mistakes in the proposal in order to clarify an offer and assure full 
understanding of, and responsiveness to, solicitation requirements. 

 
19. CONTRACT NEGOTIATIONS: Exclusive or concurrent negotiations may be conducted with responsible offeror(s) for the 

purpose of altering or otherwise changing the conditions, terms and price of the proposed contract unless prohibited. 
Offerors shall be accorded fair and equal treatment in conducting negotiations and there shall be no disclosure of any 
information derived from proposals submitted by competing offerors.  Exclusive or concurrent negotiations shall not 
constitute a contract award nor shall it confer any property rights to the successful offeror. In the event the City deems that 
negotiations are not progressing, the City may formally terminate these negotiations and may enter into subsequent 
concurrent or exclusive negotiations with the next most qualified firm(s). 

 
20. VENDOR APPLICATION: Prior to the award of a Contract, the successful offeror shall register with the City’s Department of 

Procurement. Registration can be completed at http://www.tucsonprocurement.com/ by clicking on Vendor Services.  Please 
note that email notifications of newly published solicitations and amendments will be provided to those vendors that select 
email as their preferred delivery method in their vendor record. 

 
21. CITY OF TUCSON BUSINESS LICENSE:  It is the responsibility of the Contractor to have a City of Tucson Business 

License throughout the life of this contract or a written determination from the City's Business License Section that a license 
is not required.   At any time during the contract, the City may request the Contractor to provide a valid copy of the business 
license or a written determination that a business license is not required.  Application for a City Business License can be 
completed at http://www.tucsonaz.gov/etax.  For questions contact the City's Business License Section at (520) 791-4566 or 
email at tax-license@tucsonaz.gov. 

 
22. UPON NOTICE OF INTENT TO AWARD: The apparent successful offeror shall sign and file with the City, within five (5) 

days after Notice of Intent to Award, all documents necessary to the successful execution of the Contract. 
 
23. AWARD OF CONTRACT: Notwithstanding any other provision of the Request for Proposal, the City reserves the right to: 
 (1) waive any immaterial defect or informality; or 
 (2) reject any or all proposals, or portions thereof; or 
 (3) reissue the Request for Proposal. 
 
 A response to this Request for Proposal is an offer to contract with the City based upon the terms, conditions and Scope of 

Work contained in the City's Request for Proposal. Proposals do not become contracts unless and until they are executed 
by the City's Director of Procurement and the City Attorney. A contract has its inception in the award, eliminating a formal 
signing of a separate contract. All of the terms and conditions of the contract are contained in the Request for Proposal, 
unless any of the terms and conditions are modified by a Request for Proposal amendment, a Contract Amendment, or by 
mutually agreed terms and conditions in the Contract documents. 

 
24. PROPOSAL RESULTS: The name(s) of the successful offeror(s) will be posted on the Procurement Department’s Internet 

site at http://www.tucsonprocurement.com/ upon issuance of a Notice of Intent to Award or upon final contract execution. 
 
25. PROTESTS: A protest shall be in writing and shall be filed with the Director of Procurement. A protest of a Request for 

Proposal shall be received at the Department of Procurement not less than five (5) working days before the Request for 
Proposal due date. A protest of a proposed award or of an award shall be filed within ten (10) days after issuance of 
notification of award or issuance of a notice of intent to award, as applicable. A protest shall include: 

A.    The name, address, and telephone number of the protestant; 
B.    The signature of the protestant or its representative; 
C.    Identification of the Request for Proposal or Contract number; 
D.    A detailed statement of the legal and factual grounds of protest including copies of relevant documents; and 
E.    The form of relief requested. 

http://www.tucsonprocurement.com/
http://www.tucsonprocurement.com/


CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 10 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 
 

PROPOSAL EVALUATION REQUIREMENTS 
 

 
I. PROPOSAL EVALUATION CRITERIA – (listed in relative order of importance) 
  

A. Method of Approach 
B. Price Proposal 
C. Qualifications & Experience 
 

II. REQUIREMENTS SPECIFIC TO EVALUATION CRITERIA: The narrative portion and the materials 
presented in response to this Request for Proposal should be submitted in the same order as requested 
and must contain, at a minimum, the following: 

 
A. Method of Approach 

 
1. National Program 

a. Provide a response to the national program include a detailed response to 
Attachment A, Exhibit A, National IPA Response for National Cooperative Contract 
and provide any proposed exceptions to Attachment A, Exhibit B, National IPA 
Administration Agreement, example. 
 

2. Distribution Network 
a.  Describe how your firm proposes to distribute the equipment, accessories, 

parts, repair and services nationwide.  Describe any parts the distribution 
network will have “on-hand” and those that must be ordered. 

b. Identify all other companies/distributors/dealers that will be involved in 
processing, handling or shipping the products/services to Participating Public 
Agencies. 

c. Provide the number, size and location of your firm’s manufacturing, distribution 
facilities, warehouses, service facilities and dealer networks as applicable. State 
the estimated dollar value of your inventory. Include a map showing heavy 
equipment distribution network coverage nationwide.   

d. Describe your dealer network and their role in providing products, services, etc. 
under this contract. 

 
3. Product  

 a. Provide a detailed written response illustrating how the equipment, accessories, 
parts, supplies and related services offered will meet the requirements of this 
solicitation.  Offerors shall identify and describe their heavy equipment 
categories. For each proposed category, describe in detail and provide at a 
minimum the following types of information:  

  1. Identification and description of equipment categories offered.  

  2. Identification and description of sub categories. 

3.  Identify accessories, parts, services, etc. that are available through the 
manufacturer. 

4. Identify accessories, parts, services, etc. that are available through the 
authorized dealer. 

5. Provide descriptions, catalog(s) or website links for accessories, parts 
and supplies offered. 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 11 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 
 

 b. Describe your warranty program, including 

1. Types of warranties available (by category or equipment) 
2. Describe your warranty claims procedures. 
3. Describe your policy addressing warranty issues related to  

a. Major Component Failures 
b. Engineering Deficiencies 
c. Describe your firm’s standard response time to address warranty 

failure issues. 
c. Is there a dedicated support representative that the City should contact?  If yes, 

provide their name and complete contact information. 
d. Provide information which details the costs, types, and extents of available 

extended warranty coverage for heavy equipment. 
e. Describe how your firm is anticipating and ensuring compliance with the 

Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) emission changes. 

 f. Submit all information that will aid the City in evaluating your proposal.  

 
4. Services 

 a. Provide a detailed written response illustrating how your firm or the authorized 
dealers will provide services to meet the requirements of this solicitation. Offerors 
shall provide the proposed services that will meet the Service Requirements 
section of the Scope Work outlined in this solicitation.  For each proposed 
category, describe and/or provide details explaining your capabilities. In your 
response include information such as:  

b. Provide detailed information explaining your service capabilities. 
c. Provided detailed information explaining the service capabilities of your authorized 
 dealers. 
d. Describe the maintenance programs offered.  If a maintenance program is selected 

by the City, will your firm provide a loaner or rental machine if the machine is down 
for more than 24 hours? 

e. Describe your training programs.  The proposed training program shall include but 
 not limited to: 

1. How will equipment training be conducted? 
2. Describe the training curriculum for the equipment operators. 
3. Describe the training curriculum for the service technicians. 
4. How will you accommodate various work shifts? 
5. What type of documentation is provided with the proposed training? 
6. Is a “train the trainer” program available?  Is this training different than the 

regular initial training?  Can training sessions be recorded for future use 
by the agency? 

 
f. Submit any other services information that will aid the City in evaluating your 
 proposal. 

 
  5. Ordering and Invoices  

a. Describe your order process.   

b. How do agencies work with your firm to determine appropriate equipment needs? 

c. Describe the equipment delivery process and your delivery commitment. 

d. What is your standard equipment delivery timeframes? 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 12 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 
 

e. How does your firm communicate order cut off dates to your customers? 

f. Identify and describe any exceptions or challenges. 

g. Provide details of the capabilities of your E Commerce website including ability to 
display contract pricing, on-line ordering, order tracking, search options, order 
history, technical assistance, lists, technical data and documentation, 
identification of alternate green products, etc. 

h. Describe your invoicing process.  Is electronic invoicing available? Is summary 
invoicing available?  Are there other options on how an agency receives an 
invoice? Submit sample invoices. 

i. Describe how problems – such as a customer ordering a wrong product; a 
customer receiving a defective or wrong product; etc. – are resolved. 

j. Describe how your firm measures performance including identification, 
calculation, tracking and reporting of measurements. 

 
  6. Other 

  a. Describe any government rebate programs applicable.  
 
B. Price Proposal 

 
1. Provide a Price Proposal.  Submit the Price Proposal as a separate and clearly identified 

document.  The Price Proposal shall minimally include the following:  Offerors shall 
submit pricing based on the Equipment, Product Requirements and Service 
Requirement categories identified on the Scope of Services. Pricing should be based 
upon a verifiable pricing structure, such as a fixed percent discount from an index or 
indices or established price list, etc.  Where applicable, Offerors shall provide pricing for 
all product and services offered.  Describe how pricing is determined for a base model 
equipment purchase and how pricing is determined for options, accessories and 
services.  Identify the price list being used and include an electronic copy (or website 
link) so that net prices can be determined.   

 
The price proposal should include pricing for equipment, accessories and options, parts, 
service and any additional value-add goods or services available such as financing, 
rental and used equipment for purchase from the vendor.  Vendors must indicate if 
discounts are based on manufacturer price lists or dealer price lists. 

 
2. The City’s expectation is that the proposed pricing will not include freight.  Based on your 

distribution network, explain how freight is calculated.   
 
3. The discount structure provided by the supplier is intended to remain constant 

throughout the term of the Contact.  Discuss how often price lists are updated and 
provide a listing of price list changes that have taken place over the last 3 years.  
Discuss any known future price list changes or industry changes that will effect pricing 
over the next 5 years.  

 
4. State if pricing is most favorable offered to government agencies. Describe how your 

firm will ensure this contract will continually offer the best pricing available to 
Participating Public Agencies. 

 
5. Provide details of and propose additional discounts for volume orders, special 

manufacturer’s offers, minimum order quantity, free goods program, total annual spend, 
etc. 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 13 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 
 

 
6. Provide information on any ordering methods – such as electronic ordering or payment 

via pCard or EFT – or other criteria which entitle the using agency to additional discounts 
off of a manufacturer’s price list.  If so, please provide the percentage discount. 

 
7. As stated in the Instructions to Offerors, 7. Discounts, the price(s) herein can be 

discounted by _______%, if payment is made within ______ days.  

8 Indicate if payment will be accepted via credit card. ______Yes  ______No 

a. If yes, can commercial payment(s) be made online? _____Yes  _____No 

b. Will a third party be processing the commercial credit card payment(s)? 
   _____Yes  _____No 

c. If yes, indicate the flat fee per transaction $___________ (as allowable, per Section 
5.2.E of Visa Operating Regulations). 

If “no” to above, will consideration be given to accept the card? ____Yes _____No 
 

9. Does your firm have a City of Tucson Business License? _____Yes  _____No 
 If yes, please provide a copy of your City of Tucson Business license.  
 

C. Qualifications and Experience 
 

1. Provide a brief history and description of your company. Describe your market position in 
the local government, educational and medical market spaces.  

 
2. Describe your dealer network and their role in providing products and services under this 

contract. 
 
3. Provide a listing of key personnel who may be assigned to the City’s contract.  Include 

their title within your organization and the description of the type of work they may 
perform.  Please identify an executive corporate sponsor who will be responsible for the 
overall management of the awarded Master Agreement. 

 
4. Summarize your experience in providing equipment, products and services similar to that 

outlined in the Scope of Work.  Provide a minimum of three references for which you have 
provided similar products and services.  References from other public agencies, 
particularly municipal governments, are preferred. Please include company name, 
address, phone, email, and contact person. 

 
5. Please submit any additional information that you feel is applicable to your qualifications 

and experience.   
 
6. Provide the qualifications of technicians that will be servicing equipment throughout the 

nation. 
 
7. Describe your quality control program including but not limited to:  what is your quality 

control procedures, who performs the quality control inspection? What are the 
qualifications of the inspectors?  What items are inspected / tested? Etc. 

 
 

III. GENERAL 
 

A. Shortlist: 
   



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 14 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 
 

The City reserves the right to shortlist the offerors on Method of Approach, Price Proposal and 
Qualifications & Experience of the stated criteria. For the initial scoring, pricing will be evaluated 
subjectively by the evaluation committee.  However, for final award, the City will request specific 
pricing for equipment based upon the City’s specifications.  However, the City may determine that 
shortlisting is not necessary.  
 

B. Interviews/Demonstrations: 
 
 The City reserves the right to conduct interviews and/or product demonstrations with some or all of 

the offerors at any point during the evaluation process. However, the City may determine that 
interviews and/or demonstrations are not necessary. In the event these are conducted, information 
provided during the interview and/or demonstration process shall be taken into consideration when 
evaluating the stated criteria. The City shall not reimburse the offeror for the costs associated with 
the interview and/or demonstration process. 

  
 C. Additional Investigations: 

  
 The City reserves the right to make such additional investigations as it deems necessary to establish 

the competence and financial stability of any offeror submitting a proposal. 
 

D. Prior Experience: 
  
 Experiences with the City and entities that evaluation committee members represent may be taken into 

consideration when evaluating offers. 
 
E. Multiple Awards: 
 
 To provide adequate contract coverage, at the City’s sole discretion, multiple awards may be made. 
 

 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 15 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 
 

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
1. FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL TAXES, LICENSES AND PERMITS:  The Supplier shall comply with all 

Federal, State, and local licenses and permits required for the operation of the business conducted by the 
Supplier as applicable to this Contract.  The Supplier shall, at no expense to the City, National IPA, or other 
Participating Public Agencies, procure and keep in force during the entire period of the Agreement all such 
permits and licenses. 
 

2. SUBCONTRACTORS:  No subcontract shall be made by the contractor with any other party for furnishing 
any of the services herein contracted for without the advance written approval of the Department of 
Procurement.  All subcontractors shall comply with Federal and State laws and regulations that are 
applicable to the services covered by the subcontractor and shall include all the terms and conditions set 
forth herein which shall apply with equal force to the subcontract, as if the subcontractor were the 
Contractor referred to herein.  Contractor is responsible for contract performance whether or not 
subcontractors are used. 
 

3. FOB DESTINATION FREIGHT PREPAID:  Prices shall be FOB Destination Freight Prepaid to the delivery 
location designated. Contractor shall retain title and control of all goods until they are delivered and the 
Contract of coverage has been completed. All risk of transportation and all related charges shall be the 
responsibility of the Contractor. All claims for visible or concealed damage shall be filed by the Contractor. 
The City will assist the Contractor in arranging for inspection. 
 

4. INSURANCE:  The Contractor agrees to: 
 
A. Obtain insurance coverage of the types and amount required in this section and keep such 

insurance coverage in force throughout the life of this Contract. All policies will contain an 
endorsement providing that written notice be given to the City at least ten (10) calendar days prior 
to termination, cancellation, or reduction in coverage in any policy. 

 
B. The Comprehensive General Liability Insurance and Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance 

policies will include the City as an additional insured with respect to liability arising out of the 
performance of this Contract. The Contractor agrees that the insurance hereunder will be primary 
and that any insurance carried by the City will be excess and not contributing. 

 
C. Provide and maintain minimum insurance limits as applicable. 
 Coverage Afforded     Limits of Liability 
 
 Workmen’s Compensation    Statute 
 Employer’s Liability     $100,000 
 
 Comprehensive General    $1,000,000 Bodily Injury 
 Liability Insurance     Combined Single Limit 
 Including:      $100,000 Property Damage 
 (1) Products & Completed 
 Operations 
 (2) Blanket Contractual 
 
 Comprehensive Automobile    $1,000,000 Bodily Injury Liability Insurance 
        Combined Single Limit 
 Including:      $100,000 Property Damage 
 (1) Non-Owned 
 (2) Leased 
 (3) Hired Vehicles 
 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 16 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 
 

 Contractor will present to the City written evidence (Certifications of Insurance) of compliance with 
Items A., B and C. above.  Said evidence shall be to the City Procurement Director’s satisfaction. 

 
5. PAYMENTS:  All payments made by the City of Tucson for goods or services will be made to the vendor 

named on the Offer and Acceptance form. If you do not wish payment to be made to that address, you 
must submit an attached sheet indicating the proper mailing address with this bid. 
 

6. RIGHT TO TERMINATE FOR CHANGE IN OWNERSHIP OR MATERIAL RESTRUCTURE OF THE 
CONTRACTOR:  In addition to the Termination of Contract clause in the Standard Terms and Conditions 
section of this solicitation and resulting contract, the City reserves the right to cancel the whole or part of 
this contract within 60 days written notice of the completion of any material change of ownership in the 
Contractor’s company, including its sale, merger, consolidation or dissolution. 
 

7. TERM AND RENEWAL:  The term of the Contract shall commence upon award and shall remain in effect 
for a period of one (1) year, unless terminated, canceled or extended as otherwise provided herein.  The 
Contractor agrees that the City of Tucson shall have the right, at its sole option, to renew the Contract for 
four (4) additional one-year periods or portions thereof.  In the event that the City exercises such rights, all 
terms, conditions and provisions of the original Contract shall remain the same and apply during the 
renewal period with the possible exception of price and minor scope additions and/or deletions. 
 

8. PRICE ADJUSTMENT: The City will review fully documented requests for price adjustment after any 
Contract has been in effect for one (1) year.  Any price adjustment will only be made at the time of 
Contract renewal and/or extension and will be a factor in the extension review process.  The City will 
determine whether the requested price adjustment or an alternate option, is in the best interest of the 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 17 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 
 

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

1. ADVERTISING: Contractor shall not advertise or publish information concerning this Contract without prior written consent 
of the City’s Director of Procurement. 

 
2. AFFIRMATIVE ACTION: Contractor shall abide by the provisions of the Tucson Procurement Code Chapter 28, Article XII.  
 
3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: The Contractor shall comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with 

Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101, et seq.) and applicable Federal regulations under the Act. 
 
4. APPLICABLE LAW: This Contract shall be governed, and the City and Contractor shall have all remedies afforded to each, 

by the Tucson Procurement Code and the law of the State of Arizona. State law claims shall be brought only in Pima County 
Superior Court.  

 
5. ASSIGNMENT-DELEGATION: No right or interest in this Contract shall be assigned by the Contractor without prior written 

permission of the City, and no delegation of any duty of the Contractor shall be made without prior written permission of the 
City's Director of Procurement. The City shall not unreasonably withhold approval and shall notify the Contractor of the City's 
position by written notice. 

 
6. CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH A.R.S. SEC. 35-393 ET SEQ.:  By signing this contract, the Contractor certifies 

that it does not have scrutinized business operations in Iran as required by A.R.S. sec. 35-393 et seq.  If the City determines 
that the Contractor has submitted a false certification, the City may impose remedies as provided in the Tucson 
Procurement Code up to and including termination of this contract. 

 
7. CHILD/SWEAT-FREE LABOR POLICY: The Contractor shall comply with all applicable provisions of the United States 

Federal and State Child Labor and Worker's Right laws and agrees if called upon to affirm in writing, that they, and any 
subcontractor involved in the provision of goods to the City, are in compliance. 

 
8. CLEAN UP: The Contractor shall at all times keep the contract area, including storage areas used by the Contractor, free 

from accumulation of waste material or rubbish and, prior to completion of the work, remove any rubbish from the premises 
and all tools, scaffolding, equipment and materials not property of the City. Upon completion of the repair, the Contractor 
shall leave the work and premises in clean, neat and workmanlike condition. 

 
9. COMMENCEMENT OF WORK: The Contractor is cautioned not to commence any billable work or provide any material or 

service under this Contract until Contractor receives purchase order or is otherwise directed to do so, in writing, by the City. 
 
10. CONFIDENTIALITY OF RECORDS: The Contractor shall establish and maintain procedures and controls that are 

acceptable to the City for the purpose of assuring that no information contained in its records or obtained from the City or 
from others in carrying out its functions under the Contract shall be used by or disclosed by it, its agents, officers, or 
employees, except as required to efficiently perform duties under the Contract. Persons requesting such information should 
be referred to the City. Information pertaining to individual persons shall not be divulged other than to employees or officers 
of Contractor as needed for the performance of duties under the Contract, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the City. 

 
11. CONTRACT AMENDMENTS: The Procurement Department has the sole authority to: 
 

A. Amend the contract or enter into supplemental verbal or written agreements; 
B. Grant time extensions or contract renewals; 
C. Otherwise modify the scope or terms and provisions of the contract. 

 
This Contract shall only be modified with the approval of the Department of Procurement. Except in the case of a 
documented emergency, approval must be granted prior to performance.  Any contract modification not explicitly approved 
by the Procurement Department through a written contract amendment or change order is performed at the sole risk of the 
Contractor and may not be eligible for payment by the City. 

 
12. CONTRACT: The Contract shall be based upon the Request for Proposal issued by the City and the Offer submitted by the 

Contractor in response to the Request for Proposal. The offer shall substantially conform to the terms, conditions, 
specifications and other requirements set forth within the text of the Request for Proposal. The City reserves the right to 
clarify any contractual terms with the concurrence of the Contractor; however, any substantial non-conformity in the offer, as 
determined by the City's Director of Procurement, shall be deemed non-responsive and the offer rejected. The Contract 
shall contain the entire agreement between the City of Tucson and the Contractor relating to this requirement and shall 
prevail over any and all previous agreements, contracts, proposals, negotiations, purchase orders, or master agreements in 
any form. 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 18 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 
 
 
13. DEFAULT IN ONE INSTALLMENT TO CONSTITUTE TOTAL BREACH: Contractor shall deliver conforming materials in 

each installment or lot of this Contract and may not substitute nonconforming materials. Delivery of nonconforming 
materials, or default of any nature, may constitute breach of the Contract. Noncompliance may be deemed a cause for 
possible Contract termination. 

 
14. DUPLEXED/RECYCLED PAPER: In accordance with efficient resource procurement and utilization policies adopted by the 

City of Tucson, the Contractor shall ensure that, whenever practicable, all printed materials produced by the Contractor in 
the performance of this Contract are duplexed (two-sided copies), printed on recycled paper and labeled as such. 

  
15. EXCLUSIVE POSSESSION: All services, information, computer program elements, reports and other deliverables created 

under this Contract are the sole property of the City of Tucson and shall not be used or released by the Contractor or any 
other person except with prior written permission by the City. 

 
16. FEDERAL IMMIGRATION LAWS AND REGULATIONS:  Contractor warrants that it complies with all Federal Immigration 

laws and regulations that relate to its employees and complies with A.R.S. § 23-214(A) and that it requires the same 
compliance of all subcontractors under this Contract. Contractor acknowledges that pursuant to A.R.S. § 41-4401 and 
effective September 30, 2008, a breach of this warranty is a material breach of this Contract subject to penalties up to and 
including termination of this Contract. The City retains the legal right to audit the records of the Contractor and inspect the 
papers of any employee who works for the Contractor to ensure compliance with this warranty and the Contractor shall 
assist in any such audit.  The Contractor shall include the requirements of this paragraph in each contract with 
subcontractors under this Contract. 

 
If the Contractor or subcontractor warrants that it has complied with the employment verification provisions prescribed by 
sections 274(a) and 274(b) of the Federal Immigration and Nationality Act and the E-verify requirements prescribed by 
A.R.S. § 23-214(A), the Contractor or subcontractor shall be deemed to be in compliance with this provision.  The City may 
request proof of such compliance at any time during the term of this Contract by the Contractor and any subcontractor. 

 
17. FORCE MAJEURE: Except for payment of sums due, neither party shall be liable to the other nor deemed in default under 

this Contract if and to the extent that such party's performance of this Contract is prevented by reason of Force Majeure. 
The term "Force Majeure" means an occurrence that is beyond the control of the party affected and occurs without its fault 
or negligence. Force Majeure shall not include late performance by a subcontractor unless the delay arises out of a Force 
Majeure occurrence in accordance with this Force Majeure term and condition. 

 
 If either party is delayed at any time in the progress of the work by Force Majeure, the delayed party shall notify the other 

party in writing of such delay, as soon as is practical, of the commencement thereof and shall specify the causes of such 
delay in such notice. Such notice shall be hand-delivered or mailed certified-return receipt and shall make a specific 
reference to this article, thereby invoking its provisions. The delayed party shall cause such delay to cease as soon as 
practicable and shall notify the other party in writing when it has done so. The time of completion shall be extended by 
contract modification for a period of time equal to the time that results or effects of such delay prevent the delayed party 
from performing in accordance with this Contract. 

 
18. GRATUITIES: The City may, by written notice to the Contractor, terminate this Contract if it is found that gratuities, in the 

form of entertainment, gifts, meals or otherwise, were offered or given by the Contractor or any agent or representative of 
the Contractor, to any officer or employee of the City amending, or the making of any determinations with respect to the 
performing of such Contract. In the event this Contract is terminated by the City pursuant to this provision, the City shall be 
entitled, in addition to any other rights and remedies, to recover or withhold from the Contractor the amount of the gratuity. 

 
19. HUMAN RELATIONS: Contractor shall abide by the provisions of the Tucson City Code Chapter 28, Article XII. 
 
20. INDEMNIFICATION: To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor, its successors, assigns and guarantors, shall pay, 

defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City of Tucson, its agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials and 
employees from and against all allegations, demands, proceedings, suits, actions, claims, including claims of patent or 
copyright infringement, damages, losses, expenses, including but not limited to, attorney fees, court costs, and the cost of 
appellate proceedings, and all claim adjusting and handling expense, related to, arising from or out of or resulting from any 
actions, acts, errors, mistakes or omissions caused in whole or part by Contractor relating to work, services and/or products 
provided in the performance of this Contract, including but not limited to, any Subcontractor or anyone directly or indirectly 
employed by any of them or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable and any injury or damages claimed by any of 
Contractor’s and Subcontractor’s employees. 

 
21. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: It is understood that each party shall act in its individual capacity and not as an agent, 

employee, partner, joint venturer, or associate of the other. An employee or agent of one party shall not be deemed or 
construed to be the employee or agent of the other party for any purpose. 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 19 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 
 
 
 The Contractor shall not be entitled to compensation in the form of salaries, paid vacation or sick days by the City.  
 
 The City of Tucson will not provide any insurance coverage to the Contractor, including Worker's Compensation coverage. 

The Contractor is advised that taxes, social security payments, and other withholdings shall not be withheld from a City 
payment issued under this Contract and that Contractor should make arrangements to directly pay such expenses. 

 
22. INSPECTION AND ACCEPTANCE: All material or service is subject to final inspection and acceptance by the City. Material 

or service failing to conform to the specifications of this Contract shall be held at the Contractor's risk and may be returned 
to the Contractor. If returned, all costs are the responsibility of the Contractor. Noncompliance may be deemed a cause for 
possible Contract termination.  

 
23. INTERPRETATION-PAROLE EVIDENCE: This Contract is intended by the parties to be a final expression of their 

agreement and is intended also as a complete and exclusive statement of the terms of this agreement. No course of prior 
dealings between the parties and no usage of the trade shall be relevant to supplement or explain any term used in the 
Contract. Acceptance or consent in the course of performance under this Contract shall not be relevant to determine the 
meaning of this Contract even though the accepting or consenting party has knowledge of the nature of the performance 
and the opportunity to object. 

 
24. LICENSES: Contractor shall maintain in current status all Federal, State, and local licenses and permits required for the 

operation of the business conducted by the Contractor as applicable to this Contract. 
 
25. LIENS: All materials, services, and other deliverables supplied to the City under this Contract shall be free of all liens other 

than the security interest. Security interest shall extinguish upon full payment made by the City. Upon the City’s request, the 
Contractor shall provide a formal release of all liens. 

 
26. NO REPLACEMENT OF DEFECTIVE TENDER: Every tender of materials must fully comply with all provisions of this 

Contract. If a tender is made which does not fully comply, this shall conform to the termination clause set forth within this 
document. 

 
27. NON-EXCLUSIVE CONTRACT: Any contract resulting from this solicitation shall be awarded with the understanding and 

agreement that it is for the sole convenience of the City of Tucson. The City reserves the right to obtain like goods or 
services from another source when necessary. 

 
28. OVERCHARGES BY ANTITRUST VIOLATIONS: The City maintains that, in actual practice, overcharges resulting from 

antitrust violations are borne by the purchaser. Therefore, to the extent permitted by law, the Contractor hereby assigns to 
the City any and all claims for such overcharges as to the materials or services used to fulfill the Contract. 

 
29. PAYMENT: The City’s preferred method of payment is via credit card.  The City will issue a Purchase Order and, in some 

cases, either provide a credit card for payment at the time of ordering or pay subsequent invoices by credit card upon 
receipt of goods or services in good order.  However, not all City employees will possess a credit card and, therefore, the 
City reserves the right to make payment by check as it deems necessary. 

  
Unless payment is made by credit card at time of order or point of sale, a separate invoice shall be issued for each shipment 
of material or service performed, and no payment shall be issued prior to receipt of material or service and correct invoice. 

  
The City shall make every effort to process payment for the purchase of materials or services within twenty-one (21) 
calendar days after receipt of materials or services and a correct invoice. 

 
30. PROTECTION OF GOVERNMENT PROPERTY: The Contractor shall use reasonable care to avoid damaging existing 

buildings, equipment, and vegetation (such as trees, shrubs, and grass) on City property. If the Contractor fails to do so and 
damages such property, the Contractor shall replace or repair the damage at no expense to the City, as determined and 
approved by the City’s Director of Procurement. If the Contractor fails or refuses to make such repair or replacement, the 
City will determine a cost and the Contractor shall be liable for the cost thereof, which may be deducted from the Contract 
price. 

 
31. PROVISIONS REQUIRED BY LAW: Each and every provision of law and any clause required by law to be in the Contract 

shall be read and enforced as though it were included herein, and if through mistake or otherwise any such provision is not 
inserted, or is not correctly inserted, then upon the application of either party the Contract shall be amended to make such 
insertion or correction. 

 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 20 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 
 
32. RECORDS: Internal control over all financial transactions related to this Contract shall be in accordance with sound fiscal 

policies. The City may, at reasonable times and places, audit the books and records of the Contractor and/or any 
subcontractors. Said audit shall be limited to this Contract. 

 
33. RIGHT TO ASSURANCE: Whenever one party to this Contract has reason to question, in good faith, the other party's intent 

to perform, the former party may demand that the other party give a written assurance of this intent to perform. In the event 
that a demand is made and no written assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding party may treat this failure as 
the other party’s intent not to perform and as a cause for possible Contract termination. 

 
34. RIGHT TO INSPECT: The City may, at reasonable times, and at the City's expense, inspect the place of business of a 

Contractor or subcontractor which is related to the performance of any Contract as awarded or to be awarded. 
 
35. RIGHTS AND REMEDIES: No provision in this document or in the Contractor's proposal shall be construed, expressly or by 

implication, as a waiver by either party of any existing or future right and/or remedy available by law in the event of any 
claim, default or breach of contract. The failure of either party to insist upon the strict performance of any term or condition 
of the Contract, to exercise or delay the exercise of any right or remedy provided in the Contract or by law, or to accept 
materials or services required by this Contract or by law shall not be deemed a waiver of any right of either party to insist 
upon the strict performance of the Contract. 

 
36. SEVERABILITY: The provisions of this Contract are severable to the extent that any provision or application held to be 

invalid shall not affect any other provision or application of the Contract which may remain in effect without the valid 
provision or application. 

 
37. SHIPMENT UNDER RESERVATION PROHIBITED: No tender of a bill of lading shall operate as a tender of the materials. 

Non-compliance shall conform to the termination clause set forth within this document.  
 
38. SUBCONTRACTS: No subcontract shall be entered into by the Contractor with any other party to furnish any of the 

material/service specified herein without the advance written approval of the City's Director of Procurement. All subcontracts 
shall comply with Federal and State laws and regulations which are applicable to the services covered by the subcontract 
and shall include all the terms and conditions set forth herein which shall apply with equal force to the subcontract, as if the 
subcontractor were the Contractor referred to herein. The Contractor is responsible for contract performance whether or not 
subcontractors are used.  

 
39. SUBSEQUENT EMPLOYMENT: The City may terminate this Contract without penalty or further obligation pursuant to 

A.R.S. Section 38-511 if any person significantly involved in initiating, negotiating, securing, drafting, or creating the 
Contract, on behalf of the City, is or becomes, at any time while the Contract or any extension of the Contract is in effect, an 
employee of, or a contractor to, any other party to this Contract with respect to the subject matter of the Contract. 
Termination shall be effective when written notice from the City's Director of Procurement is received by the parties to this 
Contract, unless the notice specifies a later time. 

 
40. TERMINATION OF CONTRACT: This Contract may be terminated at any time by mutual written consent, or by the City, 

with or without cause, upon giving thirty (30) days written notice. The City, at its convenience, by written notice, may 
terminate this Contract, in whole or in part. If this Contract is terminated, the City shall be liable only for payment under the 
payment provisions of this Contract for services rendered and accepted material received by the City before the effective 
date of termination. 

 
 The City reserves the right to terminate the whole or any part of this Contract due to the failure of the Contractor to carry out 

any term or condition of the Contract. The City will issue a written ten (10) day notice of default to the Contractor for acting 
or failing to act as specified in any of the following: 

 
 In the opinion of the City, the Contractor provides personnel that do not meet the requirements of the Contract; 
 
 In the opinion of the City, the Contractor fails to perform adequately the stipulations, conditions or services/specifications 

required in this Contract; 
 
 In the opinion of the City, the Contractor attempts to impose personnel, materials, products or workmanship of an 

unacceptable quality; 
 
 The Contractor fails to furnish the required service and/or product within the time stipulated in the Contract; 
 
 In the opinion of the City, the Contractor fails to make progress in the performance of the requirements of the Contract; 
 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 21 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 
 
 The Contractor gives the City a positive indication that the Contractor will not or cannot perform to the requirements of the 

Contract. 
 
 Each payment obligation of the City created by this Contract is conditioned upon the availability of City, State and Federal 

funds that are appropriated or allocated for the payment of such an obligation. If funds are not allocated by the City and 
available for the continued purchase of the services and/or materials provided under this Contract, this Contract may be 
terminated by the City at the end of the period for which funds are available. The City will endeavor to notify the Contractor 
in the event that continued service will or may be affected by non-appropriation. No penalty shall accrue to the City in the 
event this provision is exercised, and the City shall not be obligated or liable for any future payments due or for any 
damages as a result of termination under this paragraph. 

  
41. TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS: The title and risk of loss of material or service shall not pass to the City until the City actually 

receives the material or service at the point of delivery, unless otherwise provided within this Contract. 
  
42. WARRANTIES: Contractor warrants that all material or service delivered under this Contract shall conform to the 

specifications of this Contract. Mere receipt of shipment of the material or service specified and any inspection incidental 
thereto by the City shall not alter or affect the obligations of the Contractor or the rights of the City under the foregoing 
warranties. Additional warranty requirements may be set forth in this document. 

 



CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701 PAGE 22 OF 22 
 CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 PH: (520) 837-4140 / FAX: (520) 791-4735 
 

OFFER AND ACCEPTANCE  
 

OFFER
 
TO THE CITY OF TUCSON: 
The Undersigned hereby offers and shall furnish the material or service in compliance with all terms, scope of work, conditions, 
specifications, and amendments in the Request for Proposal which is incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein. 
 
 
         For clarification of this offer, contact: 
 
 
        Name:       
Company Name 
 
        Title:        
Address 
 
        Phone:        
City    State  Zip 
 
        Fax:       
Signature of Person Authorized to Sign 
 
        E-mail:  _________________________________ 
Printed Name 
 
        
Title 
 
 
 
 

ACCEPTANCE OF OFFER 
 

The Offer is hereby accepted. The Contractor is now bound to sell the materials or services specified in the Contract. This Contract 
shall be referred to as Contract No.                              .  
 
 
 
         CITY OF TUCSON, a municipal corporation 
 
Approved as to form this _____ day of                    , 2011.  Awarded this             day of                     , 2011. 
 
 
 
               
As Tucson City Attorney and not personally   Mark A. Neihart, C.P.M., CPPB, A.P.P., CPM 
        As Director of Procurement and not personally 
 
 



ATTACHMENT A 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Requirements for National Cooperative Contract 
To be Administered by  

National Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance Company 

 
The following documents are used in evaluating and administering national cooperative contracts and 
are included for Supplier’s review and response. 

 
National IPA Exhibit A – NATIONAL IPA RESPONSE FOR NATIONAL COOPERATIVE 

CONTRACT  
 
National IPA Exhibit B – NATIONAL IPA ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT, EXAMPLE 
 
National IPA Exhibit C – NATIONAL IPA MASTER INTERGOVERNMENTAL 

COOPERATIVE PURCHASING AGREEMENT, EXAMPLE 
 
National IPA Exhibit D – NATIONAL IPA PRINCIPAL PROCUREMENT AGENCY 

CERTIFICATE, EXAMPLE 
 
National IPA Exhibit E – NATIONAL IPA CONTRACT SALES REPORTING TEMPLATE 
 
National IPA Exhibit F – NATIONAL IPA ADVERTISING COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENT 

 



Requirements for National Cooperative Contract 
Page 24 of 44 

NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 
EXHIBIT A- RESPONSE FOR NATIONAL COOPERATIVE CONTRACT 

 
 

1.0 Scope of National Cooperative Contract 
1.1 Requirement 

The City of Tucson (hereinafter defined and referred to as “Principal Procurement Agency”), on 
behalf of itself and the National Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance Company (“National IPA”), 
is requesting proposals for PRODUCT. The intent of this Request for Proposal is that any contract 
between Principal Procurement Agency and Supplier resulting from this Request for Proposal 
(hereinafter defined and referred to as the “Master Agreement”) be made available to other public 
agencies nationally, including state and local governmental entities, public and private primary, 
secondary and higher education entities, non-profit entities, and agencies for the public benefit 
(“Public Agencies”), through National IPA’s cooperative purchasing program.  The Principal 
Procurement Agency has executed a Principal Procurement Agency Certificate with National IPA (an 
example of which is included as Exhibit D) and has agreed to pursue the Master Agreement.  Use of 
the Master Agreement by any Public Agency, including the Principal Procurement Agency, will be 
preceded by their registration with National IPA as a Participating Public Agency in National IPA’s 
cooperative purchasing program.  Registration with National IPA as a Participating Public Agency is 
accomplished by Public Agencies entering into a Master Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing 
Agreement, an example of which is attached as Exhibit C.  The terms and pricing established in the 
resulting Master Agreement between the Supplier and the Principal Procurement Agency will be the 
same as that available to Participating Public Agencies through National IPA.   

 
All transactions, purchase orders, etc., will occur directly between the Supplier and each Participating 
Public Agency individually, and neither National IPA, any Principal Procurement Agency nor any 
Participating Public Agency, including their respective agents, directors, employees or 
representatives, shall be liable to Supplier for any acts, liabilities, damages, etc. incurred by any other 
Participating Public Agency. 

 
This Exhibit A defines the expectations for qualifying Suppliers based on National IPA’s 
requirements to market the resulting Master Agreement nationally to Public Agencies.  Each section 
in this Exhibit A refers to the capabilities, requirements, obligations, and prohibitions of competing 
Suppliers on a national level in order to serve Participating Public Agencies through National IPA. 

 
These requirements are incorporated into and are considered an integral part of this RFP.  National 
IPA reserves the right to determine whether or not to make the Master Agreement awarded by the 
Principal Procurement Agency available to Participating Public Agencies. 
 

1.2 Marketing and Administrative Support 
During the term of the Master Agreement National IPA intends to provide marketing and 
administrative support for Supplier pursuant to this section 1.2 that directly promotes the Supplier’s 
products and services to Participating Public Agencies through multiple channels, each designed to 
promote specific products and services to Public Agencies on a national basis. 

 
The National IPA marketing team will work in conjunction with Supplier to promote the Master 
Agreement to both existing Participating Public Agencies and prospective Public Agencies through: 
A. Marketing collateral (print, email, presentations) 
B. Website support 
C. Trade shows/conferences/meetings 
D. Advertising 

 
The National IPA sales teams will work in conjunction with Supplier to promote the Master 
Agreement to both existing Participating Public Agencies and prospective Public Agencies through: 
A. Individual sales calls  
B. Joint sales calls 
C. Communications/customer service 
D. Training sessions for Public Agency teams 



NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 
EXHIBIT A- NATIONAL IPA RESPONSE FOR NATIONAL COOPERATIVE CONTRACT 

 
 
E. Training sessions for Supplier teams 

 
The National IPA contracting teams will work in conjunction with Supplier to promote the Master 
Agreement to both existing Participating Public Agencies prospective Public Agencies through: 
A. Serving as the subject matter expert for questions regarding joint powers authority and state 

statutes and regulations for cooperative purchasing 
B. Training sessions for Public Agency teams 
C. Training sessions for Supplier teams 
D. Regular business reviews to monitor program success 
E. General contract administration 

 
Suppliers are required to pay an administrative fee of 2.5% of the greater of the Contract Sales under 
the Master Agreement and guaranteed Contract Sales under this Request for Proposal.  Supplier will 
be required to execute the National IPA Administration Agreement (refer to Exhibit B). 
 

Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings given to them in the Master Agreement 
or in the National Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance Company Administration Agreement between 
Supplier and National IPA (the "National IPA Administration Agreement") 
 
1.3 Estimated Volume 

The dollar volume purchased under the Master Agreement is estimated to be approximately 
$100,000,000 annually.  While no minimum volume is guaranteed to Supplier, the estimated annual 
volume is projected based on the current annual volumes among the Principal Procurement Agency, 
other Participating Public Agencies that are anticipated to utilize the resulting Master Agreement to 
be made available to them through National IPA, and volume growth into other Public Agencies 
through a coordinated marketing approach between Supplier and National IPA.   

 
1.4 Award Basis 

The basis of any contract award resulting from this RFP made by Principal Procurement Agency will 
be the basis of award on a national level through National IPA.  If multiple suppliers are awarded by 
Principal Procurement Agency under the Master Agreement, those same suppliers will be required to 
extend the Master Agreement to Participating Public Agencies through National IPA.  Utilization of 
the Master Agreement by Participating Public Agencies will be at the discretion of the individual 
Participating Public Agency. Certain terms of the Master Agreement specifically applicable to the 
Principal Procurement Agency are subject to modification for each Participating Public Agency as 
Supplier, such Participating Public Agency and National IPA shall agree. 

 
1.5 Objectives of Cooperative Program  

This RFP is intended to achieve the following objectives regarding availability through National 
IPA’s cooperative program:  
A. Provide a comprehensive competitively solicited and awarded national agreement offering the 

Products covered by this solicitation to Participating Public Agencies; 
B. Establish the Master Agreement as the Supplier’s primary go to market strategy to Public 

Agencies nationwide; 
C. Achieve cost savings for Supplier and Public Agencies through a single solicitation process that 

will reduce the Supplier’s need to respond to multiple solicitations; 
D. Combine the aggregate purchasing volumes of Participating Public Agencies to achieve cost 

effective pricing. 
 
2.0 REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS 

As a condition to Supplier entering into the Master Agreement, which would be available to all Public 
Agencies, Supplier must make certain representations, warranties and covenants to both the Principal 
Procurement Agency and National IPA designed to ensure the success of the Master Agreement for all 
Participating Public Agencies as well as the Supplier. 

 
 
 
 



NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 
EXHIBIT A- NATIONAL IPA RESPONSE FOR NATIONAL COOPERATIVE CONTRACT 

 
2.1 Corporate Commitment 

Supplier commits that (1) the Master Agreement has received all necessary corporate authorizations 
and support of the Supplier’s executive management, (2) the Master Agreement is Supplier's primary 
“go to market” strategy for Public Agencies, (3) the Master Agreement will be promoted to all Public 
Agencies, including any existing customers, and Supplier will transition existing customers, upon 
their request, to the Master Agreement, and (4) that the Supplier has read and agrees to the terms and 
conditions of the Administration Agreement with National IPA and will execute such agreement 
concurrent with and as a condition of its execution of the Master Agreement with the Principal 
Procurement Agency. Supplier will identify an executive corporate sponsor and a separate national 
account manager within the RFP response that will be responsible for the overall management of the 
Master Agreement. 
 

2.2 Pricing Commitment 
Supplier commits that the Master Agreement pricing is its lowest available (net to buyer) to Public 
Agencies nationwide and further commits that if a Participating Public Agency is eligible for lower 
pricing through a national, state, regional or local or cooperative contract, that the Supplier will match 
such lower pricing to that Participating Public Agency under the Master Agreement. 
 

2.3 Sales Commitment 
Supplier commits to aggressively market the Master Agreement as its go to market strategy in this 
defined sector and that its sales force will be trained, engaged and committed to offering the Master 
Agreement to Public Agencies through National IPA nationwide. Supplier commits that all Master 
Agreement sales will be accurately and timely reported to National IPA in accordance with the 
National IPA Administration Agreement.  Supplier also commits that its sales force will be 
compensated, including sales incentives, for sales to Public Agencies under the Master Agreement in 
a consistent or better manner compared to sales to Public Agencies if the Supplier were not awarded 
the Master Agreement.  
 

3.0 SUPPLIER QUALIFICATIONS 
Supplier must supply the following information in order for the Principal Procurement Agency to determine 
Supplier’s qualifications to extend the resulting Master Agreement to Participating Public Agencies through 
National IPA.   

 
3.1 Company 

A. Brief history and description of your company.  
B. Total number and location of sales persons employed by your company. 
C. Number and location of support centers (if applicable). 
D. Annual sales for the three previous fiscal years. 
E. Submit your FEIN and Dunn & Bradstreet report. 

 
3.2 Distribution, Logistics 

A. Describe how your company proposes to distribute the products/service nationwide. 
B. Identify all other companies that will be involved in processing, handling or shipping the 

products/service to the end user. 
C. Provide the number, size and location of your company’s distribution facilities, warehouses and 

retail network as applicable. 
D.  State any return and restocking policy and fees, if applicable, associated with returns. 
 

3.3 Marketing and Sales 
A. Provide a detailed ninety-day plan beginning from award date of the Master Agreement 

describing the strategy to immediately implement the Master Agreement as your company’s 
primary go to market strategy for Public Agencies to your teams nationwide, to include, but not 
limited to: 

i. Executive leadership endorsement and sponsorship of the award as the public sector go-
to-market strategy within first 10 days 

ii. Training and education of your national sales force with participation from the executive 
leadership of your company, along with the National IPA team within first 90 days 

 
 



NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 
EXHIBIT A- NATIONAL IPA RESPONSE FOR NATIONAL COOPERATIVE CONTRACT 

 
B. Provide a detailed ninety-day plan beginning from award date of the Master Agreement 

describing the strategy to market the Master Agreement to current Participating Public Agencies, 
existing Pubic Agency customers of Supplier, as well as to prospective Public Agencies 
nationwide immediately upon award, to include, but not limited to: 

i. Creation and distribution of a co-branded press release to trade publications within first 
10 days 

ii. Announcement, contract details and contact information published on the company 
website within first 30 days 

iii. Design, publication and distribution of co-branded marketing materials within first 90 
days 

iv. Commitment to attendance and participation with National IPA at national (i.e. NIGP 
Annual Forum, NPI Conference, etc.), regional (i.e. Regional NIGP Chapter Meetings, 
etc.) and supplier-specific trade shows, conferences and meetings throughout the term of 
the Master Agreement 

v. Commitment to attend, exhibit and participate at the NIGP Annual Forum in an area 
reserved by National IPA for partner suppliers.  Booth space will be purchased and 
staffed by your company.  In addition, you commit to provide reasonable assistance to 
the overall promotion and marketing efforts for the NIGP Annual Forum, as directed by 
National IPA. 

vi. Design and publication of national and regional advertising in trade publications 
throughout the term of the Master Agreement 

vii. Ongoing marketing and promotion of the Master Agreement throughout its term (case 
studies, collateral pieces, presentations, etc.) 

viii. Dedicated National IPA internet web-based homepage with: 
• National IPA standard logo; 
• Copy of original Request for Proposal; 
• Copy of contract and amendments between Principal Procurement Agency and 

Supplier; 
• Summary of Products and pricing; 
• Marketing Materials 
• Electronic link to National IPA’s online registration page; 
• A dedicated toll free number and email address for National IPA 

C. Describe how your company will transition any existing Public Agency customers’ accounts to 
the Master Agreement available nationally through National IPA. Include a list of current 
cooperative contracts (regional and national) your company holds and describe how the Master 
Agreement will be positioned among the other cooperative agreements. 

D. Acknowledge that your company agrees to provide its company/corporate logo(s) to National 
IPA and agrees to provide permission for reproduction of such logo in marketing 
communications and promotions. 

E. Supplier is responsible for proactive direct sales of Supplier’s goods and services to Public 
Agencies nationwide and the timely follow up to leads established by National IPA. All sales 
materials are to use the National IPA logo. At a minimum, the Supplier’s sales initiatives should 
communicate: 

i. Master Agreement was competitively solicited by a Principal Procurement Agency 
ii. Best government pricing 

iii. No cost to participate 
iv. Non-exclusive contract 

F.  Supplier is responsible for the training of its national sales force on the Master Agreement.  At a 
minimum, sales training should include: 

i. Key features of Master Agreement 
ii. Working knowledge of the solicitation process 

iii. Awareness of the range of Public Agencies that can utilize the Master Agreement 
through National IPA 

 
 
 
 
 



NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 
EXHIBIT A- NATIONAL IPA RESPONSE FOR NATIONAL COOPERATIVE CONTRACT 

G. Provide contact information for the person(s), who will be responsible for:  
i. Marketing 

ii. Sales 
iii. Sales Support 
iv. Financial Reporting 
v. Contracts 

H. Describe in detail how your company’s national sales force is structured, including contact 
information for the highest-level executive in charge of the sales team. 

I.  Explain in detail how the sales teams will work with the National IPA team to implement, grow 
and service the national program. 

J.  Explain in detail how your organization will manage the overall national program throughout the 
term of the Master Agreement, including ongoing coordination of marketing and sales efforts, 
timely new Participating Public Agency account set-up, etc. 

K.  State the amount of your company’s Public Agency sales for the previous fiscal year.  Provide a 
list of your top 10 Public Agency customers, the total purchases for each for the previous fiscal 
year along with a key contact for each. 

L. Describe your company’s information systems capabilities and limitations regarding order 
management through receipt of payment, including description of multiple platforms that may be 
used for any of these functions. 

M. Provide the Contract Sales (as defined in Section 10 of the National Intergovernmental 
Purchasing Alliance Company Administration Agreement) that your company will guarantee 
each year under the Master Agreement for the initial three years of the Master Agreement. 

 
$_______.00 in year one 
$_______.00 in year two 
$_______.00 in year three 
 

N. Even though it is anticipated that many Public Agencies will be able to utilize the Master 
Agreement without further formal solicitation, there may be circumstances where Public 
Agencies will issue their own solicitations. The following options are available when responding 
to a solicitation that is for Products covered under the Master Agreement.  

i. Respond with Master Agreement pricing (Contract Sales reported to National IPA). 
ii. If competitive conditions require pricing lower than the standard Master Agreement 

pricing, Supplier may respond with lower pricing through the Master Agreement. If 
Supplier is awarded the contract, the sales are reported as Contract Sales to National 
IPA under the Master Agreement.  

iii. Respond with pricing higher than Master Agreement only in the unlikely event that the 
Public Agency refuses to utilize Master Agreement. 

iv. If alternative or multiple proposals are permitted, respond with pricing higher than 
Master Agreement, and include Master Agreement as the alternate or additional 
proposal. 

 
Detail your strategies under these options when responding to a solicitation. 



NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 
EXHIBIT B-NATIONAL IPA ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT  

 
NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY 

ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT 
 

This ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT is made this ___ day of ______ 20___, between National 
Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance Company (“National IPA”), and ________________ 
(herein “Supplier”). 
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, the _______________________ (herein “Principal Procurement Agency”) has 
entered into a Master Agreement dated _________________, Agreement No_______, by and 
between the Principal Procurement Agency and Supplier, (as may be amended from time to time in 
accordance with the terms thereof, the “Master Agreement”), for the purchase of 
___________________________ (herein “Product”); 
 
 WHEREAS, said Master Agreement provides that any or all public agencies, including 
state and local governmental entities, public and private primary, secondary and higher education 
entities, non-profit entities, and agencies for the public benefit (“Public Agencies”), that register 
with National IPA or otherwise execute a Master Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing 
Agreement (hereinafter referred to as a "Participating Public Agency") may purchase Product at 
prices stated in the Master Agreement; 
 
 WHEREAS, National IPA serves as the contract administrator for Principal Procurement 
Agency with regard to the Master Agreement, which is offered through National IPA to Public 
Agencies; 
 
 WHEREAS, Principal Procurement Agency desires National IPA to proceed with 
administration of the Master Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, National IPA and Supplier desire to enter into this Agreement to make 
available the Master Agreement to Participating Public Agencies on a national basis and to set forth 
certain terms and conditions governing the relationship between National IPA and Supplier. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the payments to be made hereunder and the 
mutual covenants contained in this Agreement, National IPA and Supplier hereby agree as follows: 
 

DEFINITIONS 
 
 1. Capitalized terms used in this Agreement and not otherwise defined herein shall have 
the meanings given to them in the Master Agreement. 
 

Requirements for National Cooperative Contract 
Page 29 of 44 



NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 
EXHIBIT B- NATIONAL IPA ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
 2. The Master Agreement, as attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by 
reference as though fully set forth herein, and the terms and conditions contained therein shall apply 
to this Agreement except as expressly changed or modified by this Agreement.  In the event of any 
conflict between the provisions of this Agreement and the Master Agreement, as between National 
IPA and Supplier the provisions of this Agreement shall prevail.  Supplier acknowledges and agrees 
that the covenants and agreements of Supplier set forth in the solicitation resulting in the Master 
Agreement are incorporated herein and are an integral part hereof. 
 
 3. National IPA shall be afforded all of the rights, privileges and indemnifications 
afforded to Principal Procurement Agency under the Master Agreement, and such rights, privileges 
and indemnifications shall accrue and apply with equal effect to National IPA, its agents, 
employees, directors, and representatives under this Agreement including, but not limited to, the 
Supplier’s obligation to provide appropriate insurance. 
 
 4. National IPA shall perform all of its duties, responsibilities and obligations as 
contract administrator under the Master Agreement as set forth herein, and Supplier hereby 
acknowledges and agrees that National IPA shall act in the capacity of contract administrator under 
the Master Agreement. 
 
 5. With respect to any purchases by Principal Procurement Agency or any Participating 
Public Agency pursuant to the Master Agreement, National IPA: (i) shall not be construed as a 
dealer, re-marketer, representative, partner or agent of any type of the Supplier, Principal 
Procurement Agency or such Participating Public Agency; (ii) shall not be obligated, liable or 
responsible for any order made by Principal Procurement Agency or any Participating Public 
Agency or any employee thereof under the Master Agreement or for any payment required to be 
made with respect to such order; and (iii) shall not be obligated, liable or responsible for any failure 
by Principal Procurement Agency or any Participating Public Agency to comply with procedures or 
requirements of applicable law or the Master Agreement or to obtain the due authorization and 
approval necessary to purchase under the Master Agreement. National IPA makes no representation 
or guaranty with respect to any minimum purchases by Principal Procurement Agency or any 
Participating Public Agency or any employee thereof under this Agreement or the Master 
Agreement. 
 

TERM OF AGREEMENT 
 
 6. This Agreement shall be in effect so long as the Master Agreement remains in effect, 
provided, however, that the provisions of paragraphs 3, 4 and 5 hereof and the indemnifications 
afforded by the Supplier to National IPA herein and in the Master Agreement shall survive the term 
of this Agreement. 
 

NATIONAL PROMOTION 
 
 7. National IPA and Supplier shall publicize and promote the availability of the Master 
Agreement’s products and services to Public Agencies and such agencies’ employees. Supplier’s 
failure to maintain its covenants and commitments contained in this Agreement or any action of the 
Supplier which gives rise to a right by Principal Procurement Agency to terminate the Master 
Agreement shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement and if not cured within thirty (30) 
days of written notice to Supplier shall be deemed a cause for termination of the Master Agreement 



NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 
EXHIBIT B- NATIONAL IPA ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT 

at Principal Procurement Agency’s sole discretion or this Agreement at National IPA’s sole 
discretion. 
 
 8. A copy of the Principal Procurement Agency Certificate executed by Principal 
Procurement Agency and an example of the Master Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing 
Agreement that is agreed to by each Participating Public Agency, which set forth the terms for their 
respective participation with National IPA, are attached hereto as Exhibit B and C, respectively. 
Supplier shall require each Participating Public Agency to register its participation in the National 
IPA program using the electronic registration feature at www.nationalipa.org prior to processing the 
Participating Public Agency’s first sales order.   
 
 9. Upon request, Supplier shall make available to interested Public Agencies a copy of 
the Master Agreement and such price lists or quotes as may be necessary for such Public Agencies 
to evaluate potential purchases. In addition, Supplier shall provide the marketing and administrative 
support set forth in the solicitation resulting in the Master Agreement, including assisting in 
development of marketing materials as reasonably requested by Principal Procurement Agency and 
National IPA. Supplier and National IPA shall provide each respective party with its logo and the 
standard terms of use for their general use in marketing the Master Agreement.  Both parties shall 
obtain approval from the other party prior to use of such logo. 
 

QUARTERLY FEES & MONTHLY REPORTING 
 
 10. Supplier shall pay National IPA an administrative fee in the amount of __% of the 
total purchase price paid to Supplier, less refunds, credits on returns, rebates and discounts, for the 
sale of products and/or services pursuant to the Master Agreement (as amended from time to time 
and including any renewal thereof) ("Contract Sales").  Supplier shall provide National IPA with an 
electronic accounting report, in Microsoft Excel, in the format prescribed by National IPA, on a 
monthly basis summarizing all Contract Sales for such month.  A sample of the Contract Sales 
reporting format is provided as Exhibit D, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  
 
 To the extent Supplier has guaranteed minimum Contract Sales pursuant to the terms of the 
Master Agreement in accordance with the terms of its proposal, the administrative fee shall be 
calculated based on the greater of the Contract Sales and the guaranteed Contract Sales set forth in 
Supplier's proposal. 
 
 11. Supplier shall maintain an accounting of all purchases made by Participating Public 
Agencies under the Master Agreement.  National IPA and Principal Procurement Agency reserve 
the right to audit the accounting for a period of four (4) years from the date National IPA receives 
the accounting. In the event of such an audit, Supplier shall provide all materials reasonably 
requested relating to such audit by Principal Procurement Agency or National IPA at the location 
designated by Principal Procurement Agency or National IPA.  In the event such audit reveals an 
underreporting of Contract Sales and a resulting underpayment of administrative fees, Supplier shall 
promptly pay National IPA the amount of such underpayment, together with interest on such 
amount in accordance with paragraph 12, and shall be obligated to reimburse National IPA's costs 
and expenses for such audit.

 
 12. Reports of Contract Sales for Principal Procurement Agency and Participating Public 
Agencies in each calendar month shall be provided by Supplier to National IPA by the 10th day of 
the following month.  Administrative fee payments are due within thirty (30) days after the end of 
each calendar quarter for Contract Sales during such quarter.  Administrative fee payments shall be 

http://www.nationalipa.org/


NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 
EXHIBIT B- NATIONAL IPA ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT 

accompanied by a report of Contract Sales for the quarter. Failure to provide a monthly report or 
payment of the administrative fees within the time and manner specified shall be regarded as a 
material breach under this Agreement and if not cured within thirty (30) days of written notice to 
Supplier shall be deemed a cause for termination of the Master Agreement at Principal Procurement 
Agency’s sole discretion or this Agreement at National IPA’s sole discretion. All administrative 
fees not paid when due shall bear interest at a rate equal to the lesser of 1 1/2% per month or the 
maximum rate permitted by law until paid in full. 
 
 13. National IPA or its designee may, in National IPA’s sole discretion, compare 
Participating Public Agency records with monthly reports submitted by Supplier. If there is a 
discrepancy, National IPA will notify the Supplier in writing. Supplier will have thirty (30) days 
from the date of such notice to resolve the discrepancy to National IPA’s reasonable satisfaction, 
including paying any administrative fee due and owing. If the Supplier does not so resolve the 
discrepancy, National IPA shall have the right to engage a third party to conduct an independent 
audit of Supplier’s monthly reports and Supplier shall be obligated to reimburse National IPA’s 
costs and expenses for such audit.  Should any audit reveal an underreporting of Contract Sales and 
a resulting underpayment of administrative fees, Supplier shall promptly pay National IPA the 
amount of such underpayment together with interest on such amount in accordance with 
paragraph 12. 
 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
 14. This Agreement, the Master Agreement and the exhibits referenced herein supersede 
any and all other agreements, either oral or in writing, between the parties hereto with respect to the 
subject matter hereto and no other agreement, statement, or promise relating to the subject matter of 
this Agreement which is not contained or incorporated herein shall be valid or binding. 
 
 15. If any action at law or in equity is brought to enforce or interpret the provisions of 
this Agreement or to recover any administrative fee and accrued interest, the prevailing party shall 
be entitled to reasonable attorney’s fees and costs in addition to any other relief to which it may be 
entitled. 
 
 16. This Agreement and National IPA’s rights and obligations hereunder may be 
assigned at National IPA’s sole discretion, to an existing or newly established legal entity that has 
the authority and capacity to perform National IPA’s obligations hereunder.  Supplier may not 
assign its obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of National IPA. 

 
 17. All written communications given hereunder shall be delivered by first-class mail, 
postage prepaid, or overnight delivery on receipt to the addresses as set forth below.  

 
A.  National Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance Company 
 National IPA 

Attn: President 
1600 Westgate Circle 
Suite 275 
Brentwood, TN 37027 

 
B.  Principal Procurement Agency 

 
 



NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 
EXHIBIT B- NATIONAL IPA ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT 

 
C.  Supplier 
 

 
 18. If any provision of this Agreement shall be deemed to be, or shall in fact be, illegal, 
inoperative or unenforceable, the same shall not affect any other provision or provisions herein 
contained or render the same invalid, inoperative or unenforceable to any extent whatever. 
 
 19. This Agreement may not be effectively amended, changed, modified, or altered 
without the prior written consent of the parties hereto. 
 
 20. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon National IPA, 
the Supplier and any successor and assign thereto; subject, however, to the limitations contained 
herein. 

 
 

 
Authorized Signature, Supplier NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL 

PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY            
 
 
    
Signature   Signature  
 
    
Name  Name  
 
    
Title  Title 
 
    
Date  Date 
 
 



NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 
EXHIBIT C- NATIONAL IPA MASTER INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATIVE PURCHASING 

AGREEMENT 
 

MASTER INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATIVE PURCHASING AGREEMENT 
 

This Agreement is made between certain government agencies that execute a Principal Procurement Agency 
Certificate (“Principal Procurement Agencies”) to be appended and made a part hereof and other public agencies 
(“Participating Public Agencies”) that register electronically with National Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance 
Company (“National IPA”) or otherwise execute a Participating Public Agency Certificate to be appended and made a 
part hereof. 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, after a competitive solicitation and selection process by Principal Procurement Agencies, a 
number of Suppliers have entered into Master Agreements to provide a variety of goods, products and services based 
on national volumes (herein “Products”); 

 
WHEREAS, Master Agreements are made available by Principal Procurement Agencies through National 

IPA and provide that Participating Public Agencies may purchase Products on the same terms, conditions and pricing as 
the Principal Procurement Agency, subject to any applicable local purchasing ordinances and the laws of the State of 
purchase; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained in this agreement, and of the mutual 

benefits to result, the parties agree as follows: 
 
1. That each party will facilitate the cooperative procurement of Products. 
 
2. That the procurement of Products subject to this agreement shall be conducted in accordance with and 

subject to the relevant statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations that govern each party’s 
procurement practices. 

 
3. That the cooperative use of solicitations obtained by a party to this agreement shall be in accordance 

with the terms and conditions of the solicitation, except as modification of those terms and conditions 
is otherwise allowed or required by applicable law. 

 
4. That the Principal Procurement Agencies will make available, upon reasonable request and subject to 

convenience, information which may assist in improving the procurement of products by the 
Participating Public Agencies. 

 
5. That a procuring party will make timely payments to the Supplier for Products 

received in accordance with the terms and conditions of the procurement. Payment 
for Products and inspections and acceptance of Products ordered by the procuring 
party shall be the exclusive obligation of such procuring party. Disputes between 
procuring party and Supplier are to be resolved in accord with the law and venue 
rules of the State of purchase. 

 
6. The procuring party shall not use this agreement as a method for obtaining additional 

concessions or reduced prices for similar products or services. 
 

7. The procuring party shall be responsible for the ordering of Products under this 
agreement. A non-procuring party shall not be liable in any fashion for any violation 
by a procuring party, and the procuring party shall hold non-procuring party 
harmless from any liability that may arise from action or inaction of the procuring 
party. 

 

Requirements for National Cooperative Contract 
Page 34 of 44 



NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 
EXHIBIT C- NATIONAL IPA MASTER INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATIVE PURCHASING 

AGREEMENT 
 
 

8. This agreement shall remain in effect until termination by a party giving 30 days written notice to the 
other party.  The provisions of paragraphs 5, 6 and 7 hereof shall survive any such termination. 

 
9. This agreement shall take effect after execution of the Principal Procurement Agency 

Certificate or Participating Public Agency Registration, as applicable. 
 



 
NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT D – PRINCIPAL PROCUREMENT AGENCY CERTIFICATE 
 

PRINCIPAL PROCUREMENT AGENCY CERTIFICATE 
 

I hereby acknowledge, on behalf of NAME OF PPA (“Principal Procurement Agency”), that I have 
read and agree to the general terms and conditions set forth in the enclosed Master 
Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement regulating the use of the Master Agreements 
and purchase of Products that from time to time are made available by Principal Procurement 
Agencies to Participating Public Agencies nationwide through National Intergovernmental 
Purchasing Alliance Company (“National IPA”).  

 
I understand that the purchase of one or more Products under the provisions of the Master 
Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement is at the sole and complete discretion of the 
Participating Public Agency. 
 
In its capacity as Principal Procurement Agency for National IPA, NAME OF PPA agrees to pursue 
Master Agreements for Products as specified in the attached exhibits to this agreement. 

 
 

 
Authorized Signature, Principal Procurement Agency     
 
 
   
Signature    
 
   
Name   
 
   
Title   
 
   
Date  

 
 
 



Requirements for National Cooperative Contract 
Page 37 of 44 

NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 
EXHIBIT E- NATIONAL IPA CONTRACT SALES REPORTING TEMPLATE 

(to be submitted electronically in Microsoft Excel format) 

National IPA Contract Sales Monthly/Quarterly Report 
Supplier Name:        

Contract Sales Report Month/Quarter:        

 

 

Participating Agency Name City State 
Zip 

Code 

Participating Agency #        
{Assigned by National IPA and 

provided to Supplier} 

Contract 
Sales for 
Month ($) 

Admin Fee 
% Admin Fee $ 

              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              
              

    Report Totals      

    Cumulative Contract Sales     
 



Requirements for National Cooperative Contract 
Page 1 of 44 

NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY EXHIBITS 
EXHIBIT F- NATIONAL IPA ADVERTISING COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENT 

 
Pursuant to certain state notice provisions, including but not limited to Oregon Revised Statutes Chapter 279A.220, the 
following public agencies and political subdivisions of the referenced public agencies are eligible to register with National 
IPA and access the Master Agreement contract award made pursuant to this solicitation, and are hereby given notice of the 
foregoing request for proposals for purposes of complying with the procedural requirements of said statutes: 
 
Nationwide: 
 
State of Alabama* State of Hawaii State of Massachusetts State of New Mexico State of South 

Dakota 
State of Alaska State of Idaho State of Michigan State of New York State of Tennessee 
State of Arizona State of Illinois State of Minnesota State of North Carolina State of Texas 
State of Arkansas State of Indiana State of Mississippi State of North Dakota State of Utah 
State of California State of Iowa State of Missouri State of Ohio State of Vermont 
State of Colorado State of Kansas State of Montana State of Oklahoma* State of Virginia 
State of Connecticut State of Kentucky State of Nebraska State of Oregon State of 

Washington 
State of Delaware State of Louisiana State of Nevada State of Pennsylvania State of West 

Virginia 
State of Florida State of Maine State of New 

Hampshire 
State of Rhode Island State of Wisconsin 

State of Georgia State of Maryland State of New Jersey State of South Carolina State of Wyoming 
District of Columbia     
 
Lists of political subdivisions and local governments in the above referenced states / districts may be found at 
http://www.usa.gov/Agencies/State_and_Territories.shtml and http://www.usa.gov/Agencies/Local.shtml
 
*Some public agencies and political subdivisions of these states may be restricted by state statutes that limit competition 
among cooperative purchasing organizations by only allowing use of purchasing cooperatives sponsored by certain 
National Associations.   
 
Certain Public Agencies and Political Subdivisions: 
 
Cities, Towns, Villages and Boroughs including but not limited to: 
BAKER CITY GOLF COURSE, OR 
CITY OF ADAIR VILLAGE, OR 
CITY OF ASHLAND, OR 
CITY OF AUMSVILLE, OR 
CITY OF AURORA, OR 
CITY OF BAKER, OR 
CITY OF BATON ROUGE, LA 
CITY OF BEAVERTON, OR 
CITY OF BEND, OR 
CITY OF BOARDMAN, OR 
CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LA 
CITY OF BURNS, OR 
CITY OF CANBY, OR 
CITY OF CANYONVILLE, OR 
CITY OF CLATSKANIE, OR 
CITY OF COBURG, OR 
CITY OF CONDON, OR 
CITY OF COQUILLE, OR 
CITY OF CORVALLI, OR 
CITY OF CORVALLIS PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT, OR 

http://www.usa.gov/Agencies/State_and_Territories.shtml
http://www.usa.gov/Agencies/Local.shtml


 
CITY OF COTTAGE GROVE, OR 
CITY OF EUGENE, OR 
CITY OF FOREST GROVE, OR 
CITY OF GRANTS PASS, OR 
CITY OF GRESHAM, OR 
CITY OF HILLSBORO, OR 
CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, OR 
CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU, HI 
CITY OF KENNER, LA 
CITY OF LA GRANDE, OR 
CITY OF LAFAYETTE, LA 
CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, OR 
CITY OF LEBANON, OR 
CITY OF MCMINNVILLE, OR 
CITY OF MEDFORD, OR 
CITY OF METAIRIE, LA 
CITY OF MILL CITY, OR 
CITY OF MILWAUKIE, OR 
CITY OF MONROE, LA 
CITY OF MOSIER, OR 
CITY OF NEW ORLEANS, LA 
CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OR 
CITY OF OREGON CITY, OR 
CITY OF PILOT ROCK, OR 
CITY OF PORTLAND, OR 
CITY OF POWERS, OR 
CITY OF PRINEVILLE, OR 
CITY OF RIDDLE, OR 
CITY OF ROSEBURG, OR 
CITY OF REDMOND, OR 
CITY OF SALEM, OR 
CITY OF SANDY, OR 
CITY OF SCAPPOOSE, OR 
CITY OF SHADY COVE, OR 
CITY OF SHERWOOD, OR 
CITY OF SHREVEPORT, LA 
CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OR 
CITY OF ST. HELENS, OR 
CITY OF ST. PAUL, OR 
CITY OF TIGARD, OR 
CITY OF TROUTDALE, OR 
CITY OF TUALATIN, OR 
CITY OF WARRENTON, OR 
CITY OF WILSONVILLE, OR 
CITY OF WINSTON, OR 
LEAGUE OF OREGON CITES 
THE CITY OF HAPPY VALLEY OREGON 
 
Counties and Parishes including but not limited to: 
ASCENSION PARISH, LA 
ASSOCIATION OF OREGON COUNTIES 
BAKER COUNTY, OR 
BENTON COUNTY, OR 
BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY, OR 
CADDO PARISH, LA 
CALCASIEU PARISH, LA 
CALCASIEU PARISH SHERIFF’S OFFICE, LA 
CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU, HI 
CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OR 
CLACKAMAS COUNTY DEPT OF TRANSPORTATION, OR 
CLATSOP COUNTY, OR 



 
COLUMBIA COUNTY, OR 
COOS COUNTY, OR 
COOS COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT, OR 
COUNTY OF HAWAII, OR 
CROOK COUNTY, OR 
CROOK COUNTY ROAD DEPARTMENT, OR 
CURRY COUNTY, OR 
DESCHUTES COUNTY, OR 
DOUGLAS COUNTY, OR 
EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH, LA 
GILLIAM COUNTY, OR 
GRANT COUNTY, OR 
HARNEY COUNTY, OR 
HARNEY COUNTY SHERIFFS OFFICE, OR 
HAWAII COUNTY, HI 
HOOD RIVER COUNTY, OR 
JACKSON COUNTY, OR 
JEFFERSON COUNTY, OR 
JEFFERSON PARISH, LA 
JOSEPHINE COUNTY GOVERNMENT, OR 
LAFAYETTE CONSOLIDATED GOVERNMENT, LA 
LAFAYETTE PARISH, LA 
KAUAI COUNTY, HI 
KLAMATH COUNTY, OR 
LAKE COUNTY, OR 
LANE COUNTY, OR 
LINCOLN COUNTY, OR 
LINN COUNTY, OR 
LIVINGSTON PARISH, LA 
MALHEUR COUNTY, OR 
MAUI COUNTY, HI 
MARION COUNTY, SALEM, OR 
MORROW COUNTY, OR 
MULTNOMAH COUNTY, OR 
MULTNOMAH COUNTY BUSINESS AND COMMUNITY SERVICES, OR 
MULTNOMAH COUNTY SHERIFFS OFFICE, OR 
MULTNOMAH LAW LIBRARY, OR 
ORLEANS PARISH, LA 
PLAQUEMINES PARISH, LA 
POLK COUNTY, OR 
RAPIDES PARISH, LA 
SAINT CHARLES PARISH, LA 
SAINT LANDRY PARISH, LA 
SAINT TAMMANY PARISH, LA 
SHERMAN COUNTY, OR 
TERREBONNE PARISH, LA 
TILLAMOOK COUNTY, OR 
TILLAMOOK COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE, OR 
UMATILLA COUNTY, OR 
UNION COUNTY, OR 
WALLOWA COUNTY, OR 
WASCO COUNTY, OR 
WASHINGTON COUNTY, OR 
WEST BATON ROUGE PARISH, LA 
WHEELER COUNTY, OR 
YAMHILL COUNTY, OR 
 
Other Agencies including Associations, Boards, Districts, Commissions, Councils, Public Corporations, Public 
Development Authorities, Reservations and Utilities including but not limited to: 
BEND METRO PARK AND RECREATION DISTRICT 
BOARDMAN PARK AND RECREATION DISTRICT 



 
CENTRAL OREGON INTERGOVERNMENTAL COUNCIL 
CLACKAMAS RIVER WATER 
CLATSKANIE PEOPLE'S UTILITY DISTRICT 
CLEAN WATER SERVICES 
CONFEDERATED TRIBES OF THE UMATILLA INDIAN RESERVATION 
COOS FOREST PROTECTIVE ASSOCIATION 
CHEHALEM PARK AND RECREATION DISTRICT 
EUGENE WATER AND ELECTRIC BOARD 
HOODLAND FIRE DISTRICT #74 
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF PORTLAND 
ILLINOIS VALLEY FIRE DISTRICT 
LAFAYETTE AIRPORT COMMISSION, LA 
LOUISIANA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION, LA 
MEDFORD WATER COMMISSION 
METRO REGIONAL GOVERNMENT 
METRO REGIONAL PARKS 
METROPOLITAN EXPOSITION RECREATION COMMISSION 
METROPOLITAN SERVICE DISTRICT (METRO) 
PORTLAND DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION, OR 
OREGON COAST COMMUNITY ACTION 
OREGON HOUSING AND COMMUNITY SERVICES 
OREGON LEGISLATIVE ADMINISTRATION 
SOUTHEASTERN LOUISIANAN UNIVERSITY 
TRI-COUNTY METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT OF OREGON 
TUALATIN HILLS PARK & RECREATION DISTRICT 
TUALATIN VALLEY FIRE & RESCUE 
WILLAMALANE PARK AND RECREATION DISTRICT 
WILLAMETTE HUMANE SOCIETY 
 
 
K-12 including but not limited to: 
BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BEND-LA PINE SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BROOKING HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.17-C 
CADDO PARISH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
CALCASIEU PARISH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
CANBY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
CANYONVILLE CHRISTIAN ACADEMY 
CASCADES ACADEMY OF CENTRAL OREGON 
CENTENNIAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
CENTRAL CATHOLIC HIGH SCHOOL 
CENTRAL POINT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.6 
CENTRAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 13J 
COOS BAY SC'HOOL DISTRICT NO.9 
COUNTY OF YAMHILL SCHOOL DISTRICT 29 
CULVER SCHOOL DISTRICT  
DALLAS SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.2 
DAVID DOUGLAS SCHOOL DISTRICT 
DAYTON SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.8 
DE LA SALLE N CATHOLIC HS 
DESCHUTES COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.6 
DUFUR SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.29 
EAST BATON ROUGE PARISH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ESTACADA SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.10B 
FOREST GROVE SCHOOL DISTRICT 
GEORGE MIDDLE SCHOOL 
GLADSTONE SCHOOL DISTRICT 
GRANTS PASS SCHOOL DISTRICT 7 
GREATER ALBANY PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT 
HEAD START OF LANE COUNTY 
HIGH DESERT EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 



 
HILLSBORO SCHOOL DISTRICT 
HOOD RIVER COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
JACKSON CO SCHOOL DIST NO.9 
JEFFERSON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 509-J 
JEFFERSON PARISH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
JEFFERSON SCHOOL DISTRICT 
KLAMATH FALLS CITY SCHOOLS 
LAFAYETTE PARISH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
LAKE OSWEGO SCHOOL DISTRICT 7J 
LANE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 4J 
LINCOLN COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
LINN CO. SCHOOL DlST. 95C 
LIVINGSTON PARISH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
LOST RIVER JR/SR HIGH SCHOOL 
LOWELL SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.71 
MARION COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MARION COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 103 
MCMINNVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT NOAO 
MEDFORD SCHOOL DISTRICT 549C 
MITCH CHARTER SCHOOL 
MONROE SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.1J 
MUL TNOMAH EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 
MULTISENSORY LEARNING ACADEMY 
NEAH-KAH-NIE DISTRICT NO.56 
NESTUCCA VALLEY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.101 
NOBEL LEARNING COMMUNITIES 
NORTH BEND SCHOOL DISTRICT 13 
NORTH CLACKAMAS SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NORTH WASCO CTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 21 
NORTHWEST REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 
ONTARIO MIDDLE SCHOOL 
OREGON TRAIL SCHOOL DISTRICT NOA6 
ORLEANS PARISH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PHOENIX-TALENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NOA 
PORTLAND JEWISH ACADEMY 
PORTLAND PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
RAPIDES PARISH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
REDMOND SCHOOL DISTRICT 
REYNOLDS SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ROGUE RIVER SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.35 
ROSEBURG PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
SCAPPOOSE SCHOOL DISTRICT 1J 
SEASIDE SCHOOL DISTRICT 10 
SHERWOOD SCHOOL DISTRICT 88J 
SILVER FALLS SCHOOL DISTRICT 4J 
SOUTH LANE SCHOOL DISTRICT 45J3 
SOUTHERN OREGON EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 
SPRINGFIELD SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.19 
SWEET HOME SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.55 
TERREBONNE PARISH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
THE CATLIN GABEL SCHOOL 
TIGARD-TUALATIN SCHOOL DISTRICT 
UMATILLA MORROW ESD 
WEST LINN WILSONVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT 
WILLAMETTE EDUCATION SERVICE DISTRICT 
WOODBURN SCHOOL DISTRICT 
YONCALLA SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.32 
 
  
Higher Education 
ARGOSY UNIVERSITY 



 
BATON ROUGE COMMUNITY COLLEGE, LA 
BIRTHINGWAY COLLEGE OF MIDWIFERY 
BLUE MOUNTAIN COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
BRIGHAM YOUNG UNIVERSITY - HAWAII 
CENTRAL OREGON COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
CHEMEKETA COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
CLACKAMAS COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
COLLEGE OF THE MARSHALL ISLANDS 
COLUMBIA GORGE COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
DEVRY UNIVERSITY - PORTLAND 
GEORGE FOX UNIVERSITY 
KLAMATH COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 
LANE COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
LEWIS AND CLARK COLLEGE 
LINFIELD COLLEGE 
LINN-BENTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
LOUISIANA COLLEGE, LA 
MARYLHURST UNIVERSITY 
MT. HOOD COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
MULTNOMAH BIBLE COLLEGE 
NATIONAL COLLEGE OF NATURAL MEDICINE 
NORTHWEST CHRISTIAN COLLEGE 
OREGON HEALTH AND SCIENCE UNIVERSITY 
OREGON UNIVERSITY SYSTEM 
PACIFIC UNIVERSITY 
PIONEER PACIFIC COLLEGE 
PORTLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
PORTLAND STATE UNIVERSITY 
REED COLLEGE 
RESEARCH CORPORATION OF THE UNIVERSITY OF HAWAII 
ROGUE COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
SOUTHERN OREGON UNIVERSITY (OREGON UNIVERSITY SYSTEM) 
SOUTHWESTERN OREGON COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
TULANE UNIVERSITY 
TILLAMOOK BAY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
UMPQUA COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
UNIVERSITY OF HAWAII BOARD OF REGENTS 
UNIVERSITY OF OREGON-GRADUATE SCHOOL 
UNIVERSITY OF PORTLAND 
UNIVERSITY OF NEW ORLEANS 
WESTERN OREGON UNIVERSITY 
WESTERN STATES CHIROPRACTIC COLLEGE 
WILLAMETTE UNIVERSITY 
XAVIER UNIVERISTY 
 
State Agencies 
ADMIN. SERVICES OFFICE 
BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS 
HAWAII CHILD SUPPORT ENFORCEMENT AGENCY 
HAWAII DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
HAWAII HEALTH SYSTEMS CORPORATION 
OFFICE OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS 
OFFICE OF THE STATE TREASURER 
OREGON BOARD OF ARCHITECTS 
OREGON CHILD DEVELOPMENT COALITION 
OREGON DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 
OREGON DEPARTMENT OF FORESTRY 
OREGON DEPT OF TRANSPORTATION 
OREGON DEPT. OF EDUCATION 
OREGON LOTTERY 
OREGON OFFICE OF ENERGY 



 
OREGON STATE BOARD OF NURSING 
OREGON STATE DEPT OF CORRECTIONS 
OREGON STATE POLICE 
OREGON TOURISM COMMISSION 
OREGON TRAVEL INFORMATION COUNCIL 
SANTIAM CANYON COMMUNICATION CENTER 
SEIU LOCAL 503, OPEU 
SOH- JUDICIARY CONTRACTS AND PURCH 
STATE DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE 
STATE OF HAWAII 
STATE OF HAWAII 
STATE OF HAWAII, DEPT. OF EDUCATION 
STATE OF LOUISIANA 
STATE OF LOUISIANA DEPT. OF EDUCATION 
 

 



DESIGN & CONSTRUCTION SERVICES, SERVICE CONTRACTING, PURCHASING, 
STORES, REPROGRAPHICS, MAIL SERVICES, ADMINISTRATION 

CITY HALL • 255 W. ALAMEDA • P.O. BOX 27210 • TUCSON, AZ  85726-7210 
(520) 791-4217 • FAX (520) 791-4735 • TTY (520) 791-2639 

www.tucsonprocurement.com 
 
 

 
CITY OF TUCSON 

DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT 
 

 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
 

HEAVY EQUIPMENT, PARTS, ACCESSORIES, SUPPLIES & RELATED 
SERVICES 

 
DATE ISSUED: NOVEMBER 3, 2011 

 
 
 
 

The referenced document has been modified as per the attached Amendment No. Two (2). 
 
Please sign this Amendment where designated and return the executed copy with the 
submission of your proposal.  This amendment is hereby made part of the referenced proposal 
as though fully set forth therein.  Any questions regarding this amendment should be addressed 
to Victoria Cortinas, C.P.M., CPPB, Principal Contract Officer at (520) 837-4140. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VC/swb 
 



 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL AMENDMENT 
 

CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT                                REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO.:120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701                                  RFP AMENDMENT NO.: TWO(2) 
P.O. BOX 27210, TUCSON, AZ  85726                                                                         PAGE 1 of 3 
(520) 837-4140                                                       RFP DUE DATE: NOVEMBER 16, 2011 @ 4:00 P.M., LOCAL AZ TIME  
ISSUE DATE: NOVEMER 3, 2011                                                             CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 

A SIGNED COPY OF THIS AMENDMENT MUST BE SUBMITTED WITH YOUR SEALED PROPOSAL. 
THIS REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL IS AMENDED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 
Pursuant to the Pre-Proposal Conference on Friday, October 27, 2011, this Request for 
Proposal is hereby modified as follows: 
 
1. The City of Tucson has posted Request for Proposal 130377 in Microsoft Word version on our website 

at http://www.tucsonprocurement.com/bidders_bidopportunities.aspx?Orderby=ContractNum 
 
2. Due Date:  The Due Date has changed to Wednesday, November 16, 2011.  Time and location 

remain the same. 
 
3. Page 2, Introduction/Background, first paragraph, second sentence, Change sentence to read as 

follows:  “The City requires a contractor who provides a diverse and extensive supply of equipment for 
purchase, lease and/or rental to various locations in the Tucson metropolitan area. 

 
4. Page 3, Tentative Schedule of Events, Replace the original schedule with the following (changes are 

indicated in bold): 
 

Activity Estimated Finish Date of Activity 
RFP Published October 12, 2011 
Pre-proposal conference October 27, 2011 
Proposal due date  November 16, 2011 
Review of Proposals by Evaluation Committee 
and Reference Checks 

November 17, 2011 – January 13, 2012 

Vendor Interview  December 15-16, 2011 
Evaluation Committee’s recommendation January 13, 2012 
Final negotiation completed January 19, 2012 
Contract award  January 20, 2012 

 
5. Scope of Work, Section A. General Requirements 

a. Page 4, Item 6. Repairs, Replace this section with the following:  If the vehicle requires repairs 
prior to acceptance, the Contractor will be responsible to transport of equipment to and from his 
place of business for repairs until such time as the equipment is placed in service, at no 
additional cost, to the purchasing agency.  Transport of the vehicle will not be delayed more that 
one working day from date of notification. 
 
For the City of Tucson, repair work can be performed on City of Tucson premises.  The City’s 
Fleet Services has agreed to offer a service bay in the maintenance facility. 
 

b. Page 4, Item 8. Vendor Service and Maintenance, second paragraph, Replace entire paragraph 
with the following “For the City of Tucson, the parts and service facility must be within City of 
Tucson metropolitan area.”   

http://www.tucsonprocurement.com/bidders_bidopportunities.aspx?Orderby=ContractNum


 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL AMENDMENT 
 

CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT                              REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO.: 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701                              RFP AMENDMENT NO.: TWO (2) 
P.O. BOX 27210, TUCSON, AZ  85726                                                                         PAGE 2 of 3 
(520) 837-4140                                                       RFP DUE DATE: NOVEMBER 16, 2011 @ 4:00 P.M., LOCAL AZ TIME  
ISSUE DATE: NOVEMER 3, 2011                                                        CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 

A SIGNED COPY OF THIS AMENDMENT MUST BE SUBMITTED WITH YOUR SEALED PROPOSAL. 
THIS REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL IS AMENDED AS FOLLOWS: 

 
6. Scope of Work, Section B. Equipment and Product Requirements 

a. Item 1, Equipment, Replace the original heavy equipment categories with the following: 
 
Landfill Equipment

Landfill Dozers 
Landfill Compactors 
Landfill Scraper 

 
Construction Equipment
Articulated Dump Truck 
Dozers / Tracked 
Dozers / Wheeled 
Dump Trucks 
Excavators / Tracked 
Excavators / Wheeled 
Loaders / Backhoe / Wheeled 
Loaders / Tracked 
Loaders / Wheeled  
Motor Graders 
Scrapers  
Skid Steer Loaders 
Soil Compactors 
Trencher 
Water Truck 
Water Wagon 
 
Material Handling 
Crane / Track 
Crane / Wheeled 
Fork Lift-Straight Mast 
Fork Lift – Telescopic-Forward / High 
Reach 
 
 
 

Pavement Repair/Maintenance 
Asphalt Cold Planer 
Asphalt Rotary Mixer 
Bituminous Distribution Truck 
Chip Spreader 
Crack Sealer 
Patcher Truck 
Paver / Tracked 
Paver / Wheeled  
Rollers / Drum / Wheeled 
Rollers / Drum / Vibrate 
Rollers / Wheeled / Pneumatic 
 
Sweepers 
Sweeper / Scrubber 
Sweeper / Street 
Sweeper / Walkway 
 
Transport 
Trailer / Drop Neck 
Trailer / Flatbed 
Trailer / Tilt 
Trailer / Utility 
 
Miscellaneous 
Air Compressor 
Bucket Truck 
Cement Mixer 
Generator / Power Systems 
Ice Resurfacer 
Tractor / Boom Mower 

7. Scope of Work, Section C. Service Requirements 
a. Item k, Change section to read: “Lease/Rental:  The ability to lease/rent heavy equipment 

through the manufacturer or dealer.” 



 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL AMENDMENT 
 

CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT                             REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO.: 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701                              RFP AMENDMENT NO.: TWO (2) 
P.O. BOX 27210, TUCSON, AZ  85726                                                                  PAGE 3 of 3 
(520) 837-4140                                                  RFP DUE DATE: NOVEMBER 16, 2011 @ 4:00 P.M., LOCAL AZ TIME  
ISSUE DATE: NOVEMER 3, 2011                                                        CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 

A SIGNED COPY OF THIS AMENDMENT MUST BE SUBMITTED WITH YOUR SEALED PROPOSAL. 
THIS REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL IS AMENDED AS FOLLOWS: 

 
 

8. Proposal Evaluation Requirements 
a. Page 10, Section II., A. 2., Add Item e. Describe your shipping process including how equipment 

is shipped to the customer and how shipping charges are assessed (region, zone, zip code, 
etc.).  It is the City’s intention that equipment shall be delivered F.O.B. Destination to all 
customers and freight prepaid to the City of Tucson.  Orders for other agencies may be subject 
to freight charges. 

 
b. Page 12, Section B. Price Proposal, Item 1, Add the following: 

i. Offerors should include pricing for their entire heavy equipment line based upon the 
categories stated above and not just for the specific pieces of equipment listed.   

 
ii. To allow for ordering flexibility, equipment that is mounted to a chassis, Offerors should 

provide separate pricing structure for the chassis and the truck as well as a total price or 
price structure for the complete piece of equipment. 

 
c. Page 14, Section III, Item B., Change section to read: “Interview:  The City reserves the right to 

conduct interviews with some or all of the offerors at any point during the evaluation process. 
However, the City may determine that interviews are not necessary. In the event interviews are 
conducted, information provided during the interview shall be taken into consideration when 
evaluating the stated criteria. The City shall not reimburse the offeror for the costs associated 
with the interview process.” 

 
9. Page 15, Item 3, FOB Destination Freight Prepaid, Clarification, It is the City’s intention that equipment 

shall be delivered F.O.B. Destination to all customers and freight prepaid to the City of Tucson.  Orders 
for other agencies may be subject to freight charges. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

ALL OTHER PROVISIONS OF THE REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL SHALL REMAIN IN THEIR ENTIRETY. 
VENDOR HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES RECEIPT AND UNDERSTANDING OF THE ABOVE AMENDMENT. 

 
 
 

________________________________________    ______________________________________ 
             Signature         Date       Company Name 

 
________________________________________    ______________________________________ 

             Typed Name and Title         Address 
 

        
             City  State  Zip 

______________________________________ 



DESIGN & CONSTRUCTION SERVICES, SERVICE CONTRACTING, PURCHASING, 
STORES, REPROGRAPHICS, MAIL SERVICES, ADMINISTRATION 

CITY HALL • 255 W. ALAMEDA • P.O. BOX 27210 • TUCSON, AZ  85726-7210 
(520) 791-4217 • FAX (520) 791-4735 • TTY (520) 791-2639 

www.tucsonaz.gov 
 
 

 
CITY OF TUCSON 

DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT 
 

 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 120377 
 

HEAVY EQUIPMENT, PARTS, ACCESSORIES, SUPPLIES & RELATED 
SERVICES 

 
DATE ISSUED: OCTOBER 18, 2011 

 
 
 
 

The referenced document has been modified as per the attached Amendment No. One (1). 
 
Please sign this Amendment where designated and return the executed copy with the 
submission of your proposal.  This amendment is hereby made part of the referenced proposal 
as though fully set forth therein.  Any questions regarding this amendment should be addressed 
to Victoria Cortinas, C.P.M., CPPB, Principal Contract Officer at (520) 837-4140. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL AMENDMENT 
 

CITY OF TUCSON DEPARTMENT OF PROCUREMENT                                REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO.: 120377 
255 W. ALAMEDA, 6TH FLOOR, TUCSON, AZ  85701                                   RFP AMENDMENT NO.: ONE (1) 
P.O. BOX 27210, TUCSON, AZ  85726                                                                          PAGE 1 of 1 
(520) 837-4140                                                             RFP DUE DATE: NOVEMBER 14, 2011 @ 4:00 P.M., LOCAL AZ TIME  
ISSUE DATE: OCTOBER 18, 2011                                                                  CONTRACT OFFICER: VICTORIA CORTINAS 
 

A SIGNED COPY OF THIS AMENDMENT MUST BE SUBMITTED WITH YOUR SEALED PROPOSAL. 
THIS REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL IS AMENDED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 
This Request for Proposal is hereby modified as follows: 
 

1. The location of the Pre-Proposal Conference has changed to City of Tucson, Public Works Building, 
201 N. Stone Avenue, 4th Floor North Conference Room, Tucson, AZ  85701.  The appointment time of 
9:00 a.m. Arizona time remains the same.   
 
Please note:  There are two parking garages in the vicinity of the Public Works Building.  One is just 
west of the Public Works Building and the other is across the street at the Pima Main Library with both 
entrances off Alameda Street.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 

ALL OTHER PROVISIONS OF THE REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL SHALL REMAIN IN THEIR ENTIRETY. 
VENDOR HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES RECEIPT AND UNDERSTANDING OF THE ABOVE AMENDMENT. 

 
 
 

________________________________________    ______________________________________ 
             Signature         Date       Company Name 

 
________________________________________    ______________________________________ 

             Typed Name and Title         Address 
 

        ______________________________________ 
             City  State  Zip 













































































































































MASTER INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATIVE PURCHASING AGREEMENT 
 
This agreement is made between certain government agencies that execute a Principal Procurement Agency Certificate 
(“Principal Procurement Agencies”) to be appended and made a part hereof and other public agencies (“Participating 
Public Agencies”) that register electronically with National Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance Company (“National 
IPA”) or otherwise execute a Participating Public Agency Certificate to be appended and made a part hereof. 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, after a competitive bidding and selection process by Principal Procurement Agencies, a number of 
Suppliers have entered into Master Agreements to provide a variety of goods, products and services based on national 
volumes (herein “Products”); 

 
WHEREAS, Master Agreements are made available by Principal Procurement Agencies through National IPA 

and provide that Participating Public Agencies may purchase Products on the same terms, conditions and pricing as the 
Principal Procurement Agency, subject to any applicable local purchasing ordinances and the laws of the State of 
purchase; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained in this agreement, and of the mutual 

benefits to result, the parties agree as follows: 
 
1. That each party will facilitate the cooperative procurement of Products. 
 
2. That the procurement of Products subject to this agreement shall be conducted in accordance with and 

subject to the relevant statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations that govern each party’s procurement 
practices. 

 
3. That the cooperative use of bids obtained by a party to this agreement shall be in accordance with the 

terms and conditions of the bid, except as modification of those terms and conditions is otherwise allowed 
or required by applicable law. 

 
4. That the Principal Procurement Agencies will make available, upon reasonable request and subject to 

convenience, information which may assist in improving the procurement of products by the Participating 
Public Agencies. 

 
5. That a procuring party will make timely payments to the Supplier for Products received in accordance 

with the terms and conditions of the procurement. Payment for Products and inspections and acceptance 
of Products ordered by the procuring party shall be the exclusive obligation of such procuring party. 
Disputes between procuring party and Supplier are to be resolved in accord with the law and venue rules 
of the State of purchase. 

 
6. The procuring party shall not use this agreement as a method for obtaining additional concessions or 

reduced prices for similar products or services. 
 

7. The procuring party shall be responsible for the ordering of Products under this agreement. A non-
procuring party shall not be liable in any fashion for any violation by a procuring party, and the procuring 
party shall hold non-procuring party harmless from any liability that may arise from action or inaction of 
the procuring party. 

 
8. This agreement shall remain in effect until termination by a party giving 30 days written notice to the 

other party.  The provisions of paragraphs 5, 6 and 7 hereof shall survive any such termination. 
 

9. This agreement shall take effect after execution of the Principal Procurement Agency Certificate or 
Participating Public Agency Registration, as applicable. 

 
 



National IPA Current Participating Agencies 

 

This list representative of National IPA Participating Agencies and should not be considered a complete or final 

list as it changes continually. Any agency listed here in is not obligated to utilize any contract in the National 

IPA portfolio. 

Matanuska-Susitna Borough 

Municipality of Anchorage 

Alabama Emergency Management Agency 

Anniston Housing Authority 

BIRMINGHAM SOUTHERN COLLEGE 

City of Gulf Shores Police Department 

City of Huntsville 

Cottonwood Police Department 

ESA - Taylor Road Academy 

Escambia County Commission 

Moody Bible Institute - WMBV 

Moody Bible Institute - WMFT 

North Alabama United Methodist Conference 

Ozark-Dale County E911 

SAMFORD UNIVERSITY 

SPRING HILL COLLEGE 

Tallapoosa County 9-1-1 

TROY STATE UNIVERSITY-DOTHAN 

TROY UNIVERSITY-MAIN CAMPUS 

UNIVERSITY OF ALABAMA AT BIRMINGHAM 

UNIVERSITY OF MOBILE 

Washington County Emergency Management Agency 

AR State Board of Embalmers & Funeral Directors 

Area Agency on Aging of Southeast Arkansas, Inc 

Arkansas Agriculture Dept. - Livestock and Poultry 

ARKANSAS BAPTIST COLLEGE 

Arkansas Department of Labor 

Arkansas Department of Parks and Tourism 

Arkansas Department of Workforce Services 

Arkansas Dept. of Finance & Administration 

Arkansas Dept. of Human Service 

Arkansas Fair Housing Commission 

Arkansas Insurance Department 

ARKANSAS NORTHEASTERN COLLEGE 

Arkansas Securities Department 

Arkansas State Library 

ARKANSAS STATE PLANT BOARD 

ARKANSAS STATE UNIVERSITY-MAIN CAMPUS 

Arkansas Teachers Retirement System 

ARKANSAS TECH UNIVERSITY 

Arkansas Tech University at Ozark 

Bureau of Legislative Research 

Cabot High School 

Cabot WaterWorks 

Central Arkansas Transit Authority 

CENTRAL ARKANSAS WATER 



City of Beebe 

City of Bentonville 

City of Fayetteville 

City of Fort Smith 

City Of Fouke 

City of Lavaca 

City of Springdale 

Cleveland County School District 

Commission on Law Enforcement Standards and Training 

Community Resource Group, Inc. 

Dept. of Community Correction (Arkansas) 

ECCLESIA COLLEGE 

Eighth Judicial District Prosecuting Attorney 

Elna M Smith Foundation 

Fouke Public Schools 

Habitat for Humanity of Washington County 

HENDERSON STATE UNIVERSITY 

HENDRIX COLLEGE 

Jacksonville Housing Authority 

JOHN BROWN UNIVERSITY 

Lincoln Childcare Center 

Little Rock Convention & Visitors Bureau 

Little Rock Wastewater 

Marion Police Department 

NORTHWEST ARKANSAS COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

OUACHITA BAPTIST UNIVERSITY 

Ouachita Technical College 

Peace At Home Family Shelter, Inc. 

PHILANDER SMITH COLLEGE 

PULASKI TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

SOUTHEAST ARKANSAS COLLEGE 

Southwest Arkansas Development Council, Inc. Head Start 

Southwest Arkansas Planning & Development District, Inc. 

Southwest Arkansas Water District 

Texarkana Arkansas School District 

UNIVERSITY OF ARKANSAS AT FT SMITH 

UNIVERSITY OF ARKANSAS AT LITTLE ROCK 

UNIVERSITY OF ARKANSAS AT PINE BLUFF 

University of Arkansas Cooperative Extension Service 

University of Arkansas Foundation, Inc. 

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL ARKANSAS 

UNIVERSITY OF THE OZARKS 

Washington County, AR 

WILLIAMS BAPTIST COLLEGE 

Apollo Group, Inc. 

Arizona Department  of Economic Security 

Arizona Public Service 

Boy Scouts of America 

Cambridge Academy 

City of Apache Junction 

CITY OF BISBEE 



City of Casa Grande / Public Works Dept. 

City of Chandler 

City of Douglas 

City of El Mirage 

City of Glendale 

City of Goodyear 

City of Maricopa 

City of Mesa Arizona 

City of Prescott 

City of Scottsdale 

City of Somerton 

City of Surprise, AZ 

City of Tempe 

City of Tucson 

City of Yuma 

Coconino County 

Community Bridges, Inc. 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - MESA 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - NORTHEAST PHOENIX 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - PHOENIX 

EMBRY RIDDLE AERONAUTICAL UNIVERSITY-PRESCOTT 

ESA - Phoenix Center for Education 

Fountain Hills Sanitary District 
Fowler Elementary School District #45 
Gila County 

Hon-Dah Resort Casino 

Humboldt Unified School District #22 

La Frontera Center, Inc. 

Lake Havasu City 

Lake Havasu Unified School District #1 

Litchfield Elementary School District 

Maricopa Unified School District #20 

MOHAVE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

Mohave County 

Navajo County 

Noah Webster Basic School 

Northern Arizona Regional Behavioral Health Authority 

NORTHLAND PIONEER COLLEGE 

NORTHWEST FIRE DISTRICT 

Osborn School District #8 

Parker Police Department 

Pascua Yaqui Tribe 

PIMA COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

Pima County, Arizona 

Pinal County (AZ) 

Pinal County Development Services 

Pinetop-Lakeside Police Department 

PYT Casino Del Sol 

Roosevelt School District #66 

Santa Cruz County (AZ) 

Superstition Mountains Community Facilities District No. 1 



Temple Emanuel of Tempe 

Terros Behavioral Health Services 

The Guidance Center, Inc. 

The Town of Prescott Valley 

Town of Clarkdale 

Town of Marana 

Town of Oro Valley 

Town of Queen Creek 

Tucson Unified School District #1 

UNIVERSITY OF ARIZONA 

Valley Metro RPTA 

West Yavapai Guidance Clinic 

WorldatWork 

Yuma County Sheriff's Office 

Alameda County Medical Center 

Alameda County Sheriff's Office 

Alert Ambulance Network, LLC 

Allen and O'Hara Education Services 

ALLIANT INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY 

Alliant International University - Fresno 

Alliant International University - Irvine 

Alliant International University - Los Angeles 

Alliant International University - Sacramento 

Alliant International University - San Diego 

Anaheim Union High School District 

Associated Students - California State University - Hayward 

Associated Students - California State University - Long Beach 

Associated Students - San Diego State University 

Associated Students California State University - Fresno 

Associated Students California State University - Fullerton, Inc. 

Associated Students California State University - Northridge, Inc. 

Associated Students California State University - San Bernardino 

Associated Students Incorporated of California State University - Stanislaus 

Associated Students of California State University - Chico 

Associated Students of California State University - Sacramento 

Associated Students of California State University - San Marcos 

Associated Students of California State University Los Angeles, Inc. 

Associated Students of California State University, Channel Islands 

Associated Students of Humboldt State University 

Associated Students of San Francisco State University 

Associated Students of Sonoma State University 

Associated Students of the California Maritime Academy 

Associated Students San Jose State University 

Associated Students, California State University - Dominguez Hills 

Associated Students, California State University, Bakersfield, Inc. 
Associated Students, Incorporated of California Polytechnic State University at San 
Luis Obispo 

Associated Students, Incorporated, California State Polytechnic University - Pomona 

Autism Speaks 

Aztec Shops, Ltd. 

Bob Hope Airport 



Boys & Girls Club of St Helena 

Burbank Unified School District 

Burbank-Glendale-Pasadena Airport Authority 

Bureau of State Audits 

Cal Poly Housing Corporation 

Cal Poly Pomona University Educational Trust 

Cal State Hayward Educational Foundation 

Cal State L.A. University Auxiliary Services, Inc. 

Calexico Unified School District 

Calfornia State University - Fullerton Housing Authority 

CALIFORNIA BAPTIST UNIVERSITY 

CALIFORNIA LUTHERAN UNIVERSITY 

CALIFORNIA MARITIME ACADEMY 

California Maritime Academy Foundation, Inc. 

California Polytechnic State University Foundation 

CALIFORNIA POLYTECHNIC STATE UNIVERSITY-SAN LUIS OBISPO 

California State Los Angeles Foundation 

CALIFORNIA STATE POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY-POMONA 

California State University - Chico Research Foundation 

California State University - Fresno Association, Inc. 

California State University - Fresno Foundation 

California State University - Hayward Foundation, Inc. 

California State University - Long Beach Foundation 

California State University - Northridge - Foundation 

California State University - Sacramento - Trust Foundation 

California State University - Sacramento Foundation 

California State University - San Marcos Foundation 

California State University - Stanislaus Auxiliary and Business Services 

California State University - Stanislaus Foundation 

California State University Bakersfield Foundation 

CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY CHANNEL ISLANDS 

California State University Dominguez Hills Foundation 

California State University Foundation 

California State University Institute 

California State University, Bakersfield Foundation for Research 

California State University, Bakersfield Student Union 

California State University, Channel Islands Foundation 

California State University, Fullerton, Foundation 

CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY-BAKERSFIELD 

CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY-CHANCELLORS OFFICE 

CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY-CHICO 

CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY-DOMINGUEZ HILLS 

CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY-EAST BAY 

CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY-FRESNO 

CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY-FULLERTON 

CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY-LONG BEACH 

CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY-LOS ANGELES 

CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY-MONTEREY BAY 

CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY-NORTHRIDGE 

CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY-SACRAMENTO 

CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY-SAN BERNARDINO 



CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY-SAN MARCOS 

CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY-STANISLAUS 

California State Univesity-Educational Opportunity 

CalOptima 

Capital Public Radio 

Carlsbad Police Department 

Carnegie Institution of Washington 

Central Basin Municipal Water District 

CENTRE CITY DEVELOPMENT CORP. 

Chabot - Las Positas Community College District 

CHAPMAN UNIVERSITY 

City of Agoura Hills 

City of Anaheim 

City of Auburn 

City of Berkeley (CA) 

City of Beverly Hills 

City of Brea 

City of Buena Park 

City of Calimesa 

City of Carlsbad 

CITY OF CERRITOS 

City of Chino 

City of Chino Hills 

City of Chula Vista 

City of Coronado 

CITY OF CORONADO FIRE DEPARTMENT 

City of Costa Mesa 

City of Covina 

City of Culver City 

City of El Cajon 

City of El Cerrito 

City Of El Paso de Robles 

City of El Segundo 

CITY OF ENCINITAS-PUBLIC WORKS FACILITY 

City of Escondido 

City of Fremont 

City of Fresno 

City of Gardena 

City of Hawthorne - California 

City of Hayward 

City of Hemet (CA) 

City of La Mesa 

City of La Verne 

City of Lakewood 

City of Lancaster 

City of Lathrop 

City of Lodi 

City of Long Beach 

City of Los Angeles 

City of Lynwood 

City of Madera 



CITY OF MALIBU 

City of Manhattan Beach 

City of Manteca 

City of Mountain View 

City of National City 

City of Norwalk 

City of Novato 

City of Oakland 

City of Oakley 

City of Oceanside 

City of Ontario 

City of Orange 

CITY OF OXNARD 

City Of Palm Desert 

City of Palm Springs 

City of Pasadena 

City of Patterson 

City of Poway 

City of Rancho Cucamonga 

City of Redding 

City of Redwood City 

City of Riverside 

City Of Sacramento 

City of Salinas (CA) 

City of San Diego 

City of San Jose 

City of San Pablo 

City of San Ramon 

City of Santa Clarita 

City of Santa Cruz 

City of Santee 

City of South Gate 

City of Stanton (CA) 

City of Sunnyvale 

City of Torrance 

City of Ventura 

City of Victorville 

City of Wasco 

City of Westlake Village 

City of Whittier 

CLAREMONT GRADUATE UNIVERSITY 

CLAREMONT GRADUATE UNIVERSITY - Office of Advancement 
CLAREMONT GRADUATE UNIVERSITY - Peter F. Drucker and Masatoshi Ito 
Graduate School of Management 

CLAREMONT GRADUATE UNIVERSITY - School of Arts and Humanities 
CLAREMONT GRADUATE UNIVERSITY - School of Behavioral and Organizational 
Sciences 

CLAREMONT GRADUATE UNIVERSITY - School of Educational Studies 

CLAREMONT GRADUATE UNIVERSITY - School of Information and Technology 

CLAREMONT GRADUATE UNIVERSITY - School of Politics and Economics 

CLAREMONT GRADUATE UNIVERSITY - School of Religion 



Claremont University Consortium 

CLEVELAND CHIROPRACTIC COLLEGE OF LOS ANGELES 

Clovis Unified School District 

Coast Community College District 

COGSWELL POLYTECHNICAL COLLEGE 

County of  Tulare 

County of Marin 

County of Nevada 

County of Orange 

County of Riverside 

County of Sacramento 

County of San Diego 

County of Ventura 

Court of Appeal, First Appellate District 

CSAC - Excess Insurance Authority 

CSUMB Employee Housing, Inc. 

Cupertino Union School District 

Delta Diablo Sanitation District 

Desert Sands Unified School District 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - FREMONT 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - FRESNO 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - IRVINE 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - LONG BEACH 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - LOS ANGELES METRO 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - POMONA 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - SACRAMENTO 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - SAN DIEGO 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - SAN FRANCISCO 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - SAN JOSE 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - WEST HILLS 

Discovery Christian Church 

DOMINICAN UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA 

Donald P. Katherine B. Liker University Student Union, Inc. 

East Bay Municipal Utility 

Encina Wastewater Authority 

Environmental Service Concepts, LLC - Farmers Market 

Environmental Service Concepts, LLC - Universal City Walk 

Environmental Services Concepts, LLC - Beverly Center 

ESA - Carden Academy Morgan Hill 

ESA - Rossier Park Elementary 

ESA - Rossier Park High 

ESA - Spectrum - Concord Campus - Valley 

ESA - Spectrum - Fairfield Campus - Solano 

ESA - Spectrum - Oakland Campus - Camden 

ESA - Spectrum - Pittsburg Campus - Delta 

ESA - Spectrum - Randol Campus 

ESA - Spectrum - San Pablo Campus - Tara Hills 

ESA - Spectrum - Union City Campus - Mission Valley 

ESA - Spectrum Center - Golden Gate Campus 

EVERGREEN VALLEY COLLEGE 

Forest Lawn Memorial Park 



Forty-Niner Shops, Inc. 

Foundation for Educational Achievement 

Foundation for the California State University - San Bernardino 

Foundation of California State University - Monterey Bay 

Franciscan Shops 

Fresno County Economic Opportunities Commission 

FRESNO PACIFIC UNIVERSITY 

Fresno State Programs for Children, Inc. 

Glendale Unified School District 

Glenn Superior Court 

Golden Gate National Parks Conservancy 

GOLDEN GATE UNIVERSITY-SAN FRANCISCO 

Grossmont Union High School District 

Hacienda La Puente USD (K-12) 

Harvard-Westlake School 

HARVEY MUDD COLLEGE 

Hemet Unified School District 

Hillsborough City School District 

HUMBOLDT STATE UNIVERSITY 

Humboldt State University Center Board of Directors 

Humboldt State University Foundation 

HUMPHREYS COLLEGE-STOCKTON 

Huntington Beach Union High School District 

Inglewood Park Cemetery 

JOHN F KENNEDY UNIVERSITY 

Keck Graduate Institute 

LA COSTA CANYON HIGH SCHOOL FOUNDATION 

LA County Superior Court 

LA SIERRA UNIVERSITY 

Lake Elsinore Unified School District 

Lakeside Union School District 

Las Virgenes Unified School District 

Los Angeles County Office of Education (LACOE) 

Los Angeles Fire Department 

Los Angeles Law Library 

Los Angeles Unified School District 

Marin County Employees Retirement Association 

Marine Mammal Center 

MENLO COLLEGE 

Metropolitan Water District of Southern California 

MILLS COLLEGE 

Montclair Police Department 

MOUNT SAINT MARY'S COLLEGE 

National City Public Library 

NEIGHBORHOOD HOUSE ASSOCIATION 

Newark Memorial High School 

North Bay Regional Center 

North Campus - University Park Development Corporation 

North County Health Project, Inc. 

Oakland Adult Education - Edward Shands Adult School 

Oakland Unified School District 



Office of Systems Intergration 

Operation Safehouse 

Orange County Fire Authority 

Orange County Sanitation District 

Orange County Vector Control District 

PACIFIC GRADUATE SCHOOL OF PSYCHOLOGY 

PADRE DAM MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

Palm Springs Art Museum 

Palm Springs Unified School District 

Palo Verde Unified School District 

Placer ARC 

Placer County Procurement Services 

Project Kindle Inc. 

Redlands Unified School District 

SAINT MARY'S COLLEGE OF CALIFORNIA 

San Andreas Regional Center 

SAN DIEGO COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 

SAN DIEGO COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 

San Diego Regional Center 

SAN DIEGO STATE UNIVERSITY 

San Diego State University Foundation 

San Diego Superior Court 

San Diego Unified Port District 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 

San Fernando Valley Community Mental Health Center 

SAN FRANCISCO ART INSTITUTE 

San Francisco Public Utilities Commission 

SAN FRANCISCO STATE UNIVERSITY 

San Francisco State University Foundation, Inc. 

San Francisco State University Student Center 

San Gabriel Pomona Regional Center 

SAN JOSE CITY COLLEGE 

SAN JOSE STATE UNIVERSITY 

San Jose State University Foundation 

SAN JOSE-EVERGREEN COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 

San Luis Obispo County Office of Education 

San Marcos University Corporation 

SANDAG (San Diego Assoc. of Governments) 

Santa Clara County Office of Education 

SAYBROOK GRADUATE SCHOOL AND RESEARCH CENTER 

Schmahl Science Workshops 

Sequoia Union High School District 

Shakti Rising 

SIMPSON UNIVERSITY 

Sinai Temple dba Mount Sinai Parks & Mortuaries 

Skirball Cultural Center 

SONOMA COUNTY JUNIIOR COLLEGE DISTRICT 

Sonoma State Enterprises, Inc. 

SONOMA STATE UNIVERSITY 

Sonoma State University Academic Foundation Inc. 



Sonoma Student Union Corporation 

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA COLLEGE OF OPTOMETRY 

Spartan Shops, Inc. 

St Augustine High School 

State Center Community College District 

State of California Assembly Rules Committee 

State of California Dept. of General Services 

Stone Soup 

Student Union of California State University - San Bernardino 

Superior Court of California, County of Marin 

Superior Court of California, County of Merced 

Superior Court of California, County of Riverside 

Sutter County 

Sweetwater Authority 

Temecula Valley Unified School District 

The Agricultural Foundation of California State University - Fresno 

The Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. 

The California State University - Fresno Athletic Corporation 

The Campanile Foundation 

The City of Corona (CA) 

The Housing Authority of the County of Contra Costa 

The King's College and Seminary 

THE NATURE CONSERVANCY 

The Student Union of San Jose State University 

The University Corporation 

The University Foundation California State University - Chico 

THE UNIVERSITY OF WEST LOS ANGELES 

Union Sanitary District 

University - Student Union Board, California State University - Los Angeles 

University Advancement Foundation 

University Glen Corporation 

UNIVERSITY OF LA VERNE 

UNIVERSITY OF REDLANDS 

UNIVERSITY OF SAN DIEGO 

UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA 

UNIVERSITY OF THE PACIFIC 

UNIVERSITY OF THE PACIFIC MCGEORGE SCHOOL OF LAW 

UNIVERSITY OF THE PACIFIC SCHOOL OF DENTISTRY 

University Student Union of California State University - Northridge 

University Union of California State University - Hayward 

University Union of California State University - Stanislaus 

University Union Operation of California State University - Sacramento 

Valley Mountain Regional Center 

Ventura County Community College District 

Vista Hill Foundation 

West Oakland Health Council 

WestEd 

WESTERN UNIVERSITY OF HEALTH SCIENCES 

Westside Regional Center 

Win River Casino 

Yucaipa-Calimesa Joint Unified School District 



Accreditation Review Committee on Education in Surgical Technology 

Adams County Golf Courses 

Adams County Housing Authority 

Adams County School District 50 

Boulder County 

Brent's Place (Brent Ely Foundation) 

Calvary Episcopal Church 

Cherry Creek School District #5 

City and County of Denver - Wastewater Management 

City of Colorado Springs 

City of Cortez 

City of Englewood 

City of Fort Morgan 

City of Glendale 

City of Glenwood Springs 

City of Littleton - Fire Department 

City of Longmont 

City of Loveland 

City of Wheat Ridge, CO 

Colorado Children's Campaign 

Colorado Christian Univ. - AGS Northern Colorado Center 

Colorado Christian Univ. - AGS Southern Colorado Center 

Colorado Christian Univ. - AGS Western Colorado Center 

COLORADO CHRISTIAN UNIVERSITY 

Colorado Judicial Department 

Colorado School Districts Self Insurance Pool 

Colorado Seminary 

COLORADO STATE UNIVERSITY 

Colorado Supreme Court 

Denver Housing Authority 

Denver University 

Denver Young Artists Orchestra 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - COLORADO SPRINGS 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - DENVER 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - WESTMINSTER 

Eagle County School District 

El Paso County 

El Paso County Department of Health & Environment 

Ent Federal Credit Union 

ESA - College of Living Experience 

ESA - Humanex Academy 

ESA - Regional Marketing 

Focus on the Family 

Fort Lewis College 

Fremont Sanitation District 

Junior Achievement Worldwide 

La Plata County Government 

Larimer County 

Lewis Palmer School District 

Marilyn Hickey Ministries/Orchard Road Christian Center 

Mesa County Valley School District #51 



MESA STATE COLLEGE 

Poudre School District 

Pueblo City-County Health Department 

PW-Wastewater Management Division 

REGIS UNIVERSITY 

Rocky Vista University College of Osteopathic Medicine, LLC 

St. Vrain Valley School District 

The Clayton Foundation 

The Colorado Health Foundation 

Thompson School District 

Town of Erie 

Casey Family Services 

City of Danbury, CT 

City of Shelton 

Department of Children and Families 

Enhanced Care Initiative 

Greater Bridgeport Transit Authority 

HealthCare Connection, Inc. 

Newington Board of Education 

SACRED HEART UNIVERSITY 

SAINT JOSEPH COLLEGE 

Town of Glastonbury 

Town of Greenwich 

UNIVERSITY OF NEW HAVEN 

Walnut Hill Community Church 

West Hartford Public Schools 

Windham Region Council of Governments 

Alice Deal Middle School 

American Council for an Energy-Efficient Economy (ACEEE) 

American Red Cross 

American University 

Association for Psychological Science 

Association of Maternal & Child Health Programs 

CATHOLIC UNIVERSITY OF AMERICA 

Center for Health and Gender Equity 

Children's National Medical Center 

Friendship Public Charter School 

GEORGETOWN UNIVERSITY 

Grantmakers for Effective Organizations 

Jewish Historical Society of Greater Washington, DC 

Laborers' International Union of North America 

Metropolitan Washington Airports Authority 

Metropolitan Washington Council of Governments 

NATIONAL-LOUIS UNIVERSITY - Washington DC Campus 

Save The Children 

TRINITY UNIVERSITY 

Washington Metropolitan Area Transit Authority 

City of Wilmington 

DELAWARE STATE UNIVERSITY 

Lewes Police Department 

Alachua County Sheriff's Office 



Baker County Board of Commissioners 

Brevard Achievement Center 

Brevard County Board of County Commissioners 

BROWARD COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

Broward County Board of County Commissioners (FL) 

Broward County Public Schools 

CARLOS ALBIZU UNIVERSITY-MIAMI CAMPUS 

CENTRAL FLORIDA COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

Charlotte County Fire/EMS 

City of Altamonte Springs 

City of Apopka 

City of Bonita Springs 

City of Boynton Beach, Fire Rescue Department 

City of Boynton Beach, Florida 

City of Casselberry Police Department 

City of Cocoa 

City of Coconut Creek 

City of Daytona Beach 

City of DeFuniak Springs 

City of Deltona 

City of Fort Lauderdale 

City of Fort Pierce 

City of Fort Walton Beach 

City of Gainesville 

City of Gulf Breeze 

City of Hallandale Beach 

City of Homestead 

City of Jacksonville 

City of Lake Mary 

City of Lake Wales 

City of Melbourne 

City of Miami (FL) 

City of Miramar 

City of North Miami Beach 

City Of Oldsmar 

City of Orlando, Florida 

City of Pinellas Park 

City of Plantation 

City of Port Orange 

City of Sanford 

City of Sanford - Public Works/Fleet Maintenance 

City of Sebastian 

City of South Daytona 

City of St. Petersburg 

City of Stuart, Florida 

City of Sunrise 

City of Tallahassee 

City of Tampa 

City of Tarpon Springs 

City of Winter Park 

Collier County Board of County Commissioners 



Collier County Public Schools 

Community Coordinated Care for Children 

Council on Aging of West Florida, Inc. 

CROSS INTERNATIONAL 

Davie Police Department 

DAYTONA BEACH COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - FORT LAUDERDALE 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - JACKSONVILLE 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - MIAMI 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - MIRAMAR 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - ORLANDO 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - ORLANDO NORTH 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - TAMPA 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - TAMPA EAST 

Duval County 

EMBRY RIDDLE AERONAUTICAL UNIVERSITY-DAYTONA BEACH 

Emerald Coast Utilities Authority 

Environmental Service Concepts, LLC - Cordova Mall 

Environmental Service Concepts, LLC - University Mall 

ESA - Atlantis Academy - Coral Springs 

ESA - Atlantis Academy - Miami 

ESA - Atlantis Academy - Palm Beaches 

ESA - Atlantis Academy - Tallahassee 

ESA - Bishop-Eton School 

ESA - Broach Tampa High School 

ESA - College Living Experience 

ESA - Crossroads - Arlington School 

ESA - Crossroads - North 

ESA - Crossroads - Regional Office 

ESA - Crossroads - West 

ESA - Crossroads Clearwater 

ESA - Crossroads Lakeland 

ESA - Crossroads Mandarin/Broach Mandarin 

ESA - Crossroads Orange Park 

ESA - Crossroads Tampa 

ESA - Crossroads West Palm 

ESA - Jupiter Academy 

ESA - Regional Marketing 

ESA - Regional Marketing 

ESA - The Brevard Learning Clinic - Melbourne School 

ESA - The Broach School - Orange Park Campus 

ESA - The Broach School - South 

ESA - The Broach School - West 

ESA - The Broach School at Bradenton 

ESA - The Broach School at Fort Myers 

ESA - The Broach School at Jacksonville 

ESA - The Broach School at St. Petersburg 

ESA - The Broach School of Tampa Elementary 

ESA - Zephyrhills 

Escambia County Sheriff's Office 

Escambia County, Florida 



Face School- Florida Autism Center of Excellence 

FLAGLER COLLEGE 

FLORIDA COMMUNITY COLLEGE AT JACKSONVILLE 

Florida Community Health Centers 

Florida Gulf Coast University 

FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY 

FLORIDA MEMORIAL COLLEGE 

FLORIDA STATE UNIVERSITY 

Florida Tech - Melbourne 

Ft. Myers Public Defender's Office 

GULF COAST COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

HAITIAN NEIGHBORHOOD CENTER 

Hardee County Board of County Commissioners 

HENDRY COUNTY SCHOOL BOARD DISTRICT 

Hendry County Sheriff Department 

Hendry County Technology Services 

Hernando County Board of County Commissioners 

Hialeah Fire Department 

HILLSBOROUGH COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

Hillsborough County (FL) 

Hillsborough County Clerk of Circuit Court 

Hillsborough County Fire Rescue 

Hillsborough County Public Schools 

Hillsborough County Sheriff's Office 

Housing Authority of The City of Key West 

JACKSONVILLE UNIVERSITY 

KEISER COLLEGE 

Key Largo Fire Rescue 

LAKE-SUMTER COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

Lee County Sheriff's Department 

Lee County Tax Collector 

Legal Services of Greater Miami, Inc. 

Leon County, Florida 

LiveIT Academy 

Longwood Police Dept. 

LYNN UNIVERSITY 

MANATEE COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

Manatee County Government 

Marion County Sheriff's Office 

MEDVANCE INSTITUTE - CORPORATE 

MEDVANCE INSTITUTE - FT. LAUDERDALE 

MEDVANCE INSTITUTE - FT. LAUDERDALE 

MEDVANCE INSTITUTE - FT. LAUDERDALE 

MEDVANCE INSTITUTE - FT. LAUDERDALE 

MEDVANCE INSTITUTE - MIAMI 

MEDVANCE INSTITUTE - PORT ST. LUCIE 

MEDVANCE INSTITUTE - STUART 

MEDVANCE INSTITUTE - WEST PALM BEACH 

Miami Ad School 

MIAMI DADE COLLEGE 

Miami-Dade County 



Moody Bible Institute - WKES 

Moody Bible Institute - WRMB 

NATIONAL-LOUIS UNIVERSITY - Tampa Florida Campus 

North Lauderdale Fire Rescue 

Northside Mental Health Center 

NOVA SOUTHEASTERN UNIVERSITY 

Office of the Public Defender-18th Circuit 

Office of the State Attorney 

Okaloosa County Board Of County Commissioners 

Okaloosa County Sheriff's Office 

OKALOOSA-WALTON COLLEGE 

Orange County Board of County Commissioners 

Orange County Fire & Rescue 

Orange County Health Department 

Orlando-Orange County Expressway Authority 

Orthodox Christian Mission Center 

Osceola County Government  (BOCC) 

PALM BEACH COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

Palm Beach County Sheriff's Office 

Pasco County Clerk of the Circuit Court 

PENSACOLA JUNIOR COLLEGE 

Pinellas County Board of County Commissioners 

Pinellas County Sheriff's Office 

Public Defenders Office, 11th Judicial Circuit 

Reedy Creek Improvement District 

ROLLINS COLLEGE 

SAINT THOMAS UNIVERSITY 

SANTA FE COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

Santa Rosa County FCU 

Santa Rosa County School Board 

School Board of Pinellas County, Florida 

School District of Osceola County 

SEMINOLE COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

Seminole County (FL) 

SHELTER FOR ABUSED WOMEN/CHILD 

Sistema Universitario Ana G. Mendez (SUAGM) 

Solid Waste Authority of Palm Beach County Florida 

SOUTH FLORIDA COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

South Florida Regional Transportation Authority 

St Johns County Supervisor of Elections 

ST PETERSBURG COLLEGE 

State Attorney 18th JC of Florida 

STETSON UNIVERSITY 

Tampa Bay History Center 

Tampa Sports Authority 

The American University of the Caribbean School of Medicine 

THE BAPTIST COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 

The Centers, Inc. 

THE UNIVERSITY OF TAMPA 

Town of Belleair 

Town of Indian River Shores 



Town of Palm Beach 

Town of Southwest Ranches 

Town of Surfside Technology Department 

TRINITY COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 

United Cerebral Palsy South Florida 

United Safety Council 

University of Central Florida 

UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA 

UNIVERSITY OF NORTH FLORIDA 

VALENCIA COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

Vero Beach Police Department 

Village of Royal Palm Beach 

Washington Co Dist. School Board/ dba Washington-Holmes Technical Ctr 

Winter Garden Police Department 

Work Force One 

Wounded Warrior Project 

YMCA of the Palms 

YMCA OF THE PALMS/Bonita Springs 

Alpharetta First United Methodist 

American Intercontinental University 

Anverse,Inc. 

Atlanta HIDTA 

Atlanta Public Schools 

AUGUSTA TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

BERRY COLLEGE 

Berry College - Oak Hill and the Martha Berry Museum 

BREWTON-PARKER COLLEGE 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

Carroll County Board of Commissioners 

City of Atlanta 

City of Cartersville 

City of Cumming, Georgia 

City of Kennesaw 

City of Roswell, Georgia 

City of Sandy Springs 

City of Smyrna Georgia 

CLARK ATLANTA UNIVERSITY 

Cobb County Government 

COVENANT COLLEGE 

Crisp County Board of Commisioners 

Crisp County Health Department 

Crisp County Information Technology Department 

Dade County 

Dekalb Community Service Board (CSB) 

DeKalb County Government 

Department of Administrative Services, State of Georgia 

Department of Juvenile Justice 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - ALPHARETTA 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - ATLANTA 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - ATLANTA BUCKHEAD 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - ATLANTA PERIMETER CENTER 



DEVRY UNIVERSITY - DECATUR 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - DULUTH 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - STOCKBRIDGE 

Floyd County Government 

Georgia Department of Human Resources 

Georgia International Convention Center 

Georgia Office of Secretary of State 

Georgia State Government 7th Judicial Administrative District 

Grady County Board of Commissioners 

GRN Community Service Board 

Gwinnett County Board of County Commissioners 

Gwinnett County Public Library 

Jones County Board of Commissioners 

LAGRANGE COLLEGE 

LIFE UNIVERSITY 

Metropolitan Atlanta Rapid Transit Authority (MARTA) 

Municipal Gas Authority of Georgia 

PAINE COLLEGE 

SHORTER COLLEGE 

Smoke Rise Baptist Church 

SPELMAN COLLEGE 

State of Georgia - Department of Human Resources 

The City Of Monroe 

THOMAS UNIVERSITY 

TOCCOA FALLS COLLEGE 

TRUETT-MCCONNELL COLLEGE 

Unified Government of Athens-Clarke County 

University of Georgia Police Department 

Walton County Board of Education 

Walton County Water and Sewerage Authority 

Walton Electric Membership Corporation 

American Red Cross - Central Iowa Chapter 

Black Hawk County 

Bondurant-Farrar Community Schools 

Cass County Memorial Hospital 

Center for the Advancement of Self-Sufficiency, Incorporated 

City of Ames 

City of Cedar Rapids IA 

City of Council Bluffs Police Department 

City of Davenport 

City of Des Moines 

City of Nevada 

Dallas County 

Delaware County 

DES MOINES AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

Greene County 

Guthrie County 

Heartland Child Development 

HENRY COUNTY SHERIFFS OFFICE 

Hospice of Central Iowa 

Indianola High School 



Iowa Division of Banking 

Iowa State Association of Counties 

Linn County 

Minburn Community School District 

Nishna Valley Credit Union 

Northeast Iowa Community College 

Norwalk Community Schools 

Riverside Lutheran Bible Camp 

SIMPSON COLLEGE 

The Municipal Housing Agency 

Veteran Affairs - Iowa Veterans Cemetary 

Walnut Creek Community Church 

Warren County 

Winterset Community School District 

Children's Home Society of Idaho 

City of Idaho Falls 

College of Western Idaho 

Idaho Housing and Finance Association 

Mountain Home Fire Department 

The City of Post Falls, Idaho 

Addison Public Library 

After School Matters 

American Dental Association 

BLACK HAWK COLLEGE 

BLACKBURN COLLEGE 

Bloom Township 

Boy Scouts of America 

CARL SANDBURG COLLEGE 

Carol Stream Police 

Central Illinois Service Access, Inc. 

Chester Community Unit School District 

Chicago Public Schools 

City Colleges of Chicago System 

CITY COLLEGES OF CHICAGO-HAROLD WASHINGTON COLLEGE 

CITY COLLEGES OF CHICAGO-HARRY S TRUMAN COLLEGE 

CITY COLLEGES OF CHICAGO-KENNEDY-KING COLLEGE 

CITY COLLEGES OF CHICAGO-MALCOLM X COLLEGE 

CITY COLLEGES OF CHICAGO-OLIVE-HARVEY COLLEGE 

CITY COLLEGES OF CHICAGO-RICHARD J DALEY COLLEGE 

CITY COLLEGES OF CHICAGO-WILBUR WRIGHT COLLEGE 

City of Aurora (IL) 

City of Decatur 

City of Edwardsville 

City of Elgin 

City of Evanston 

City of Galesburg, IL 

City of Lake Forest 

City of Park Ridge 

City of Peoria, Illinois 

City of Peru 

City of Quincy 



City of Rock Island 

City of Tuscola 

City of Waterloo 

City of Wilmington 

COLLEGE OF DUPAGE 

COLLEGE OF LAKE COUNTY 

COLUMBIA COLLEGE CHICAGO 

Consulate General of the Republic of Poland 

Cook County Office of the Purchasing Agent 

County of DuPage 

County of McHenry 

Crusader Clinic 

DANVILLE AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

Danville Public Library 

DeKalb County Public Building Commission 

DES PLAINES PARK DISTRICT 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - ADDISON 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - CHICAGO 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - CHICAGO LOOP 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - CHICAGO O'HARE 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - ELGIN 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - GURNEE 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - LINCOLNSHIRE 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - NAPERVILLE 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - OAKBROOK TERRACE 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - SCHAUMBURG 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - TINLEY PARK 

District 156 - McHenry Community High School 

District 156 - McHenry High School - Booster Club 

District 156 - McHenry High School - East Campus 

District 156 - McHenry High School - Tempo 

District 156 - McHenry High School - West Campus 

District 156 - McHenry High Schools - Athletics 

District 200 - Clay Elementary School 

District 200 - Dean Street Elementary School 

District 200 - Greenwood Elementary School 

District 200 - Mary Endres Elementary School 

District 200 - Northwood Middle School 

District 200 - Olson Middle School 

District 200 - Verda Dierzen Early Learning Center 

District 200 - Westwood Elementary School 

District 200 - Woodstock Community Unit School District 

District 200 - Woodstock High School 

District 300 - Administration Building 

District 300 - Algonquin Lakes Elementary 

District 300 - Algonquin Middle School 

District 300 - Buildings and Grounds 

District 300 - Carpentersville Middle School 

District 300 - deLacey Family Education Center 

District 300 - Dundee Highlands Elementary 

District 300 - Dundee Middle School 



District 300 - Dundee-Crown High School 

District 300 - Eastview Elementary 

District 300 - Golfview Elementary 

District 300 - Hampshire Elementary 

District 300 - Hampshire High School 

District 300 - Jacobs High School 

District 300 - Lake in the Hills Elementary 

District 300 - Lakewood 

District 300 - Liberty Elementary 

District 300 - Lincoln Prairie Elementary 

District 300 - Meadowdale Elementary 

District 300 - Neubert Elementary School 

District 300 - Oak Ridge School 

District 300 - Parkview Elementary 

District 300 - Perry Elementary 

District 300 - Sleepy Hollow Elementary 

District 300 - Transportation - Algonquin 

District 300 - Transportation - Carpentersville 

District 300 - Westfield Community School 

Dundee Township Park District 

DuPage County Health Department 

Edwardsville CUSD #7 

Ela Township 

ELGIN COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

ELMHURST COLLEGE 

ESA - Regional Marketing 

Fairview Ministries/ VibrantLiving Communities and Services 

Forest Preserve District of Cook County 

Freeport Park District 

Frontier Community College 

Glen Carbon Centennial Library 

Glen Ellyn Public Library 

Good Samaritan Home of Quincy 

Granite City School District 

GREENVILLE COLLEGE 

Harvest Bible Chapel 

HEARTLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

HIGHLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

Hinsdale Public Library 

Hoffman Estates Park District 

Housing Authority of Joliet 

Illinois Association of School Administrators 

Illinois Audubon Society 

ILLINOIS CENTRAL COLLEGE 

Illinois Community College Board 

Illinois Community College System Foundation 

ILLINOIS EASTERN COMMUNITY COLLEGES-OLNEY CENTRAL COLLEGE 

ILLINOIS EASTERN COMMUNITY COLLEGES-WABASH VALLEY COLLEGE 

ILLINOIS VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

ILLINOIS WESLEYAN UNIVERSITY 

Infant Welfare Society of Chicago 



ITT TECHNICAL INSTITUTE 

ITT TECHNICAL INSTITUTE 

JOHN A LOGAN COLLEGE 

JOHN WOOD COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

JOLIET JUNIOR COLLEGE 

JUDSON COLLEGE 

KANKAKEE COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

KASKASKIA COLLEGE 

KISHWAUKEE COLLEGE 

Lake County Health Department and Community Health Center 

LAKE FOREST GRADUATE SCHOOL OF MANAGEMENT 

Lake Forest Police Department 

LAKE LAND COLLEGE 

LEWIS AND CLARK COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

LINCOLN LAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

Lincoln Trail College 

Lisle Public Library District 

Lockport Township Park District 

LOYOLA UNIVERSITY CHICAGO 

Madison County Government 

Marengo Rescue Squad 

MCHENRY COUNTY COLLEGE 

MIDWESTERN UNIVERSITY 

MONMOUTH COLLEGE 

MOODY BIBLE INSTITUTE 

Moody Bible Institute - WDLM 

Moody Bible Institute - WMBI 

MORAINE VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

MORTON COLLEGE 

Mount Prospect School District 57 

NATIONAL-LOUIS UNIVERSITY 

NATIONAL-LOUIS UNIVERSITY - Chicago Campus 

NATIONAL-LOUIS UNIVERSITY - Elgin Campus 

NATIONAL-LOUIS UNIVERSITY - Lisle Campus 

NATIONAL-LOUIS UNIVERSITY - Skokie Campus 

Neighborhood Housing Services of Chicago 

NORTH CENTRAL COLLEGE 

Oak Park Township 

OAKTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

OLIVET NAZARENE UNIVERSITY 

Oswego CUSD #308 

Our Lady of Perpetual Help Church 

Park District Risk Management 

PARKLAND COLLEGE 

Peoria Public Schools District 150 

PRAIRIE STATE COLLEGE 

Prospect Heights Police Department 

REND LAKE COLLEGE 

RICHLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

ROBERT MORRIS COLLEGE 

ROBERT MORRIS COLLEGE - BENSENVILLE 



ROBERT MORRIS COLLEGE - DUPAGE 

ROBERT MORRIS COLLEGE - LAKE CO. 

ROBERT MORRIS COLLEGE - ORLAND PARK 

ROBERT MORRIS COLLEGE - ORLAND PARK 

ROBERT MORRIS COLLEGE - PEORIA 

ROBERT MORRIS COLLEGE - SPRINGFIELD 

ROCK VALLEY COLLEGE 

Rockford Lutheran Schools 

Roxana Public Library District 

SAUK VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

SHAWNEE COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

Skokie Park District 

SOUTH SUBURBAN COLLEGE 

SOUTHEASTERN ILLINOIS COLLEGE 

Southern Illinois Enforcement Group 

SOUTHERN ILLINOIS UNIVERSITY EDWARDSVILLE 

SOUTHWESTERN ILLINOIS COLLEGE 

SPERTUS COLLEGE 

SPOON RIVER COLLEGE 

SPRINGFIELD COLLEGE IN ILLINOIS 

Springfield Park District 

St. Clair County 

The Family Institute at Northwestern University 

Town of Normal, Illinois 

Trilogy, Inc. 

TRITON COLLEGE 

University of St. Francis 

Village of Bartlett 

Village of Elk Grove 

Village of Glen Ellyn 

Village of Glendale Heights (IL) 

Village of Grayslake 

Village of Milan 

Village of Oak Brook 

Village of Westchester 

Village of Wheeling 

Village of Woodridge 

WAUBONSEE COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

Westmont Public Library 

Will County Government (IL) 

WILLIAM RAINEY HARPER COLLEGE 

Willow Creek Communiuty Church 

Woodford County 

Woodford County Health Department 

Woodridge School District 68 

Allen County Government 

ANCILLA COLLEGE 

ANDERSON UNIVERSITY 

Athens Medical Center 

Bartholomew County 

BETHEL COLLEGE 



Brownsburg Community School Corporation 

BUTLER UNIVERSITY 

CALUMET COLLEGE OF SAINT JOSEPH 

Cancer Services of Allen County 

CenterPoint Counseling Center 

Cicero Parks Department 

City of Fort Wayne 

Community Mental Health Center, Inc 

DEPAUW UNIVERSITY 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - INDIANAPOLIS 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - MERRILLVILLE 

EARLHAM COLLEGE 

ESA - Regional Marketing 

Evansville-Vanderburgh School Corporation 

First United Methodist Church 

First United Methodist Church - Martinsville 

Fort Wayne Community Schools 

FRANKLIN COLLEGE 

GAGE, Inc. 

Good Samaritan Hospital 

GOSHEN COLLEGE 

Grace College & Seminary - Grace Schools, Inc. 

GRACE COLLEGE AND THEOLOGICAL SEMINARY 

HANOVER COLLEGE 

HealthSouth Deaconess Rehabilitation Hospital 

HOLY CROSS COLLEGE 

HUNTINGTON UNIVERSITY 

Independent Colleges of Indiana, Inc. 

INDIANA INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY 

INDIANA WESLEYAN UNIVERSITY 

Indiana Wesleyan University - Wesleyan Retirement Center, Inc. 

Indianapolis Public Transportation Corporation 

IVY TECH COMMUNITY COLLEGE - ANDERSON CAMPUS 

IVY TECH COMMUNITY COLLEGE - EAST CHICAGO CAMPUS 

IVY TECH COMMUNITY COLLEGE - ELKHART CAMPUS 

IVY TECH COMMUNITY COLLEGE - LAWRENCEBURG CAMPUS 

IVY TECH COMMUNITY COLLEGE - LOGANSPORT CAMPUS 

IVY TECH COMMUNITY COLLEGE - MARION CAMPUS 

IVY TECH COMMUNITY COLLEGE - MICHIGAN CITY CAMPUS 

IVY TECH COMMUNITY COLLEGE - VALPARAISO CAMPUS 

IVY TECH COMMUNITY COLLEGE - WABASH CAMPUS 

IVY TECH COMMUNITY COLLEGE - WARSAW CAMPUS 

IVY TECH COMMUNITY COLLEGE-BLOOMINGTON CAMPUS 

IVY TECH COMMUNITY COLLEGE-CENTRAL OFFICE 

IVY TECH COMMUNITY COLLEGE-COLUMBUS CAMPUS 

IVY TECH COMMUNITY COLLEGE-EVANSVILLE CAMPUS 

IVY TECH COMMUNITY COLLEGE-FORT WAYNE CAMPUS 

IVY TECH COMMUNITY COLLEGE-GARY CAMPUS 

IVY TECH COMMUNITY COLLEGE-INDIANAPOLIS CAMPUS 

IVY TECH COMMUNITY COLLEGE-KOKOMO CAMPUS 

IVY TECH COMMUNITY COLLEGE-LAFAYETTE CAMPUS 



IVY TECH COMMUNITY COLLEGE-MADISON CAMPUS 

IVY TECH COMMUNITY COLLEGE-MUNCIE CAMPUS 

IVY TECH COMMUNITY COLLEGE-RICHMOND CAMPUS 

IVY TECH COMMUNITY COLLEGE-SELLERSBURG CAMPUS 

IVY TECH COMMUNITY COLLEGE-SOUTH BEND CAMPUS 

IVY TECH COMMUNITY COLLEGE-TERRE HAUTE CAMPUS 

Kosciusko 21st Century Foundation 

Lebanon Public Library 

Lifeline Youth & Family Services, Inc. 

MANCHESTER COLLEGE 

MARIAN COLLEGE 

Marshall County Government (Sheriff's Office) 

MARTIN UNIVERSITY 

Metropolitan School District of Lawrence Township 

Metropolitan School District of Mt. Vernon 

Monroe County Board of Commissioners 

Moody Bible Institute - WGNR 

OAKLAND CITY UNIVERSITY 

PURDUE UNIVERSITY-CALUMET CAMPUS 

ROSE-HULMAN INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY 

Rose-Hulman Institute of Technology - Rose-Hulman Ventures 

SAINT JOSEPHS COLLEGE 

SAINT MARY-OF-THE-WOODS COLLEGE 

SAINT MARY'S COLLEGE 

South Harrison Community School Corporation 

Southern Hancock Schools 

TAYLOR UNIVERSITY BROADCASTING, INC. 

TAYLOR UNIVERSITY-FT WAYNE 

TAYLOR UNIVERSITY-UPLAND 

The Center for Hospice and Palliative Care, Inc 

Town of Newburgh 

Tri-State University 

TRI-STATE UNIVERSITY-FORT WAYNE CAMPUS 

TRI-STATE UNIVERSITY-HOWE CAMPUS 

TRI-STATE UNIVERSITY-KENDALLVILLE CAMPUS 

TRI-STATE UNIVERSITY-MERRILLVILLE CAMPUS 

TRI-STATE UNIVERSITY-NORTH CAMPUS 

TRI-STATE UNIVERSITY-SOUTH BEND CAMPUS 

UNIVERSITY OF EVANSVILLE 

UNIVERSITY OF INDIANAPOLIS 

UNIVERSITY OF SAINT FRANCIS-FT WAYNE 

VALPARAISO UNIVERSITY 

VINCENNES UNIVERSITY 

Vineyard Community Church 

WABASH COLLEGE 

Workforce Network, Inc. 

Atchison County (KS) 

Auburn-Washburn USD 437 

Bonner Springs Library 

Bonner Springs Police Department 

Church of the Resurrection 



City of Lawrence 

City of Lenexa 

City of Olathe 

City of Ottawa 

City of Wichita (KS) 

CLEVELAND CHIROPRACTIC COLLEGE 

Cloud County 

Douglas County 

Episcopal Diocese of Kansas 

Family Service & Guidance Center of Topeka, Inc. 

FORT HAYS STATE UNIVERSITY 

Franklin County 

Gentiva Health Services, Inc. 

Hand in Hand Christian Adoption 

Hutchinson Community Foundation 

JOHNSON COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

Johnson County KS 

Johnson County Parks & Recreation 

Kansas Family Partnership, Inc. 

McPherson Public Library 

Miami County, Kansas 

Mid Kansas Community Action Program Inc 

Ransom Memorial Hospital 

South Central Mental Health Counseling Center 

State of Kansas 

Topeka Lutheran School 

Turner Unified School District 202 

Unified Government of Wyandotte County 

USD 259/Wichita Public Schools 

WASHBURN UNIVERSITY 

Wichita State University 

Wyandot Center for Community Behavioral Healthcare, Inc. 

Boone County Fiscal Court 

Campbell County Fiscal Court 

CAMPBELLSVILLE UNIVERSITY 

Central Baptist Hospital 

Christian County Constable, District 5 

City of Bowling Green 

City of Owensboro 

Fleming County Fiscal Court 

Greater Owensboro Economic Development Corporation 

Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government 

Louisville & Jefferson County Metro Sewer District 

MID-CONTINENT UNIVERSITY 

Nicholas County Public Library 

NORTHERN KENTUCKY UNIVERSITY 

Owensboro Riverport 

Pennyrile Area Development District 

The Housing Authority of Covington 

UNIVERSITY OF THE CUMBERLANDS 

Warren County Fiscal Court 



Wedco District Health Department 

Ascension Parish Clerk of Court 

Baton Rouge Water Company 

CENTENARY COLLEGE OF LOUISIANA 

Cypress Baptist Church 

DHH-OPH Region 3 - Lafourche Parish Health Unit 

Dillard University 

LOUISIANA COLLEGE 

Louisiana Water Works 

MEDVANCE INSTITUTE-BATON ROUGE 

NEW ORLEANS BAPTIST THEOLOGICAL SEMINARY 

New Orleans Center for Creative Arts/Riverfront 

OUR LADY OF HOLY CROSS COLLEGE 

REACH 

Recreation and Park Commission (BREC) 

Second Harvest Food Bank of Greater New Orleans & Acadiana 

St Tammany Fire District 4 

St. Charles Community Health Center, Inc. 

St. Charles Parish President's Office 

St. Tammany Parish Mosquito Abatement 

Tulane University of Louisiana 

UNIVERSITY OF NEW ORLEANS 

XAVIER UNIVERSITY OF LOUISIANA 

BAY PATH COLLEGE 

Boston Public Health Commission 

City of Boston 

Environmental Service Concepts, LLC - IKEA 

Environmental Service Concepts, LLC - Montrose School 

Environmental Service Concepts, LLC - Natick Mall 

Environmental Service Concepts, LLC - Westgate Mall 

Steamship Authority 

Town of Sudbury 

Town of West Stockbridge 

American Society for Parenteral and Enteral Nutrition 

ANNE ARUNDEL COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

Anne Arundel County 

Anne Arundel County Public Schools 

Baltimore Collegetown Network 

Baltimore County Public Schools 

Board of County Commissioners of Washington County Maryland 

Carroll County Youth Service Bureau 

Casey Family Services 

Cecil County Public Schools 

Charles County Public Schools 

City of Annapolis 

City of Bowie Parks and Grounds Dept. 

City of Frederick 

City of Salisbury (MD) 

County of Baltimore 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - BETHESDA 

Dorchester County Public Schools 



Frederick County Government (MD) 

Harford County Maryland 

HOWARD COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

Howard County MD 

Howard County Public School System 

JOHNS HOPKINS UNIVERSITY 

LOYOLA COLLEGE IN MARYLAND 

Maryland Aviation Administration 

Maryland National Capital Park and Planning Commission 

MCDANIEL COLLEGE 

Montgomery College 

Montgomery County Fire and Rescue Service 

Montgomery County Maryland 

Montgomery County Public Schools 

North Hagerstown High School 

Prince George's County Government 

Prince George's County Public Schools 

SALISBURY UNIVERSITY 

State of Maryland 

The Annie E. Casey Foundation 

The Maryland-National Capital Park & Planning Commission 

The Walter P. Carter Center 

TOWSON UNIVERSITY 

UNIVERSITY OF MARYLAND-COLLEGE PARK 

Upper Montgomery Athletic Club (UMAC Baseball) 

Washington Research Library Consortium 

Washington Suburban Sanitary Commission 

WICOMICO COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

Wicomico County Health Department 

Wicomico County, Maryland 

Worcester County Board of Education 

Worcester County Health Dept. 

WOR-WIC COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

Youth Sport Soccer Association 

City of Westbrook 

COLBY COLLEGE 

Delta Ambulance Corporation 

ADRIAN COLLEGE 

ALBION COLLEGE 

ALMA COLLEGE 

Alpena County Sheriff's Office 

Ann Arbor Public Schools 

AQUINAS COLLEGE 

Armada Township Fire Department 

Auburn Hills Fire Department 

Bay County 

Beautiful Savior Lutheran Church 

Berkley Public Safety 

Birmingham Fire Department 

Birmingham Public Schools 

BLOOMFIELD HILLS POLICE DEPARTMENT 



Bloomfield Township Fire Dept. 

Bloomfield Township Police Dept. 

Branch Intermediate School District 

Brandon Fire Dept. 

Brighton Area Fire Authority 

Brother Rice High School 

CALVIN COLLEGE 

Cass County 

Cassopolis Public Schools 

Catholic Federal Credit Union 

Centreville Public Schools 

City of Auburn Hills 

City of Birmingham 

City of Dearborn 

City of Eastpointe 

City of Farmington 

City of Farmington Hills 

City of Frankfort 

City of Grosse Pointe 

City of Grosse Pointe Park 

City of Harper Woods 

City of Lansing 

City of Livonia 

City of Madison Heights 

City of Midland 

City of Northville 

City of Novi 

City of Oak Park 

City of Pontiac 

City of Portage, Michigan 

City of Riverview 

City of Rochester Hills 

City of Roseville 

City of Royal Oak 

City of Southfield 

City of St. Clair Shores 

City of Sterling Heights 

City of Taylor 

City of Troy 

City of Vassar - City Hall 

City of Walled Lake 

City of Warren 

City of Wixom 

Clarkston Brandon Credit Union 

Clinton Township Fire 

Commerce Township Fire Dept. 

Community Mental Health Authority Clinton-Eaton-Ingham Counties 

Concord EMS 

County of Macomb 

County of Saginaw 

County of St Clair, Michigan 



Cranbrook Educational Community 

Delhi Charter Township 

Delta Township Fire 

Durand Police Department 

ESA - Regional Marketing 

Farmington Dept. of Public Safety 

Ferndale Fire Rescue 

Foster, Swift, Collins & Smith 

Franklin-Bingham Fire Department 

Genesee County 

Genesee County Road Commission 

Grand Ledge Area Fire Department 

Grand Rapids Child Discovery Center - Aquinas College 

Groveland Township Fire 

Hackley Public Library 

Hamburg Police Department 

Hart EMS 

Hayes Township 

Hazel Park Fire 

Health Plus of Michigan 

Heart of the Lakes Center for Land Conservation 

Highland Township Fire 

Hillsdale College 

Holly Township 

HOPE COLLEGE 

Huron-Clinton Metropolitan Authority 

Independence Township Fire 

Ishpeming Volunteer Fire Department 

Kalamazoo Christian School Association 

KALAMAZOO COLLEGE 

Kawkawlin Township 

Kentwood Public Schools 

Lac Vieux Desert Band of Lake Superior Chippewa 

Lakeview School District 

LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

LAWRENCE TECHNOLOGICAL UNIVERSITY 

Leland Township Fire & Rescue 

Livingston County 

Livonia Fire & Rescue 

Looking Glass Regional Fire Authority 

Lutheran Homes of Michigan, Inc. 

Lyon Township Fire Department 

MACOMB COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

Madison Heights Fire 

MARYGROVE COLLEGE 

Mecosta County EMS 

Mendon Community Schools 

Michigan Colleges Foundation 

Michigan Institute of Aeronautics and Technology 

Michigan Tech Research Institute 

Midwest Eye-Banks 



Milford Fire 

Montmorency County 

Moody Bible Institute - WGNB 

Mt. Pleasant Fire Department 

North Oakland County Fire Authority 

NORTHWOOD UNIVERSITY 

Oak Park Public Safety 

Oakland County 

Oakland County Medical Control Authority (OCMCA) 

Oakland Township 

Oakland Township Fire 

OAKLAND UNIVERSITY 

OLIVET COLLEGE 

Orion Township Fire 

Oxford Fire 

Pine Knob Ski Patrol 

Plainfield Township Community Development 

POH Regional Medical Center 

Pontiac Fire 

Portage Public Schools 

Potterville/Benton Township Fire Department 
Resource Recovery and Recycling Authority of Southwest Oakland County 
(RRRASOC) 

Road Commission of Macomb County 

Rochester Community Schools 

Rochester Hills Fire 

Rockwood Police Dept 

Roseville Fire Department 

Royal Oak Fire Department 

Samaritan Homes 

Seasons Hospice & Palliative Care 

Shelby Township 

Shelby Township Fire 

Shrine Catholic Academy 

Southeastern Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority (SOCRRA) 

Southfield Public Schools 

SPRING ARBOR UNIVERSITY 

Spring Lake Public Schools 

St. Clair Shores Fire Dept. 

St. Joseph County Courthouse 

St. Luke Lutheran Church 

Star EMS 

State of Michigan 

Sterling Heights Fire 

Sturgis Public Schools 

Suburban Mobility Authority for Regional Transoportation (SMART) 

Sunfield-Danby-Sebewa Townships 

Superior Ambulance Service 

TRI-STATE UNIVERSITY-CENTREVILLE CAMPUS 

UNIVERSITY OF DETROIT MERCY 

Village of Holly 



Walled Lake Consolidated Schools 

Warren Fire Department 

Warren Police Department 

WASHTENAW COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

Waterford School District 

Waterford Township 

Waterford Township Fire Department 

Wayne County 

Wayne County Airport Authority 

WAYNE STATE UNIVERSITY 

West Bloomfield Township 

West Bloomfield Township Fire Department 

West Bloomfield Township Police 

White Lake Township Fire Department 

Williams Charter Township 

African American AIDS Task Force 

Carver County 

Cass County 

CENTRAL LAKES COLLEGE-BRAINERD 

Church of Saint Bartholomew Of Wayzata 

City of Andover 

City of Brooklyn Park 

City of Fairmont 

City of Fridley 

City of Maplewood 

City of Red Wing 

City of Skyline 

Clay County 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - EDINA 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - ST LOUIS PARK 

Family & Children's Service 

Global Language Institute 

Globe University Minnesota School Of Business 

Goodhue County 

Goodhue County District Court 

Goodhue County Social Services 

Gustavus Adolphus College 

Hennepin County Goverment Center--District Court 

HIRED 

Horizons Community Church 

Houston County 

Jewish Community Center 

Little Sisters of the Poor 

Lutheran Social Service of MN 

Mayo Clinic 

Meeker County 

Mille Lacs County Government 

Minnesota Council of Nonprofits 

MINNESOTA STATE UNIVERSITY-MANKATO 

Olmsted County 

Saint Paul College 



Second Harvest Heartland 

Shakopee High School 

Sherburne County Government Center 

South Washington County Schools - ISD 833 

St Paul Public School 

Stepping Stones 

THE FRENCH ACADEMY OF MN 

The MENTOR Network 

TSE, Inc. 

UNIVERSITY OF MINNESOTA-TWIN CITIES 

Volunteers of America-Minnesota 

Watonwan County Auditor 

WCA Foundation 

Winona County 

Zuhrah Shrine 

Applied Scholastics International 

AVILA UNIVERSITY 

Board of Police Commissioners Kansas City MO 

Carthage Police Department 

Carthage Water & Electric Plant 

Central Bible College 

Circuit Court of Jackson County 

City of Belton - Parks and Recreation Dept. 

City of Cape Girardeau 

City of Columbia (MO) 

City of Creve Coeur 

City of Farmington 

City of Hazelwood 

City of Independence (MO) 

City of Kansas City 

City of Kirkwood 

City of Lee's Summit MO 

City of Ozark 

City of Republic a Municipality 

City of Springfield 

City of St Joseph 

City of St. Charles, Missouri 

City of University City 

City of Webster Groves 

COLLEGE OF THE OZARKS 

Community of Christ 

County of Boone - Missouri 

County of Pettis 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - KANSAS CITY 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - KANSAS CITY DOWNTOWN 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - SAINT LOUIS DOWNTOWN 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - SAINT LOUIS WEST 

DRURY UNIVERSITY 

EAST CENTRAL COLLEGE 

First Baptist Church Ellisville 

Fort Zumwalt School District 



Girls Incorporated of St. Louis 

Glenwood Baptist Church 

HARRIS-STOWE STATE UNIVERSITY 

Hazelwood School District 

Home Builders Association of Greater Kansas City 

Jackson County Family Court 

JEFFERSON COLLEGE 

KANSAS CITY ART INSTITUTE 

Kirk of the Hills Presbyterian Chuch 

Larry Simmering Recovery Center 

Liberty Public School District #53 

LINDENWOOD UNIVERSITY 

Little Blue Valley Sewer District 

LOGAN COLLEGE OF CHIROPRACTIC 

MARYVILLE UNIVERSITY OF SAINT LOUIS 

MERS/Missouri Goodwill Industries 

METROPOLITAN COMMUNITY COLLEGES ADMIN SYSTEM OFF 

Mid County Fire Protection District 

Mid-America Payment Exchange 

Mid-America Regional Council 

MISSOURI BAPTIST UNIVERSITY 

MISSOURI BAPTIST UNIVERSITY - FRANKLIN COUNTY 

MISSOURI BAPTIST UNIVERSITY - TROY/WENTZVILLE 

Missouri State University 

Morningside Church, Inc. 

National World War One Museum at Liberty Memorial 

North Kansas City Schools 

NORTHWEST MISSOURI STATE UNIVERSITY 

OZARKS TECHNICAL COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

Pentecostal Church of God, Inc 

Platte County Health Department 

Portageville School District 

RANKEN TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

ROCKHURST UNIVERSITY 

Rockwood School District 

SAINT LOUIS UNIVERSITY-MAIN CAMPUS 

Second Baptist Church 

SOUTHWEST BAPTIST UNIVERSITY 

ST CHARLES COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

St. Charles Community College - Dept. of Workforce Development 

St. Charles Community College - General Motors 

St. Charles Community College - Northeast Correctional Center 

St. Charles County Government 

St. Louis County Government 

St. Paul's Lutheran Church 

The School District of Joplin R-VIII 

TRUMAN STATE UNIVERSITY 

United Way of Greater St. Louis 

UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL MISSOURI 

University of Missouri/Columbia - Audiology Clinic 

University of Missouri/Columbia - Columbia Regional Hospital 



University of Missouri/Columbia - Ellis Fischel Cancer Center 

University of Missouri/Columbia - Mason Eye Institute 

University of Missouri/Columbia - Medicine Clinic 

University of Missouri/Columbia - Regional Medical Assoc 

University of Missouri/Columbia - Urgent Care 

UNIVERSITY OF MISSOURI-COLUMBIA 

UNIVERSITY OF MISSOURI-KANSAS CITY 

UNIVERSITY OF MISSOURI-ROLLA 

UNIVERSITY OF MISSOURI-ST LOUIS 

UNIVERSITY OF MISSOURI-SYSTEMS OFFICE 

Urban League of Metropolitan St. Louis, Inc. 

WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY IN ST LOUIS 

WEBSTER UNIVERSITY 

WENTWORTH MILITARY ACADEMY 

WILLIAM JEWELL COLLEGE 

YMCA of Greater Kansas City 

BLUE MOUNTAIN COLLEGE 

Catholic Charities 

City of Moss Point 

City of Starkville 

DeSoto County Board of Supervisors 

DeSoto County Schools 

First Baptist Church Brandon 

Getwell Road United Methodist Church 

Gulf Coast Business Council 

Mission First, Inc 

Moody Bible Institute - WMBU 

Northcentral Mississippi Electric Power Association 

UNIVERSITY OF MISSISSIPPI MAIN CAMPUS 

City of Billings (MT) 

City of Livingston, MT 

Faith Chapel Church 

MONTANA STATE UNIVERSITY-BOZEMAN 

Arc Services 

BEAUFORT COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

CAMPBELL UNIVERSITY INC 

CATAWBA VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

CENTRAL PIEDMONT COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

Chatham County Sheriff's Office 

City Of Belmont 

City of Burlington 

City of Henderson 

City of Monroe (NC) 

City of Raleigh 

City of Salisbury (NC) 

CLEVELAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

Columbia International University - WRCM 

County of Currituck 

County of Stanly 

Crossway Community Church 

DAVIDSON COLLEGE 



Davidson County, NC 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - CHARLOTTE 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - RALEIGH 

DUKE UNIVERSITY 

EAST CAROLINA UNIVERSITY 

ELON UNIVERSITY 

Freedom House Recovery/Durham Center Access 

GARDNER-WEBB UNIVERSITY 

JOHNSON C SMITH UNIVERSITY 

Kate B. Reynolds Charitable Trust 

LOUISBURG COLLEGE 

McLeod Addictive Disease Center 

Montgomery Community College 

MOUNT OLIVE COLLEGE 

Neuse Regional Library 

NORTH CAROLINA STATE UNIVERSITY AT RALEIGH 

Pasquotank County 

PFEIFFER UNIVERSITY 

QUEENS UNIVERSITY OF CHARLOTTE 

Ravenscroft School 

Rockingham County Government (NC) 

Rowan County 

Rowan-Salisbury Schools 

Scotland County Government 

SOUTHEASTERN BAPTIST THEOLOGICAL SEMINARY 

St. Pius X Catholic School 

Town of Cary 

Town of Hope Mills 

Town of Indian Trail 

Town of Mount Pleasant (NC) 

Trinity School of Durham and Chapel Hill 

University of North Carolina - Charlotte 

UNIVERSITY OF NORTH CAROLINA AT GREENSBORO 

Vance Charter School 

WAKE FOREST UNIVERSITY 

Wake Forest University - Graylyn Conference Center 

Wake Forest University - Reynolda House Museum of American Art 

Burleigh County Social Services 

Cass County Government 

City of West Fargo / Police 

Fargo Police Department 

Fargo Public Schools 

Grand Forks County Social Services 

Hettinger Public School District #13 

Juvenile Court Administration Unit 2 (ND) 

Nester Davison Larson Architects 

North Dakota District Court 

All Our Kids, Inc. 

Bellevue Public Schools 

Brookside Church 

Child Saving Institute 



City of La Vista 

City of Lincoln 

City of Papillion, Nebraska 

COLLEGE OF SAINT MARY 

Community Blood Bank 

CREIGHTON UNIVERSITY 

Dodge County Attorney 

Douglas County 

Fontenelle Nature Association 

Good Samaritan Society-Millard 

Goodwill Industries 

Habitat for Humanity of Omaha, Inc. 

Hope Medical Outreach Coalition 

ITT TECHNICAL INSTITUTE 

Lancaster County 

Lincoln Airport Authority 

Lincoln Housing Authority 

Metropolitan Community College 

Millard Public Schools 

Mosaic 

Mosaic Community Development 

Nebraska Appleseed 

Nonprofit Association of the Midlands 

NORTHEAST COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

Omaha Home for Boys 

Omaha Public Power Company 

Papillion-La Vista School District 

Quality Living, Inc. 

Sarpy County, Nebraska 

Sisters of Mercy 

Southeast Community College 

The Center for Human Nutrition Inc 

Visiting Nurse Association 

Casey Family Services 

City of Concord 

City of Manchester 

Rochester Fire Department 

American Heart Association (NJ) 

Centrastate Healthcare System 

COLLEGE OF SAINT ELIZABETH 

COUNTY OF SUSSEX 

Delaware River Port Authority 

Department of Treasury 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - NORTH BRUNSWICK 

DREW UNIVERSITY 

Jewish Renaissance Foundation 

Lanoka Harbor Emergency Medical Service Inc 

PRINCETON UNIVERSITY 

Rutgers University - New Brunswick 

Town of West New York 

Township of Hamilton 



Alta Mira 

Calvary Chapel of Albuquerque 

CENTRAL NEW MEXICO COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

Characters Kids, Inc 

City of Albuquerque 

City of Rio Rancho 

City of Santa Fe 

Dona Ana County 

Los Alamos County 

Los Lunas Schools 

NEW MEXICO HIGHLANDS UNIVERSITY 

New Mexico Junior College 

North Central Solid Waste Authority 

Ohkay Casino Resort 

PUEBLO OF LAGUNA 

Rio Arriba County 

St. Pius X - Primary/Secondary Education 

The Catholic Foundation 

University of New Mexico Alumni 

University of New Mexico Foundation 

University of New Mexico Hospital 

UNIVERSITY OF NEW MEXICO-MAIN CAMPUS 

City of Las Vegas Nevada 

City of Reno 

College of Southern Nevada 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - HENDERSON 

Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority 

Las Vegas Valley Water District 

Regional Transportation Commission of Southern Nevada 

Sierra Behavioral Services 

State of Nevada 

Central NY Psychiatric Center 

City of Schenectady 

COLUMBIA UNIVERSITY IN THE CITY OF NEW YORK 

CUNY MEDGAR EVERS COLLEGE 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - LONG ISLAND 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - MANHATTAN 

Dutchess County Department of Public Works (DCDPW) 

EXCELSIOR COLLEGE 

Green Chimneys Children's Services 

HILBERT COLLEGE 

NEW YORK COLLEGE OF PODIATRIC MEDICINE 

SIENA COLLEGE 

SYRACUSE UNIVERSITY 

THE COLLEGE OF NEW ROCHELLE 

THE NEW SCHOOL 

UNION COLLEGE 

Waterfront Commission of New York Harbor 

Action for Children 

American Red Cross Summit County 

Ashtabula County Community Action Agency 



Aultman Hospital 

Berea City School District 

Brady Township Fire Department 

Brook Park Police Department 

Burdman Group, Inc. 

Cambridge/Guernsey County Visitors & Convention Bureau 

CASE WESTERN RESERVE UNIVERSITY 

Catholic Charities Community Services - HEAD START 

Cedarville University 

Central Ohio Youth For Christ 

City of Akron 

City of Athens Ohio 

City of Barberton 

City of Cambridge 

City of Circleville 

City of Cleveland 

City of Dayton, Division of Purchasing 

City of Dublin 

City Of Greenville 

City of Ironton 

City of Mentor (OH) 

City of Painesville 

City of Rittman 

City of Toledo 

Clermont County 

Cleveland Jewish News 

Cleveland Sight Center 

Columbia Heights United Methodist Church 

Columbus Heights United Methodist Church 

Columbus Regional Airport Authority 

Community Research 

Country Neighborhood Program, Inc. 

County of Summit 

County of Summit Board of MRDD 

Cuyahoga Special Education Service Center 

Cuyahoga Valley Christian Academy 

Dayton Area Chamber of Commerce 

DELAWARE AREA CAREER CENTER 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - CINCINNATI 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - CLEVELAND 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - COLUMBUS 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - COLUMBUS NORTH 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - DAYTON 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - SEVEN HILLS 

EHOVE Career Center 

ESA - Regional Marketing 

First Presbyterian Church of Marysville 

Frontier Community Services 

Geauga Credit Union, Inc. 

Greek Orthodox Cathedral 

Guernsey County Commissioners 



Hope Church 

Info Line, Inc. 

Jewish Family Services 

KENYON COLLEGE 

Knox County Department of Job & Family Services 

Lake County Dept of Central Purchasing 

Lake Erie Regional Cooperative 

Lifestages - Samaritan Centers for Women 

Lorain County 

Marion County Board of MR/DD 

Marysville Exempted Village Schools 

Marysville Public Library 

Miamisburg City Schools 

Middleburg Heights Police Department 

Moody Bible Institute - WCRF 

MOUNT UNION COLLEGE 

MRDD Fairfield County 

Mt. Moriah Missionary Baptist Church 

New Horizons Youth and Family Center 

NOACA 

North Royalton City Schools 

Northeast Ohio Regional Sewer 

Northeast Ohio Regional Sewer District 

Oakwood Junior High School 

Ohio Operating Engineers Apprenticeship & Training 

Ohio Right to Life Society 

OHIO STATE UNIVERSITY-MAIN CAMPUS 

Outville Presbyterian Church 

Pickaway County Community Action Organization, Inc. 

Pickaway County Sheriff's Office 

Pickaway Job & Family Services 

Planned Parenthood of Northeast Ohio 
Reubem McMillan Free Library Assoc. (Public Library of Youngstown & Mahoning 
County) 

Ritter Public Library 

Ross County Community Action Commission, Inc. 

St. Joseph's Federal Credit Union 

Stark County Regional Chapter American Red Cross 

Stonybrook United Methodist Church 

Summit City Children's Services 

Telecommunity Credit Union 

The Legal Aid Society of Cleveland 

The Presbytery of Scioto Valley 

THE WOMEN'S CLINIC OF COLUMBUS 

TRI-RIVERS CAREER CENTER AND CENTER FOR ADULT EDUCATION 

U-CO Industries, Inc & Union County Board of Developmental Disabilities 

Union County Family YMCA 

Village of Canal Winchester 

Village of Groveport 

Village of Waterville 

Vineyard Community Church 



Violet Township 

Walsh Jesuit High School 

WASHINGTON STATE COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

Wayne Township Fire and Rescue 

West Licking Joint Fire District 

Wyandot County Court of Common Pleas 

XAVIER UNIVERSITY 

XENOS FELLOWSHIP 

Ardmore Higher Education Center 

BACONE COLLEGE 

CAMERON UNIVERSITY 

CARL ALBERT STATE COLLEGE 

City of Broken Arrow 

City of Lawton 

City of Sapulpa 

CONNORS STATE COLLEGE 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - OKLAHOMA CITY 

EAST CENTRAL UNIVERSITY 

EASTERN OKLAHOMA COUNTY TECHNOLOGY CENTER 

EASTERN OKLAHOMA STATE COLLEGE 

LANGSTON UNIVERSITY 

McCurtain County Higher Education Program 

MERIDIAN TECHNOLOGY CENTER 

MURRAY STATE COLLEGE 

NORTHEASTERN OKLAHOMA AGRICULTURAL AND MECH COLL 

NORTHEASTERN STATE UNIVERSITY 

NORTHERN OKLAHOMA COLLEGE 

NORTHWESTERN OKLAHOMA STATE UNIVERSITY 

OKLAHOMA BAPTIST UNIVERSITY 

OKLAHOMA CITY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

OKLAHOMA PANHANDLE STATE UNIVERSITY 

Oklahoma State Regents for Higher Education 

OKLAHOMA STATE UNIVERSITY - TULSA 

OKLAHOMA STATE UNIVERSITY CENTER FOR HEALTH SCIENCES 

OKLAHOMA STATE UNIVERSITY-MAIN CAMPUS 

OKLAHOMA STATE UNIVERSITY-OKLAHOMA CITY 

OKLAHOMA STATE UNIVERSITY-OKMULGEE 

OKLAHOMA WESLEYAN UNIVERSITY 

ORAL ROBERTS UNIVERSITY 

REDLANDS COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

RES Care 

Rogers State University 

ROSE STATE COLLEGE 

SEMINOLE STATE COLLEGE 

SOUTHEASTERN OKLAHOMA STATE UNIVERSITY 

SOUTHWESTERN OKLAHOMA STATE UNIVERSITY 

State of Oklahoma - Central Purchasing Division 

Tahlequah City Hospital 

Tulsa City-County Library 

TULSA COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

Tulsa County 



UNIVERSITY OF CENTRAL OKLAHOMA 

UNIVERSITY OF OKLAHOMA COLLEGE OF LAW 

UNIVERSITY OF OKLAHOMA HEALTH SCIENCES CENTER 

UNIVERSITY OF OKLAHOMA NORMAN CAMPUS 

UNIVERSITY OF SCIENCE AND ARTS OF OKLAHOMA 

UNIVERSITY OF TULSA 

Washington County Health Department 

WESTERN OKLAHOMA STATE COLLEGE 

City of Coquille 

City of Corvallis Parks and Recreation Department 

City of Eugene 

City of Hillsboro 

City of Lebanon 

City of Portland 

City of Roseburg, City Hall 

City of Springfield 

City of Tigard 

Coos Forest Protective Association 

County of Yamhill School District 29J, dba Newberg School District 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - PORTLAND 

Eugene Water and Electric Board 

ITT TECHNICAL INSTITUTE 

Lane County School District No. 4J 

Linn County Printing Supply 

Multnomah County Sheriffs Office 

Northwest Regional Education Service District 

Oregon Legislative Administration 

Portland State University 

Shangri-La Corporation 

The Catlin Gabel School 

The City of Happy Valley Oregon 

Tillamook County Sheriff's Office 

accessAbilities Inc. 

Allegheny County Housing Authority 

ALVERNIA COLLEGE 

Armstrong School District 

Bensalem Township School District 

Birmingham Foundation 

Borough of Emsworth 

Borough of Sharpsburg 

BUCKNELL UNIVERSITY 

CABRINI COLLEGE 

Career Connections Charter High School 

Central Fulton School District 

Central Pennsylvania Food Bank 

Children's Home of Reading 

City of Pittsburgh 

COMMUNITY COLLEGE OF PHILADELPHIA 

Conemaugh Township Area School District 

County of Adams 

County Of Allegheny 



County of Bucks 

County of Cumberland 

County of Lehigh 

County of York PA 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - CHESTERBROOK 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - FORT WASHINGTON 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - PHILADELPHIA 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - PITTSBURGH 

DICKINSON COLLEGE 

DREXEL UNIVERSITY 

DUQUESNE UNIVERSITY 

Eden Christian Academy 

ELIZABETHTOWN COLLEGE 

Environmental Service Concepts, LLC 

GETTYSBURG COLLEGE 

Girl Scouts in the Heart of Pennsylvania 

GROVE CITY COLLEGE 

HARRISBURG AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE-HARRISBURG 

HARRISBURG UNIVERSITY OF SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY 

Highlands School District 

KINGS COLLEGE 

Lancaster City Housing Authority 

LEBANON VALLEY COLLEGE 

LINCOLN UNIVERSITY 

London Grove Township 

Manchester Bidwell Corporation 

Maronda Foundation 

Mars Home for Youth 

MEDVANCE INSTITUTE - PHILADELPHIA 

MESSIAH COLLEGE 

Milton Hershey School 

MUHLENBERG COLLEGE 

Philadelphia Biblical University - The Regency Foundation 

PHILADELPHIA BIBLICAL UNIVERSITY-LANGHORNE 

POINT PARK UNIVERSITY 

SAINT FRANCIS UNIVERSITY 

SAINT JOSEPHS UNIVERSITY 

School District of Pittsburgh 

Schreiber Pediatric Rehab Center 

Shaler Township 

South Eastern School District 

South Fayette Township School District 

Special People In Northeast, Inc. 

SUSQUEHANNA UNIVERSITY 

Ten Thousand Villages 

The Bradley Center 

The Children's Home of Reading/CHOR Youth and Family Services 

The School District of Philadelphia 

Township of O'Hara 

Township of Upper St. Clair 

Trinity Christian School 



UNIVERSITY OF SCRANTON 

VILLANOVA UNIVERSITY 

West Middlesex Area School District 

WESTMINSTER COLLEGE 

Westmoreland Casemanagement and Supports Inc. 

Woods Services 

YMCA of Greater Pittsburgh 

Town of East Greenwich 

Veterans of Foreign Wars 

ACT Medical Transport Services 

ANDERSON COLLEGE 

Beaufort County 

Bob Jones University 

CHARLESTON SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY 

City of Charleston 

City of Greenville 

Clarendon County 

CLEMSON UNIVERSITY 

COLUMBIA COLLEGE 

COLUMBIA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY 

Columbia International University - Ben Lippen School 

Columbia International University - WMHK 

ERSKINE COLLEGE AND SEMINARY 

FRANCIS MARION UNIVERSITY 

FURMAN UNIVERSITY 

LANDER UNIVERSITY 

LIMESTONE COLLEGE 

Limestone College - Charleston 

Limestone College - Columbia 

NORTH GREENVILLE COLLEGE 

Pilgrim Lutheran Church 

Porter-Gaud School 

PRESBYTERIAN COLLEGE 

Richland County 

SC School for the Deaf & Blind 

Spartanburg County Parks & Recreation 

SPARTANBURG METHODIST COLLEGE 

The Cooperative Ministry 

TN Development Corporations 

University of South Carolina Upstate 

WOFFORD COLLEGE 

Wren High 

Children's Home Society 

ESA - Educational Services of America - Sioux Falls Office 

Main Street Sioux Falls, Inc. 

Rapid City Rushmore Plaza Civic Center 

Sioux Valley Energy 

Anchor High Sales 

AUSTIN PEAY STATE UNIVERSITY 

Baptist Healing Hospital Trust 

BELMONT UNIVERSITY 



BLOUNT COUNTY GOVERNMENT 

Blount County Habitat for Humanity 

Blue Raider Athletic Association 

Buffalo Valley, Inc. 

CARSON-NEWMAN COLLEGE 

CHATTANOOGA STATE TECHNICAL COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

Cherokee Health Systems 

CHRISTIAN BROTHERS UNIVERSITY 

CHURCH OF GOD THEOLOGICAL SEMINARY 

City of Bartlett, TN 

City of Clarksville 

City of Cleveland 

City of Columbia Tennessee 

City of Franklin 

City of Gallatin 

City of Germantown 

City of Hendersonville 

City of Knoxville 

City of Memphis 

City of Morristown 

City of Rockwood 

City of Sevierville 

CLEVELAND STATE COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

COLUMBIA STATE COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

Consolidated Utility District 

Cookeville Regional Medical Center 

CRICHTON COLLEGE 

Cumberland University 

DAVID LIPSCOMB UNIVERSITY 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - MEMPHIS 

Dickson County Sheriff's Office 

Drescher & Sharp, PC 

Dyer County Sheriff's Office 

DYERSBURG STATE COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

EAST TENNESSEE STATE UNIVERSITY 

Elkton Police Department 

ESA - Educational Services of America 

Family Eye Med 

FREED-HARDEMAN UNIVERSITY 

Hardin County Regional Health Center DBA: Lifespan Health 

HIWASSEE COLLEGE 

Horizon Resource Group, Inc. 

JACKSON STATE COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

JOHNSON BIBLE COLLEGE 

KING COLLEGE 

Knox County Government 

Knox County Public Defender 

Knoxville's Community Development Corporation 

LAMBUTH UNIVERSITY 

LEE UNIVERSITY 

MARTIN METHODIST COLLEGE 



MARYVILLE COLLEGE 

Matthew Walker Comprehensive Health Center 

MEDVANCE INSTITUTE - NASHVILLE 

MEDVANCE INSTITUTE-COOKEVILLE 

MEMPHIS COLLEGE OF ART 

MIDDLE TENNESSEE STATE UNIVERSITY 

MILLIGAN COLLEGE 

Moody Bible Institute - WMBW 

MOTLOW STATE COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

NASHVILLE STATE TECHNICAL COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

NORTHEAST STATE TECHNICAL COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

PELLISSIPPI STATE TECHNICAL COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

ProVision Foundation 

Putnam County Tennessee 

RHODES COLLEGE 

Roane County Sheriff's Office 

ROANE STATE COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

Rutherford County Government 

Rutherford County Primary Care & Hope Clinic 

SEWANEE: THE UNIVERSITY OF THE SOUTH 

Shelby County Government 

SOUTHERN ADVENTIST UNIVERSITY 

Southwest Human Resource Agency 

SOUTHWEST TENNESSEE COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

TENNESSEE BOARD OF REGENTS 

TENNESSEE STATE UNIVERSITY 

TENNESSEE TECHNOLOGICAL UNIVERSITY 

TENNESSEE TECHNOLOGY CENTER AT ATHENS 

TENNESSEE TECHNOLOGY CENTER AT COVINGTON 

TENNESSEE TECHNOLOGY CENTER AT CROSSVILLE 

Tennessee Technology Center at Crump 

TENNESSEE TECHNOLOGY CENTER AT DICKSON 

TENNESSEE TECHNOLOGY CENTER AT ELIZABETHTON 

TENNESSEE TECHNOLOGY CENTER AT HARRIMAN 

TENNESSEE TECHNOLOGY CENTER AT HARTSVILLE 

TENNESSEE TECHNOLOGY CENTER AT HOHENWALD 

TENNESSEE TECHNOLOGY CENTER AT JACKSBORO 

TENNESSEE TECHNOLOGY CENTER AT JACKSON 

TENNESSEE TECHNOLOGY CENTER AT JACKSON/LEXINGTON 

TENNESSEE TECHNOLOGY CENTER AT KNOXVILLE 

TENNESSEE TECHNOLOGY CENTER AT LIVINGSTON 

TENNESSEE TECHNOLOGY CENTER AT MCKENZIE 

TENNESSEE TECHNOLOGY CENTER AT MCMINNVILLE 

TENNESSEE TECHNOLOGY CENTER AT MEMPHIS 

TENNESSEE TECHNOLOGY CENTER AT MORRISTOWN 

TENNESSEE TECHNOLOGY CENTER AT MURFREESBORO 

TENNESSEE TECHNOLOGY CENTER AT NASHVILLE 

TENNESSEE TECHNOLOGY CENTER AT NEWBERN 

TENNESSEE TECHNOLOGY CENTER AT ONEIDA-HUNTSVILLE 

TENNESSEE TECHNOLOGY CENTER AT PARIS 

TENNESSEE TECHNOLOGY CENTER AT PULASKI 



TENNESSEE TECHNOLOGY CENTER AT RIPLEY 

TENNESSEE TECHNOLOGY CENTER AT SHELBYVILLE 

TENNESSEE TECHNOLOGY CENTER AT WHITEVILLE 

THE UNIVERSITY OF TENNESSEE 

THE UNIVERSITY OF TENNESSEE-CHATTANOOGA 

THE UNIVERSITY OF TENNESSEE-MARTIN 

Town of Dandridge (TN) 

TREVECCA NAZARENE UNIVERSITY 

Trevecca Nazarene University - WENO, Inc. 

Two Rivers Church 

United Methodist Publishing 

UNIVERSITY OF MEMPHIS 

UNIVERSITY OF TENNESSEE HEALTH SCIENCE CENTER 

UNIVERSITY OF TENNESSEE SPACE INSTITUTE 

UNIVERSITY OF TENNESSEE SYSTEM OFFICE 

VANDERBILT UNIVERSITY 

Vivid Restaurant Concepts. LLC 

VOLUNTEER STATE COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

WALTERS STATE COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

Watkins College of Art and Design 

White House Utility District 

Williamson County Government 

Wilson County EMA 

Wilson County Sheriffs Department 

Argyle United Methodist Church 

Athletic Orthopedics & Knee Center 

AUSTIN COLLEGE 

Bannockburn Baptist Church 

BAYLOR COLLEGE OF MEDICINE 

BAYLOR UNIVERSITY 

Bee County District Clerks Office 

Bethany Lutheran Church 

Bexar Metropolitan Water District 

Border Region MHMR 

Bowie Cass Electric Cooperative 

Brazoria County 

Cameron County 

Canutillo Independent School District 

Central Baptist Church 

Central Counties Center for MHMR Services 

Christian Life Center 

Cielo Vista Church 

City of Arlington 

City of Baytown 

City of Beaumont 

City of Burleson 

City of Castroville 

City of Cedar Hill 

City of Dallas 

City of Fort Worth 

City of Galveston 



City of Houston 

City of Irving 

City of Leander 

City of Leon Valley 

City of McAllen 

City of Mesquite 

City of Nassau Bay 

City of Nederland 

City of Pflugerville 

City of Rowlett Texas 

City of Seabrook 

City of Sherman 

City of Sunset Valley 

City of The Colony, Texas 

College Houses 

Collin County (TX) 

Computer Career Center 

Concord Missionary Baptist Church 

Concordia Academy High School 

County of Travis 

Cross Mountain Church 

Dallas Center for the Performing Arts 

DALLAS THEOLOGICAL SEMINARY 

Denton County 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - AUSTIN 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - FT. WORTH 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - HOUSTON 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - HOUSTON GALLERIA 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - IRVING 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - PLANO 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - SAN ANTONIO 

Disability Services of the Southwest, Inc. 

East El Paso Physicians Medical Center 

EAST TEXAS BAPTIST UNIVERSITY 

Easter Seals Central Texas 

EL PASO COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

EL PASO COUNTY WATER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT #1 

El Paso Diabetes Association 

El Paso Federation of Teachers 

El Paso Water Utilities Public Service Board 

Episcopal School of Dallas-Private College Preparatory Institution 

ESA - College of Living Experience 

ESA - Regional Marketing 

Fellowship of the Woodlands 

Frontera Women's Foundation 

Galveston County 

Grace Bible Church 

Grace Christian Fellowship Church, Inc. 

Greater Houston Radiation Oncology, PA 

Gulf Coast Community Services Association 

HARDIN-SIMMONS UNIVERSITY 



Harris County - Texas 

HIDALGO COUNTY W.I.C. PROGRAM 

Highland Park Baptist Church 

Houston Arts Alliance 

Humble Area 1st Baptist Church 

Imaging El Paso 

Katyville Healthcare Center 

Kerr County 

Kerr County Courthouse 

Lake Highlands Wildcat Club 

LETOURNEAU UNIVERSITY 

LifeGate Church 

LON MORRIS COLLEGE 

LONE STAR COLLEGE - CY-FAIR 

LONE STAR COLLEGE - CY-FAIR - Fairbanks Center 

LONE STAR COLLEGE - KINGWOOD 

LONE STAR COLLEGE - KINGWOOD - EMCID CTR 

LONE STAR COLLEGE - MONTGOMERY 
LONE STAR COLLEGE - MONTGOMERY - Center for Business & Technology 
Training 

LONE STAR COLLEGE - NORTH HARRIS - Carver Center 

LONE STAR COLLEGE - NORTH HARRIS - Parkway Center 

LONE STAR COLLEGE - NORTH HARRIS - South Campus 

LONE STAR COLLEGE - TOMBALL 

LONE STAR COLLEGE - TOMBALL - Willow Chase Center 

LONE STAR COLLEGE - UNIVERSITY CENTER 

LONE STAR COLLEGE SYSTEM 

Lower Valley Water District 

Mansfield Independent School District 

Maverick County 

MCMURRY UNIVERSITY 

MEDVANCE INSTITUTE-HOUSTON 

Modesto A. Gomez Inc. 

Mothers Against Drunk Driving - MADD 

Mt. West Health Center, P.A. 

National Society of Hispanic MBA's 

North Central Texas Council of Governments 

North Texas Municiple Water District 

Northwest Assistance Ministries 

Northwest Church of Christ 

Oaks Medical Center 

OUR LADY OF THE LAKE UNIVERSITY-SAN ANTONIO 

Our Lady of the Valley Parish 

Our Lady of the Valley School 

Plano Independent School District 

Prestonwood Baptist Church 

ProAction, Inc. 

Red River Federal Credit Union 

Redeemer Lutheran Church 

Reeves County Detention Center 

Relief Enterprise, Inc. 



RICE UNIVERSITY 

Safetech 

SAINT EDWARD'S UNIVERSITY 

San Elizario Independent School District 

SAN JACINTO COLLEGE DISTRICT 

SAN JACINTO COLLEGE NORTH 

SAN JACINTO COLLEGE SOUTH 

SAN JACINTO COLLEGE-CENTRAL CAMPUS 

San Lorenzo Parish 

Schreiner University 

Smith Industries 

SOUTHERN METHODIST UNIVERSITY 

Speaking Rock Entertainment Center 

ST MARYS UNIVERSITY 

St. Pius X School 

Tallowood Baptist Church 

TEXAS A & M INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY 

TEXAS A & M UNIVERSITY SYSTEM HEALTH SCIENCE CTR 

TEXAS A & M UNIVERSITY-COMMERCE 

TEXAS CHIROPRACTIC COLLEGE FOUNDATION INC 

TEXAS CHRISTIAN UNIVERSITY 

Texas State Senate 

TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY-SAN MARCOS 

The John Cooper School 

THE UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS AT DALLAS 

The Woodlands Township 

Tip O' Texas Federal Credit Union 

Tornillo Independent School District 

Town of Clint 

Travis Central Appraisal District 

University Heights Baptist Huntsville 

UNIVERSITY OF DALLAS 

UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-UNIVERSITY PARK 

UNIVERSITY OF MARY HARDIN-BAYLOR 

University of North Texas 

UNIVERSITY OF ST THOMAS 

University of Texas  Inter-Cooperative Council, Inc. 

Upper Rio Grande Workforce Development 

Walnut Ridge Baptist Church 

WEST TEXAS A & M UNIVERSITY 

Western Technical College 

WHARTON COUNTY JUNIOR COLLEGE 

WILEY COLLEGE 

Williamson Central Appraisal District 

Box Elder County Sheriff's Office 

City of Cedar Hills (Cedar Hills Golf Course) 

Clinton City Corporation 

Corp of the City of Salem 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - SANDY 

Draper City 

Fox Hollow Golf Course 



Lehi City Corporation 

North Davis Fire District 

North Salt Lake City (UT) 

Payson City Corporation 

Salt Lake City Corporation 

Salt Lake County Parks & Recreation 

Tooele City Corporation 

UTAH STATE UNIVERSITY 

Utah Transit Authority 

Wasatch Mental Health 

Alexandria City Public Schools 

American Academy of Otolaryngology - Head and Neck Surgery Foundation 

Arlington County 

Bishop O'Connell High School 

Campbell County Purchasing 

Central Station Alarm Association 

Charlottesville City Schools 

Chesapeake Public Schools 

Chesterfield County Virginia 

City of Alexandria 

City of Charlottesville 

City of Chesapeake 

City of Falls Church 

City of Hampton 

City of Harrisonburg, VA 

City of Lynchburg 

City of Manassas 

City of Norfolk 

City of Richmond Department of Procurement Services 

City of Staunton 

City of Suffolk 

City of Virginia Beach 

Colonial Heights City Public Schools 

Commonwealth Care (Dinwiddie Nursing Home) 

County of Culpeper 

County of Isle of Wight, Virginia 

County of Loudoun, Virginia 

County of Spotsylvania, Virginia 

County of Stafford 

County of York, VA 

Cumberland Mountain Community Services 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - ARLINGTON 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - MCLEAN 

Fairfax County Public Schools 

Fauquier County Government & Public Schools 

GEORGE MASON UNIVERSITY 

Gilbane Development Company 

Goochland County 

Goochland County Public Schools 

Hampton Roads Sanitation District 

Hampton Roads Soccer Council 



Henry County 

James City County 

JAMES MADISON UNIVERSITY 

Laser Skin & Surgery Center 

Loudoun County Public Schools 

Louisa County Water Authority 

Manassas City Public Schools 

Memorial Child Guidance Clinic 

Montgomery County Government 

National Association for College Admission Counseling 

NATIONAL-LOUIS UNIVERSITY - Alexandria VA Campus 

New Kent County 

Norfolk Public Schools 

Old Dominion University 

Patient Advocate Foundation 

Peninsula Airport Commission 

Prince William County 

Prince William County Schools 

RANDOLPH-MACON COLLEGE 

Richmond Lenox EMS 

Richmond Redevelopment and Housing Authority 

Roanoke County Administration 

Saint Patrick Catholic School 

Stratford University 

Summit Christian Academy 

SWEET BRIAR COLLEGE 

The George Washington University 

Tidewater Community College 

Town of Front Royal 

Upper Occoquan Sewage Authority 

Virginia Beach City Public Schools 

Virginia Commonwealth University 

Virginia Department of Transportation 

VIRGINIA POLYTECHNIC INSTITUTE AND STATE UNIV 

Western Tidewater Community Services 

Casey Family Services 

City of Bonney Lake 

City of East Wenatchee 

City of Enumclaw 

City of Lacey 

City of Richland 

City of Yakima 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - BELLEVUE 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - FEDERAL WAY 

Fall City Little League 

Fort Vancouver Regional Library District 

Grant County Port District #1 

KING COUNTY GOVERNMENT 

Moody Bible Institute - KMBI 

Moody Bible Institute - MBI Northwest 

Olympia School District 111 



Panorama Cty 

PIERCE COLLEGE AT FORT STEILACOOM 

Pierce County 

Richland School District 

Seattle Housing Authority 

SOUTH PUGET SOUND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

Spokane County 

St. Martin's University 

UNIVERSITY OF PUGET SOUND 

American Cancer Society 

Barron County 

Bethel Lutheran Church 

Burnett County 

Center for Independent Living for Western Wisconsin, Inc. 

Chippewa County 

City of Brookfield 

City of Delavan 

City Of Eau Claire 

City of Hudson/St. Croix E.M.S. 

City of La Crosse (WI) 

City of Marinette 

City of Menomonie 

City of Oak Creek 

City of Oconomowoc Parks and Forestry 

City of Oshkosh Purchasing 

City of Prescott 

City of Racine, Wisconsin 

City of River Falls 

City of Waukesha 

City of Wauwatosa 

City of West Bend 

City of West Bend---West Bend Community Memorial Library 

Community Relations-Social Development Commission (CR-SDC) 

Crawford County 

Crestview Academy 

DeForest Area School District 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - MILWAUKEE 

DEVRY UNIVERSITY - WAUKESHA 

Eau Claire County 

FAMILY SERVICES 

Fox West YMCA 

GATEWAY TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

Jefferson Elementary School 

Kaukauna Utilities 

Kenosha County 

Kenosha Unified School District No. 1 

Langlade County Government 

LAWRENCE UNIVERSITY 

Literacy Volunteers 

Lorman Business Center 

Lutheran Social Services of Wisconsin & Upper Michigan Inc. 



MADISON AREA TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

MARQUETTE UNIVERSITY 

Menominee Indian  Tribe of Wisconsin 

Nathan Hale High School 

NATIONAL-LOUIS UNIVERSITY - Beloit WI Campus 

NATIONAL-LOUIS UNIVERSITY - Milwaukee WI Campus 

NICOLET AREA TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

Nicolet High School District 

NORTHCENTRAL TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

NORTHLAND BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Oregon School District 

Outagamie County 

Ozaukee County 

Pepin County 

PHILADELPHIA BIBLICAL UNIV-WISCONSIN WILDERNESS 

Pierce County (WI) 

Polk County (WI) 

Portage County 

R & B ACADEMY 

Racine Unified School District 

River View Middle Scool 

School District of Altoona 

School District of Amery (WI) 

School District of Elmbrook 

SCHOOL DISTRICT OF OMRO 

St. Croix County 

Stoughton Area School District 

Town of Grand Chute 

United Way of Greater Milwaukee 

Village of Brown Deer 

Village Of Greendale 

Washburn County 

Waukesha School District 

Williams Bay School District 

Wilmot Union High School 

APPALACHIAN BIBLE COLLEGE 

BETHANY COLLEGE 

Clarksburg Parks & Recreation 

FAIRMONT STATE UNIVERSITY 

GLENVILLE STATE COLLEGE 

John Marshall High School 

Marshall County Commission 

Marshall County Parks and Recreation (Grand Vue Park) 

MARSHALL UNIVERSITY 

Raleigh County West Virginia 

United Way Alliance of the Mid-Ohio Valley 

WEST VIRGINIA NORTHERN COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

WEST VIRGINIA STATE UNIVERSITY 

WEST VIRGINIA UNIVERSITY 

West Virginia University - Extension Service Safety & Health Extension 

WHEELING JESUIT UNIVERSITY 



Wheeling Park Commission 

Wood County West Virginia 

Sheridan County 

UNIVERSITY OF WYOMING 

 



   

ARF-3008     Consent Agenda Item      4. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/17/2015  

Submitted For: Linda O'Dell, School Superintendent 
Submitted By: Linda O'Dell, School Superintendent, School Superintendent's Office
Department: School Superintendent's Office
Fiscal Year: FY2015-FY2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1,
2014-June 30,
2016

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Intergovernmental Agreement Contract No. KR13-0132-Amendment #1 for Title I and
Other Associated Funds for Juvenile Detention Education Services with the Arizona
Supreme Court.

Background Information
The Administrative Office of the Courts (AOC), on behalf of the Superior Courts for all
counties and the superintendents of schools for each county, has applied for and
received $1,315,937.90 as a sub-grant from the Arizona Department of Education
(ADE) pursuant to PL 107-1110, the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 2001
(ESEA) and other federal programs, including Title I-D, Prevention and Intervention
Programs for Children and Youth Who Are Neglected, Delinquent or At-Risk; Title I-A,
Teacher and Principal Training and Recruitment Fund; Part B IDEA Basic (Special
Education); Special Education Secure Care; and other associated funds.  The purpose
of the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) is to define the responsibilities for the
parties in the development of education programs and the use of funds for Gila County
in the amount of $36,786, which represents a portion of the funds sub-granted to the
AOC and is set forth in the attached Exhibits A-1 and A-2.  Involved parties are the
Arizona Supreme Court through the Administrative Office of the Courts, the Gila
County Board of Supervisors, the Gila County School Superintendent, and the Gila
County Superior Court through the Juvenile Court.  This IGA becomes effective on the
date of the final signature and terminates on June 30, 2016.

Evaluation
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) Contract No. KR13-0132 Amendment #1 has been
reviewed by the Assistant Attorney General of the Office of the Attorney General,
pursuant to A.R.S. 11-952, who has determined that it is in the proper form, under
the laws of the State of Arizona.  The IGA includes thirty-three (33 sections), including
Recitals; Purpose; Authority; Term and Renewal; Duties of the AOC, Courts and
Superintendent; Fund Accounting, Program Reporting and Expenditures; and other
contractual elements.  Recitals reflect that the AOC, on behalf of the Superior Courts



for all counties in Arizona and the superintendents of schools for each county, applies
for and received $1,315,937.90 as a sub-grant from the Arizona Department of
Education (ADE for fiscal year 2014/2015 and 2015/2016, respectively.  The portion
of these funds allocated to Gila County is $36,786, which represents a portion of the
funds sub-granted to the AOC and is set forth in the attached Exhibits A-1 and A-2.

Conclusion
Approval of Intergovernmental Agreement Contract No. KR13-0132 Amendment #1
with the Arizona Supreme Court is required in order for the School Superintendent to
submit it to the Arizona Supreme Court, Administrative Office of the Courts for final
signatures and subsequent receipt of funds.

Recommendation
The Gila County School Superintendent recommends that the Board of Supervisors
approve Intergovernmental Agreement Contract No. KR13-0132 Amendment #1 with
the Arizona Supreme Court in order to support continued services for the Juvenile
Detention Education Program.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 1 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No.
KR13-0132) between the Arizona Supreme Court, Administrative Office of the Courts
(AOC), and the Gila County Board of Supervisors through the County School
Superintendent for Title I, Special Education, and other associated funds in the
amount of $36,786 to support the Gila County Juvenile Detention Education Program
effective upon the date of final signature through June 30, 2016.

Attachments
Amendment #1 to IGA #KR13-0132
Exhibit A-1 Budget Allocation
Exhibit A-2 Budget Description
IGA KR13-0132
Legal Explanation



















































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   
ARF-2981     Consent Agenda Item      4. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/17/2015  

Submitted For: Paula Horn 
Submitted By: Paula Horn, Deputy Director of Prevention Services, Health & Emergency Services Division
Department: Health & Emergency Services Division Division: Prevention Services
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

01-01-15 through 07-13-2017 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Intergovernmental Agreement Contract No. ADHS13-028437 Amendment No. 1 with Arizona Department of Health
Services.

Background Information
The Arizona Department of Health Services (ADHS) Bureau of Women’s & Children’s Health (BWCH) formed a task
force to define a system-wide strategy for the future development and delivery of quality home visiting services
throughout Arizona. Gila County was identified as a community that lacks local infrastructure that would make it a
good candidate for home visiting programs.
The initial contract was signed by the Board of Supervisors on 08/20/12.

Evaluation
This funding will allow Gila County to support local “target communities” to build capacity to provide home visiting
services to at-risk families. Gila County will support coordinated home visiting service delivery, sharing of resources
and information, and efficiently referring community members across programs.  The amendment has the following
changes; 

Personnel decreased by $500.00 for a total of $79,500.00. The line item is inclusive of ERE and
salary based on a recent salary and compensation study completed by Gila County;
Professional & Outside Services decreased by $143,800.00 for a total of $5,200.00 due to
eliminating of marketing services that have been eliminated during the 2015 budget cycle;
Travel Expenses has no change.
Other Operating Expenses increased by $1,027.00 for a total of $3,027.00 due to due to a larger
need of material for trainings and a one-day professional development conference in April of 2015;
Capital Outlay decreased by $2,000.00 to $0.00 due to no longer a need for 2015; and
Indirect (if authorized) in now funded for a total of $9,273.00. Gila County is allocating this amount
for indirect cost of this funding.

Conclusion
Without this funding we would be unable to provide the coordinated home visitation program services.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Director of Health and Emergency Services that the Board of Supervisors approve
Amendment No. 1 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS13-028437) between Gila County and
Arizona Department of Health Services in the amount of $102,000 for the period of January 1, 2015, through July
31, 2017.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 1 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS13-028437) between Gila
County and the Arizona Department of Health Services decreasing the total Agreement amount from $238,000 to
$102,000 for the period of January 1, 2015, through July 31, 2017, that is used to provide for the Maternal, Infant,
and Early Childhood Home Visiting program.

Attachments

Amendment No. 1



Amendment No. 1
Original Contract
Legal Explanation



 1 

 

 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 

AMENDMENT 

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 
HEALTH SERVICES 

1740 W. Adams, Room 303 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

(602) 542-1040 
(602) 542-1741 Fax 

Contract No: ADHS13-028437  Amendment No.  1 
Procurement Officer 

Sue-Anne Tan 
 

Maternal, Infant, and Early Childhood Home Visiting  
 

 

Effective January 1, 2015, it is mutually agreed that the IGA referenced is amended as follows: 
 
1. The Price Sheet of the Agreement is replaced with the revised Price Sheet of this Amendment One (1).  The IGA Item 

Pricing shall be revised in ProcureAZ to align with available funding upon execution of this Amendment One (1).  The IGA 
line item pricing total decreased from  $238,000.00  to $102,000.00 based on the following line item changes: 

 
1.1 Personnel decreased by $500.00 for a total of $79,500.00.  The line item is inclusive of ERE and Salary based on a 

recent salary and compensation study completed by Gila County; 
 

1.2 Professional & Outside Services decreased by $143,800.00 for a total of $5,200.00 due to eliminating of marketing 
services that have been eliminated during the 2015 budget cycle; 

  
1.3 Travel Expenses has no change; 

 

 
All other provisions of this IGA remain unchanged. 

 

 

 
Gila County Health Services 

 CONTRACTOR SIGNATURE 
 

 

 

Contractor Name 

 
1400 E. Ash Street 

Contractor Authorized Signature 

Address 
 

Globe                                   AZ                     85501 

Printed Name 

City                                                       State                             Zip Title 

CONTRACTOR ATTORNEY SIGNATURE 

Pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952, the undersigned public agency attorney 
has determined that this Intergovernmental Agreement is in proper 
form and is within the powers and authority granted under the laws of 
the State of Arizona.  
 
 

 This Intergovernmental Agreement Amendment shall be effective the 
date indicated. The Public Agency is hereby cautioned not to commence 
any billable work or provide any material, service or construction under 
this IGA until the IGA has been executed by an authorized ADHS 
signatory. 

State of Arizona 

 

Signed this ______ day of _______________________ 201__ 

 

Signature                                                          Date 

 
 

Printed Name Procurement Officer 

 
Attorney General Contract No. P0012014000078, which is an 
Agreement between public agencies, has been reviewed pursuant to 
A.R.S. § 11-952 by the undersigned Assistant Attorney General, who 
has determined that it is in proper form and is within the powers and 
authority granted under the laws of the State of Arizona.   
 

 

 RESERVED FOR USE BY THE SECRETARY OF STATE 
 

Under House Bill 2011, A.R.S. § 11-952 

was amended to remove the requirement  

that Intergovernmental Agreements be filed  

with the Secretary of State. 

 

 
Signature                                                                             Date 
Assistant Attorney General 
 
Printed Name:  

ccates
Typewritten text
Michael A. Pastor

ccates
Typewritten text
Chairman, Board of Supervisors

ccates
Typewritten text
Bryan B. Chambers, Deputy County Attorney/Civil Bureau Chief 



 

 2 

 

 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 

AMENDMENT 

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 
HEALTH SERVICES 

1740 W. Adams, Room 303 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

(602) 542-1040 
(602) 542-1741 Fax 

Contract No: ADHS13-028437 Amendment No. 1 
Procurement Officer 

Sue-Anne Tan 
 

1.4 Other Operating Expenses increased by $1,027.00 for a total of $3,027.00 due to due to a larger need of material 
for trainings and a one (1) day professional development conference in April of 2015; 

 
1.5 Capital Outlay decreased by $2,000.00 to $0.00 due to no longer a need for 2015; and 

 
1.6 Indirect (if authorized) in now funded for a total of $9,273.00. Gila County is allocating this amount for indirect 

 cost of this funding. 
 

2. Pursuant to Terms and Conditions, Provision 4.12 of IGA, Scrutinized Business, is hereby deleted in its entirety. 
 

3. Pursuant Terms and Conditions, Provision 7.3 of IGA, Indemnification – Patent and Copyright, is hereby deleted in its 
entirety. 
 

4. Pursuant Terms and Conditions, Provision Fifteen (15), Fingerprint and Certification Requirements/Juvenile Services, is 
hereby deleted in its entirety. 

 
5. Pursuant to the Terms and Conditions, Provision Eighteen (18), Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 

1996 of the IGA is hereby replaced with the following language: 
 
18.  Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) 
 

The Contractor warrants that it is familiar with the requirements of HIPAA, as amended by the Health Information 
Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act (HITECH Act) of 2009, and accompanying regulations and will 
comply with all applicable HIPAA requirements in the course of this Contract.  Contractor warrants that it will 
cooperate with the Arizona Department of Health Services (ADHS) in the course of performance of the Contract so 
that both ADHS and Contractor will be in compliance with HIPAA, including cooperation and coordination with the 
Arizona Department of Administration-Arizona Strategic Enterprise Technology (ADOA-ASET) Office, the ADOA-
ASET Arizona State Chief Information Security Officer and HIPAA Coordinator and other compliance officials 
required by HIPAA and its regulations.  Contractor will sign any documents that are reasonably necessary to keep 
ADHS and Contractor in compliance with HIPAA, including, but not limited to, business associate agreements. 

 
If requested by the ADHS Procurement Office, Contractor agrees to sign a “Pledge To Protect Confidential 
Information” and to abide by the statements addressing the creation, use and disclosure of confidential information, 
including information designated as protected health information and all other confidential or sensitive information as 
defined in policy.  In addition, if requested, Contractor agrees to attend or participate in HIPAA training offered by 
ADHS or to provide written verification that the Contractor has attended or participated in job related HIPAA training 
that is: (1) intended to make the Contractor proficient in HIPAA for purposes of performing the services required and 
(2) presented by a HIPAA Privacy Officer or other person or program knowledgeable and experienced in HIPAA and 
who has been approved by the ADOA-ASET Arizona State Chief Information Security Officer and HIPAA 
Coordinator. 
 

6. Provision Twenty (20), Authorization for Provision of Services, is hereby added to the Terms and Conditions of the IGA:  
 

20.  Authorization for Provision of Services  
 

Authorization for purchase of services under this Agreement shall be made only upon ADHS issuance of a Purchase 
Order that is signed by an authorized agent.  The Purchase Order will indicate the Agreement number and the dollar 
amount of funds authorized.  The Contractor shall only be authorized to perform services up to the amount on the 
Purchase Order.  ADHS shall not have any legal obligation to pay for services in excess of the amount indicated on 
the Purchase Order.  No further obligation for payment shall exist on behalf of ADHS unless a) the Purchase Order 
is changed or modified with an official ADHS Procurement Change Order, and/or b) an additional Purchase Order is 
issued for purchase of services under this Agreement. 

 
  

 



 

 3 

  

 

 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 

AMENDMENT 

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 
HEALTH SERVICES 

1740 W. Adams, Room 303 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

(602) 542-1040 
(602) 542-1741 Fax 

Contract No: ADHS13-028437 Amendment No. 1 
Procurement Officer 

Sue-Anne Tan 

 
Price Sheet 

As of January 1, 2015 
 

Gila County Health Services  
 
 

Cost Reimbursement Line Item Budget 
 

ACCOUNT CLASSIFICATION AMOUNT 

Personnel Services $ 79,500.00 

Professional and Outside Services $ 5,200.00 

Travel Expenses $ 5,000.00 

Other Operating Expenses $ 3,027.00 

Capital Outlay Expenses $ 0.00 

Other (Indirect Costs) $ 9,273.00 

  

TOTAL $ 102,000.00 

 
 

With prior written approval from the Program Manager, the Contractor is authorized to transfer up to a 
maximum of ten percent (10%) of the total budget amount between line items. Transfers of funds are 
only allowed between funded line items. Transfers exceeding ten percent (10%) or to a non-funded line 
item shall require a Contract Amendment. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 























































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-2988     Consent Agenda Item      4. C.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/17/2015  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan 
Submitted By: Leitha Griffin, Administrative Assistant, Community Services Division
Department: Community Services Division Division: Administration

Information
Request/Subject
Intergovernmental Agreement between Gila County and the Town of Kearny.

Background Information
Access Points are employment information centers which were launched by the Department of Labor
under the Workforce Investment Act.  The initiative was part of an effort to create local outreach centers
where job seekers could access workforce development services in their local communities.  This concept
created a unique opportunity for community agencies and the One-Stop System to engage and partner
to promote access to the workforce system.

An incentive grant from the Arizona Department of Economic Security shall fund this initiative.

Evaluation
While each Access Point offers a unique set of resources (depending on the participating partners), all
Access Points offer free computer and Internet access for the purpose of job searching.  Access Points
connect job seekers to both employment and community resources in a convenient location and close to
home.

Gila County agrees to provide: 

access to employment resources;
training to help job seekers with job search;
personal contacts in and connections to the One-Stop Centers, staff and key partners;
inspection of the locations and signage for location;
training of staff to help job seekers with job search activities;
equipment maintenance;
supplies, Access Point signage; and
desktop computers (Microsoft Program with Internet access), printer, computer desk and
chair

(Access Point) agrees to: 

host a publicly accessible Access point consisting of a computer with Internet access and
Point of Contact trained by workforce system staff;
help job seekers as needed and staff availability;
publicize job seeker services to the Access Point's community;
send staff to initial training;
submit sign-in sheets monthly to document activities;
assure that it will take reasonable precautions to ensure hardware, software, and/or other
equipment remain secure and in good repair;
abide by all applicable federal, state and local laws; and
refer customers to the One-Stop and supportive services as needed

Conclusion
The purpose of this Intergovernmental Agreement is to establish a local Access Point at the Town



The purpose of this Intergovernmental Agreement is to establish a local Access Point at the Town
of Kearny.  Under the Workforce Investment Act, the "Access Point" model consists of local
entities/organizations/ and/or business where job services can be provided, assisted by trained
individuals.

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors
approve this Intergovernmental Agreement for the period from January 1, 2015, through June 30, 2015.

Suggested Motion
Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement between Gila County and the Town of Kearny, whereby the
Town of Kearny Library will become a designated "Access Point" under the Workforce Investment Act for
the period of January 1, 2015, through June 30, 2015.

Attachments
IGA-Town of Kearny
Legal Explanation













 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   
ARF-2984     Consent Agenda Item      4. D.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/17/2015  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan 
Submitted By: Leitha Griffin, Administrative Assistant, Community Services Division
Department: Community Services Division Division: Administration
Fiscal Year: 2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

January 14, 2015 - September 30, 2015 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Independent Contractor Agreement 2015 Utility Assistance Programs Contract No. 01142015 with Arizona
Community Action Association.

Background Information
Arizona Community Action Association (ACAA) is a 501 (c) (3) non profit agency created in 1967 to address poverty
across Arizona.  Through a collaboration of nearly 300 organizations and individuals, ACAA develops and
implements strategies to address and ultimately eliminate poverty.

The Community Action Program (CAP) launched in 1964, as part of President Lyndon B. Johnson's Economic
Opportunity Act to fight poverty by empowering the poor, a program to provide weatherization services, utility repair
and replacement, utility deposits, and bill assistance to eligible clients residing in Gila County.

Evaluation
Contract No. 01142015 will administer energy program funding from ACAA in the amount of $9,000 to Gila
County CAP to be used to provide weatherization services, utility repair and replacement, utility deposits, and bill
assistance to eligible citizens residing in Gila County.

Conclusion
By the Board of Supervisors approving this contract, the Gila County CAP program will receive funding to be used to
provide eligible citizens residing in Gila County with services that promote economic self sufficiency.

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve this
contract.

Suggested Motion
Approval of an Independent Contractor Agreement - 2015 Utility Assistance Programs (Contract No. 01142015)
between the Arizona Community Action Association (ACAA) and the Gila County Community Services Division,
Community Action Program, whereby ACAA will administer funding in the amount of $9,000 which will be used to
 provide weatherization services, utility repair and replacement, utility deposits, and bill payment assistance to
eligible citizens residing in Gila County for the period of January 14, 2015, through September 30, 2015.

Attachments

2015 Utility Assistance Program Contract 01142015
Exhibit B
Exhibit A
Legal Explanation





























 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



   
ARF-2991     Consent Agenda Item      4. E.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/17/2015  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan 
Submitted By: Leitha Griffin, Administrative Assistant, Community Services Division
Department: Community Services Division Division: Administration
Fiscal Year: FY 2014/15 & Program Year 2014-2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

January 19, 2015- June 30, 2015 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Memorandum of Understanding between Gila County and Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce.

Background Information
Access Points are employment information centers which were launched by the Department of Labor under the
Workforce Investment Act (WIA).  The initiative was part of an effort to create local outreach centers where job
seekers could access workforce development services in their local communities.  This concept created a unique
opportunity for community agencies and the WIA One-Stop System to engage and partner to promote access to the
workforce system.

An incentive grant from Arizona Department of Economic Security shall fund this initiative.

Evaluation
While each Access Point offers a unique set of resources (depending on the participating partners), all Access Points
offer free computer and Internet access for the purpose of job searching.  Access Points connect job seekers to both
employment and community resources in a convenient location and close to home.

Gila County agrees to provide: 
access to employment resources;
training to help job seekers with job search;
personal contacts in and connections to the One-Stop Centers, staff and key partners;
inspection of the locations and signage for location;
training of staff to help job seekers with job search activities;
equipment maintenance;
supplies, Access Point signage; and
desktop computers (Microsoft Program with Internet access), printer, computer desk and chair
 
(Access Point) agrees to:  
host a publicly accessible Access Point consisting of a computer with Internet access and Point of
Contact trained by workforce system staff;
help job seekers as needed and staff availability;
publicize job seeker services to the Access Point’s community;
send staff to initial training;
submit sign-in sheets monthly to document activities;
assure that it will take reasonable precautions to ensure hardware, software, and/or other equipment remain
secure and in good repair;
abide by all applicable federal, state and local laws; and 
refer customers to the One-Stop and supportive services as needed.

Conclusion
The purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding is to establish a local Access Point at the Greater
Florence Chamber of Commerce.  Under the Workforce Investment Act, the "Access Point" model consists of local
entities/organizations and/or businesses where job services can be provided, assisted by trained individuals.

Recommendation
Recommendation to approve the Memorandum of Understanding between Gila County and Greater



Recommendation to approve the Memorandum of Understanding between Gila County and Greater
Florence Chamber of Commerce to become an "Access Point" under the Workforce Investment Act for the period of
January 19, 2015 through June 30, 2015.

Suggested Motion
Approval of a Memorandum of Understanding between Gila County and Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce,
whereby Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce will become a designated "Access Point" under the Workforce
Investment Act for the period of January 19, 2015, through June 30, 2015.

Attachments

MOU-Greater Florence
Legal Explanation













 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



   

ARF-3002     Consent Agenda Item      4. F.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/17/2015  

Submitted For: Adam Shepherd, Sheriff 
Submitted By: Sarah White, Chief Administrative Officer, Sheriff's Office
Department: Sheriff's Office
Fiscal Year: FFY 2014 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

October 1, 2014
through
September 30,
2015

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Subgrantee Agreement No. 14-AZDOHS-HSGP-140302-02 for Critical Incident
Responder Safety and Health-Dive Team between Arizona Department of Homeland
Security and the Gila County Sheriff's Office.

Background Information
On February 18, 2014, the Gila County Sheriff's Office electronically submitted a grant
application in the amount of $37,375 to the Arizona Department of Homeland Security
(AZDOHS) for the project titled "Critical Incident Responder Safety and Health-Dive
Team."  On May 6, 2014, the Board of Supervisors ratified the approval of the grant
application in the amount of $37,375 for the project titled "Critical Incident Responder
Safety and Health-Dive Team". The grant funds will be used for SCUBA equipment for
the Sheriff's Office Dive Team.

Evaluation
The Gila County Sheriff's Office received written notification on January 14, 2015, from
the State of Arizona Department of Homeland Security that the application submitted
on February 18, 2014 by the Sheriff's Office has been partially awarded. The project
titled "Critical Incident Responder Safety and Health-Dive Team" has been partially
funded under the Homeland Security Grant Program in the amount of $35,375. The
performance period is October 1, 2014, through September 30, 2015.

Conclusion
The Gila County Sheriff's Office has been awarded $35,375 from the State of Arizona
Department of Homeland Security for the Critical Incident Responder Safety and
Health-Dive Team Project to purchase SCUBA equipment for the Sheriff's Office Dive
Team.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd that the Board of Supervisors



It is the recommendation of Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd that the Board of Supervisors
accept Subgrantee Agreement No. 14-AZDOHS-HSGP-140302-02 for Critical Incident
Responder Safety and Health-Dive Team Project between Arizona Department of
Homeland Security and the Gila County Sheriff's Office in the amount of $35,375 for
the performance period of October 1, 2014, through September 30, 2015.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Subgrantee Agreement No. 14-AZDOHS-HSGP-140302-02 between Arizona
Department of Homeland Security and the Gila County Sheriff's Office in the amount
of $35,375 for the Critical Incident Responder Safety and Health-Dive Team Project for
a performance period of October 1, 2014, through September 30, 2015.

Attachments
Subgrantee Agreement No. 14-AZDOHS-HSGP-140302-02
Award Letter
Grant Program Application 
Legal Explanation































































































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-3007     Consent Agenda Item      4. G.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/17/2015  

Submitted For: Adam Shepherd, Sheriff 
Submitted By: Sarah White, Chief Administrative Officer, Sheriff's Office
Department: Sheriff's Office
Fiscal Year: FFY 2014 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

October 1, 2014
through
September 30,
2015

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Subgrantee Agreement No. 14-AZDOHS-HSGP-140302-01 for Communications
Upgrade-Dispatch between Arizona Department of Homeland Security and the Gila
County Sheriff's Office.

Background Information
On March 5, 2014, the Gila County Sheriff's Office electronically submitted a grant
application in the amount of $77,738 to the Arizona Department of Homeland Security
(AZDOHS) for the project titled "Communications Upgrade-Dispatch." On May 6, 2014,
the Board of Supervisors ratified the approval of the grant application in the amount of
$77,738 for the project titled "Communications Upgrade-Dispatch." The grant funds
will be used to purchase C-Software to upgrade the Dispatch Centers in Globe and
Payson.

Evaluation
The Gila County Sheriff's Office received written notification on January 14, 2015, from
the State of Arizona Department of Homeland Security that the application submitted
on March 5, 2014, by the Sheriff's Office has been partially awarded. The project titled
"Communications Upgrade-Dispatch" has been partially funded under the Homeland
Security Grant Program in the amount of $25,912. The performance period is October
1, 2014, through September 30, 2015.

Conclusion
The Gila County Sheriff's Office has been awarded $25,912 from the State of Arizona
Homeland Security for the Communications Upgrade-Dispatch Project to purchase
C-Software to upgrade the Dispatch Centers in Payson and Globe.

Recommendation
Gila County Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd recommends that the Board of Supervisors



Gila County Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd recommends that the Board of Supervisors
accept Subgrantee Agreement No. 14-AZDOHS-HSGP-140302-01 for Communications
Upgrade-Dispatch Project between Arizona Department of Homeland Security and the
Gila County Sheriff's Office in the amount of $25,912 for the performance period of
October 1, 2014, through September 30, 2015.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Subgrantee Agreement No. 14-AZDOHS-HSGP-140302-01 between Arizona
Department of Homeland Security and the Gila County Sheriff's Office in the amount
of $25,912 for the Communications Upgrade-Dispatch Project for a performance period
of October 1, 2014, through September 30, 2015.

Attachments
Sub Grantee Agreement Reallocation No. 13-AZDOHS-HSGP-130302-01
Award Letter 
Grant Program Application 
Legal Explanation































































































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-3010     Consent Agenda Item      4. H.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/17/2015  

Submitted For: Adam Shepherd, Sheriff 
Submitted By: Sarah White, Chief Administrative Officer, Sheriff's Office
Department: Sheriff's Office
Fiscal Year: FFY 2013 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

January 1,
2015 through
July 31, 2015

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Subgrantee Agreement-Reallocation No. 13-AZDOHS-HSGP-130301-02 for
Communications Upgrade-Dispatch between Arizona Department of Homeland
Security and the Gila County Sheriff's Office.

Background Information
On March 5, 2014, the Gila County Sheriff's Office electronically submitted a grant
application in the amount of $77,738 to the Arizona Department of Homeland Security
(AZDOHS) for the project titled "Communications Upgrade-Dispatch." On May 6, 2014,
the Board of Supervisors ratified the approval of the grant application in the amount of
$77,738 for the project titled "Communications Upgrade-Dispatch." The grant funds
will be used to purchase C-Software to upgrade the Dispatch Centers in Globe and
Payson. 

Evaluation
The Gila County Sheriff's Office received written notification on January 14, 2015, from
the State of Arizona Department of Homeland Security that the application submitted
on March 5, 2014, by the Sheriff's Office has been partially awarded. The project titled
"Communications Upgrade-Dispatch" has been partially funded under the Homeland
Security Grant Program in the amount of $25,912. The performance period is October
1, 2014, through September 30, 2015. On January 14, 2015, the Sheriff’s Office
received written notification from the State of Arizona Department of Homeland
Security that they had received an additional $12,956 in reallocated funds for the
performance period of January 1, 2015, through July 31, 2015.

Conclusion
The Gila County Sheriff's Office has been awarded an additional $12,956 in
reallocation funds from the State of Arizona Homeland Security for the
Communications Upgrade-Dispatch Project to purchase C-Software to upgrade the
Dispatch Centers in Payson and Globe.



Recommendation
Gila County Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd recommends that the Board of Supervisors
accept Subgrantee Agreement-Reallocation No. 13-AZDOHS-HSGP-130301-02 for
Communications Upgrade-Dispatch Project between Arizona Department of Homeland
Security and the Gila County Sheriff's Office in the amount of $12,956 for the
performance period of January 1, 2015, through July 31, 2015.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Subgrantee Agreement-Reallocation No. 13-AZDOHS-HSGP-130301-02
between Arizona Department of Homeland Security and the Gila County Sheriff's Office
in the amount of $12,956 for the Communications Upgrade-Dispatch Project for a
performance period of January 1, 2015, through July 31, 2015.

Attachments
Sub Grantee Agreement Reallocation No. 13-AZDOHS-HSGP-130301-02
Award Letter
Grant Program Application 
Legal Explanation































































































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   
ARF-2986     Consent Agenda Item      4. I.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/17/2015  
Submitted For: Eric Mariscal, Director 
Submitted By: Cate Gore, Administrative Clerk, Elections Department
Department: Elections Department

Information
Request/Subject
Appointment of Precinct Committeemen to the Gila County Republican
Party.

Background Information
A.R.S 16-821 (B) provides if a vacancy exists in the office of the precinct
committeemen, the vacancy shall be filled by the Board of Supervisors
from a list of names submitted by the County Chairman of the
appropriate political party.

Evaluation
Three new individuals have been submitted by the Gila County
Republican Committee Chair  for the appointment to the office of precinct
committeemen.  Per statute, the Board of Supervisors has the authority to
make these appointments.

Conclusion
The Gila County Republican Party Chairman has submitted Laura
Bartlett-Armstrong, Dawn Brunson and Michael White for appointment
by the Board of Supervisors.

Recommendation
The Elections Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve
the appointments as submitted by the Gila County Republican Committee.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the following precinct committeemen appointments as
submitted by the Gila County Republican Committee:  Star Valley - Laura
Bartlett-Armstrong; Star Valley - Dawn Brunson; and, Star Valley -
Michael White.



Attachments
Rep PC
Statute











   
ARF-3005     Consent Agenda Item      4. J.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/17/2015  
Reporting
Period:

January 2015

Submitted For: Ruben Mancha, Globe Regional Constable 
Submitted By: Kimberly Rust, Constable Clerk, Constable - Globe

Regional

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for January 2015

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the January 2015 monthly activity report submitted
by the Globe Regional Constable's Office.

Attachments
Globe Regional Constable's Office Montly Report for January 2015

































   
ARF-3021     Consent Agenda Item      4. K.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/17/2015  
Reporting
Period:

January 2015

Submitted For: Colt White, Payson Regional Constable 
Submitted By: Michelle Keegan, Administrative Clerk Senior, Constable

- Payson Regional

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for January 2015

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the January 2015 monthly activity report submitted
by the Payson Regional Constable's Office

Attachments
Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for January 2015





























































   
ARF-3015     Consent Agenda Item      4. L.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/17/2015  
Reporting
Period:

January 20, 2015

Submitted For: Marian Sheppard 
Submitted By: Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk, Clerk of the Board of

Supervisors

Information
Subject
January 20, 2015, Board of Supervisors' meeting minutes. 

Suggested Motion
Approval of the January 20, 2015, Board of Supervisors' meeting minutes.

Attachments
BOS 01-20-15 Meeting Minutes



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  January 20, 2015 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN  By: Laurie J. Kline 
Vice-Chairman                                                              Deputy Clerk 
 
JOHN D. MARCANTI                                                 Gila County Courthouse 
Member         Globe, Arizona                          
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
(via telephone); John D. Marcanti, Member; Don E. McDaniel, Jr., County 
Manager; Bryan B. Chambers, Deputy County Attorney/Civil Bureau Chief; 
Marian E. Sheppard, Clerk of the Board; and Laurie J. Kline, Deputy Clerk.   
 
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - INVOCATION  
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a regular session at 10:00 a.m. 
this date in the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  Jeff Hessenius led the 
Pledge of Allegiance and Reverend Rula Colvin of St. Paul’s United Methodist 
Church in Globe delivered the invocation.   

  
Item 2 – PRESENTATIONS:  
 
A.  Introduction of County Supervisors Association (CSA) President Clint 
Hickman by Craig Sullivan, CSA Executive Director.  
 
Craig Sullivan, CSA Executive Director, stated that CSA is a service 
organization that works for the County Supervisors at the Arizona State 
Capitol.  He added that the key to the CSA operation is the participation of all 
of the Arizona counties.  He then stated that Gila County is well represented in 
the operation which helps CSA to serve the County.  Mr. Sullivan added that 
CSA has an Executive Committee of which Vice-Chairman Tommie Martin 
serves as First Vice President.  Mr. Sullivan then introduced Maricopa County 
Supervisor and CSA President, Clint Hickman.   
 
Mr. Hickman provided a brief overview of his history and stated that he comes 
from a third generation Arizonan egg farming family.  He was looking forward 
to meeting the Gila County Supervisors and other county supervisors, and 
working together with legislators regarding relevant issues that impact the 
counties, such as cost shifts in highway user revenue funds.   

Page 1 of 7 
 



Chairman Pastor stated that he was pleased to have Mr. Hickman as the leader 
of the CSA team.  Vice-Chairman Martin stated that Mr. Hickman is a 
marvelous addition to the leadership team, and that it will be a pleasure 
working with him.  Supervisor Marcanti stated that he appreciated Mr. 
Hickman making the trip to Globe to attend the Board meeting today.   
 
Item 3 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action for the Board of Supervisors to 
consider affirming, modifying or reversing the decision of the Gila County 
Hearing Officer regarding Community Development Division Complaint 
No. HCP1402-003 on property at 4909 N. German Road in Strawberry. 
 
Bob Gould, Community Development Division Director, provided an update on 
the installation of a septic system at the subject property.  He advised that 
excavation of the tank has been completed and the trenching for the 
installation of the tank leach lines and piping to the septic system distribution 
box (D-Box) had been started.  Due to recent rainfall, all work on the project 
has ceased.  The ground is too soft to complete the trenching to the D-Box, and 
the truck that belongs to Payson Concrete Company, which was scheduled to 
deliver the septic tank, is out of service and awaiting repair with an estimated 
return-to-operation date of two weeks, as of January 9, 2015.  Once the truck 
is repaired, the septic tank can be installed contingent on the ground drying 
out enough to support the weight of the truck.  Mr. Gould advised that because 
so much progress has been made on this project and due to recent rainfall, he 
recommended that the Board allow an additional two weeks to complete the 
project upon recommencement of the work.  
 
Chairman Pastor inquired if this truck was the only truck available to deliver 
the septic tank, to which Mr. Gould replied that is the only truck available in 
the area to deliver the septic tank.  Chairman Pastor then asked for an 
approximate timeframe for the completion of this project.  Mr. Gould replied 
that he believes the work could commence in approximately two weeks, which 
would be enough time to let the ground dry, and that it would require a total of 
two weeks to complete the project.  Vice-Chairman Martin commented that it is 
unfortunate there was heavy rainfall which delayed the project, and the rain 
also may have been a factor in the truck failing.  Once the truck is repaired, 
she believes two weeks is an ample amount of time to complete the project.  
Supervisor Marcanti agreed that the project is so close to completion that he 
doesn’t have a problem allowing more time for the ground to dry enough to 
complete the installation of the septic system. 
 
Chairman Pastor stated that the Board has no problem setting a two-week time 
limit for completion of the project once the septic tank is placed into the 
ground.  Mr. Gould expressed his confidence that this issue could be presented 
to the Board on a meeting agenda for the second week in February, which is 

Page 2 of 7 
 



the Board’s February 17th meeting, in order for the Board to take a final action 
on this case.  Chairman Pastor complimented efforts made by Mr. Wicks to 
rectify this issue of non-compliance and then he asked for a motion from the 
Board.  Vice-Chairman Martin made the following motion, “Mr. Chair, I move 
that we do accept the recommendation of Bob Gould on getting a two-week 
extension starting on the day that the Payson Concrete truck can set the tank 
and to be able to sign off on that project.”  Supervisor Marcanti seconded the 
motion which was unanimously approved by the Board.   
 
B.  Information/Discussion/Action to appoint Donald R. Voakes as a 
Hearing Officer for the Community Development Division’s Code 
Enforcement Program.   
 
Mr. Gould stated that staff highly recommends appointing Mr. Donald R. 
Voakes to replace Jim Weeks as a Hearing Officer for the Community 
Development Division Code Enforcement Program.  Mr. Weeks is retiring and 
has recommended Mr. Voakes as his replacement.  Mr. Gould listed some of 
Mr. Voakes’ relevant work history and recommended the appointment.   
 
Vice-Chairman Martin agreed that Mr. Voakes is an excellent choice to follow 
Mr. Weeks.  She recommended that the Board schedule a meeting with Mr. 
Voakes, perhaps during a Board work session, in order to provide him with the 
Board’s vision and direction with regard to code enforcement.  She added that 
it would be nice to send a card to Mr. Weeks thanking him for his many years 
of service to the County, to which the Board members agreed.   
 
Supervisor Marcanti stated that Mr. Voakes was highly qualified for this 
position and he was sure that Mr. Voakes would do a good job for the County.   
 
Chairman Pastor asked County Manager Don McDaniel to set up a work 
session agenda item in order to discuss the goals and direction of the Board 
with Mr. Voakes.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-
Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously appointed Donald R. Voakes as a 
Hearing Officer for the Community Development Division’s Code Enforcement 
Program.   
 
C.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of 
Request for Proposals No. 111714 for the purchase of one new or used 
hydraulic tail equipment trailer.   
 
Jeff Hessenius, Finance Division Director, stated that this item is to seek Board 
authorization to advertise the Request for Proposals in the Arizona Silver Belt, 
which is the official County newspaper for 2015.  The lift trailer currently in 
use by the Public Works Division was purchased in the late 1990s and it is not 
hydraulic; therefore, it is difficult for one individual to operate it, both from a 

Page 3 of 7 
 



practicality standpoint as well as a safety standpoint.  He added that this 
expenditure was included in the 2015 fiscal year budget.  
 
Vice-Chairman Martin agreed that this piece of equipment was needed and she 
added that she didn’t know of a time when the Public Works Division staff 
requested a piece of equipment that wasn’t needed.   
 
Supervisor Marcanti stated that he feels that purchasing a new hydraulic lift 
trailer would be safer for County employees and, overall, more cost effective for 
the County. 
 
Mr. Hessenius added that the Public Works Division will sell the existing piece 
of equipment at an auction once a new hydraulic lift trailer is acquired.   
 
Chairman Pastor inquired as to the location that the newly acquired lift trailer 
would be housed.  Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director, replied that 
this would be an additional lift trailer for use in the Timber Region (northern 
Gila County) of the County which is identical to the lift trailer that is being 
used in the Copper Region (southern Gila County).  He affirmed that the 
existing lift trailer would be auctioned once a new lift trailer is received.  Upon 
motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board 
unanimously authorized the advertisement of Request for Proposals No. 
111714 for the purchase of one new or used hydraulic tail equipment trailer.   
 
D.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No. 2 to an 
Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS13-034421) between the 
Arizona Department of Health Services and Gila County in the amount of 
$191,708 for the continued provision of Teen Pregnancy Prevention 
Program services for the period of January 1, 2015, through December 31, 
2017.   
 
Michael O’Driscoll, Health and Emergency Services Division Director, stated 
that the goal of this grant is to reduce teen pregnancy in Gila County.  He 
stated that Gila County has the second highest teen pregnancy rate in Arizona; 
however, the number of teen pregnancies in Gila County has decreased 
significantly over the last 10 years.  The amendment as described above will 
assist in continuing to fund the Teen Pregnancy Prevention Program, which 
over the last 12 months has reached approximately 1,500 teen students in the 
County.   
 
Vice-Chairman Martin inquired as to the use of early detection measures to 
ensure that the program is on track and is successful in reducing the number 
of teen pregnancies in the County.  Mr. O’Driscoll replied that over the last 10 
years the current Arizona prevention programs have reduced the number of 
teen pregnancies by approximately 30%.  He stated that the hope is to double 
the number of schools that participate in the prevention programs and to 

Page 4 of 7 
 



provide age-appropriate training in the schools.  Vice-Chairman Martin 
requested that a work session be scheduled to discuss the changes that have 
been made to this program and any accompanying results.  Chairman Pastor 
asked Mr. McDaniel to accommodate Vice-Chairman Martin’s request. 
 
Supervisor Marcanti inquired as to the number of County staff responsible for 
delivering the prevention programs to the schools.  Mr. O’Driscoll explained 
that currently there are five grants which only allow one particular employee to 
teach one particular curriculum in the schools.  The change is that the State 
has agreed to consolidate the grants and allow the County to choose the 
prevention program(s) that an individual school chooses to have presented in 
the school.  Currently there are four employees that go into the schools and 
present one particular program of which there are two teen pregnancy experts, 
one in Payson and one in Globe.  It is hoped that with the consolidation of the 
specific grants into one intergovernmental agreement, it will allow for five 
employees to deliver these preventions program services to the County schools.   
 
Supervisor Marcanti inquired as to the effectiveness of the same employee 
presenting to different school-aged students.  Mr. O’Driscoll replied that he is 
using Pinal County’s best practices as a model to implement what will be 
termed the School Liaison Program.  He stated that the prevention programs 
staff will be sent to the Pinal County training session along with the training 
provided by the State in order to become certified in training in these particular 
programs before going into the schools and teaching the curriculum.  It is also 
beneficial that staff meets with school administrators and they choose the 
curriculum to be brought into the schools.   
 
Chairman Pastor inquired as to the type of curriculum that would be presented 
to elementary, middle, and high school students, and to the public.  Mr. 
O’Driscoll replied that the presentations would be age appropriate, for example, 
elementary students would be taught food safety, and high school students 
would be presented with teen pregnancy prevention information.  There are 
programs that have been developed by the State for middle school-age students 
and he plans to meet with administrators to discuss the information that 
would be appropriate to present to the students.  Currently, these programs 
are not available to the public because the consolidation of the grants has not 
yet been approved by the State.  A meeting with the all of the Arizona counties 
and the State is scheduled in February 2015 to discuss consolidating the grant 
programs.   He added that all 16 Gila County school administrators have 
indicated an interest in implementing prevention program curriculum trainings 
into the schools.   
 
Chairman Pastor inquired as to whether the County employees were aware that 
these programs are 100% grant funded, so their employment may end if any of 
the grant programs end.  Mr. O’Driscoll replied that the employees are aware of 
that fact; however, he doesn’t foresee the funding ending anytime soon.  Upon 

Page 5 of 7 
 



motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board 
unanimously approved Amendment No. 2 to an Intergovernmental Agreement 
(Contract No. ADHS13-034421) between the Arizona Department of Health 
Services and Gila County in the amount of $191,708 for the continued 
provision of Teen Pregnancy Prevention Program services for the period of 
January 1, 2015, through December 31, 2017.   
 
Item 4 – CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the Consent 
Agenda will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted 
upon as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the 
Board of Supervisors.)  
 
A.  Approval of a technical amendment revising the language in 
Intergovernmental Agreement No. 071414 from "City of Globe-Globe 
Active Adult Center" to "City of Globe through the Globe Active Adult 
Center."  
 
B.  Approval of Amendment No. 2 to an Intergovernmental Agreement 
(Contract No. ADHS13-040496) between Gila County and the Arizona 
Department of Health Services to continue to provide HIV care and 
support services to Gila, Apache and Navajo Counties for the period 
of April 1, 2014, through March 31, 2015.  
 
C.  Acknowledgment of the December 2014 monthly activity report 
submitted by the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.  
 
D.  Acknowledgment of the December 2014 monthly activity report 
submitted by the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.  
 
E.  Acknowledgment of the November 2014 monthly activity report 
submitted by the Recorder's Office.  
 
F.  Approval of the January 6, 2015, Board of Supervisors' meeting 
minutes.  
 
G.  Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been 
approved by the County Manager for the weeks of December 22, 2014, 
to December 26, 2014; and December 29, 2014 to January 2, 2015.  
 
H.  Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of 
January 13, 2015, and January 20, 2015.  
 
January 13, 2015 
 
$148,050.81 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 267275 
through 267348. 

Page 6 of 7 
 



 
January 20, 2015 
 
$1,496,600.443 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 267349 
through 267482.  (An itemized list of disbursements is permanently on file 
in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the 
Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda action items 4-A through 4-H. 
 
Item 5 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 
benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any 
issue within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members 
may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 
conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 
of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 
addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 
future date.  
 
There were no comments from the public. 
 
Item 6 – At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager 
may present a brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken 
on issues presented. 
 
Each Board member and the County Manager presented information on 
current events.   
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 10:45 a.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 

Page 7 of 7 
 



   
ARF-2999     Consent Agenda Item      4. M.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 02/17/2015  
Reporting
Period:

January 23, 2015; and January 30, 2015

Submitted For: Jeff Hessenius, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator, Finance Division

Information
Subject
Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks
Ending 01-23-15; and 01-30-15.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been approved
by the County Manager for the weeks of January 19, 2015, to January
23, 2015; and January 26, 2015 to January 30, 2015.

Attachments
Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under 50,000 for
Weeks Ending 1-23-15 and 1-30-15
Amendment to acknowledge Norchem name change
Support & Maintenance Agreement #37473CONSVR-HOV Services
Amendment #2-High Country Drywall
Amendment 3-Atwell Group
Contract No. 121214-2-American Fence
Contract No. 010815-Willdan Homeland Solutions
Contract No. 121114IBR-Loyds Marine
Authorization to utilize State Contract with Midway Chevrolet
Professional Service Agreement No. 121014-3-Jean Turney-Shaw



  
Page 1 

 
  

COUNTY MANAGER APPROVED CONTRACTS UNDER $50,000 
 
 
January 19, 2015 to January 23, 2015 

Number/Vendor Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

Technical Resource 
Management, Inc. 

Dba 
Norchem Drug Testing 

 

 
Amendment to 

acknowledge Norchem 
name change 

 

 
N/A 

 
07-1-14 to 6-30-15 

 
1-20-15 

 
Option to renew for 

three additional 1 year 
periods 

 
Gila County has a contract with Technical 
Resource Management, Inc. d/b/a 
Norchem Drug Testing.  Technical 
Resource Management, Inc. has recently 
changed their structure to evolve from 
an Arizona corporation to a Delaware 
LLC and have changed their name to 
Technical Resource Management, LLC. 
 

 
37473CONSVR 
HOV Services  

 

 
Support & Maintenance 

Agreement No. 
37473CONSVR 

 

 
$850.00 

 
01-19-15 to 01-18-16 

 
1-20-15 

 
Expires 

 
Support and maintenance agreement for 
the Minolta RP603Z Microfilm Reader 
Printer Minolta FC5 Fiche Carrier. A 
microfilm reader for the Recorder’s 
Office. 
 

 
011013-1 

High County Drywall 
LLC  

 

 
Service Contract No. 

011013-1 
High County Drywall 

Miscellaneous Drywall 
Repairs in Payson, Pine and 

Star Valley 

 

 
$2,000.00 

 
01-23-15 to 01-22-16 

 
1-20-15 

 
Expires 

 
Amendment No. 2 is to extend the 
contract for one year. Sometimes the 
Facilities department needs extra help 
with drywall or painting in the Payson 
area. It is less expensive at times to hire 
someone to do the labor, so the other 
maintenance can be done. 
 

 
022313 

Atwell, Inc. 

 

 
Amendment No. 3 to 
Professional Services 
Contract No. 022313 

Consulting Services for 
Landfills 

 

 

 
Increase 
contract 

amount by 
$2,350.15 

for a new total 
contract 

amount of 
$34,350.15 

 

 
03-13-14 to 03-14-15 

 
1-21-15 

 
Expires 

 
Amendment No. 3 has been issued to 
cover additional cost for Miscellaneous 
Solid Waste Consulting from December 1, 
2014 to December 31, 2014. 

 

 
 
 



  
Page 2 

 
  

 
 
 
January 19, 2015 to January 23, 2015 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

121214-2IBR 
American Fence Co. of 

Arizona  

 

 
Contract No. 121214-2IBR 

Storage Yard Fencing 

 

 
$13,750.00 

 
2-9-15 to 3-26-15 

 
1-20-15 

 
Expires 

 
Before opening the new Copper Admin 
facility, we will require moving the fuel 
station from the current location to the 
lot on South Street to allow for better 
traffic flow around the new building.  
There are several County storage 
containers in the lower lot that will have 
to be relocated and Hope Lane seems to 
be the most logical location. 
 

 
 
 
 
January 26, 2015 to January 30, 2015 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

010815 
Willdan Homeland 

Solutions 

 

 
Contract No. 010715 

Emergency Management 
Program Consultation 

Services for Wildfire Plans 

 

 
$45,000.00 

 
1-7-15 to 6-30-15 

 
1-28-15 

 
Expires 

 
In accordance with a grant awarded to 
Emergency Services, the County Health 
and Emergency Services division is 
hiring consultation services for planning 
deliverables required by the Arizona 
Department of Emergency Management.  
The contractor will assist with the 
coordination and collaboration efforts of 
Emergency Services to meet the 
requirements.  The overall goal will be to 
contribute to the development of 
emergency plans that achieve best 
practice emergency outcomes, based on 
federal regulations and client expertise 
and experience relative to evidence-
based disaster planning. 
 

 
 
 
 



  
Page 3 

 
  

 
 
 
January 26, 2015 to January 30, 2015 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

121114IBR 
Loyd’s Marine 

 

 
Contract No. 121114IBR 

Furnish & Install New 
Outboard Motor for 2006 

25’ Triton Boat 

 

 
$22,700.26 

 
1-28-15 to 6-30-15 

 
1-28-15 

 
Expires 

 
Honda Outboard Boat Motor for B07-
Sheriff’s Office Boat at the Roosevelt Sub 
Station. This is a Patrol boat for 
Roosevelt Lake  

 
ADSPO12-016669 
Midway Chevrolet 

 

 
Authorization to utilize 

State Contract with 
Midway Chevrolet 

 

 
$38,635.61 

 
Contract ends upon 
delivery of vehicle 

 
1-27-15 

 
Expires 

 
The Sheriff’s Office Task Force is in need 
of a new K-9 vehicle to replace the old 
vehicle to serve and protect the citizens 
of Gila County. 
 

 
121014-3 

Jean Turney-Shaw 

 

 
Professional Service 

Agreement No. 121014-3 
Family Planning Consulting 

Services 

 

 
Not to exceed 

$5,000.00 

 
1-1-15 to 12-31-15 

 
1-28-15 

 
Option to renew for two 

additional 1 year 
periods 

 
Contractor will provide family planning 
services to clients that meet criteria. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 






















































































































































































	Agenda
	 Item 2.A. - Community Development Block Grant State Special Projects Application for FY 2014 funds
	Att1_FY 14_15 CDBG SSP Application
	Att2_Resolution No. 15-02-01
	Att3_Resolution No. 15-02-02
	Att4_Resolution No. 15-02-03
	Att5_2014 CDBG Disclosure Report
	Att6_OOHR Housing Rehab Guidelines
	Att7_CDBG Public Hearing Notice
	Att8_CDBG Application Certification
	 Item 3.A. - Resolution No. 15-02-07 and Intergovernmental Services Agreement between Sheriff's Office and Tonto Apache Tribe
	Att1_Intergovernmental Services Agreement
	Att2_Resolution No. 15-02-07
	Att3_TAT Resolution 15-04
	Att4_Legal Explanation
	 Item 3.B. - Governor's Office of Highway Safety FY2016 Mobile Traffic Systems Grant Application 
	Att1_Grant Application
	Att2_Quote
	 Item 3.C. - Begin Road Abandonment Process for Road and Alley in the Midland City Subdivision
	Att1_Abandonment Area
	Att2_Midland City Plat Map
	Att3_Abandonment Map
	 Item 3.D. - Intergovernmental Agreement No. 111414 - City of Globe
	Att1_IGA No. 111414-City of Globe
	Att2_Legal Explanation
	 Item 3.E. - Suddenlink Agreement for a 100 Mb Point-to-Point Connection between Globe and Payson
	Att1_Customer Service Order and Agreement
	Att2_Legal Explanation
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	 Item 3.F. - Approval to proceed with the acquisition of the property at 1309 S. South Street in Globe, AZ
	Att1_Appraisal for 1309 S. South Street
	 Item 3.G. - Approval of Agreement No. 122314-1 with the Globe-Miami Regional Chamber of Commerce
	Att1_Agreement 122314-1 with the Globe-Miami Regional Chamber of Commerce
	Att2_Request for Financial Assistance
	Att3_Legal Explanation
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	 Item 3.H. - Empire CAT Proposal 302-01 for 2015 CT660S SBA 6x4 Roll-On_Roll-Off Truck
	Att1_Empire Cat Proposal No. 302-01
	Att2_Empire Cat Proposal No. 344-01
	Att3_City of Tucson Heavy Equipment RFP
	 LOCATION: CITY HALL, FINANCE CONFERENCE ROOM 
	NATIONAL CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS 
	A. Method of Approach 
	III. GENERAL 
	A. Shortlist: 
	   
	B. Interviews/Demonstrations: 
	 The City reserves the right to conduct interviews and/or product demonstrations with some or all of the offerors at any point during the evaluation process. However, the City may determine that interviews and/or demonstrations are not necessary. In the event these are conducted, information provided during the interview and/or demonstration process shall be taken into consideration when evaluating the stated criteria. The City shall not reimburse the offeror for the costs associated with the interview and/or demonstration process. 

	2.3 Sales Commitment 
	Date  
	 
	 
	 


	Att4_City of Tucson Heavy Equipment RFP Amendment 1
	REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL AMENDMENT 

	Att5_City of Tucson Heavy Equipment RFP-Amendment 2
	REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL AMENDMENT 
	 REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL AMENDMENT 
	 REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL AMENDMENT 

	Att6_City of Tucson Proof of Advertising
	Proof of Advertising - Hawaii
	Proof of Advertising - Oregon
	Proof of Advertising - South Carolina
	Proof of Advertising - Washington

	Att7_City of Tucson Contract with CAT
	Contract Amendment 4 - Renewal
	Amendment 3 - Discount & Freight Updates
	Discounts
	Freight Matrix

	Amendment 2 - Non-Cat products
	Amendment 1 - updated equip, pricing & freight
	Contract
	National Contract
	Scope of Services
	Product Offering
	Dealer Services
	Training

	Special Terms & Conditions
	Term & Renewal

	Standard Terms & Conditions
	Offer & Acceptance
	Attachment A
	Attachment B - Warranties 

	RFP
	NATIONAL CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS
	SCOPE OF SERVICES
	PROPOSAL EVALUATION REQUIREMENTS
	SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
	TERM AND RENEWAL

	STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
	Attachment A - National IPA

	RFP Amendment 2
	RFP Amendment 1

	Att8_Contract Amendment No. 1
	Att9_Contract Amendment No. 2
	Att10_Contract Amendment No. 3
	Att11_Contract Amendment No. 4
	Att12_Contract Amendment No. 5
	Att13_Contract Amendment No. 6
	Att14_Contract Amendment No. 7
	Att15_National IPA Terms and Conditions
	Att16_NIPA Current Participating Agencies
	 Item 4.A. - Intergovernmental Agreement Contract No. KR13-0132 Amendment _1 for Title I and Other Associated Funds for Juvenile Detention Education Services
	Att1_Amendment _1 to IGA _KR13-0132
	Att2_Exhibit A-1 Budget Allocation
	Att3_Exhibit A-2 Budget Description
	Att4_IGA KR13-0132
	Att5_Legal Explanation
	 Item 4.B. - Intergovernmental Agreement Amendment No.1 (Contract No. ADHS13-028437) with Arizona Department of Health Services
	Att1_Amendment No. 1
	Att2_Original Contract
	Att3_Legal Explanation
	 Item 4.C. - Intergovernmental Agreement between Gila County and the Town of Kearny
	Att1_IGA-Town of Kearny
	Att2_Legal Explanation
	 Item 4.D. - Independent Contractor Agreement 2015 Utility Assistance Programs Contract No. 01142015
	Att1_2015 Utility Assistance Program Contract 01142015
	Att2_Exhibit B
	Att3_Exhibit A
	Att4_Legal Explanation
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	 Item 4.E. - Memorandum of Understanding between Gila County and Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce
	Att1_MOU-Greater Florence
	Att2_Legal Explanation
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	 Item 4.F. - Subgrantee Agreement No. 14-AZDOHS-HSGP-140302-02 for Critical Incident Responder Safety and Health-Dive Team
	Att1_Subgrantee Agreement No. 14-AZDOHS-HSGP-140302-02
	Att2_Award Letter
	Att3_Grant Program Application 
	Att4_Legal Explanation
	 Item 4.G. - Subgrantee Agreement No. 14-AZDOHS-HSGP-140302-01 for Communications Upgrade-Dispatch
	Att1_Sub Grantee Agreement Reallocation No. 13-AZDOHS-HSGP-130302-01
	Att2_Award Letter 
	Att3_Grant Program Application 
	Att4_Legal Explanation
	 Item 4.H. - Subgrantee Agreement-Reallocation No. 13-AZDOHS-HSGP-130301-02 for Communications Upgrade-Dispatch
	Att1_Sub Grantee Agreement Reallocation No. 13-AZDOHS-HSGP-130301-02
	Att2_Award Letter
	Att3_Grant Program Application 
	Att4_Legal Explanation
	 Item 4.I. - Appointment of Precinct Committeemen to the Gila County Republican Party
	Att1_Rep PC
	Att2_Statute
	 Item 4.J. - January 2015
	Att1_Globe Regional Constable's Office Montly Report for January 2015
	 Item 4.K. - January 2015
	Att1_Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for January 2015
	 Item 4.L. - January 20, 2015
	Att1_BOS 01-20-15 Meeting Minutes
	 Item 4.M. - January 23, 2015_ and January 30, 2015
	Att1_Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under 50,000 for Weeks Ending 1-23-15 and 1-30-15
	Att2_Amendment to acknowledge Norchem name change
	Att3_Support and Maintenance Agreement _37473CONSVR-HOV Services
	Att4_Amendment _2-High Country Drywall
	Att5_Amendment 3-Atwell Group
	Att6_Contract No. 121214-2-American Fence
	Att7_Contract No. 010815-Willdan Homeland Solutions
	Att8_Contract No. 121114IBR-Loyds Marine
	Att9ization to utilize State Contract with Midway Chevrolet
	Att10_Professional Service Agreement No. 121014-3-Jean Turney-Shaw

